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CHARACTERISTICS OF GEM OF THE STOCK EXCHANGE OF HONG KONG LIMITED (THE
“STOCK EXCHANGE”)

GEM has been positioned as a market designed to accommodate small and mid-sized companies to which
a higher investment risk may be attached than other companies listed on the Stock Exchange. Prospective
investors should be aware of the potential risks of investing in such companies and should make the
decision to invest only after due and careful consideration.

Given that the companies listed on GEM are generally small and mid-sized companies, there is a risk that
securities traded on GEM may be more susceptible to high market volatility than securities traded on the
Main Board and no assurance is given that there will be a liquid market in the securities traded on GEM.

Hong Kong Exchanges and Clearing Limited and the Stock Exchange take no responsibility for the contents of this
report, make no representation as to its accuracy or completeness and expressly disclaim any liability whatsoever for
any loss howsoever arising from or in reliance upon the whole or any part of the contents of this report.

This report, for which the directors (the “Directors”) of Sinofortune Financial Holdings Limited (the “Company”,
together with its subsidiaries, the “Group”) collectively and individually accept full responsibility, includes particulars
given in compliance with the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on GEM of the Stock Exchange (the “GEM
Listing Rules”) for the purpose of giving information with regard to the Company. The Directors, having made all
reasonable enquiries, confirm that to the best of their knowledge and belief the information contained in this report is
accurate and complete in all material respects and not misleading or deceptive, and there are no other matters the
omission of which would make any statement herein or this report misleading.

FEEBESXSMARAE ([BXF]) GEMBEE

GEMBIEM  DAT/PMEATRHK—ELTHOTHS LEATHLERMBERIM LTHATNEARSRERLRE-
AFERENMATETHRRERZFATNEEA IR LRECAEHAFNEEESEHIRERE -

HRGEMLHTASEEAP/MEAT AGEMEBEMNEHTREBNIREBEZIHFRIBXN TR R ER B
HEEZREECGEMEENESERASREENTIS

BERGREENMERAFARBETH A B EZABHTRE B HEE X 7B T RKANTJEY WX
T BT EAER IR E 2 B A(F 57 & T A 2 B 1 REAZ 5 A BT 51 B2 (1] R K AASE (LI & AT »

AR A E R TSR T GEMEE SR E TR ([GEM_E TR ) mTI# - B e R BFEEFFEBAR LA ([
DAl BRREMEL A [ REE])EH  ARACEE ([EF))BERAEEZ0)ER AR REFHAETEHE
E-EEFLEFL —EEEHRE BRRETHARG N BEETEENEEEZE, HTEEETHE REREL
HEFH 7 BIEERTAMER EUSHANEE HETEANANTRAELRE -



Corporate Information

Chief Executive’s Statement

Directors and Senior Management Profile
Directors’ Report

Corporate Governance Report

Environmental, Social and Governance Report
Independent Auditor’s Report

Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and Other
Comprehensive Income

Consolidated Statements of Financial Position
Consolidated Statements of Changes in Equity
Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Financial Summary

FHEREMERAT | —EB-NEFH

AREHR

Zl

THRERRE
EELRARAEEABRE
E=eRS
TEEEARS

RE - He@hEARE
¥8 3 A2 BB

ReEEmMEME2ERARE

e MBI R

RERBEBHHRR

2= A PN}
%Uxé\iﬁiwbg

REMBRRME

MBEHE

CONTENTS
B %

14
18
34
47
85

93

95
97
98
100

244



CoRPORATE INFORMATION
N AEH

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS
Wang Jiawei (Chairman and Chief Executive Officer)
Lai Yuk Mui

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR
Liu Runtong

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS
Zhang Benzheng

Li Jianxing

Chen Shu Wen

COMPLIANCE OFFICER
Lai Yuk Mui

COMPANY SECRETARY
Woo Man Yi

COMPOSITION OF BOARD COMMITTEES
Audit Committee

Li Jianxing (Chairman)

Zhang Benzheng

Chen Shu Wen

Remuneration Committee
Zhang Benzheng (Chairman)
Wang Jiawei

Lai Yuk Mui

Li Jianxing

Chen Shu Wen

Nomination Committee
Zhang Benzheng (Chairman)
Wang Jiawei

Li Jianxing

Chen Shu Wen

REGISTERED OFFICE
Cricket Square

Hutchins Drive, P.O. Box 2681
Grand Cayman, KY1-1111
Cayman Islands

PITESE
ITRE (ETERTEARE)
RE1E

EBITES
2 B

BIABTESE
RANIE
FEIT
FR 18 X

BEEEE

X1

ATHRE
e

EFEESZERERE
EXZEET
FRT(EE)
SRAIE

BR 18 X

FMESE
SRAILE (/)
TEE
RE1E

FELT

R #i1 3

REZEET
RAIE (/)
ITHRE
FET

R #4132

ot i 3% 55 B2

Cricket Square

Hutchins Drive, P.O. Box 2681
Grand Cayman, KY1-1111
Cayman Islands

Sinofortune Financial Holdings Limited | Annual Report 2019



HEAD OFFICE AND PRINCIPAL PLACE OF BUSINESS
16th Floor, CMA Building

No. 64-66 Connaught Road Central

Hong Kong

COMPANY WEBSITE
www.sinofortune.hk

STOCK CODE
08123

PRINCIPAL BANKER
OCBC Wing Hang Bank Limited
161 Queen’s Road Central
Hong Kong

AUDITORS

CHENG & CHENG LIMITED

Certified Public Accountants

Level 35, Tower 1, Enterprise Square Five
38 Wang Chiu Road, Kowloon Bay
Kowloon, Hong Kong

LEGAL ADVISERS

On Hong Kong Law

Tso Au Yim & Yeung Solicitors
2nd Floor, Beautiful Group Tower
74-77 Connaught Road Central
Hong Kong

PRINCIPAL SHARE REGISTRAR AND
TRANSFER OFFICE

Royal Bank of Canada Trust Company
(Cayman) Limited

4th Floor, Royal Bank House

24 Shedden Road, George Town

Grand Cayman KY1-1110, Cayman Islands

HONG KONG BRANCH SHARE REGISTRAR
AND TRANSFER OFFICE

Hong Kong Registrars Limited

46th Floor, Hopewell Centre

183 Queen’s Road East

Wanchai, Hong Kong

ERETEEEEARAT | ZE-NFFH

CORPORATE INFORMATION
nAER

EMEEREESEME
BB

T 8 F64-6657
g K E161E

AT U

www.sinofortune.hk

B 153 X350k
08123

EEFERBIT
EEFEKFRITERA
BB
EFREF1615E

% 2B
B SO EHEMERDF]
X EGETHED
RN

72 R IR 1B 385
b3 E 55 871 FE351E

EREAM
BEABBERE

B RS 2T
a5
IR T ERERT74-TT5
ZEEEBANE2E

Rz 15338 5 & S 48 52

Royal Bank of Canada Trust Company
(Cayman) Limited

4th Floor, Royal Bank House

24 Shedden Road, George Town

Grand Cayman KY1-1110, Cayman Islands

FERGBFEEL DR

BEAEBEBILERA
BBBT

2R KER1835
A MR 4618



CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S STATEMENT
ITH & FHBE

BUSINESS REVIEW

The Group for the year ended 31 December 2019 recorded total
revenue of approximately HK$326.2 million, which was a decrease of
approximately HK$15.2 million compared with the last corresponding
year. It was due to a record of sales of motor vehicles and provision
of agency services segment approximately HK$325.1 million for
the year ended 31 December 2019, compared with approximately
HK$340.0 million for the previous year, representing a decrease of
approximately HK$14.9 million.

As disclosed in the Company’s announcement dated 15 July 2019,
there was an unexpected early adoption of government policy in
relation to automobile emission standard in the PRC. Such policy
imposed a negative influence on the customers purchase desire and
the motor vehicles’ market prices which resulted in the decreasing
in sales of motor vehicles. In addition, the economic uncertainty
bought by the Sino-US trade war has further weakened the domestic
demand for the expensive goods as motor vehicles. Therefore,
the Group has been adopting a more conservative and tightened
approach in the development and the investments and acquisitions
of business related to the motor vehicle business of the Group.
The Group is adjusting its business strategies and exploring other
business sectors and opportunities in order to maximize the gain
to the Group. After considering the Company’s decision to divert
the Group’s resources to invest in the new medicine development
market in the PRC through its investment in the limited partnership
(A HEEELEEIEF D transliterated as Chengdu Lan Bao Zhen
Business Management Centre) (“Limited Partnership”), instead of
looking for opportunities in investments and acquisitions of business
related to the motor vehicle business of the Group.

On 9 September 2019, FIEEBAVREEBRBFR QA
(transliterated as Shenzhen Huayi Biotechnology Group Company
Limited), a direct wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, entered
into the limited partnership agreement with the general partner ( i
EREE i EE W A0 transliterated as Chengdu Lan Bao Kun
Business Management Center) (“General Partner”). Pursuant to the
limited partnership agreement, the parties thereto agreed to, inter
alia, invest in the Limited Partnership with an aggregate capital of
RMB60 million. The capital commitment made by the Group to
the Limited Partnership was RMB30 million, representing 50% of
the total capital commitment made by all partners of the Limited
Partnership.
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CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S STATEMENT

The Limited Partnership has a 90% owned subsidiary, B #B % % %%
RE BRI B A A (transliterated as Chengdu Jia Bao Yao VYin
Medicine Technology Company Limited) (“Chengdu Jia Bao Yao
Yin”), a limited company established in the PRC on 28 August 2019.
The remaining 10% share of Chengdu Jia Bao Yao Yin is owned
by Wei Yuquan, the chief scientist of the General Partner. The
business scope of Chengdu Jia Bao Yao Yin is medical research
and experimental development; medicine technology, biotechnology
research and development, technology promotion, technology
transfer (projects subject to approval according to law may be
commenced after approval by relevant departments).

The Group was informed that on 28 September 2019, Chengdu
Jia Bao Yao Yin entered into a joint development agreement with
its partner to co-operate in the joint development of three new
medicines in the treatment of lymphoma, cell tumors and colorectal
cancer. For more details, please refer to the announcements of the
Company dated 9 September 2019, 17 September 2019 and 15
October 2019.

For proprietary stock trading, the Group recorded an unrealised loss
of approximately HK$0.5 million and realised gain of approximately
HK$0.5 million for the year ended 31 December 2019.

Given that the performances of the business of Sinofortune
Securities Limited have not been satisfactory and have been
continuously operating at a loss. On 20 December 2019, Sinofortune
Financial Holdings (BVI) Limited, a wholly-owned subsidiary of the
Company and ATIF Limited entered into a conditional sale and
purchase agreement in respect of the disposal of 67,000,000
issued shares of Sinofortune Securities Limited and the unsecured
interest bearing subordinated loan in the sum of HK$10.0 million
advanced by the Company to Sinofortune Securities Limited at a
consideration of HK$5.7 million plus the aggregate amount of the
total equity of the Sinofortune Securities Limited and the principal of
the subordinated loan as at the completion date.

The Group is expected to book a profit in the amount of
approximately HK$5.0 million in respect of the disposal. The
Directors consider that the disposal is a good opportunity to
dispose of its non-profitable business and reallocate its resources
to the Group’s new investment in the new medicine development
market in the PRC with the hope that it will enhance the Company’s
competitiveness in the new medicine development market in the
PRC.
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CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S STATEMENT
ITH & FHBE

For the segment of trading of electronic products, electronic student
cards and school safety products and provision of electronic student
card platform, the Group disposed of its entire equity interest in J&3|
mAREBRE AR AT (transliterated as Shenzhen Star Technology
Co., Ltd) at a cash consideration of approximately RMB2.4 million in
October 2019 and thereby by discontinued such segment.

FINANCIAL REVIEW

Results of the Group

The Group recorded total revenue of approximately HK$326.2 million
for the year ended 31 December 2019 as compared to total revenue
of approximately HK$341.4 million for the previous year, representing
a decrease of approximately HK$15.2 million or approximately 4.5%.
The decrease of revenue was primarily due to the decrease in sales
of motor vehicles business in PRC.

The Group recorded a loss for the year amounted to approximately
HK$133.6 million, compared with a loss of approximately HK$31.8
million for the corresponding year, representing an increase of
loss of approximately HK$101.8 million. The loss of the year
encompassed an unrealised fair value losses on securities trading of
approximately HK$0.5 million and realised gains on securities trading
of approximately HK$0.5 million, compared with unrealised fair value
losses on securities trading of approximately HK$6.5 million for the
previous yeatr.

As management consider that the loss of provisions which included
the loss on onerous contracts in the sales of motor vehicles and
provision of agency services segment of approximately HK$16.1
million and the provision of litigation compensation for motor vehicles
business of approximately HK$5.8 million for the year under review.

In addition, the Company disposed a subsidiary during the year and
recorded such disposal loss of approximately HK$4.4 million for the
year under review.
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CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S STATEMENT

Liquidity and financial resources

The Group’s current assets as at 31 December 2019 amounted
to approximately HK$239.9 million compared with approximately
HK$381.4 million as at 31 December 2018 and the liquidity of the
Group, as demonstrated by the current ratio (current assets/current
liabilities) was 3.9 times, compared with 12.4 times for previous year.
Among them, the financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
were approximately HK$1.4 million (2018: approximately HK$27.8
million). The financial assets invested the equity securities listed in
Hong Kong. As at 31 December 2019, the Group’s cash and bank
balances were approximately HK$118.8 million (2018: approximately
HK$161.4 million) of which approximately HK$5.7 million (2018:
approximately HK$8.3 million) were held on behalf of clients in trust
and segregated accounts.

As at 31 December 2019, the Group’s total borrowing amounted to
approximately HK$2.4 million (2018: approximately HK$4.5 million),
of which, approximately HK$2.2 million (2018: approximately HK$2.1
million) was repayable within one year. The bank borrowings were
secured by charges over the Group’s leasehold land and buildings
as well as corporate guarantee issued by the Company. The gearing
ratio of the Group as at 31 December 2019 (calculated by the total
liabilities of approximately HK$66.9 million over equity attributable
to the owners of the Company of approximately HK$238.5 million)
is 28.1% (2018: 9.3%). Taking into account of the amount of liquid
assets in hand, the Broad is of the view that the Group has sufficient
financial resources for future development of the existing business of
the Group and other business when investment opportunities arise.

The equity attributable to the owners of the Company amounted
to approximately HK$238.5 million as at 31 December 2019,
representing a decrease of approximately HK$126.1 million, or
34.6% from that of 31 December 2018. The decrease was mainly
due to loss for the year attributable to the owners of the Company.

The Group manages the foreign exchange exposure arising from
its normal course of business activities and investments in foreign
operations by funding its local operations and investments through
cash flow generated from business transaction locally. As at the end
of the year, the Group did not have any material un-hedged foreign
exchange exposure of interest rate mismatch. Foreign currency
exposure did not pose a significant risk for the Group. However, we
will continue to stay vigilant and closely monitor our exposure to
movements of relevant currency.
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CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S STATEMENT
ITH & FHBE

Capital structure
As at 31 December 2019, the Company’s issued share capital was
7,748,958,120 shares of HK$0.01 each.

Sales of motor vehicles and provision of agency services

It recorded approximately HK$325.1 million of revenue for the year
under review compared with approximately HK$340.0 million for
the same period last year. It is principally engaged in motor vehicles
business in PRC, in particular, sales of motor vehicles and motor
vehicles parts. For the year under review, with concerns over the
economic outlook amid the ongoing Sino-US trade war, and the
uncertainty over Brexit, global economic growth slowed down. In
addition, the change in government policies in relation to automobile
emission standard in the PRC, it led to a slowdown in the sales
of motor vehicles and incurred an operating loss of approximately
HK$84.5 million for the year, compared with loss of approximately
HK$6.7 million for the last corresponding period. The loss took in
the year included the loss on onerous contracts of approximately
HK$16.1 million and the provision of litigation compensation for
motor vehicles business of approximately HK$5.8 million for the year
under review.

Brokerage and securities margin financing service

Total revenue of this segment recorded approximately HK$1.0
million for the year ended 31 December 2019, compared with
approximately HK$1.2 million for the same period last year,
This segment loss approximately HK$2.8 million while loss of
approximately HK$3.7 million for the last corresponding period.

Trading and principal investments

The securities trading recorded a realised gain of approximately
HK$0.5 million for the year ended 31 December 2019, compared
with no realised gain or loss recorded in previous year. It recorded
an unrealised fair value losses of approximately HK$0.5 million for
the year under review, compared with an unrealised fair value losses
of approximately HK$6.5 million of the previous year. This segment
showed an operating loss of approximately HK$6.9 million for the
year 31 December 2019 and it recorded a loss of approximately
HK$13.3 million last year.
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CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S STATEMENT

Precious metals spot trading and brokerage services

No commission income was received during the year under review.
[t was mainly attributable to the tightened policy of the PRC
Government on regulating the precious metals trading and brokerage
business in the PRC in which the Group operated. It reported an
operating loss of approximately HK$0.1 million for the year ended 31
December 2019, as compared to an operating loss of approximately
HK$0.2 million for the previous year.

Provision of stock information and research services

No consultancy fee income was received during the year under
review compared with approximately HK$0.2 million for the same
period last year. No operating loss was recorded for the year,
compared with loss of approximately HK$6.0 million of last year.

Trading of electronic products, electronic student cards and
school safety products and provision of electronic student
card platform

This segment recorded approximately HK$3.1 million of revenue
for the year under review compared with approximately HK$3.4
million for the same period last year. It is principally engaged
in development and exploration of various telecommunication
technologies in the PRC, in particular, electronic products and
electronic student card for school safety network. It reported
an operating loss of approximately HK$9.1 million for the vyear,
compared with loss of approximately HK$1.8 million for the last
corresponding period. In October 2019, the Group disposed of its
segment and thereby by discontinued this segment of the Group.

CHARGES ON ASSETS

Leasehold land and buildings of the Group with a carrying amount of
approximately HK$25.9 million (2018: approximately HK$27.6 million)
were pledged for banking facilities granted to the Group.

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

As at 31 December 2019, the Group did not have any contingent
liabilities (2018: Nil).
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CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S STATEMENT
ITH & FHBE

MATERIAL ACQUISITION AND DISPOSAL OF
SUBSIDIARIES/FUTURE PLAN FOR MATERIAL
INVESTMENTS

Disposal of Sinofortune Securities Limited

On 20 December 2019, Sinofortune Financial Holdings (BVI) Limited,
a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company and ATIF Limited entered
into a conditional sale and purchase agreement in respect of the
disposal of 67,000,000 issued shares of Sinofortune Securities
Limited and the unsecured interest bearing subordinated loan in the
sum of HK$10.0 million advanced by the Company to Sinofortune
Securities Limited at a consideration of HK$5.7 million plus the
aggregate amount of the total equity of the Sinofortune Securities
Limited and the principal of the subordinated loan as at the
completion date.

ATIF Limited is a direct wholly-owned subsidiary of ATIF Holdings
Limited, a Nasdaqg listed company with Nasdaq Ticker: ATIF. For
more details, please refer to the Company’s announcements dated
10 December 2019, 20 December 2019 and 24 December 2019.

Disposal of F#illTH X EER K H R AT (Transliterated as
Shenzhen Star Technology Co., Ltd)

In October 2019, the Group disposed of its entire equity interest
in I THREBREFLABR DA (transliterated as Shenzhen Star
Technology Co., Ltd) at a cash consideration of approximately
RMB2.4 million. ®ITREBREBR QA (transliterated as
Shenzhen Star Technology Co., Ltd) is engaged in trading of
electronic products, electronic student cards and school safety
products and provision of electronic student card platform in the
PRC.

Investment in B BERT L EEE DD (Transliterated as

Chengdu Lan Bao Zhen Business Management Centre)

On 9 September 2019, FIEREVER K EBMBR QA
(transliterated as Shenzhen Huayi Biotechnology Group Company
Limited), a direct wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, entered
into the limited partnership agreement with the general partner ( i
EREL f i > B 1 AR 0 transliterated as Chengdu Lan Bao Kun
Business Management Center) (“General Partner”). Pursuant to
the limited partnership agreement, the parties thereto agreed to,
inter alia, invest in the limited partnership (X EPEEE D EEE
Ly transliterated as Chengdu Lan Bao Zhen Business Management
Centre) (“Limited Partnership”) with an aggregate capital of RMB60
million. The capital commitment made by the Group to the Limited
Partnership was RMB30 million, representing 50% of the total capital
commitment made by all partners of the Limited Partnership.
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CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S STATEMENT

The Limited Partnership has a 90% owned subsidiary, X &3z {5 %
RE BRI AR A A (transliterated as Chengdu Jia Bao Yao VYin
Medicine Technology Company Limited) (“Chengdu Jia Bao Yao
Yin”), a limited company established in the PRC on 28 August 2019.
The remaining 10% share of Chengdu Jia Bao Yao Yin is owned
by Wei Yuquan, the chief scientist of the General Partner. The
business scope of Chengdu Jia Bao Yao Yin is medical research
and experimental development; medicine technology, biotechnology
research and development, technology promotion, technology
transfer (projects subject to approval according to law may be
commenced after approval by relevant departments).

The Group was informed that on 28 September 2019, Chengdu
Jia Bao Yao Yin entered into a joint development agreement with
its partner to co-operate in the joint development of three new
medicines in the treatment of lymphoma, cell tumors and colorectal
cancer. For more details, please refer to the announcements of the
Company dated 9 September 2019, 17 September 2019 and 15
October 2019.

Save as disclosed, there was no other material acquisition/disposal
which would have been required to be disclosed under the GEM
Listing Rules for the year under review and the Group has no
concrete plans for other material investments.

EMPLOYEE INFORMATION

As at 31 December 2019, the Group had a workforce of 90
employees (2018: 91). The total staff costs, including directors’
emoluments, amounted to approximately HK$23.6 million for the
year ended 31 December 2019 (2018: approximately HK$20.9
million). The Group’s remuneration policies are reviewed on an
annual basis and commensurate with the industry pay level. The
remuneration package includes basic salary, provident fund, medical
benefits and discretionary bonus. The Group has also adopted a new
share option scheme as an added incentive for its employees.
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CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S STATEMENT
ITH & FHBE

OUTLOOK

As at 31 December 2019, almost 99.7% revenue of the Group came
from the segment of sales of motor vehicles and provision of agency
services in the PRC.

As disclosed in the circular of the Company dated 19 March 2018,
the motor vehicles business has a risk of reliance on a small number
of customers. As at 31 December 2019, Sheng Yu Hong Jia has
improved its number of customers and increased to 33 customers
and with 27 customers in the progress of negotiation. Sheng Yu
Hong Jia will strive to increase more customers to reduce the level of
reliance in the future.

Although the motor vehicles business of the Group is affected by
the uncertainty created by the on-going Sino-US trade war and the
impact of the PRC government policy, the Group will closely monitor
the business environment and the changes of the PRC government
policy in order to make appropriate business strategies.

After the three years’ efforts since the implementation of the 13th
Five-Year Plan (2016-2020), the PRC has been reforming the
regulatory landscape in the pharmaceutical industry leading it has
a steady growth in the past few years, especially for major new
medicines development like the promotion of more lifesaving and
safe medicines to be listed and included in medical insurance.
Therefore, the Company decided to divert the Group’s resources to
invest in the new medicine development market in the PRC through
its investment in a limited partnership which can attain diversification
of the Group’s business.

The Group is optimistic and confident in the prospects of the China
and Hong Kong stock markets and will continue to develop other
businesses and seek opportunities to expand its revenue sources to
enhance the Group's revenue.
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CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S STATEMENT

Since January 2020, the outbreak of Novel Coronavirus (“COVID-19")
has impact on the global business environment. Up to the date of
these financial statements, COVID-19 has not resulted in material
impact to the Group. Pending on the development and spread of
COVID-19 subsequent to the date of these financial statements,
further changes in economic conditions for the Group arising
thereof may have impact on the financial statements of the Group,
the extent of which could not be estimated as at the date of these
financial statements. The Group will keep continuous attention on
the situation of the COVID-19 and react actively to its impact on the
financial position and operating results of the Group.

| would like to take this opportunity to thank our shareholders, Board
of Directors, our staff and business partners for their continuous
support and commitment.

By order of the Board
Wang Jiawei

Chairman

Hong Kong, 20 March 2020
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DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT PROFILE

EEREREBAERE

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Wang Jiawei (Former name: Wang Xufeng), aged 33, has
been an executive Director, a member of nomination committee
of the Company since May 2013. Mr. Wang was also appointed
as the chairman and chief executive officer of the Company and a
member of remuneration committee of the Company with effect from
22 September 2015. He is a director of various subsidiaries of the
Group. Mr. Wang obtained a Bachelor of Science in Mathematics
at Imperial College London in the United Kingdom in 2009 and a
Master of Science in Finance at City University London in the United
Kingdom in 2010. From October 2010 to July 2011, he was a
market analyst of the investment department in Shenzhen Shouguan
Investment Co., Limited in the PRC. Since August 2011, Mr. Wang
has been a manager of Sinofortune Securities Limited, a subsidiary
of the Group. Mr. Wang is also the director of Victor Creation Global
Limited from August 2014 and Elpis Capital from September 2014.

Ms. Lai Yuk Mui, aged 50, has been an executive Director of the
Company since 1 August 2015 and she was appointed as a member
of remuneration committee of the Company with effect from 22
September 2015. She is a director of various subsidiaries of the
Group. Ms. Lai received her Bachelor of Arts Degree in Financial
Services from Edinburgh Napier University in Scotland. Ms. Lai
joined the Company on 14 July 2008 as the executive secretary and
has been promoted to the Head of Personnel and Administration
Department of the Company since 13 February 2009.
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DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT PROFILE
EERSREEBAERERF

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR

Mr. Liu Runtong, aged 46, was appointed as a non-executive
Director of the Company on 2 February 2010. Mr. Liu obtained
Bachelor Degree from Department of Chinese of Nankai University
in 1996. He also holds qualifications of economist, registered
securities investment consulting analyst and registered insurance
broker issued by various professional organizations in China. For
the past 21 years, Mr. Liu has held different positions in various
financial media institutions and financial services institutions
in Mainland China. During his tenure from 1998 to 2002 as a
responsible person for marketing the newspaper “Securities Times”,
he participated in establishing the “Panorama Network” (www.
p5w.net), a well-known securities website in China and acted as
its major responsible person. In 2000, he acted as consultant in
establishing and operating the program “Securities Times” produced
by “China Central Television”. From 2002 to 2007, he served as
“Program Supervisor” in “Shenzhen Stock Exchange Shenzhen
Securities Information Co., Ltd”, where he participated in setting up
and managing “Trading Day”, the 24-hour PRC program regarding
securities. Because of his outstanding performance, he was elected
as one of the “Ten Best Staff” of the “Shenzhen Stock Exchange”
in 2004. From 2013 to July 2015, Mr. Liu served Convoy China
Financial Services Holding Ltd as a Vice President. He was the
executive director of Shenzhen Qianhai CONVOY Asset Management
Co., Ltd. from 2013 to July 2015. Mr. Liu has found Shenzhen
Qianhai Yinyan Asset Management Co., Ltd. since 2014 and serves
as the executive director.
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DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT PROFILE

EEREREBAEERE

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Professor Zhang Benzheng, aged 80, has been an independent
non-executive Director of the Company since 30 September 2008
and he was appointed as a chairman of nomination committee and
a member of audit committee of the Company in 2008. He was also
appointed as a member and chairman of remuneration committee
of the Company in 2008 and 2011 respectively. Professor Zhang
graduated with a Bachelor Degree from the Faculty of Engineering
Physics of the Tsinghua University in 1965. He was a visiting
scholar in the Brookhaven National Laboratory of USA and the
Stuttgart University of Germany. He was the vice director of the
Tsinghua University R&D department and the general manager of
Tsinghua University Science and Technology Corporation. During
the period from 1999 to 2002, he held various senior positions in
two companies listed on the Shenzhen Stock Exchange, namely
Tsinghua Unisplendour Limited and Tsinghua Unisplendour Guhan
Group Corporation. He was the chairman and legal representative
of Tsinghua Unisplendour Guhan Group Corporation and president
of Tsinghua Unisplendour Limited before he left these companies in
2002. He then joined Tsinghua Unisplendour (Group) Corporation

in 2002 and was its president until 2004. Professor Zhang was
the general vice president and secretary of the Beijing Non-
Governmental Science & Technology Entrepreneurs Association.
With his remarkable business leadership as well as exploratory
initiatives, Professor Zhang had made tremendous contribution to
the companies he worked for. He has not only gained compliments
from the society at large, but has also won a series of honors.
In 1997, Professor Zhang received the national prize of “The
Third Term Science and Technology Light Award for Outstanding
Scientific and Technological Entrepreneur”. In 2000, he won the
“Hong Kong Bauhinia Cup Outstanding Entrepreneur Award” and
the “Entrepreneurial Talent” award issued by the Beijing Non-
Governmental Science and Technology Entrepreneurs Association.
In 2002, he was selected as the first lot of “Zhongguan Village
Outstanding Entrepreneurs”. Professor Zhang is currently the Chief
Consultant of ZEAR K (L) B EZE#ER AR A A (transliterated
as Ronghui Future (Beijing) Technology Development Co., Ltd.).
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Mr. Li Jianxing, aged 62, has been an independent non-executive
Director, a member of audit committee, nomination committee and
remuneration committee of the Company since 28 March 2011. He
was also appointed as chairman of audit committee of the Company
with effect from 22 September 2015. Mr. Li graduated from Shanghai
Maritime University with a Bachelor Degree in accounting. He also
received a Master Degree in Business Administration from Canisius
College of Buffalo. Mr. Li has over 30-year experience working in
the field of accounting and corporate finance and has substantial
experience in management in various listed companies, investment
business, investor relations and project management. He was the
senior manager of both the investment department and finance
department of China Everbright Holdings Co., Ltd from April 1998
to June 2000. He served as the Chief Finance Officer for Intermost
Corporation from June 2000 to 2003. From April 2003 to May 2004,
he was a General Manager of Investor Relations in China Resources
Power Holdings Co., Ltd. He was a director of Concord Investment
Holdings Limited from 2004 to 2012.

Professor Chen Shu Wen, aged 65, has been an independent
non-executive Director, a member of audit committee, nomination
committee and remuneration committee of the Company since
23 September 2011. Professor Chen graduated from LB & KX
& (Dongbei University of Finance and Economics) with a Bachelor
Degree in Economics and obtained a Master Degree and a PhD
in Economics from F#AKE (Jilin University). He is a qualified
PRC lawyer currently practising at EZE XA ZREHFT (Liaoning
Tianhe Law Firm). Professor Chen has substantial management
and leadership experience serving in the PRC government. He
commenced his career as the deputy county chief of the Benxi
Manchu Autonomous County, Liaoning Province, PRC, in 1992 and
became the director (EE) of XML EEHNELZE L (Benxi
City Commission for Restructuring the Economic Systems) from
1995. He was the vice director general (BIE1E) of AZE % IME
EE 5A1ELZBE (Benxi Foreign Trade & Economic Cooperation
Committee) from 1998 until 2001. From 2001 to 2009, Professor
Chen was the professor and the tutor for doctorate students at A&
BT REEIE SR (Faculty of Management and Economics of Dalian
University of Technology). From 2010 to 2014, he was the dean at
KEIBE T REQNHERELEEL (School of Public Administration
and Law of Dalian University of Technology). From 2010 to now,
Professor Chen has been the professor and the tutor for doctorate
students at K:EE T KB QN HEEIRHAEELT (School of Public
Administration and Law of Dalian University of Technology). He was
an independent director of EFE%RBMHBER A F (Zhangzidao
Group Co. Ltd.) (Shenzhen Stock Exchange Stock Code: 002069)
from 2013 to 2019 and is currently an independent non-executive
director of Weigiao Textile Company Limited (Hong Kong Stock
Exchange Stock Code: 2698).
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DIRECTORS REPORT
EETHRE

The Directors are pleased to present their annual report together
with the audited consolidated financial statements of the Company
and the Group for the year ended 31 December 2019.

CORPORATE INFORMATION
The Company was incorporated on 24 May 2001 as an exempted
company with limited liability in the Cayman Islands under the
Company Law of Cayman lIslands.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Company is an investment holding company. The principal
activities and other particulars of the Company’s subsidiaries are set
out in Note 19 to the consolidated financial statements.

RESULTS AND DIVIDENDS

The results of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2019 are
set out in the Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and Other
Comprehensive Income on pages 93 to 94.

The Directors do not recommend the payment of a dividend nor
transfer of any amount to reserves for the year ended 31 December
2019 (2018: Nil).

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of the movements in property, plant and equipment of the
Group and the Company during the year are set out in Note 15 to
the consolidated financial statements.

SHARE CAPITAL
Details of the movements in share capital of the Company are set out
in Note 36 to the consolidated financial statements.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

Under the Companies Law of the Cayman lIslands, the share
premium of the Company is available for distribution as dividends
to its shareholders subject to the provisions of its Memorandum
and Articles of Association and a statutory solvency test. In
accordance with Article 137 of the Articles of Association of the
Company, dividends may be declared and paid out of the profits of
the Company or from any reserves set aside from profits which the
Directors determine to be no longer needed. With the sanction of
an ordinary resolution, dividends may also be declared or paid out
of share premium account. Accordingly, the Company’s reserves
available for distribution was HK$ nil as at 31 December 2019.
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DIRECTORS
The Directors of the Company during the year and up to the date of
this report were as follows:

Executive Directors
Wang Jiawei (Chairman and Chief Executive Officer)
Lai Yuk Mui

Non-executive Directors
Liu Runtong
James Beeland Rogers Jr. (Resigned on 8 November 2019)

Independent Non-executive Directors
Zhang Benzheng

Li Jianxing

Chen Shu Wen

In accordance with Article 87(1) of the Company’s Articles of
Association, the Directors retiring by rotation at the forthcoming
annual general meeting are Mr. Liu Runtong and Professor Chen
Shu Wen. Both Directors are being eligible for re-election and will
offer themselves for re-election at the forthcoming annual general
meeting. The remaining Directors shall continue to hold office.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

None of the Directors proposed for re-election at the forthcoming
annual general meeting has a service contract with the Company or
any of its subsidiaries which is not determinable by the employing
company within one year without payment of compensation other
than statutory compensation.
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DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S INTERESTS AND
SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES
AND DEBENTURES OF THE COMPANY

As at 31 December 2019, the interests or short positions of the
Directors and chief executive of the Company in the shares,
underlying shares and debentures of the Company or any of its
associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the
Securities and Futures Ordinance (“SFQ”)) which were notified to
the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and
8 of Part XV of the SFO (including interests or short positions which
they are taken or deemed to have taken under such provisions of
the SFO), or which were required, pursuant to Section 352 of the
SFO, to be entered in the register referred to therein, or which were
required, pursuant to Rules 5.46 to 5.67 of the GEM Listing Rules,
to be notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange, were as
follows:

(@) Long positions in shares of the Company

ESRITHAHENRAL S5 - HES
REHZHEBRAXE

RZZE-NFF+_A=+—H EFERELRQH
TREHEARARSEEMEREE (T&
REERBEE ([F5RBEEEN])EXY
) 2B RGO RESFT  HEREE
HFREE R EXVHETRSD BT AR
AN R 2 R EA R (BIERIEE S L
EEPEBEXESHEEGIERE 2 #
BEAR)  WREES R EEH] 35214
BRBNZIG B MRz ESmsAks
HARIBEGEM E TR BISE5.46E5.6718BAE
RRRRBMRAZEEIARBWT

(a) RELFRHBZER

Approximate

Number of percentage of
Name of Directors Capacity shares held shareholding
ESHE S Fris i 8B BAFRE 5L
Wang Jiawei Beneficial owner 2,102,255,935 27.13%
TEE ERnfEEA
Lai Yuk Mui Beneficial owner 2,780,127 0.04%
HE1 BB A
Liu Runtong Beneficial owner 2,646,000 0.03%
28R ERnfEEA

(b) Long positions in underlying shares of the Company

Share option scheme of the Company

The share option scheme adopted by the Company on 17
December 2001 (the “Old Share Option Scheme”) has expired
on 16 December 2011. The Company adopted a new share
option scheme on its annual general meeting held on 21 June
2012 (the “New Share Option Scheme”) which complies with
Chapter 23 of GEM Listing Rules.

(b) MREFLATHEEABRMBZEE

XL EREE
KRABRZEE—F+ATLAEN
ZERETE ([ERRETEHER
—E——FF+Z At NEEm-ART
BERZE——FRA-+—HET2ZK
HEFRE FRHNTEGEMLE TR R
Fo3E 2 AT EE AR R B ([FIE AR RERT
) e
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The following table discloses the details of the share options
held by the Directors and chief executive to subscribe for
shares of the Company during the year ended 31 December

DIrRecTORS’ REPORT
EEERE

TERBEBEESLRITRAERBE_F
~NE+T A=+ —BLFEMRFEA
REARE RN ZBREFT:

2019:
Number of share options
BREXE
Cancelled/ Outstanding
Outstanding Granted Exercised lapsed as at
Name of as at during during during 31 December Exercise
Directors Date of grant 1 January 2019 the period the period the period 2019 Option period price
(HKS)
R=%-1% R-F-1%&
-A-H +-A=+-H
ESfe RHBH AT ERRY ERTHE  FhEE/ KR WRTHE BRESR TR
(%7)
Lai Yuk Mui 13/04/2010 3,186,158 - - - 3,186,158 13/04/2010 - 12/04/2020 0419
REi8 ZZ-TEWATEA “E-ZEMATZAZ-F-FEMATCA
Liu Runtong 13/04/2010 31,861,575 - - - 31,861,575 3/04/20 - 12/04/2020 0.419
2ER ZZ-ZENATEH “E-ZEMATZAZCECSENATCH
Zhang Benzheng 13/04/2010 2,124,106 - - - 2,124,105 13/04/2010 - 12/04/2020 0.419
FAE ZE-ZENAT=H CE-TEMATCAZCSCSENAT A
James Beeland 22/09/2014 20,000,000 - - (20,000,000) - 22/09/2014 - 21/09/2024 0518
Rogers Jr. “Z-REAAZTZR (Note 1) “E-REAACTZRZ-E-RFAR-t-A
(M)
James Beeland 16/10/2015 20,000,000 - - (20,000,000) - 16/10/2015 - 15/10/2025 0.238
Rogers Jr. ZE-RETATAR (Note 1) “E-RETATAHECEC-RETATEA
(M)
James Beeland 09/11/2016 20,000,000 - - (20,000,000) - 09/11/2016 - 08/11/2026 0.150
Rogers Jr. 2 E+-ANB (Note 1) ZE-NET-ANBEZSZRET-ANA
(M)
Note: Bt 5

(1) With effect from 8 November 2019, Mr. James Beeland Rogers Jr.
resigned as non-executive Director of the Company. Accordingly his

entitlement to share option lapsed on the same date. Reference is made

to the announcement of the Company dated 8 November 2019.

Save as disclosed above, at no time during the year was the
Company or any of its subsidiaries a party to any arrangements
to enable the Directors or chief executive to acquire benefits
by means of the acquisition of shares in, or debt securities
(including debentures) of, the Company or any other body
corporate and neither the Directors, nor the chief executive, nor
any of their respective spouses or children under the age of 18,
had any right to subscribe for the securities of the Company, or

had exercised any such right during the year.

ERETEEEEARAT | ZE-NFFH

1) BE-Z—-—hF+—A/\LBE James
Beeland Rogers Jr.5t A& BHE AR A FEH 1T
EEB-A HEAEZERENRAX
WeZRMARRBSHA-_T-—NF+—A
B Z R e

B EXCRBEE SN AR R S EALTHE
REARAFEERFERETIEAR
?3?’@(1%%%‘%?&51 BE A E B AR
RE A E AN E 8 2 B B
Ex (BRES) MED TEES 17
K,‘vbﬁﬁkﬁﬁﬁﬁ BZE®Bs+/\B
AT FLREEERNARBARARBEFESFZ
RN AR FEITREMZFER -
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(c)

Short positions in underlying shares of the Company

No short positions of Directors and chief executives in the
underlying shares of the equity derivatives of the Company and
its associated corporations were recorded in the register or as
otherwise notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange
pursuant to Rule 5.46 to 5.67 of the GEM Listing Rules.

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’ AND OTHER
PERSONS’ INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN
SHARES AND UNDERLYING SHARES OF THE COMPANY

(a)

(b)

Long positions in shares of the Company

As at 31 December 2019, the Directors and the chief executive
of the Company are not aware of any person (not being a
Director or a chief executive of the Company) who had an
interest or short position in the shares or underlying shares
which were notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange
pursuant to the provisions of Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of
the SFO as recorded in the register required to be kept under
section 336 of the SFO.

Long positions in underlying shares of the Company

As at 31 December 2019, the Company had not been notified
of any person (other than the Directors whose interests
are set out in the section “Directors’ and Chief Executive’s
Interests and Short Positions in Shares, Underlying Shares and
Debentures” above) who had an interest or short position in the
shares or underlying shares of the Company and was required
to be recorded in the register required to be kept under Section
336 of the SFO and/or was directly or indirectly interested in
5% or more of the issued share capital carrying rights to vote in
all circumstances at general meetings of any other members of
the Group.

(c)

REAAGHBEARKBZXE
EERTHRAEBERNER QR REGH
EE A RRADTEE M 2 R RS
AN EL MR IEGEM TR B
%546 E5.67RBME AN KA
ZIRR e

FERREAEMBATRAATRG RHE
ARG ZERR XS

(a)

(b)

REABRGBZFE
R-Z-NF+-_A=1+—R REE
7 M E R FE336IETFE 2B LM
R EENARAITHRARL SHME
ERIAL (EFFEFEHARBITHAE)
RO RBEROS HECEBRES
NEIEIGRPIEXVERFE2 M3 GH & A&
RRR MBS BIRE

RAEASHARKRKR ZFE
RZB-NF+ZA=+—H K#xn
EHN EXEFRITBARNERD
HEROkEFzEBaRE |~z
EFIN ARAL T HEBEEFMALR
ARAA D BEERD S EEEMNE
FEARBERES K ERPIE336FFE
2BRMzEmAR kA EESK
el 5 O i B HE R AT MR 1B R T EE AR S
BEMEMKEARRRREREZD
BITIRAPHEBE%IA -
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DETAILS OF THE OPTIONS GRANTED BY THE
COMPANY

Share Option Schemes of the Company

The Company has adopted a share option scheme under which the
Directors or employees of the Company or its subsidiaries or certain
other persons may be granted share options to subscribe for shares
of the Company subject to the terms and conditions stipulated in the
scheme.

The share option scheme adopted by the Company on 17 December
2001 has expired on 16 December 2011. The Company adopted a
new share option scheme approved by shareholders on its annual
general meeting held on 21 June 2012 which complies with Chapter
23 of GEM Listing Rules.

(1) Summary of the Scheme
(i) Purpose of the scheme
The purpose of the scheme is to provide the people and
the parties working for the interest of the Group with an
opportunity to obtain equity interest in the Company, thus
linking their interest with the interest of the Group and
thereby providing them with an incentive to work better
for the interest of the Group.

(i) Participants of the scheme

Pursuant to the scheme, the Company may grant share
options to (i) employees of the Company (whether fulltime
or part-time) or any of its subsidiaries or associated
companies; (i) Directors (whether executive Directors,
non-executive Directors or independent non-executive
Directors) of the Company or any of its subsidiaries or
associated companies; (iii) suppliers of goods and/or
services to the Company or any of its subsidiaries or
associated companies; and (iv) professionals engaged
by the Company or any of its subsidiaries or associated
companies.

FHEREMERAT | —EB-NEFH
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RIFFZB 2 HEE AT

23



24

DIRECTORS REPORT
EETHRE

(i)

(V)

(v)

Total number of shares available for issue under the
schemes

As at 31 December 2019, the total number of shares
available for issue under the New Share Option Scheme
was 774,895,812 shares, representing 10% of the total
issued share capital.

The maximum aggregate number of shares which may be
issued upon exercise of all outstanding options granted
and yet to be exercised under the New Share Option
Scheme and any other share option schemes of the
Group must not in aggregate exceed 30% of the shares
of the Company in issue from time to time. No options
may be granted under any schemes of the Company
(or its subsidiaries) if this will result in such limit being
exceeded.

Maximum entitlement of each participant

The maximum number of shares of the Company issued
and to be issued upon exercise of the options granted
and to be granted pursuant to the scheme and any other
share option schemes of the Company (including the
Pre-IPO Share Option Plan) to each participant in any
12-month period up to the date of grant of the options
shall not exceed 1% of the total number of shares of the
Company in issue, save for those share options already
granted under the Pre-IPO Share Option Plan.

Option period

An option may be exercised in accordance with the terms
of the scheme at any time during a period of not more
than ten years to be notified by the Board of Directors
of the Company (the “Board”) to each participant which
period of time shall commence on the date on which an
offer of the grant of an option is accepted or deemed
to have been accepted in accordance with the scheme
and expire on the last day of such period as determined
by the Board. There is no minimum period for which an
option must be held before it can be exercised.

(1)

(v)

(V)

ZE BB T A BT R4 E

RZFE-—NF+ZA=+—8" 11
BB B I BT 2R
B ATT74,895,8120 - th 2 B2
BITRAZ10% °

RITERIE B 8l R AN
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A #IT 2R RRXERTFE
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Bipiag1% HEEREERAR
BER BRI R 2 B g
BRIN

BIRIERIR
BREARARREFTS ([EF
gBMR2EE S TEB T
FZHHE (ZHE B REZT 8
MR BEOEERIBR D
EZEMWERAERL ZEFEET
ZEBERERR —HER) RIRZ
A8 2 RRBE RS AT - IR BB IR A]
TATER  BEARKARBREZ &
FHIRR T & AR E -

Sinofortune Financial Holdings Limited | Annual Report 2019



(V)

(vii)

(Vi)

Payment on acceptance by option offer

HK$1.00 is payable by the participant to the Company
on acceptance of the option offer as consideration for the
grant and received by the Company within 14 days from
the offer date or within such offer period of time as may
be determined by the Board pursuant to the GEM Listing
Rules.

Basis of determining the exercise price

The exercise price per share of the Company under the
scheme is determined by the Board and notified to each
participant and shall be no less than the highest of (i) the
closing price of the shares of the Company as stated in
the daily quotations sheet issued by the Stock Exchange
on the date of offer, which must be a day on which the
Stock Exchange is open for the business of dealing in
securities (“Trading Day”), (i) the average closing price
of the shares of the Company as stated in the daily
quotations sheets issued by the Stock Exchange for the
five Trading Days immediately preceding the date of offer,
and (iii) the nominal value of a share of the Company.

Remaining life of the scheme

The Old Share Option Scheme has expired on 16
December 2011. The New Share Option Scheme will
remain valid for a period of 10 years commencing on 21
June 2012 (save that the Company, by ordinary resolution
in general meeting or Board may at any time terminate
the operation of the New Share Option Scheme) and
in such event, no further options will be offered but the
provisions of the Old Share Option Scheme and the New
Share Option Scheme shall in all other respects remain in
full force and effect.

FHEREMERAT | —EB-NEFH
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2

Details of share options granted by the Company (2) ZALGHRUEBREZFHIE
On 13 April 2010, 22 September 2014, 16 October 2015 and RZE—ZFMA+=H ZF—WF
9 November 2016, options to subscribe for 84,000,000 shares, NA-+-H —Z—H&E+A+<H
30,000,000 shares, 20,000,000 shares and 20,000,000 shares RZZE—RE+—AhBHRREER
of the Company respectively were granted to the Directors and ARA)HTEE T 53 H#884,000,000
certain employees of the Company. As at 31 December 2019, fz ~30,000,0000% + 20,000,0008% X
details of the outstanding options were as follows: 20,000,000 A< 2 B & 19 2 B PR AE o 1
—E-NEFTZA=+—0 H"XTE
BREZFBET
Number of share options
BRESE
OQutstanding Cancelled/  Outstanding
as at Granted Exercised lapsed as at
1 January during during during 31 December Exercise
Date of grant 2019 the period the period  the period 2019  Option period price
(HK9)
RZB-1% RZF-1%
-fA-H EMEE/ +T-A=t+-8
RHEH HRTE EREL ERfTE %% HATE BRENR i@
(#7)
13/04/2010 82,840,095 - - - 82,840,095  13/04/2010 - 12/04/2020 0.419
—E-TEMATCR (Note 1) Note 1) —Z-FEMA+=AE-F-Z2FMA+ZH
(Mi31) (M331)
22/09/2014 20,000,000 - - (20,000,000) - 22/09/2014 - 21/09/2024 0.518
ZZ-MEARZTZH (Note 2) “E-MEARZTZRZ-Z-mEAA-T-A
(Wizk2)
16/10/2015 20,000,000 - - (20,000,000) - 16/10/2015 - 15/10/2025 0.238
ZZT-RE+A+AR (Note 2) “E-RETAtABEZE-RETATRA
a7
09/11/2016 20,000,000 - - (20,000,000) - 09/11/2016 - 08/11/2026 0.150
ZT-"§+-FhA (Note 2) - RET-ANBECEZAET-ANA
(BizE2)
Note: B 5

Pursuant to the Old Share Option Scheme, 84,000,000 shares of share
options were granted by the Company on 13 April 2010 and were

adjusted on 15 June 2010.

With effect from 8 November 2019, Mr. James Beeland Rogers Jr.

resigned as non-executive Director of the Company. Accordingly his

entitlement to share option lapsed on the same date. Reference is made
to the announcement of the Company dated 8 November 2019.

(1)  REEEREFS ARFAERZZ—ZF
P9 A+ = H#%H84,000,0000% 7 B A% 4 - I
M-ZE—TFXNA+RB Y EaEREED

B

2) BE-Z—-—hF+—A/\LBE James
Beeland Rogers Jr.5t A& BHE AR A FEH 1T
BEEB-A H#EAZERENARAX
WeZRMARRBSHA-_T-NF+—A
NBZ Ao
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DIRECTOR’S RIGHTS TO ACQUIRE SHARES OR
DEBENTURES

Other than the share option scheme as described above and in
Note 38 to the consolidated financial statements, at no time during
the year was the Company or any of its subsidiaries a party to
any arrangements to enable the Directors to acquire benefits by
means of the acquisition of shares in, or debt securities (including
debentures) of, the Company or any other body corporate and
neither the Directors, nor the chief executive, nor any of their
respective spouses or children under the age of 18, had any right to
subscribe for the securities of the Company, or had exercised any
such right during the year.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contract concerning the management and administration of the
whole or any substantial part of the business of the Group were
entered into or existed during the year ended 31 December 2019.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN TRANSACTIONS,
ARRANGEMENTS OR CONTRACTS OF SIGNIFICANCE
There was no transactions, arrangements or contract of significance,
save as disclosed in the consolidated financial statements, in
relation to the Group’s business to which the Company or any of its
subsidiaries was a party and in which a Director of the Company had
a material interest, whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at the end
of the year or at any time during the year.

LITIGATION

a) Arbitration Against EERAIAREEBRESHRAT
(Transliterated as Chongging Sheng Yu Hong Jia
International Trading Company Limited) (“Sheng Yu Hong
Jia”)
According to the announcement of the Company dated
7 November 2019, the Board was advised by Sheng Yu
Hong Jia, the sino-foreign joint venture company formed
in Chongqging City, the PRC that is 93.33% owned by the
Company and carries out the motor vehicles related businesses
of the Group, that it has on 29 October 2019 received a
notification by the China Chongqing Arbitration Commission
(EEWMEZEZ E€) (the “Commission”) that an arbitration
application was made to the Commission by one of Sheng Yu
Hong Jia’s customers (the “Claimant A”) and the application
was accepted by the Commission.

FHEREMERAT | —EB-NEFH
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The Claimant A alleged in the arbitration that Sheng Yu Hong
Jia had failed to perform its obligation under an agreement
made between Sheng Yu Hong Jia and the Claimant A on 14
July 2019 for the sale of 350 motor vehicles and claimed for
payment of liquidated damages of RMB11,025,000 and costs
of the arbitration. Sheng Yu Hong Jia has engaged PRC legal
advisor to advise it on the merit of the Claimant A’s claim in the
arbitration.

On 3 March 2020, the Company was informed by Sheng Yu
Hong Jia that the Claimant A, Sheng Yu Hong Jia and the
wholly owned subsidiary of Sheng Yu Hong Jia, & L3 i
#FEHOZ 5 HE R AR A (transliterated as Chongqging Hong
Jia Rui Hua Import and Export Trading Company Limited)
(the “Assignee”), have entered into a deed of assignment
on 26 February 2020 (the “Deed of Assignment”) whereby
the Claimant A has assigned and transferred all its rights
and entitlements in the awards of arbitration including an
awarded sum of RMB11,025,000 and legal fee of RMB50,000
collectively, the (“Arbitration Awards”) to the Assignee with
RMB nil consideration.

The Company was informed by Sheng Yu Hong Jia that despite
the Claimant A applied for the arbitration and was granted
the Arbitration Awards which was received by Sheng Yu Hong
Jia in mid-January 2020, it had always been the intentions
of both the Claimant A and Sheng Yu Hong Jia to settle their
dispute and the arbitration amicably as the Claimant A would
like to maintain its business relationship with Sheng Yu Hong
Jia and that they had engaged in settlement negotiation on the
arbitration since mid-November 2019.

The Company has sought legal advice from its PRC legal
advisor on the impact of the Deed of Assignment and was
advised that after the execution of the Deed of Assignment, as
those rights and entitlements in the Arbitration Awards have
been assigned and transferred to the Assignee, the Claimant
A would not have any further right to enforce the Arbitration
Awards against Sheng Yu Hong Jia.

After considering the PRC legal opinion on the Deed of
Assignment and the fact that the Assignee, being the wholly-
owned subsidiary of Sheng Yu Hong Jia, will not enforce the
Arbitration Awards against its parent, the Board considers
that the Arbitration Awards and the Deed of Assignment will
not have any adverse impact on the financial position and
operations of the Group.

EEAARMPE PR BASLEARERE
TTHECE/HMA%LE@TL}\ABA TN
FHATAHEI0MMTER L2
BBEETZEE THEINETESE
B E AR #11,025,0007C R REE A -
BRASEEREAEAEZEAN  URER
BAARMHEARE 2 BBERERER
1)

RZEZEF=ZA=ZH BRahEAE
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B Bt REAABREEAEE R
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b)

c)

Arbitration Proposed by Sheng Yu Hong Jia

According to the PRC legal opinion, Sheng Yu Hong Jia has
applied to Southwest Branch of China International Economic
and Trade Arbitration Commission for an arbitration against a
customer (the “Defendant”) in July 2019.

Both parties entered into an agreement that the Defendant
entrusted Sheng Yu Hong Jia to import 20 motor vehicles
from oversea. Due to funding problem, neither Sheng Yu
Hong Jia nor the Defendant paid the tax as scheduled, which
resulted in penalty incurred due to late payment of tax, delayed
customs clearance of motor vehicles and market price of
imported motor vehicles fell. After that, Sheng Yu Hong Jia
paid for the tax and completed the customs clearance of motor
vehicles. Under the failure of motor vehicles redemption by the
Defendant, Sheng Yu Hong Jia disposed the motor vehicles
but the proceeds of the disposal could not cover the amount
paid by Sheng Yu Hong Jia. Sheng Yu Hong Jia applied for the
arbitration for the compensation loss of RMB1,365,059 against
the Defendant according to the agreement.

The case was argued which party had the obligation to pay
the tax and is waiting for the adjudication of Southwest
Branch of China International Economic and Trade Arbitration
Commission.

Litigation Against Sheng Yu Hong Jia

According to the PRC legal opinion, a customer (the “Claimant
B”) proposed litigation in the People’s Court of Tianjin City
against Sheng Yu Hong Jia in relation to a dispute.

In November 2018, Claimant B paid RMB5.0 million to a
trading company on behalf of Sheng Yu Hong Jia. Claimant
B believed that RMB5.0 million was a loan to Sheng Yu Hong
Jia and proposed litigation of corporate loan dispute against
Sheng Yu Hong Jia. But Sheng Yu Hong Jia believed such
amount was the purchase of motor vehicle deposit by the
Claimant B instead of a loan and it should be a sale contract
dispute instead of corporate loan dispute.

In the first instance of the trial in September 2019, it was held
that Sheng Yu Hong Jia should return the loan of RMB5.0
million to the Claimant B. Sheng Yu Hong Jia has filed an
appeal to Tianjin Second Intermediate People’s Court but it
was rejected.
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MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS
The percentages of purchase and sales for the attributable to the
Group’s major suppliers and customers are as follows:

Purchases

— the largest supplier 90.3%
— five largest suppliers in aggregate 100%
Sales

— the largest customer 28.6%
— five largest customers in aggregate 69.8%

None of the Directors, their associates or any shareholder (which
to the knowledge of the Directors owns more than 5% of the
company’s share capital) had an interest in these major suppliers or
customers.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF LISTED
SECURITIES

During the year, neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries
purchased, sold or redeemed any of the Company’s listed securities.

COMPLIANCE WITH RULES 5.48 TO 5.67 OF THE GEM
LISTING RULES

The Company has adopted a code of conduct regarding Directors’
securities transactions on terms no less exacting than the required
standard of dealings as set out in Rules 5.48 to 5.67 of the GEM
Listing Rules. The Company’s Directors have complied with such
code of conduct and the required standard of dealings.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Company’s
Articles of Association or the laws of the Cayman Islands which
would oblige the Company to offer new shares on a pro-rata basis to
existing shareholders.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The Company is committed to maintaining a high standard of
corporate governance and a detailed corporate governance report is
set out on pages 34 to 46 of this annual report.

The compliance officer of the Company is Ms. Lai Yuk Mui whose
biographical details are set out on page 14 of this annual report.
Ms. Woo Man Yi is the company secretary of the Company.
She is an associate member of both The Hong Kong Institute of
Chartered Secretaries and The Institute of Chartered Secretaries and
Administrators, United Kingdom.

ENVIRONMENTAL POLICIES AND PERFORMANCE

We are committed to building an environmentally-friendly corporation
and minimising our impact on the environment. Discussion on the
environmental policies and performance is set out in the section
headed “Environmental, Social and Governance Report” on pages
47 to 84 in this annual report. The discussion therein forms part of
the Directors’ Report.

DIVIDEND POLICY

The Company has adopted a dividend policy, pursuant to which the
Company gives priority to distributing dividend in cash and shares
its profits with its shareholders. The dividend payout ratio shall be
determined or recommended, as appropriate, by the Board at its
absolute discretion after taking into account the Company’s financial
results, future prospects and other factors, and subject to:

the Articles of Association of the Company;

- the applicable restrictions and requirements under the laws of
the Cayman Islands;

- any banking or other funding covenants by which the Company
is bound from time to time;

- the investment and operating requirements of the Company;
and

- any other factors that have material impact on the Company.
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PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information that is publicly available to the Company
and to the best of the Directors’ knowledge, as at the date of this
annual report, there was a sufficient prescribed public float of the
issued shares of the Company under the GEM Listing Rules.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISION

At no time during the year and up to date of this report, there was
or is, any permitted indemnity provision being in force for the benefit
of the Directors of the Company (whether made by the Company or
otherwise) or any of its subsidiaries (if made by the Company).

USE OF PROCEEDS

The net proceeds raised from the issuance of the Company’s shares
on a subscription on 12 October 2018 (the “Subscription”) was
approximately HK$86,350,000. The net proceeds raised from the
Subscription, the utilisation and remaining balance of the proceeds
as at 31 December 2019 are set out below:

ARFRE
REARAEFZ ARAER MRESITRA
RAFHRTZERH ARFEEHTRO 2 A
LR EFN A GEM LM AR RIFEEKF

BESFR AR

RERARBEARSE AHIEEFRRE B
4R SR TF (A LA AR 2 A) o AR 4] /B
AR (HBARER) 2EERZBAZE
AFREGEER (THETRARARE
o ARETSL) °

B IER®
BRERZ-ZZE—N\EF+AT-_HHNREEFE
([RBEE])BETRRARNEEHER
T F 58 49/586,350,0008 7T - REBEEBEEMN
FIiSEEFRE RZE—NF+A=+—
BAERENSRBERLBEHY AT

As at 31 December 2019
RZF-hE+=A=+-H

Net Remaining
Percentage of proceeds raised  Utilised amount balance
Original intended uses Revised intended uses total amount  (Approximately)  (Approximately)  (Approximately)
&M
HELEN Fi@REFE
RORERSE TEITRERR Bl (#%) BHRALE(EH) 5 (814)
(Note 2) HK$ HK$ HK$
(Mi2) B BT BT
Development and expansion of the existing ~ N/A 40% 34,540,000 16,980,000 17,560,000
motor vehicle business of (Note 1)
the Group (BzE1)
BREEAASEARENTEEH Tam
Investments including potential acquisitions of i) Settlement of the Group’s the 50% 43,175,000 i) 33,300,000 -
business related capital commitment in to Limited Partnership
the motor vehicle business of the Group i) General working capital of i) 9,875,000 -
the Group
RE BEECMEEASEAEEE ) HEREERBRABEEN
BRNER BAEE
i) AEEH-REELES
General working capital of the Group N/A 10% 8,635,000 8,635,000 -
FEEN-REEES TiEf
Total @t 86,350,000 68,790,000 17,560,000
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Note:

(1) The remaining balance for development and expansion of the existing motor
vehicle business of the Group are expected to be utilised by 31 December 2020.

(2) With reference to the Company’s announcement dated 9 September 2019,
in view of the uncertainty created by the on-going Sino-US trade war and the
unfavorable market condition for the motor vehicle business of the Group, the
Group decided to divert its resources to invest in the new medicine development
market in the PRC through its investment in the Limited Partnership which can
attain diversification of the Group’s business.

AUDITORS

The consolidated financial statements of the Group for the year
ended 31 December 2019 have been audited by CHENG & CHENG
LIMITED. CHENG & CHENG LIMITED will retire at the conclusion
of the forthcoming annual general meeting and, being eligible, offer
itself for re-appointment at the forthcoming annual general meeting.
A resolution for re-appointment of CHENG & CHENG LIMITED as
auditor of the Company will be proposed at the forthcoming annual
general meeting.

On behalf of the Board

Wang Jiawei
Chairman
Hong Kong, 20 March 2020
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EEXEERME

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

The Board assumes overall responsibility for the leadership and
control of the Group, including providing and setting the Group’s
directions and strategies in the interests of the Group. It believes in
good corporate governance and corporate governance practices
that promote investor confidence, development of the Group, and
transparency while having the long term interest of the Group and
enhancement of shareholders’ value as the ultimate objectives. It has
adopted the code provisions set out in the Corporate Governance
Code contained in Appendix 15 of the GEM Listing Rules (the
“Corporate Governance Code”). The Company has complied with
the applicable code provisions of the Corporate Governance Code,
except for the following deviation:

Code provision A.2.1

Code provision A.2.1 stipulates that the roles of chairman and
chief executive should be separate and should not be performed
by the same individual. The division of responsibilities between the
chairman and chief executive should be clearly established and set
out in writing.

Mr. Wang Jiawei is the chairman and chief executive officer of the
Company. In view of Mr. Wang has extensive experience in project
management and securities investments and is responsible for the
overall corporate strategies, planning and business development
of the Company. Under the supervision by the Board which is
comprised of three independent non-executive Directors and a non-
executive Director, which represent more than half of the Board, the
interests of the shareholders of the Company will be adequately and
fairly represented.

DIRECTORS’ SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

In respect of the standard of dealings required of Directors, the
Company has adopted a code of conduct regarding Directors’
securities transactions on terms no less exacting than the required
standard set out in rules 5.48 to 5.67 of the GEM Listing Rules.
Having made specific enquires of all Directors, they confirmed that
they have complied with the Company’s code of conduct regarding
Directors’ securities transactions during the year.
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THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Comprising of two executive and four non-executive Directors
(including three independent non-executive Directors), the present
board has an appropriate composition of Directors. The Company
has received from each of the independent non-executive Directors
an annual confirmation of his independence pursuant to Rule 5.09
of the GEM Listing Rules and is in the opinion that all independent
nonexecutive Directors are independent. The present board is
composed of more than one-third of independent non-executive
Directors.

The present board of Directors consists of:

Wang Jiawei (Chairman and Chief Executive Officer)
Lai Yuk Mui (Executive Director)
Liu Runtong (Non-executive Director)
James Beeland Rogers Jr.
(Resigned on 8 November 2019)
(Non-executive Director)
Zhang Benzheng (Independent Non-executive Director)
Li Jianxing (Independent Non-executive Director)
Chen Shu Wen (Independent Non-executive Director)

The biographical details of the Directors are set out on pages 14 to
17 of this annual report.

Save as disclosed in the section headed “Directors and Senior
Management Profile” to this annual report, the Directors have
no other financial, business, family or other material/relevant
relationships with one another.

The Board is mandated to determine and review strategic objectives,
appoint and supervise senior management, approve quarterly,
interim and annual reports, and review the principal risks of the
Group’s business to ensure that these risks are within manageable
limits. It is also mandated to approve any substantial investment,
acquisition or disposal by the Company. Major corporate matters
that are delegated to the management include the execution of
business strategies and initiatives approved by the Board and the
preparation of quarterly, interim and annual reports for the Board’s
approval.
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EEXEERME

Responsibilities, accountabilities and contributions of the
board and management

The Board should assume responsibility for leadership and control
of the Company and is collectively responsible for promoting the
success of the Company by directing and supervising its affairs. All
Directors should take decisions objectively in the interests of the
Company.

The Board reserves for its decision on all major matters relating
to policy matters, strategies and budgets, internal control and risk
management, material transactions (in particular those that may
involve conflict of interests), financial information, appointment of
Directors and other significant operational matters of the Company.
Responsibilities relating to implementing decisions of the Board,
directing and coordinating the daily operation and management of
the Company are delegated to the management.

There were four board meetings during the year. The attendance of
Directors at the board meetings was as follows:
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Attendance number
of meetings attended/
Number of meetings
during term of service

HEEERE

Members e ERBITERRE
Wang Jiawei FTEE 4/4
Lai Yuk Mui RE1G 4/4
Liu Runtong 2 R 4/4
James Beeland Rogers Jr. James Beeland Rogers Jr. 3/4
(Resigned on 8 November 2019) (RZZ—NFT+—ANBEHE)
Zhang Benzheng SRAIE 4/4
Li Jianxing FEAT 4/4
Chen Shu Wen PR 481 X 3/4
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There was one general meeting during the year. The attendance of

FRAEKRIT-RK

EXERHRE

Directors at the general meeting was as follows: ZHEERNT
Attendance number
of meetings attended/
Number of meetings
during term of service
HEERRE
Members 5= ] ERRITERRY
Wang Jiawei FRE 1/1
Lai Yuk Mui REHy 1/1
Liu Runtong 28 R 0/1
James Beeland Rogers Jr. James Beeland Rogers Jr. 0/1
(Resigned on 8 November 2019) (RZZE—NF+—ANBEITE)
Zhang Benzheng SR AN IE 0/1
Li Jianxing FEAT 1/1
Chen Shu Wen PR a1 XX 0/1
DIRECTORS’ TRAINING AND PROFESSIONAL EERHIIREEER
DEVELOPMENT
Pursuant to the Corporate Governance Code, all directors should #1REBEMEE AT 2 REFELHEFESR

participate in continuous professional development to develop
and refresh their knowledge and skills. This is to ensure that their
contribution to the board remains informed and relevant.

During the year, Mr. Wang Jiawei, Ms. Lai Yuk Mui, Mr. Liu Runtong
and Mr. Li Jianxing have attended training courses conducted by
professional parties. The attended Directors have provided the
Company with their respective training records pursuant to the
Corporate Governance Code. All Directors were provided with
reading materials on relevant rules and regulatory updates.

REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS

The Company has established a remuneration committee
(“Remuneration Committee”) with specific written terms of reference.
The present Remuneration Committee consists of a majority of
independent non-executive Directors.

ERETEEEEARAT | ZE-NFFH

HRR BRI E R E AN LAE§1%E
BEEABZEEARINAMBEZERATRH
E=SFHAER-

FR-EREEE REWL FEMAELE
REZITEESNTEXERFAROEIR
B-M2ENERZEREBELEEATAN
NRARHEEBIIRE 2REFCEFTER
MR REE &M T HAMEER -

EEME

ARBEKRIZFEMEES (F%ﬁ@ﬂia\%ﬂ)
WAESEABELE -RITHFMEES 2
REBOKERBILIFAITES-

37



38

CoRPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

EEXEERME

As at year end date, the present Remuneration Committee consisted
of five Directors, Professor Zhang Benzheng, Mr. Wang Jiawei, Ms.
Lai Yuk Mui, Mr. Li Jianxing and Professor Chen Shu Wen. Three
out of the five Directors are independent non-executive Directors.
Professor Zhang Benzheng, being an independent non-executive
Director, is the chairman of the committee. The Remuneration
Committee’s role and function includes making recommendations to
the Board on the Company’s policy and structure for remuneration
of Directors and senior management and on the establishment of
formal and transparent procedures for developing policy on such
remuneration. It also has the delegated responsibility to determine
the specific remuneration packages of all executive Directors and
senior management.

The Company’s remuneration policies are determined on the basis
of the contributions of staff and Directors. Long-term incentive
schemes for staff and Directors include share options and cash
bonuses.

The amounts paid to each Director for the year ended 31 December
2019 are set out in Note 11 to the consolidated financial statements.

Pursuant to code provision B.1.5 of the Corporate Governance
Code, the annual remuneration of the members of the senior
management (other than the Directors) for the year ended 31
December 2019 by band is set out as follows:

REFER ROFHEZESHRALHE T
RESLE BREMLL FERITEERREX
BERLEFER -RAREFT HP=ER
BYFPTER - BYUFATEERALEHR
BRZBEXF -FHEE S 2BA MBE
BREAARAREHEENSAEEABNH
MR NIRRT MR ZERMABHAEN
REFHRIFMBR REFSROEE -FM
ZEENMERRRAEEBITEETRERE
BABZRHEFHMEFE-

ARBZEHEMBERTIIZE T REEMEERR
REREEF - BTIREZZRHZRHIE
B RIREIEAL

HE-Z-AFT-A=+-BLEFEAE
RN 2R R ARFRRH N -
BIECEERTHEB LS BE-2 2

FH-A=t " HALFESREEAR (E
BRI FEFHIRBEFRIIN T

Number of individuals

Remuneration band (in HK$) FaEE(Erx) ANEL
Nil to 1,000,000 £ %=1,000,000 1
The Remuneration Committee held one meeting during the year and HEZE €N FARAERIT— K &% HKE

the attendance of its members was as follows:

ZHBERNT

Attendance number
of meetings attended/
Number of meetings
during term of service

HESHRE
Members pg=] ERBITERRE
Zhang Benzheng RANIE 1/1
Wang Jiawei FRE 1/1
Lai Yuk Mui REH 11
Li Jianxing FET 1/1
Chen Shu Wen FeR 151 32 0/1
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During the year, the Remuneration Committee’s work includes
conducting a review over the Company’s policy and structure for
remuneration. There was no Director’s service contract requiring
approval during the year.

NOMINATION OF DIRECTORS

The Company has established a nomination committee (“Nomination
Committee”) with specific written terms of reference. As at year
end date, Nomination Committee consisted of four Directors,
Professor Zhang Benzheng, Mr. Wang Jiawei, Mr. Li Jianxing
and Professor Chen Shu Wen. Three out of the four Directors
are independent non-executive Directors. Professor Zhang
Benzheng, being an independent nonexecutive Director, is the
chairman of the committee. Thus the present Committee consists
a majority of independent non-executive Directors. The Nomination
Committee’s role and function includes, but is not limited to,
reviewing the structure, size, composition and diversity (including
but not limited to skills, knowledge and experience, gender, age,
cultural and educational background, or professional experience)
of the Board at least annually and make recommendations on any
proposed changes; draw up, review and update, as appropriate,
the diversity policy for the Board’s approval having due regard to
the requirements of the GEM Listing Rules, review and update the
objectives that the Board has set for implementing such policy, and
monitor the progress made; identifying individuals suitably qualified
to become Board members and select or making recommendations
to the Board on the selection of individuals nominated for
directorships based on the board diversity policy; and assessing the
independence of independent non-executive Directors.

The Nomination Committee held one meeting during the year and
the attendance of its members was as follows:
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Attendance number
of meetings attended/
Number of meetings
during term of service

HEERRE

Members 23] ERRITERRY
Zhang Benzheng RANIE 1/1
Wang Jiawei FRE 1/1
Li Jianxing T 1/1
Chen Shu Wen RS XX 0/1
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On the nomination process, the Nomination Committee reviews
the suggested candidates for directorship having regard to the
candidates’ reputation and the specific skills or expertise that
these candidates can contribute to the Company in the light of the
structure, size, composition and diversity (including but not limited
to skills, knowledge and experience, gender, age, cultural and
educational background, or professional experience) of the board
of directors. Only candidates who have integrity and can provide
specific contributions to the Company thereby enhancing the value
of the Company are considered for nomination to the board of
Directors by the Nomination Committee.

During the year, the Nomination Committee’s work includes
reviewing the structure, size, independence, composition and
diversity (including but not limited to skills, knowledge and
experience, gender, age, cultural and educational background, or
professional experience) of the Board and made recommendations
thereon. Drawing up, reviewing and updating, as appropriate, the
diversity policy for the Board’s approval having due regard to the
requirements of the GEM Listing Rules, reviewing and updating the
objectives that the Board has set for implementing such policy, and
monitor the progress made.

Board diversity

The Company has adopted a board diversity policy setting out
the approach to achieve diversity on the Board with the aims of
enhancing Board effectiveness and corporate governance as well as
achieving sustainable and balanced development.

Board diversity has been considered from a number of aspects,
including but not limited to gender, age, cultural and educational
background, ethnicity, professional experience, skills, knowledge and
length of service and any other factors that the Board may consider
relevant and applicable from time to time.

Selection of candidates will be based on the Company’s nomination
policy and will take into account the board diversity policy. The
ultimate decision will be based on merit and contribution that the
selected candidates will bring to the Board. Having due regard to the
benefits of diversity on the Board and also the needs of the Board
without focusing on a single diversity aspect.
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The Nomination Committee will monitor and review the
implementation of the board diversity policy, as appropriate,
to ensure the effectiveness of the board diversity policy. The
Nomination Committee will discuss any revisions to the board
diversity policy that may be required and make recommendation to
the Board for approval.

A copy of the board diversity policy has been published on the
Company’s website for public information. Currently, the Board
comprises six members and the Board composition and diversity are
as follows:

Capacity: Executive Directors, non-executive Director and
independent non-executive Directors

Gender: Male and female

Age: 33-80

Nationality: Chinese and American

Length of service: 5-11 years

Board expertise: Finance, law, accounting, investment,
engineering, economic, insurance,

investment consulting analysis

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Company has established an audit committee (“Audit
Committee”) with specific written terms of reference. As at
31 December 2019, the Audit Committee consisted of three
independent non-executive Directors, Mr. Li Jianxing, Professor
Zhang Benzheng and Mr. Chen Shu Wen. Mr. Li Jianxing, being
an independent non-executive Director, is the chairman of the
Committee. The Audit Committee’s role and function includes
making recommendations to the Board on the appointment,
reappointment and removal of the external auditor, and to approve
the remuneration and terms of engagement of the external auditor;
review and monitor the external auditors’ independence and
objectivity and the effectiveness of the audit process in accordance
with applicable standards; develop and implement policy on the
engagement of an external auditor to supply non-audit services;
monitor the integrity of financial statements, annual reports and
accounts, half-yearly and quarterly reports of the Company, and
review significant financial reporting judgments contained in them;
review the Company’s financial controls, internal control and
risk management systems; and review the Group’s financial and
accounting policies, procedures and practices.
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EEXEERME

The Audit Committee has reviewed the consolidated financial
statements of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2019
pursuant to the relevant provisions contained in the Corporate
Governance Code and Corporate Governance Report as set out in
Appendix 15 of the GEM Listing Rules and was of the opinion that
such statements had complied with applicable accounting standards
and that adequate disclosures had been made in respect thereof.

The Audit Committee held five meetings during the year and the
attendance of its members was as follows:
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Attendance number
of meetings attended/
Number of meetings
during term of service

HEEHRRE

Members 241 EREITERRE
Li Jianxing T 5/5
Zhang Benzheng sRASIE 5/5
Chen Shu Wen FeR 158 32 4/5

The Directors’ responsibilities for preparing the accounts and the
reporting responsibilities of the auditors are set out on pages 85 to
92.

The accounts for the year ended 31 December 2019 were audited
by CHENG & CHENG LIMITED whose term of office will expire at
the conclusion of the forthcoming annual general meeting of the
Company. The Audit Committee has recommended to the Board
that CHENG & CHENG LIMITED be reappointed as the auditors
of the Company at the forthcoming annual general meeting of the
Company.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE FUNCTIONS

The Board is responsible for performing the functions set out in the
code provision D.3.1. The Board reviewed the Company’s corporate
governance policies and practices, training and continuous
professional development of Directors and senior management, the
Company’s policies and practices on compliance with legal and
regulatory requirements, the compliance of the GEM Listing Rules,
and the Company’s compliance with the Corporate Governance
Code and disclosure in this Corporate Governance Report.
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AUDITORS’ REMUNERATION

For the year ended 31 December 2019, the remuneration paid to
the auditors, CHENG & CHENG LIMITED in respect of audit services
and non-audit services amounted to approximately HK$530,000 and
HK$70,000 respectively.

RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROL

The Board is responsible for the risk management and internal
control systems of the Group and for reviewing its effectiveness. The
Board requires management to establish and maintain sound and
effective system of internal controls to safeguard the shareholders’
investment and the Group’s assets. The Board should conduct a
review of risk management and internal control system of the Group
at least annually, covering the material financial, operational and
compliance controls.

Risk management

The Group has adopted a three-tier risk management approach to
identify, assess and manage different types of risks. At the first line
of defense, business units are responsible for identifying, assessing
and monitoring risk associated with each business or transaction.
The management, as the second line of defense, defines rule sets
and models, provides technical support, develops new system
and oversees portfolio management. It ensures risks are within
acceptable range and that the first line of defense is effective. As
the final line of defense, the internal control consultants assist the
Audit Committee to review the first and second lines of defenses.
With the assistance of the internal control consultants, a risk
register with risk rating and risk owners were compiled by taking
into account for continuous risk assessment purpose. Risk owners
are required to take mitigating actions to address the identified risks
and such actions are integrated in the day-to-day activities and their
effectiveness is closely monitored. During the year, the risk register
has been circulated for discussion and assessed the ratings by
key personnel and management, by considering the likelihood and
impact of each identified risk. A written risks assessment report
with the identified key risks, evaluation of related risks and relevant
mitigating actions have been reported to the Audit Committee and
reviewed by the Board. The written report facilitates the Board in
considering the changes in the nature and extent of significant risks,
the Group’s ability in responding to changes in its business and the
external environment, as well as management’s ongoing monitoring
of risks and of the internal control system.
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EXERHE

Internal control

The Group emphasises the importance of a sound internal control
system which is also indispensable for mitigating the Group’s key
risk exposures. The Group’s system of internal control is designed
to provide reasonable, but not absolute, assurance against material
misstatement or loss and to manage and eliminate risks of failure
in operational systems and fulfillment of the business objectives.
The internal control system is reviewed on an ongoing basis by
the Board in order to make it practical and effective in providing
reasonable assurance in relation to protection of material assets
and shareholders’ interests. For any identified internal control
weaknesses or defects, the Group is committed to enhance
control measures to rectify such control weaknesses or defects.
The Group has implemented an effective control system which
includes a defined management structure with limits of authority,
a sound management system and periodic review of the Group’s
performance by the Audit Committee and the Board.

Review the effectiveness of the risk management and internal
control system

Through the Audit Committee, the Board has conducted annual
review of the effectiveness of the Group’s risk management and
internal control systems for the year ended 31 December 2019 by
considering written reports prepared by internal control consultants,
covering the material financial, operational and compliance controls,
which are considered effective and adequate.

Audit Committee has annually reviewed the adequacy of resources,
qualifications and experience, training and budget of the accounting,
internal audit and financial reporting functions.
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INSIDE INFORMATION

The Company assesses the likely impact of any unexpected and
significant event that may impact the price of the shares of the
Company or their trading volume and decides whether the relevant
information is considered inside information and needs to be
disclosed as soon as reasonably practicable pursuant to Rules
17.10 and 17.11 of the GEM Listing Rules and the Inside Information
Provisions under Part XIVA of the SFO. Executive Directors have
responsibility for approving certain announcements and/or circulars
to be issued by the Company under powers delegated by the Board
from time to time.

The Company has put in place on handling and dissemination of
inside information in a timely manner in such a way so as not to
place any person in a privileged dealing position and to allow time
for the market to price the listed securities of the Company with the
latest available information. The Company has appropriate internal
control and reporting systems to identify and assess potential inside
information. Dissemination of inside information of the Company
shall be conducted by publishing the relevant information on the
websites of the Stock Exchange and the Company, according to the
requirements of the GEM Listing Rules.

COMPANY SECRETARY

The Company Secretary of the Company is Ms. Woo Man Yi. The
Company Secretary assists the Board by ensuring good information
flow within the Board and that Board policy and procedures
are followed. She has taken no less than 15 hours of relevant
professional trainings to update her skills and knowledge in 2019.
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EXERHE

SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS

Convening an extraordinary general meeting

Pursuant to Article 58 of the Articles and Associations of the
Company, any one or more shareholders holding at the date of
deposit of the requisition not less than one-tenth of the paid up
capital of the Company carrying the right of voting at general
meetings of the Company shall at all times have the right, by written
requisition to the Board or the Secretary of the Company, to require
an extraordinary general meeting to be called by the Board for the
transaction of any business specified in such requisition; and such
meeting shall be held within two months after the deposit of such
requisition. If within twenty-one days of such deposit the Board fails
to proceed to convene such meeting the requisitionist(s) himself
(themselves) may do so in the same manner, and all reasonable
expenses incurred by the requisitionist(s) as a result of the failure
of the Board shall be reimbursed to the requisitionist(s) by the
Company.

Shareholders may put forward proposals at general meeting of the
Company by sending the same to the Company at the principal
office of the Company in Hong Kong ten days before general
meeting.

Procedures for sending enquiries to the Board

For putting forward any enquiries to the Board, shareholders
may send written enquiries to the Board of Directors/Company
Secretary at the Company’s head office. For the avoidance of doubt,
shareholder(s) must deposit and send the original duly signed written
requisition, notice or statement, or enquiry (as the case may be)
to the Company’s head office and provide their full name, contact
details and identification in order to give effect thereto. Shareholders’
information may be disclosed as required by law.
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INTRODUCTION, MISSION AND VISION,
ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE (“ESG”)
MANAGEMENT STRUCTURE

This Environmental, Social and Governance Report (the “ESG
Report”) describes the performance from ESG aspects of
Sinofortune Financial Holdings Limited and its subsidiaries
(collectively the “Group” or “we”).

The Group is principally engaged in the: (i) provision of the precious
metals spot trading and brokerage services, (ii) provision of
brokerage and securities margin financing services, (i) trading and
principal investments, (iv) sales of motor vehicles and provision
of agency services, and (v) provision of stock information and
research services. Such businesses are mainly operated in the
People’s Republic of China (the “PRC”) and Hong Kong. The
Group discontinued the segment of trading of electronic products,
electronic student cards and school safety porducts and provision of
electronic student card platform in October 2019. Apart from certain
aforementioned operations, the principal office in Hong Kong is also
responsible for the compliance with relevant rules and regulations
of the GEM of the Stock Exchange and Securities and Futures
Commission.

The Group believes that sustainable development is the key to
its continuous success, and has formulated strategies regarding
sustainable development aiming to create sustainable values for our
shareholders, as well as reduce the environmental impact brought by
the Group. The Group recognises the importance of integrating the
concept of ESG into our risk management system and has already
implemented corresponding measures in our daily operation and
governance.
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By HERERBE

Mission and Vision

As an integrated financial service, and parallel imported motor
vehicles supplier in Hong Kong and the PRC, we strive to create a
comprehensive platform of financing, brokerage, financial information
and wealth planning services. We also carry out the exploration of
the parallel imported motor vehicles market in the PRC so as to
broaden the source of income of the Group.

In response to the lack of investment information products and far-
from-sophisticated market in the PRC, and the voracious demand of
medium and small investors for such products, we are dedicated to
minimising information asymmetry and promoting investor education
through provision of useful information service. We strive to improve
market environment with introduction of market competition in terms
of products and services, with a view to safeguarding medium and
small investors’ interests and becoming a quality integrated financial
service provider.

Upholding sustainable development as the ESG management goal,
the Group is devoted to handling ESG affairs in an effective and
responsible way. It will be the core of our business strategy as we
believe that it is crucial for us to achieving continuous success in the
future.

ESG Governance Structure

The Group’s ESG duties are distributed to the core members of
various departments who are responsible for collecting relevant ESG
information for the composition of this ESG Report. Responsible
personnel for ESG duties will report to the Board of Directors (“The
Board”) to help recognise and assess the Group’s ESG risk as well
as the effectiveness of ESG internal control system. They will also
check and evaluate the Group’s performance on environment, health
and safety, labour standards, product responsibility and others from
the ESG perspective. The Board is responsible for establishing the
general direction of the Group’s ESG strategies, and to ensure the
effectiveness of ESG risk management and internal control system.
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REPORTING PERIOD

Unless otherwise stated, the ESG Report covers the activities,
challenges and measures with respect to ESG aspects of the Group
for the year ended 31 December 2019 (the “Reporting Period”).

REPORTING SCOPE

The ESG Report covers the overall performance, risks, strategies,
measures and commitment in four areas, namely, quality of
workplace environment, environmental protection, operating practice
and community involvement of the Group’s major subsidiaries in
the PRC and the offices in Hong Kong. Data for key performance
indicators (“KPI”) of ESG are obtained through the operation control
system. We will continue to expand the area of disclosure in the
future when the data collection system of the Group is more refined
and the sustainable development work is enhanced.

REPORTING GUIDELINE

The ESG Report is issued in accordance with the Environmental,
Social and Governance Reporting Guide (the “ESG Reporting
Guide”) as set out in the Appendix 20 of the Rules Governing the
Listing of Securities on GEM of the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited (the “Stock Exchange”).

For information about the Group’s corporate governance structure
and other relevant information, please refer to the Corporate
Governance Report on pages 34 to 46 of this Annual Report.

STAKEHOLDER ENGAGEMENT

As a responsible enterprise, we also highly value communication
with stakeholders and their feedback and opinion regarding our
business operation and ESG affairs while proactively developing its
business and improving its profitability for the purpose of balancing
their respective interests and fostering a sustainable development.
Therefore, the participation of stakeholders plays a crucial role in
the continuous growth of the Group’s performance in sustainable
development. With a view to fully understanding, responding and
handling the core concerns of various stakeholders, we have
been maintaining close communication with stakeholders but not
only confined to investors and shareholders, clients, business
partners and suppliers, employees of the Group, community, non-
governmental organisation (“NGOs”) and media.
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With the following table listing our multifarious corporation #EBER TR NNZLICAIEFRLER
approaches and communication channels, we bring in the XR&E HMIBHNHENEE ’%t)\ﬁﬂi?E’\J%E
anticipation of our stakeholders in our operation and ESG strategies. KIRE & REAREBEKE

Stakeholders Communication Channels Expectations
& BERE LS
Investors and shareholders o Annual general meetings and o Complying with relevant laws and
wEERRKRE other general meetings regulations
REREF RS REMKRREZ BTHEBEERER
° Annual reports, interim reports ° Disclosing the latest information
and quarterly reports in due course
FH -PHBRERTERE REAMEERTER
o Announcements and circulars ° Reinforcing corporate governance
NS and risk control

ANs& 1B R E R K A K 1% i

. Focusing on improving operating
efficiency and financial growth,
creating stable returns
EIRAKEREREBEER Al

SRR R R
Clients ° Customer service hotline and ° Assuming product and service
S email responsibility
B PR AR & BE BITERRRBEL
° Company website ° Identifying client needs and
N A uh improving product and service
quality
BREFPEE FENSEQRER
BEX

° Respecting clients’ privacy and
protecting their interests

EEXFILE REFFPME

Business partners and suppliers e Supplier meetings and events ° Maintaining good internal control
EERHE REIER HEFZZERTE and eradicating corruption
e Business cooperation HIFRITRNEER  HBESTR
2 78 A e Forging partnership to grow
together

BYAEBERE REKE
° Fair competition
ATHE
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Stakeholders

ENVIRONMENTAL, SoclAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT
RE HERERBRHRSE

Communication Channels

Expectations

Fin& BERE S
Employees ° Regular management . Providing safe workplace
REBEBET communications and REZE2TIERE

Community, NGOs and media

B SRR AR M AR B

We are dedicated to working with our stakeholders to improve the
Group’s ESG performance and creating higher value for a larger

community.

performance review
FHIREIREAMIERENZ
° Staff announcement
BT QM
o Email

EE

° ESG reports
RE - HgkELWmE

o Respecting all employees and
ensuring fair treatment
BEMBEEL HRATHES

o Supporting career growth and
providing internal training

SERBTRREE  RHAIE

° Giving back to society and
promoting self-reliance
Bl E - BIA BB

° Raising awareness of
environmental protection and
helping the needy, nurturing
virtue and values
BEETRERMDARH BV
BEESR

o Devoting to developing new
products for convenience of
society

BAMEERSHLE W REF

BFIBINEEMINFNESFEARELRE
BERE He@kBERTENKRE YAEE

AR REAEE R EE-

ERETEEEEARAT | ZE-NFFH
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RE #HERER®BE

MATERIALITY ASSESSMENT

In hopes of understanding the views and expectations of
stakeholders on the Group’s performance on ESG effectively, we
have adopted systematic measures in conducting this important
annual materiality assessment by inviting relevant stakeholders to
participate in this assessment and evaluate the potentially important
issues, and making reference to the Group’s business development
strategies and conventions of the industry. Results of the materiality
survey were analysed as a materiality matrix. The identified material
topics and stakeholders’ concerns were reviewed and discussed
with the management, and disclosed in the ESG Report. During the
Reporting Period, the Group’s materiality matrix is shown as below:

EEHIRTE
%E*ﬁ?ﬂlﬁﬁ@ﬁ@%%mﬁﬁlziﬁiﬁ‘?iﬁ
ARBENBRMME RARAEEZRDN
foiﬁfTiEsziEm AHE TR AR R
AEEBAENKNELREZNRE  WE
EEAZBETTN U2EAEEEKE
RERBRITEEMN RS EREFENE
ROMREENERE ERAINEZHER
FOERIFESRLENTREEEETH
i W ANESGHRE(FH W E - XS i
AEENEZEREBNT

NG
0

BE

=22
=

Tihey

B

ASSESSMENTS AND DECISIONS
HiHE

LEVEL OF INFLUENCE ON STAKEHOLDERS’

The Group’s Materiality Martix during the Reporting Period
AEBRBENB 2 EEMTEEREE

o ©

12)

Low LEVEL OF SIGNIFICANCE OF ECONOMIC, ENVIRONMENTAL AND SOCIAL IMPACTS High
& HIEOE - RN ENEEER ]
@ Enmission @ Improving Safety Awareness @ Customer Communication {® Prevention of Money Laundering
e3¢ RARZEH BEER Fy LEEE
@ Waste Management @ Training Management { Customer Privacy Protection @ Community Investment
BEYER BB E BEFRALRE HRRE
@ Use of Resources @ Prevention Child and Forced Labour ® Advertising and Labeling
BRERE P ETREHIST BE RIS
@O Employment @ Supply Chain Management @ Anti-corruption and Anti-fraud
E® HEEER REGRRHMF
CONTACT US SRR AT B 4%
We welcome opinions on the Group’s approaches on the ESG MR ARESGHRE%  WAEBKIRE &
aspects upon reading the ESG Report. Please share with us via: NERFHBERBEAMNER BIERAT
SIAAEREENZ:
Address: 16/F, CMA Building, 64-66 Connaught Road Central, B2 FHEFIRTHED64-665%
Hong Kong & K E161E
Phone: (852) 2297 9900 B (852) 2297 9900
Fax: (852) 2865 3888 HE: (852) 2865 3888
Email: info@sinofortune.hk BE info@sinofortune.hk
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A. ENVIRONMENTAL

A1,

Emissions

The Group is aware of the increasing emphasis of the
public and investors on environmental protection and
corporate social responsibility. Therefore, we have been
attaching much importance to good environmental
management and making an effort to protect the
environment so as to fulfil the social responsibility of the
Group. We actively evaluate the Group’s environmental
policies and minimise the pollution and environmental
damage arising from our daily business operation by
striving to improve the environmental management in
the business process through a series of measures and
complying with the current applicable regulations and
standards concerning environmental protection.

The Group has formulated policies regarding the
environmental management system and procedures
for the business operation in Hong Kong and Mainland
China, regulating the greenhouse gas (“GHG”) and non-
hazardous wastes generated during the operation so as
to contribute to environmental protection and pursue the
goal of achieving sustainable development.

ERETEEEEARAT | ZE-NFFH
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With a view to ensuring the Group is seriously
implementing environmental policies and complying
with the local laws and regulations, we keep track of
the latest environmental protection laws and regulations
in countries and regions, and base our measures of
safeguarding the environment on it and strengthen our
efforts. Such regulations we are strictly abiding by include
the “Environmental Protection Law of the People’s
Republic of China”, “Law of the People’s Republic of
China on Prevention and Control of Water Pollution”,
“Law of the People’s Republic of China on Prevention
and Control of Environmental Pollution by Solid Waste”
in Mainland China and “Air Pollution Control Ordinance”,
“Waste Disposal Ordinance”, “Water Pollution Control
Ordinance”, “Product Eco-responsibility Ordinance” in
Hong Kong and other legislations regarding environmental
protection in Mainland China and Hong Kong.

During the Reporting Period, there was no incident of
non-compliance with the relevant local environmental
laws and regulations relating to exhaust gas and GHG
emissions, discharges of pollutants into water and land
and generation of hazardous or non-hazardous wastes
that have a significant impact on the Group.

Exhaust Gas Emissions

The Group is primarily engaged in financial services,
during which no significant production of exhaust gas is
involved. Despite this, we are still working hard to reduce
our exhaust gas emissions by executing the following
emission reduction measures actively:

° Regularly maintain and repair vehicles to prevent
them from generating excess emissions of exhaust
gas caused by broken parts and other reasons; and

° Phase out unqualified trucks in accordance with the
emission policies of regions.

ENVIRONMENTAL, SoclAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT
RE HERERBRSE
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GHG Emissions

The major source of GHG emissions of the Group is
direct GHG emissions from the consumption of petrol
by vehicles (Scope 1), indirect GHG emissions from
purchased electricity (Scope 2) and other indirect GHG
emissions from employees’ business trips (Scope
3). Corresponding to the nation’s overall strategic
development of reduction of GHG emissions so as to
attain the sustainable development goal of saving energy
and carbon reduction, the Group is actively reducing
energy consumption, which helps reduce GHG emissions
to improve the reputation of the Group. With respect to
the emission sources mentioned above, we carry out the
following emission reduction measures actively:

° Implement emission reduction measures on
vehicles, which is explained in the session headed
“Exhaust Gas Emissions” in this Aspect;

° Implement energy saving control, which is explained
in Aspect A2 “Energy management”; and

° Conduct communications online, like conference
calls and WeChat conferences to reduce the
frequency of business trips.

Aside from the aforementioned policies, we post notices
and posters with green information in the office to
promote the best practice of environmental management,
raise employees’ concern of the environment. With these
GHG emission reduction measures, the awareness of
GHG emission reduction of employees can be raised.
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RE HEREBRS

BRI
REBMHTEBZREYHRNE
AT HREN AR ERMERZRER
REHER(BE—) IEEHE
BREEZERERER (SBHE D)
METIEBRTEXNNHEELRE
ﬁ’%ﬁa’iﬁﬁﬁﬁ((%ﬁi) AR ABR
BELERERNSREERE LIE
}ﬁﬂnabﬂﬁmZ%%?&E&E’% K&
ERGEBREERERE Em
AR ERBHER RARERD
& o F et E a8 BUR - BB iR
BREUT 515 HEHE e -

o TG BR BN EE A R G
HEEEEEARE @ P [
REEDR] — B

o TEHRRBURREAEIEE A
B A AR E A [82R
B —EHRFEA R

s ZEBRGEZNMESES
BEFAANARPDEER
8o

Br Bt pEsN  BAIME R AE
RELE B AR BESNE®R

NEEREEERNEEEERE IE.
BEIHNRREH# - BB LIAER
BE R BEE I Eé\ﬂﬂymﬁiﬁﬁé
MM EBBRRMS-

55



56

During the Reporting Period, the performance of GHG

emissions is summarised as below :

ENVIRONMENTAL, SoclAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT
RE - HERERRSE

RIBEMRE - AEEN R EREH
MR 0T -

Indicator! Unit Total emission
EE B i HER R
Direct GHG emission (Scope 1) tCO2e

EEAEREBHEN(HE—) WE—AiRE & 68.12
Indirect GHG emission (Scope 2) tCO2e

MEAEREBEW (BE ) W | biRE = 114.03
Indirect GHG emission (Scope 3) tCO2e

MEAERBHR (HE= WE—EiREE 12.91
Total GHG emission (Scope 1, 2 and 3) tCO2e

RERBHREE (BE— k=) WE S LIREE 195.06
Intensity of GHG emission ’[COze/employee2

BEREHNBERE —EtiEE BB 2.17

Note -

GHG emission data is presented in terms of carbon dioxide
equivalent and are based on, including but not limited to, “The
Greenhouse Gas Protocol: A Corporate Accounting and Reporting
Standards” issued by the World Resources Institute and the World
Business Council for Sustainable Development, the latest release
of baseline emission factors for regional power grids in China, the
“Global Warming Potential Values” from the IPCC Fifth Assessment
Report, 2014 (AR5), “How to prepare an ESG Report — Appendix
II: Reporting Guidance on Environmental KPIs” issued by the HKEX
and the “Sustainability Report 2018” released by HK Electric.

As at 31 December 2019, the Group had a total of 90 employees.
The data are also used for calculating other intensity data.
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Sewage Discharge

The Group does not generate any industrial wastewater
in the operation, but only domestic sewage. Water
supply and discharge are solely controlled by the office
building management, of which it is not feasible for such
management office to provide water withdrawal and
discharge data or sub-meter for individual occupant.
Therefore, we cannot measure the water consumption
and discharge of the Group. However, we believe that
our amount of discharge is under normal condition and
reasonable.

Waste Management

The Group sticks to the principles of waste management
and is dedicated to managing and handling with wastes
generated by business activities in a sensible way. The
Group maintains high standard in reducing wastes,
educates employees the importance of sustainable
development and provides relevant support in reinforcing
their skills and knowledge in sustainable development.

Due to business nature, the Group does not generate
any significant hazardous and non-hazardous wastes
during daily operation. Nevertheless, we are still devoted
to reducing wastes. The Group must hire and appoint
a qualified chemical waste collector to take care of the
hazardous wastes if any is produced, so as to adhere to
corresponding environmental laws and regulations.

FHEREMERAT | —EB-NEFH
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CHERERBE

The major non-hazardous wastes we generate during our
operation is paper. In addition to requiring our employees
to properly treat such office wastes and encouraging
them to sort such office wastes before treatment, we also
arrange staff to uniformly treat them. With regard to paper
consumption in the office, we have launched policies
mentioned below:

° Use electronic documents and establish electronic
work processes;

o Recycle used paper;

° Avoid printing and copying documents; and

° Print or copy on both sides.

Besides, we strive to reduce the generation of e-waste
by various methods, such as donating used electronic
gadgets to charitable organisations.

With the above measures, employees’ consciousness of
waste management are raised.

ENVIRONMENTAL, SociAL AND GoVERNANCE REPORT
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SoclAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT
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Use of Resources

The Group strictly complies with relevant local laws and
regulations on environmental protection, sets internal
guidelines and measures for this purpose, or works in line
with the rules of the office buildings, in order to achieve
energy saving and consumption reduction, minimising
negative environmental impact of our business operation.

We review the operation of our business regularly and
carry out improvement measures for effective use of
water, electricity and other office resources, reducing
or stopping the use of materials that cause wastage or
damage to the environment so as to fulfil the goal of
higher energy efficiency and reduction of unnecessary
consumption of resources.

FHEREMERAT | —EB-NEFH
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Energy Management

In daily operation, the major sources of the Group’s
energy consumption are electricity consumed in office
and petrol consumed by vehicles. Aside from energy
saving measures for vehicles described in section headed
“Exhaust Gas Emissions” under Aspect A1, the Group
has established system to promote the green office
culture aiming to save electricity and use electricity
effectively. Measures implemented in the course of our
business are listed below:

° Use lighting system featuring in low energy
consumption, like LED lamps;

° Limit the use of air-conditioning to lower electricity
consumption;

° Encourage employees who will be out for a long
time to turn off their own computers and set
hibernating or sleeping mode when they are out for
meals or rests; and

° Enhance the maintenance and repairment of air
conditioners and computers to ensure the best
condition of all electronic devices and the efficiency
of electricity consumption.

We review the effectiveness of these measures from time
to time and make adjustments according to our operation
to improve the efficiency of the use of resources.
With these energy saving measures, the awareness of
employees on energy saving has increased.

FEIR B FE

ERFEES FEENTERR
EREARAZERERERATEE
B UM o BR TIRATEE F [ RERHE
EM*%#%&%E%%%EM
o REESIE THEEBGZERD
MW%?ML@”@%%&E@
FRENNERZR HEABERN
T

e FALEDEE FEFABIED
FRBA & A

B BRI B 7 R A

#
Wi
= .

==R

MW

.« BEATRERENEEHE
EMEM R
SRS BRI
B KA

e MAEBBERANTBHMEE
mE BREETRERS
RENRE BRHERE
H o

BV AR T I SR A RO - I
RELERBNMBAAE  NEE
RABREAMENE K B BZ
FEHEIRIE M B THEKRER
MEBFAES-

Sinofortune Financial Holdings Limited | Annual Report 2019



ENVIRONMENTAL, SociAL AND GoVERNANCE REPORT

During the Reporting Period, the summary of resource
consumption performance is listed as follows:

RE - HERERHRSE

RS HE NREBERRERERER
W

Types of energy Unit Total consumption
ReiRTEE 5 i HEEE
Petrol® MWh

bawiii JK BB 247.49
Petrol intensity MWh/employee

FUBERERE kEREE 2.75
Electricity MWHh

B JK BB 185.68
Electricity intensity MWh/employee

BHERRE kR &S 2.06
Note: Bt

8 The actual petrol consumption was approximately 25,611.36 litres. B B THHEAL25,611.36 Q7 -
Water Management KR E HE

The Group’s water consumption is mainly domestic water
of the office. The Group has strengthened the promotion
on water saving, posted slogans and reminded all
workers and clients to build the habit of saving water.

As most of the offices of the Group are solely controlled
by the building management in terms of water supply and
discharge, it is not feasible for such management office
to provide water withdrawal and discharge data or sub-
meter for individual occupant, and the Group considers
that solely provision of the data on its individual office is
not the indicator of actual use of water. Therefore, data
relating to total use of water is not included in this ESG
Report.

The Group does not have any issues in acquiring
appropriate water sources that is fit for purpose, and
believes that the water consumption is at a reasonable
level.
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R B

AS.

T HERERHRS

Use of Packaging Materials

Due to business nature, the Group does not sell any
physical product and therefore, the Group’s business
does not involve use of packaging materials.

The Environment and Natural Resources

Despite that the Group’s major operations has no
significant impact on the environment and natural
resources, we, as a responsible corporate, are committed
to minimising such negative impact, and assessing
environmental risks induced by our operations, in order
to formulate relevant measures and make an effort
in protecting the environment. Aside from abiding by
relevant laws and regulations of the environment and
the international standards, we integrate the concept of
environmental and natural resource protection into our
internal management and daily operation so as to achieve
the goal of environmental sustainability.

Enhancing Environmental Awareness

We are deeply convinced that besides strictly requiring
our employees to carry out internal environmental
measures formulated by the Group, we also need to
proactively improve the environmental awareness of our
employees so as to effectively improve our environmental
protection level. Therefore, the Group reviews its own
code of conduct, issues environmental guidelines and
notices to its employees and shares green office and
other relevant environmental information from time to
time. We will also consider participating in more feasible
and appropriate activities with a view to assisting
our employees in enhancing their recognition over
environment and natural resources.

Indoor Air Quality

The Group monitors and measures the indoor air quality
of the workplace constantly as we are dedicated to
providing our employees a comfortable and green
working environment. We have equipped the office with
air purification equipment, cleaned the air-conditioning
system including air filters and air duct, selected products
low or zero in volatile organic compounds, etc. These
measures can help filter out the pollutants and dusts,
which in turn avoid the blockage of vents and exhaust
pipes, in order to maintain a satisfactory ventilation and
indoor air quality and ensure the system is functional.
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B. SOCIAL

B1.

Employment

The Group believes that human resources are the
foundation to help develop a strong corporate sustainable
development. Therefore, we are dedicated to improving
our employment system in order to attract, cultivate and
retain talents and we believe that it provides support to
the Group’s success. The Group asserts people-oriented
approach in its management to respect and protect the
legitimate rights of every employee. Employee Manual
standardises the Group’s employment policies and rules
so as to make sure that our employees understand their
rights and responsibilities clearly. We make sure every
employee feels the Group’s care and value through
working in a warm and harmonious atmosphere that we
have constructed.

The Group complies with all laws and regulations
related to compensation and dismissal, recruitment
and promotion, working hours, rest periods, equal
opportunity, diversity, anti-discrimination, and other
benefits and welfare, included but not limited to the
“Employment Ordinance” of Hong Kong, the “Labour
Law of the People’s Republic of China” and the “Labour
Contract Law of the People’s Republic of China” and
other existing laws and regulations. During the Reporting
Period, the Group had not been involved in any incident
of non-compliance with laws and regulations relating to
employment that had a significant impact on the Group.
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As at 31 December 2019, the Group had 90 employees
and the composition is shown as below:

HE-Z—hF+=-A=+—
8 H

Z’SE.ﬁm/\go%,TE ~ \%Jﬁﬁu
T

Employees Percentage
PN
A& Bl
By gender LA Bl &l 5
Male S 44 49%
Female pegis 46 51%
By age A F e 8l
<31 <31 12 13%
31-39 31-39 17 19%
40-49 40-49 28 31%
50-59 50-59 15 17%
>59 >59 18 20%
By employment type NEEEEE S
Full-time long-term employees FHBERHBET 23 26%
Full-time contracted employees 2BA&#E T 66 73%
Temporary and part-time by B B T
employees 1 1%
By employee category NiEE R &5
Administrative staff THREEAB 34 38%
Other staff Hi8 T 56 62%

Recruitment, Promotion, Remuneration and Dismissal

We value talents, consider employees as our most
valuable and core assets, uphold the concept of
fairness, impartiality and openness in employment,
recruit talents to provide sufficient talent reserves for
the Group’s various businesses, so as to strengthen
the competitiveness of our business. After employees’
appraisal, the Group determines employees’ salary,
benefits and promotion based upon their job nature,
experience, work performance, financial results and
market condition. The Group guarantees fair treatment of
employees and prevents discrimination based on gender,
race, religion, age, marital and family status, disability or
any other grounds.
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In accordance with related laws and regulations,
we clearly stated the remuneration packages of our
employees in our Employee Manual. Apart from basic
salary, the Group also offers employees with their benefits
and rights, which include but not limited to Mandatory
Provident Fund, social insurance, directors and officer’s
liability insurance and medical benefits, legal and extra
annual leave, sick leave, parental leave, allowance and
severance pay. For employees in Mainland China, the
Group will pay for their “five social insurance and one
housing fund” including endowment insurance, medical
insurance, unemployment insurance, employment injury
insurance, maternity insurance and Housing Provident
Fund pursuant to the law in order to safeguard the
benefits of social insurance of employees.

In addition, the Group complies with the guidance
under relevant employment ordinance. If terminating
the employment of staff is required, we will follow the
standard procedures to handle and make reasonable
compensation to the dismissed employees. The relevant
provisions on termination of the employment are set out
in the employment contract of every staff.

During the Reporting Period, the Group’s turnover rate is
shown as below.
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Equal Opportunity, Diversity and Anti-discrimination

The Group understands the value of employee diversity
and professional team. We are dedicated to developing
and maintaining an inclusive and cooperate workplace
culture for all staff to thrive. The Group is devoted to
providing equal opportunity for all employees and prevent
any discrimination, physical or verbal harassment in the
workplace based on gender, race, religion, age, marital
and family status, disability or any other grounds.

Communication Channel

The Group attaches importance to employees’
communication. Various communication channels have
been established to encourage communication between
the management and employees by bringing forward their
opinions, improving operational efficiency by enhancing
business operation and management policies. Also,
we organise activities regularly such as staff banquet
to improve the communication among employees and
increase their sense of belongings towards the Group.

Health and Safety

The Group’s operation does not involve in any high-risk
activities. The Group highly values employees’ health
and safety and is devoted to protecting our employees’
safety by providing an appropriate workplace. According
to industry practices and regulations, we formulate work
safety guidelines to ensure the cleanliness and tidiness of
workplace, eliminate any potential health and safety risks,
and strictly implement relevant measures.
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We strictly comply with the “Labour law of the People’s
Republic of China”, the “Law of the People’s Republic of
China on the Prevention and Treatment of Occupational
Diseases”, “Fire Control Law of the People’s Republic of
China” of Mainland China, and the “Occupational Safety
and Health Ordinance” of Hong Kong and other relevant
laws and regulations. During the Reporting Period, there
was no significant incident of safety and work-related
fatalities or injuries. There was no non-compliance
with health and safety laws and regulations that had a
significant impact on the Group relating to providing a
safe working environment and protecting employees from
occupational hazards.

Improving Safety Awareness

The Group complies with related working safety
guidelines and constantly educates and reminds
employees of the importance of work health and safety.
The Group provides relevant information on crime
prevention and emergency response through training,
promotions, drills and regular safety inspections. We
also coordinate with other organizations or property
management company of the office building to join regular
fire drills and raise employees’ safety and fire prevention
awareness. In addition, our Employee Manual clearly
states the legal working safety guidelines, which against
any acts of violations committed by our employees. We
take appropriate disciplinary actions or legal proceedings
against the staff concerned so as to raise employees’
health and safety awareness during working hours.

Physical and Mental Health

We care for our employees, especially for their mental
health. We encourage our employees to achieve work-
life balance, promote team cohesion, relieve stress
and create a harmonious working environment through
organising social activities. Meanwhile, we provide our
employees with information about health and safety,
aiming to improve their health consciousness.
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Development and Training

The Group treats employees as the key assets to
corporate success, and we believe that the support from
employees is fundamental to maintain the Group’s core
value and competitiveness, contribute to the Group’s
sustainable development, and also foster employees’
development. We meet the needs of employees from
different positions through diversified training models
including introduction training and management
training, in order to continuously improve the quality of
service provided by employees. In addition, we offer
employees comprehensive and various on-the-job training
programmes and professional trainings to improve their
quality, qualification and skills for their potential and self-
development. We encourage our staff to discuss with
management and supervisors on their promotion and
career objectives, as well as join business-related training
programs.

Training Management

The Group’s management is responsible to draw up the
training program annually and keep training records in
order to regularise training administration and arrange
related professional training programs. Management
conducts regular review on the effectiveness of different
training programs which improves the efficiency and
quality of the Group’s training system and improves
employees working performances and efficiencies. The
Group also provides subsidy to encourage employees
participating in some external training programs. In
accordance with the annual training program, the Group
evaluates and monitors those training programs and
arrange suitable training courses for different employees
to help them to reach their full potential.
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Training Programmes

Professional, training and development programs are
arranged by the Group including knowledge of financial
service, knowledge of information technology, trainings
on customer service and product knowledge, regulatory
seminars and guidance, training on anti-corruption and
other relevant training programmes.

We highly encourage the Directors and senior
management to participate in the training on the GEM
Listing Rules of the Stock Exchange and corporate
governance in order to continuously enhance the Group’s
internal control and corporate governance level. We also
encourage accounting and secretarial staff to conduct
periodic updates on relevant professional knowledge.

Labour Standards

Prevention of Child and Forced Labour

The Group complies with the “Employment Ordinance”
of Hong Kong, as well as the “Regulation on Labour
Security Supervision”, the “Labour Law of the People’s
Republic of China” and “Labour Contract Law of the
People’s Republic of China” of Mainland China, and
has formulated internal guidelines and labour policy
based on international labour standards. All recruitment
process and promotion activities are closely monitored
under the Group’s human resources management
scheme to prevent child labour, forced labour, or any
discrimination by race, religion, age or disability in
Mainland China and Hong Kong. The Group will conduct
investigations, punishment or dismissal of relevant
employees immediately when any non-compliance is
being discovered. If necessary, the Group will further
improve the labour mechanism against illegal behaviours.
During the Reporting Period, the Group did not identify
any significant non-compliance of laws and regulations
related to prevention of child and forced labour, and there
were no incidents of discrimination involving race, religion,
age, disability, etc.

FHEREMERAT | —EB-NEFH

B4.

E R

AEBE LN EERZI R ERG
ERSBMRBEEENH  EAM
RBEEMD TP RGNERANHE
B HEEARBERES RE
BEEREI AR EAEREE IR

L

B +toBEERSRERE
2007 BB 32 BT GEM L T 43 BIl &%
EEERNEI FBUBERITA
SENNREERERERKTF
R TaBest RAKRERE A
BEEFEMEMMERNIERMNE -

I A

BrikE TR & #%T
AEEBRBEBTEEN (RREK
1) AR EIAMmE (5 BREE
&0 (PEARKNMES
E) RAPEARKMBELSHAR
) UL EBBRES TRE HIFT
WER<FRItE S & THIE - FT AR
BiAREEHOREAREA
HERERHIEEAREE - ALE
FREFBEAREREEMETHS
EER UARER R FRN
RRESBANBRIT R %
REFERITR AEESRIRE
HAE - BONBEAME T -1
BERE AEESHYERTRE
—HEES THS - NS MR
AEBI RBEREMERDLEE
TR 5 THREAREINE
REE TEEBLEFENS MER-
R FlCBAFEAEF

69



70

ENVIRONMENTAL, SociAL AND GoVERNANCE REPORT

R B

BS5.

T HERERHRS

The Group requires all new employees to provide true
and accurate personal identification information. All
personal information, including identification card and
bank account will be strictly investigated by our recruiters.
The Group has established a refined recruitment process
for checking candidates’ background and handling
documentation of any exceptional cases. Self-censorship
will be conducted on a regular basis to prevent child
labour and forced labour.

In addition, our employees work overtime on a voluntary
basis to avoid any violation of the labour standards
and protect employee’s legal rights and interests. Any
punishment, management method and behaviours
involving verbal abuse, physical punishment, oppression,
sexual harassment (including inappropriate languages,
postures and physical contact), etc. against its employees
for any reason. The Group also avoids using the
administrative supplies and services of those vendors and
contractors with known records of using child labour and
forced labour.

Supply Chain Management

The Group highly values the importance of potential
environmental and social risks management in its supply
chain. A stringent and standardised procurement system
and a systematic selection process for suppliers and
contractors are established and environmental and social
risk control are requested for all suppliers.
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Procurement Mechanism

As a finance-related business, due to business nature
and needs, the Group did not hire major suppliers
for provision of products, raw materials and services
during the Reporting Period, nor did it take part in any
negotiation between its corporate or institutional clients
and their suppliers. Generally, we purchase stationery,
paper, computers and other office stationery but we do
not enter into any long-term or bulk purchase agreements
with any suppliers. Two of the Group’s subsidiaries
purchase motherboards, modules, display modules,
batteries, cases and vehicles from its suppliers. The
suppliers are mainly from overseas, Chongqing, Chengdu,
Shenzhen, Dongguan and other places. The Group
cares about integrity of the suppliers and cooperate
organizations and only selects those with good business
track records and no material non-compliance or
unethical behaviours.

Supplier Management

We promote fair and open competition, aiming to
develop long-term relationship based on mutual trust,
and the Group’s subsidiaries have strictly complied with
the “Bidding Law of the People’s Republic of China”
and other related laws and regulations during the
procurement. Our suppliers are required to work in a
responsible manner, and comply all relevant regulations,
international treaties and contractual responsibilities.
Therefore, the Group closely monitors the procurement
made by our staff and forbids any practices that are
against business ethics.
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The Group standardises the procurement process
and behaviours so as to monitors our employees’
procurement activities and avoids any practices that are
against business ethics. We will closely communicate
with our subsidiaries and urge them to carefully handle
relationship with suppliers and business partners in
avoidance of transfer of interests or exploitation of
suppliers. We will also adopt measures to inspect whether
the suppliers are complied with relevant standards, laws
and regulations related to health, safety, child and forced
labour, and required standards, as well as their awareness
of the above-mentioned aspects, in order to minimise
the potential environmental and social risks in the supply
chain.

Product Responsibility

The Group’s products and services include: brokerage
and securities margin financial services, precious metals
spot trading and brokerage services, stock information
and research services, motor vehicles and related agency
services. As premium products and services can build
a strong corporate reputation, we are dedicated to
maintaining high level service and product quality through
internal control. We maintain on-going communication
with our customers to ensure understanding and
satisfaction of their demands and expectations, and to
improve our service quality by learning their satisfactory
rates.
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We strictly comply with all relevant laws and regulations,
including but not limited to “Law of the People’s Republic
of China on the Protection of Consumer Rights and
Interests”, “Advertisement Law of the People’s Republic
of China”, “Interim Measures for the Administration
of Internet Advertising”, “Product Quality Law of the
People’s Republic of China” of Mainland China, as well
as the “Trade Descriptions Ordinance” of Hong Kong
on customers protection. During the Reporting Period,
the Group did not identify any material non-compliance
with any laws and regulations in relation to product and
service quality, nor recall any products for health and
safety reasons. Customer satisfaction has reached our
expected level.

During the Reporting Period, the performance on product
responsibility of the Group is shown as below:

Percentage of total products sold or
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Nil

Customer Communication

The Group strives to provide our customers with
competitive products and services with standardised
service quality, humanised service process and regulated
service management. We stress the importance of clients’
needs and collect their opinions through our customer
manager, both of which are the foundation for the
continuous improvement of our business. Customers can
contact us by email, phone or make complaints in person
and we will ensure the whole process is confidential, in
order to protect all parties’ interest and ensure complaints
are treated fairly and documented.
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The complaint handling procedures established by the
Group can ensure relevant departments carry out detailed
investigation, monitor handling process, coordinate and
communicate with all involved parties, and properly
respond to complaints. We strive to understand the truth
and root causes of complaint made by our customers
and identify responsible parties and area for improvement
in order to enhance the Group’s service quality, as well
as to retain customer by earning their loyalty towards
the Group’s service and to promote the Group’s future
development.

Customer Privacy Protection

Due to its business nature, the Group handles a huge
amount of customer personal or corporate information.
The Group attaches high importance to safeguarding
clients’ interests and privacy and strives to maintain and
protect personal data. Through adopting high standard
of security and confidentiality towards customer privacy
protection, we comply with regulatory requirements
regarding data privacy. We have formulated relevant
guidelines and handbook to regulate employees’ handling
of personal data of clients. We also sporadically arrange
training to raise the employees’ awareness of privacy
protection. According to our data protection policies,
we have to comply with the Private Policy Statement,
and notify our customers the general policies and
practices of personal information collection, storage
and utilization. The Group maintains and reviews all
customer communication channels to obtain feedback,
handle complaints timely so as to conduct inspection and
improve customer service system.
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Aadvertising and Labelling

Due to its business nature, the Group conducts limited
advertising campaign and as a result not involving in any
significant advertising-related risks. Nevertheless, in terms
of the advertisement of products and services, we strictly
regulate and monitor products and services promotion
and ensure they comply with advertising and labelling
related laws and regulations. The advertisement should
be an accurate reflection of the Group’s products’ quality
and effectiveness and services’ content, in order to let
clients to “get what they see”.

Anti-corruption

The Group believes that a clean corporate culture is the
key to our continuous success. Therefore, we stress
on anti-corruption work and policy formulation, strictly
prohibit any corruption activities. The Group strictly
complies with “Company Law of the People’s Republic
of China”, “Bidding Law of the People’s Republic of
China” of Mainland China and the “Prevention of Bribery
Ordinance” of Hong Kong. During the Reporting Period,
the Group did not identify any material non-compliance
with the relevant laws and regulations of bribery,
extortion, fraud and money laundering nor any concluded
legal cases regarding corrupt practices.

Anti-corruption and Anti-fraud

The Board adopts “zero-tolerance” towards corruption
and fraud while such standard has been outlines in our
operation and employment policies. The Group strictly
complies with relevant laws and morale standards of
corruption and proactively maintains a good corporate
governance and risk control to protect interests of
stakeholders and develop a corporate culture with
integrity, openness and transparency.

The Group reminds employees to comply with the anti-
corruption and anti-fraud guidelines of Independent
Commission Against Corruption and provides anti-
corruption related training and information regularly to
raise their awareness towards anti-corruption. We urge
employees to maintain high standard of professional
conduct and strictly follow the laws of Hong Kong and the
Mainland China.
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Prevention of Money Laundering

To maintain the Group’s integrity and credibility, we
forbid any activities related to money laundering and
terrorist. The Finance Department is responsible to
evaluate the risk of money laundering in our business
operation annually, handle any suspicious cases of money
laundering, review all applicable policies and guidelines
published by the Hong Kong Monetary Authority and
other financial regulators on a regular basis and evaluate
the effectiveness on the enforcement of regulations in the
Group’s business operation.

Whistleblowing Mechanism

The Group educates all employees on anti-corruption
awareness and encourages them to report any corruption
or fraud activities. We promptly conduct inspection and
take necessary measures while protecting the identity
of the whistleblower to prevent any conflict of interest
or behaviours that will bring harm to the Group and the
stakeholders.

Community Investment

The Group is devoted to becoming a responsible
corporate citizen and offering appropriate resources to
the needy in the community. We believe that the Group
and our employees can build positive values through
charitable activities and become responsible corporate
citizens.

Community Investment

We encourage and support our staff to participate in
voluntary activities in their spare time and also arrange
environmental and social service activities for the
Group’s employees. Through participating in those
community activities, we hope our employees will make a
contribution to communities to enhance the employees’
caring awareness while developing a sense of social
responsibility.

We help different institutions and engage in social activity
by making donations to perform social responsibility as a
corporate citizen and develop a better public image. The
Group will seek for cooperation with different charitable
organisations, and at the same time be aware of the
difficulties and needs of the society and vulnerable
groups, aiming to give back to the society and promote
social harmony.

B8.

il 34
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BLBILERABLERE RN
ERMEDDY WHARZFYHAR
SEZEETRERRG  BEE
B ERAERENER RN
FEEeRMEERRAEMEERE
B 1 AR BB R R Ko 48 5 A B ¥ A
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THE ESG REPORTING GUIDE CONTENT INDEX OF THE
STOCK EXCHANGE OF HONG KONG LIMITED

Subject Areas,

ENVIRONMENTAL, SociAL AND GoVERNANCE REPORT

B 5

CHERERBRE

FEBESX S AMRASESGIREIESI
EEALIES

Aspects, General Page
Disclosures and KPIs Description Section/Declaration Number
B —RiEER
E it Fi::pag EE B9 HE
Aspect A1: Emission
EBEA1 : HE Y
General Disclosure Information on: Emissions 53
—RRIRE 23187
(@)  the policies; and
(b) compliance with relevant laws and
regulations that have a significant impact
on the issuer relating to Exhaust Gas and
GHG emissions, discharges into water and
land, and generation of hazardous and
non-hazardous waste.
BRERIORERBEERN - KR T a5
EEMBEEREYHNESEFN:
(a) BXR: K&
b) EBEFHETABEAZENHEBEEEZRER
k==
KPI A1.1 The types of emissions and respective emissions Emissions — Exhaust 54
(comply or explain) data. Gas Emissions, GHG
B $E 4B R IRAT A HEm 8 N AR BE R BUR - Emissions, Waste
(TBFRhEReE) Management
PR —BERHEN RER
B EEMEIER
KPI A1.2 GHG emissions in total (in tonnes) and intensity.  Emissions — GHG 55
(comply or explain) BERBAEERE (LEFTE) REE - Emissions
RASREIEIRAL.2 PR —ia = R B HE R
(T EFRLARE)
KPI' A1.3 Total hazardous waste produced (in tonnes) and Not applicable — explained 57

(comply or explain)
RS 4B R 1RAL.3
(TETHAERE)

intensity.

MELEEERYDEE (UMHE) RBE -

ERETEEEEARAT | ZE-NFFH

NER-ERE
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SociAL AND GoVERNANCE REPORT

R iE

Subject Areas,

HEREREE

Aspects, General Page
Disclosures and KPIs Description Section/Declaration Number
B —RIiEER
FRERIEE i ft 408 Ll B
KPI A1.4 Total non-hazardous waste produced (in tonnes) Not applicable — explained 57
(comply or explain) and intensity. TEA-BSWRE
B3 4B IR 1RAL .4 FEEBREEENBE (LB E)REE-
(TETHAERE)
KPI' A1.5 Description of reduction initiatives and results Emissions — Exhaust Gas 54
(comply or explain) achieved. Emission, GHG Emissions,
B SR 4B BUBIZA1.5 R R ENE B RIS E- Waste Management
(T EFRLARRE) PERU — RERBER R E R
B EEYER

KPI A1.6 Description of how hazardous and non- Emissions — Waste 57
(comply or explain) hazardous wastes are handled, reduction Management
A AEIEIEA1.6 initiatives and results achieved. Y —EEYMEIR
(TETHAERE) R EEREENBERREYN L REELS

BB RATERR-
Aspect A2: Use of Resources
BEA2 : EiRER
General Disclosure Policies on the efficient use of resources, Use of Resources 59
— R including energy, water and other raw materials. &R

BREREIR (BEER K REAMRME) H K

% o
KPI A2.1 Direct and/or indirect energy consumption by Use of Resources — Energy 60
(comply or explain) type in total and intensity. Management
SR AE B IR A2 RENESHEER SHEEREEERT BREA-GHRER
(TETRARE) g o
KPI A2.2 Water consumption in total and intensity. Not applicable — explained 61

(comply or explain)
A TIEIZA2.2
(TEPRARE)

BEKEREE-

NER-ERE
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Subject Areas,

ENVIRONMENTAL, SoclAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT
RE HERERBRHRSE

Aspects, General Page
Disclosures and KPIs Description Section/Declaration Number
B —RIiEER
FRERIEE i ft 4 1] B
KPI A2.3 Description of energy use efficiency initiatives Use of Resources — Energy 60
(comply or explain) and results achieved. Management
B3 4B R 1R A2.3 it B IR A AR s 5T B S PR IS AR © BRER—-—BRER
(TETHAERE)
KPI A2.4 Description of whether there is any issue in Use of Resources — Water 61
(comply or explain) sourcing water that is fit for purpose, water Management
B A TUIEIZA2.4 efficiency initiatives and results achieved. BRFER-KRER
(T EFRLARRE) it sSREGE AR AR ERI BRI EE - A RREAA
IRt & R PTG RCR
KPI A2.5 Total packaging material used for finished Not applicable — explained 62
(comply or explain) products (in tonnes) and with reference to per @M — B f#EE
A I IEA2.5 unit produced.
(TETHAERE) HEmAMBEEMNEE (UEAE)REE
EBMEE-
Aspect A3: The Environment and Natural Resources
EBEAS RERXAER
General Disclosure Policies on minimising the issuer’s significant The Environment and 62
— = impact on the environment and natural Natural Resources
resources. RIERRANEIR
WIEEITAHRERRAERENERZENT
% o
KPI A3.1 Description of the significant impacts of activities The Environment and 62

(comply or explain)
2 4B B 1R AS.
(TETHAERE)

on the environment and natural resources and
the actions taken to manage them.
HEBEHHRBERRAAERNERTZER
EMERBEETENITE

ERETEEEEARAT | ZE-NFFH

Natural Resources
RERRAER
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SoclAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT
RE HERERBRSE

Subject Areas,

Aspects, General Page
Disclosures and KPIs Description Section/Declaration Number
B —RIiEER
FRERIEE i ft 4 1] B
Aspect B1: Employment
E®EB1: &R
General Disclosure Information on: Employment 63
— PRI EE =4
(@)  the policies; and
(b) compliance with relevant laws and
regulations that have a significant impact
on the issuer relating to compensation
and dismissal, recruitment and promotion,
working hours, rest periods, equal
opportunity, diversity, antidiscrimination,
and other benefits and welfare.
BRI N rE BEREA  TIERE- RE-
FEHE  Zoult - RIRAR DA R E M58 KA
Hy :
(a) BR: &
b) EBEFHETABEAZENHEBERZRR
Bl & %L e
KPI B1.1 Total workforce by gender, employment type, Employment 63
(recommended age group and geographical region e %
disclosure) BER - EEER - FREAN LB ERESHES
B §2 48 5 1R B1.1 BE -
(BEHE)
KPI B1.2 Employee turnover rate by gender, age group Employment —Recruitment, 64
(recommended and geographical region Promotion, Remuneration
disclosure) HHER FiRER EMEE S EE RAKLLE >  and Dismissal
B B IR 1EB.2 BE-BE BA FHKk
(BEEE) i

80
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SoclAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT
RE HERERBRHRSE

Subject Areas,

Aspects, General Page
Disclosures and KPIs Description Section/Declaration Number
B —RIiEER

FRERIEE i ft 408 Ll B
Aspect B2: Health and Safety

EEB2 : BRHEZE

General Disclosure Information on: Health and Safety 66

— PRI EE EEREZZ

(@)  the policies; and

(b) compliance with relevant laws and
regulations that have a significant impact
on the issuer relating to providing a safe
working environment and protecting
employees from occupational hazards.

ABRHZ2 IARERABEERER LS
=

(a) B &

(b) MFHBETABEAFEORMERLH
19 ) <

Aspect B3: Development and Training

EmEB3 : 2% E &gl

General Disclosure Policies on improving employees’ knowledge
— MR and skills for discharging duties at work.

Description of training activities.
ERRTEEETIEREHMBMERENK
e IR IE S -

ERETEEEEARAT | ZE-NFFH

Development and Training 68
R EIE
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SoclAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT
RE HERERBRSE

Subject Areas,

Aspects, General Page
Disclosures and KPIs Description Section/Declaration Number
B —RIiEER
FRERIEE i ft 408 Ll B
Aspect B4: Labour Standards
[EHEB4 : & T#H|
General Disclosure Information on: Labour Standards 69
— PRI EE & T AR
(@)  the policies; and
(b) compliance with relevant laws and
regulations that have a significant impact
on the issuer relating to preventing child
and forced labour.
BEPIEET SRS ST :
(@) EFE &
b) EBFHETABEAZENHEBEEEZRER
BB E Rt o
Aspect B5: Supply Chain Management
[EEBS5 : {tEHEEE
General Disclosure Policies on managing environmental and social Supply Chain Management 70
— R W B risks of the supply chain. HEEERE
ERMHEENRERTSRAREEK-
Aspect B6: Product Responsibility
[E@B6 : EREE
General Disclosure Information on: Product Responsibility 72

—RWE

(@)  the policies; and

(b) compliance with relevant laws and
regulations that have a significant impact
on the issuer relating to health and safety,
advertising, labelling and privacy matters
relating to products and services provided
and methods of redress.

EHFREESNREHRERRS EE 2
BRABEEURBRITED

(a) BUR: K&

(b) MFHBETABEALEORMERLH
1))

EmaE
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Subject Areas,

ENVIRONMENTAL, SoclAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT
RE HERERBRHRSE

Aspects, General Page
Disclosures and KPIs Description Section/Declaration Number
B —RIiEER
FRERIEE i ft 4 1] B
KPI B6.1 Percentage of total products sold or shipped Product Responsibility 72
(recommended subject to recalls for safety and health reasons EmET
disclosure) EESCEXEMBRETEL 2 BREFEERMA
B $2 48 515 B6. 1 Bl E B DL -
(BEBEE)
KPI B6.2 Number of products and service related Product Responsibility 72
(recommended complaints received and how they are dealt with & @& (T
disclosure) BEREEREMRBRBORFEE AREBEFE-
R $E 4 N 1E15B6.2
(ZEKE)
KPI B6.5 Description of consumer data protection and Product Responsibility — 73
(recommended privacy policies, how they are implemented and Customer Communication,
disclosure) monitored Customer Privacy
i §2 48 M5 15B6.5 U B EEBRRE RILEIE - LA RABFHIT  Protection
(BHRE) REEFE. EmEE-EFRER BF

(S FLR &
Aspect B7: Anti-corruption
E@B7 : R&ES
General Disclosure Information on: Anti-corruption 75

—RWE

(@)  the policies; and

(b) compliance with relevant laws and
regulations that have a significant impact
on the issuer relating to bribery, extortion,
fraud and money laundering.

BRI - $1R BFFRIEBEN:
(a) BR: &

) EBTHETABEAZENHBEEIZNLR
EskE e

ERETEEEEARAT | ZE-NFFH

RES
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SociAL AND GoVERNANCE REPORT

R - HERERHRS

Subject Areas,

Aspects, General Page
Disclosures and KPIs Description Section/Declaration Number
B —RIEER
B AENIEE Fi::pu 4 1] B
KPI B7.1 Number of concluded legal cases regarding Anti-corruption 75
(recommended corrupt practices brought against the issuer or K&)5
disclosure) its employees during the reporting period and
7852 4B BB 1E BT .1 the outcomes of the cases
(BEBEE) REBRPAHBITASIHEERETEELENE

ERAARMEEE RFAER-
KPI B7.2 Description of preventive measures and whistle-  Anti-corruption — Anti- 75
(recommended blowing procedures, how they are implemented corruption and Anti-
disclosure) and monitored fraud, Prevention of
A I IEBT.2 i L By 4 i R R AR T AR AB BT R EEE Money Laundering,
(BZEEHE) JEe Whistleblowing Mechanism

Aspect B8: Community Investment
[EEBS : HEHRE

RES-RESMREE-
B3 LB R 8% - 28 R
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

CHENG & CHENG LIMITED
@ CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS
Wmom g F M OF OB A N A

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF
SINOFORTUNE FINANCIAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
(Incorporated in Cayman Islands with limited liability)

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of
Sinofortune Financial Holdings Limited (“the Company”) and its
subsidiaries (“the Group”) set out on pages 93 to 243, which
comprise the consolidated statement of financial position as at
31 December 2019, and the consolidated statement of profit or
loss and other comprehensive income, consolidated statement of
changes in equity and consolidated statement of cash flows for the
year then ended, and notes to the consolidated financial statements,
including a summary of significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and
fair view of the consolidated financial position of the Group as at 31
December 2019, and of its consolidated financial performance and
its consolidated cash flows for the year then ended in accordance
with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”) issued by
the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA”)
and have been properly prepared in compliance with the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards
on Auditing (“HKSAs”) issued by the HKICPA. Our responsibilities
under those standards are further described in the Auditor’s
Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial
Statements section of our report. We are independent of the Group
in accordance with the HKICPA’s Code of Ethics for Professional
Accountants (“the Code”), and we have fulfilled our other ethical
responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the Code.
We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

FHEREMERAT | —EB-NEFH
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT
B\ EED IR

KEY AUDIT MATTERS

FREZEE

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional BIEEEZEMNEXHE BRELRETEAES
judgment, were of most significance in our audit of the consolidated BRNAHBNGEATERERTZEEMNSE
financial statements of the current period. These matters were E-ZEFBEEESEREEEATER
addressed in the context of our audit of the consolidated financial X®REEEZSEEETEREE MIASmZE
statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we IHE®BZEXRER -

do not provide a separate opinion on these matters.

Revenue recognition
(see note 5 of the consolidated financial statements)

The Key Audit Matter
FEEZEE

W 208 £ 52
(RERA MWK MIEES)

How the matter was addressed in our audit

EEZPHEE S E

Revenue recognition is identified as a key audit matter
because of its financial significance to the consolidated
financial statements and is one of key performance
indicators of the Group. Accordingly, there may be
risks of material misstatements related to revenue
recognition.

WHERAHGEMBRRENENUBELE B &
SENBARRRER, — WEERAS - HHEREZSE
Ho At FIREFEA I = R R E XK E Rl &

G o
N

In addition, during the year ended 31 December 2019,
the Group recognised revenue from motor vehicles
trading business amounted to HK$325,123,717, of
which HK$324,299,455 was related to situations
where the Group concluded that it acted as a principal
and had the primary responsibility for fulfilling the
promise to provide the specified goods to customers
and HK$824,262 was related to agency fee income
from accessories sourcing and situations where the
Group concluded that it acted as an agent in arranging
to provide the specified goods to customers. The
Group recognised the revenue at gross amount as a
principal and the net amount as an agent.

N BE_ZE-NF+_A=+T—HLEFE B
EHERTEIHE X AE KR R/325,123, 7178 T K
H - 324,299,4558 L BEEERREREIFA EB
BEERBIRMEFRBHEFEEMHAKE R 824,262
BTHEEMRBREBRARARBRZERE P RMH

HREEVNBERLEH  EXERIAER/ETEARHK
mEENERRIBRF R WA H R

Our audit procedures in relation to revenue recognition
included the following:

BEEARRAERNEZRFERENT

- Obtaining an understanding of and assessing the
design, implementation and operating effectiveness
of key internal controls in relating to revenue
recognition;

- THEFEAEBAREEANERASZENNORT B
b S B AE R UL

- Inspecting sales agreements, on sample basis,
to identify terms and conditions which may affect
revenue recognition and assessing the Group’s
revenue recognition policies;

- RHEREEREHEREABR TR ERS ﬁEWE’J
R B AR ARGE EEENREBRBR

- Performing analytical review on revenue and gross
margin by motor vehicle products categories to
identify significant or unusual fluctuation on revenue;

- HRERAEEREMNESNURRENXETONE
BE - LA Rl W 2 B KR 3 = H R E

- Testing on a sample basis, the supporting
documentation and the contractual terms of sales
transactions;

- EMEEEREHEXZNERAXMFRE KRR
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Revenue recognition

(see note 5 of the consolidated financial statements) (continued)

The Key Audit Matter
FEEZEE

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
B I % B IRE

W 208 £ 52
(REFAPBMEMES) (&)

How the matter was addressed in our audit

EERPHERS X

The Group determined whether itself is acting
as a principal or agent required judgement and
consideration of all relevant facts and circumstances.
EEEETAERNEUNFEASNERREENITER
RN ERAAEHEBEE RIER-

We focused on this area due to the significant
judgement involved in the assessment of
management’s determination of principal or agent for
the purpose of revenue recognition of motor vehicles
trading business.
EEMIZBEBENERER TEHE R WA ER
EEXFEASMNESRES MO REKRHEH-

£ESREBMERAT | —B-NEFH

Assessing, on a sample basis, whether specific
revenue transactions around the reporting date
had been recognised in the appropriate period by
comparing the transactions selected with relevant
underlying documentation, including customers’
receipts and goods delivery notes;

REEEERBLREER I MEEAXH (BEEP
Wig kB m R E) S ERNHmE B AR TR
BRHEBENEE AR A®ER

Sending confirmations to the key customers to
confirm the year end trade balances and the yearly
sales transaction amounts;

MEZRFELHERE BRFREFIEHRRFEH
EXHERE:

Reviewing and discussing with management of the
Group a number of sales contracts with customers
and purchase contracts with suppliers, on a sample
basis, assessing the management’s conclusion
based on the specific facts and circumstances and
the applicable accounting standard; and
RMEREEERTERE SEXEEBEENWETF
YHZEHERL UREHEBIINZEABES
W AEERERBABFEERBAAREAGHE
BB m&ER: &

Evaluating whether the Group’s presentation of
revenue on a gross basis (as a principal) versus a
net basis (as an agent) was in conformity with the
applicable accounting standard.

A EREERATEEEZNG (EREEASH)
HkmFEEEZ KR (EARE)Z2MBRARER
HEAgTER -
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B\ EED IR

Valuation of inventories
(see note 21 of the consolidated financial statements)

The Key Audit Matter
FREEZEE

FEfHE
(REA B mERME21)

How the matter was addressed in our audit

EERPHERS X

We identified the valuation of inventories, which mainly
represents motor vehicles, as a key audit matter due
to the significant involvement in the management’s
estimation.

EEREE (TERRE)MERR—REREREE
THERERSRERNEBE MG -

As at 31 December 2019, as refer to Note 21, the
carrying amount of inventories of the motor vehicles
amounted to HK$52,057,399 representing 16% of total
consolidated assets of the Group.
RZE-NF+ZA=+—8 2RNF21  AE2FE
B BRI (H /852,057,399 L 1 EXEHFEEEHAE
16% -

Our procedures in relation to the valuation of inventories
included:

BEEEHFERENREFEE:

- Obtaining an understanding of the key controls of
the Group in relation to identification of slow-moving
inventories and preparation of ageing analysis of
inventories;

- TR EEEfHESNNFHEERGREERESN
B RA g PR

- Performing physical inventory count and identifying
physically obsolete inventories, if any;
- ETEMFERERIBIINERKREFE (WE):

- Testing the ageing analysis of the inventories, on a
sample basis, to the source documents;
- REREEHERRRXHEAREFTERE DT

- Discussing with the management and evaluating
their assessment on the estimation of the net
realisable value of inventories for those slow-moving
inventories without/with little sales or movement
during the year or subsequent to the end of the
reporting period; and

- BRFASBREBRRETE BERVHEREEHN
HiEFEMSs HERENm AT HEEHTFEN#
BOREMETERE &

- Assessing the reasonableness, on a sample basis,
of the estimation of the net realisable value of
inventories with reference to the latest price list,
the recent selling prices, movements, physical
conditions, ageing analysis and subsequent sales of
inventories.

- RERHEREEZEZGENRTERBE LHEE #
B BEREMARL RO REEHETEFETER
FEMFTHEEME-
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

OTHER INFORMATION

The directors of the Company are responsible for the other
information. The other information comprises all the information
included in the annual report other than the consolidated financial
statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover
the other information and we do not express any form of assurance
conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements,
our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so,
consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with
the consolidated financial statements or our knowledge obtained in
the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based
on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material
misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that
fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF DIRECTORS AND THOSE
CHARGED WITH GOVERNANCE FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of
the consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in
accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such
internal control as the directors determine is necessary to enable the
preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors are
responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to continue as a going
concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern
and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the directors
either intend to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or have
no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the
Group’s financial reporting process.

ERETEEEEARAT | ZE-NFFH
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AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether
the consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an
auditor’s report that includes our opinion solely to you, as a body, in
accordance with our agreed terms of engagement, and for no other
purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards or accept liability
to any other person for the contents of this report. Reasonable
assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that
an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs will always detect
a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise
from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or
in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence
the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these
consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise
professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

° Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to
those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not
detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher
than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion,
forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the
override of internal control.

° Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the
audit in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate
in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an
opinion on the effectiveness of the Group’s internal control.

° Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used
and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related
disclosures made by the directors.

RHMREREESMBRRRIENEE

BEENER SHERBGAUBRRRETE
FE R PO HREF 3B AR T G B (E 1] E KB AR IR
MRSAERE YHABREEERNZ
BED IR - ARIRBE R 2 HESKIER B
T({’E?%%‘&f) W& R 2 INA R B
EM - BEEFTERARE AT MM E
ﬁﬂ/\iiéi%%@ﬂf’cﬂa& EERBRES
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

° Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the
going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit
evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related
to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the
Group’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude
that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw
attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in
the consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures are
inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based
on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s
report. However, future events or conditions may cause the
Group to cease to continue as a going concern.

° Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures,
and whether the consolidated financial statements represent
the underlying transactions and events in a manner that
achieves fair presentation.

° Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the
financial information of the entities or business activities within
the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated financial
statements. We are responsible for the direction, supervision
and performance of the Group audit. We remain solely
responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding,
among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit
and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in
internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement
that we have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding
independence, and to communicate with them all relationships
and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our
independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT
B\ EED IR

From the matters communicated with those charged with
governance, we determine those matters that were of most
significance in the audit of the consolidated financial statements
of the current period and are therefore the key audit matters.
We describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or
regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in
extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not
be communicated in our report because the adverse consequences
of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public
interest benefits of such communication.

CHENG & CHENG LIMITED
Certified Public Accountants

Hong Kong, 20 March 2020

Cheng Hong Cheung
Practising Certificate number P01802
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CoNsoLIDATED STATEMENT OF ProFT OR Loss AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
GFEHEEREMEEURANRE

For the year ended 31 December 2019 HE—ZT—AF+-A=+—RAIFE

2019 2018
—E-hE —ZE-NF
Note HK$ HK$
Bt 5 B BT
(Restated)
(E5)
Continuing operations BEREES
Revenue W z= 5 326,155,068 341,402,594
Other income and loss, net Hth umwgﬁ BFE 7 (463,623) (5,490,509)
Changes in inventories of KmFEZE
finished good 21 (355,612,232) (334,118,065)
Other direct costs EfEERAR (15,271,667) (165,065)
Employee benefits expenses EERAFXZ 10 (21,015,690) (18,495,761)
Depreciation of property, plant and % - #E RERETE
equipments 15 (2,714,500) (2,615,828
Depreciation of right-of-use assets  {EFAELEFE 17 (3,517,166) -
Amortisation of intangible assets BB E Y 16 (30,186) (34,335)
Impairment of right-of-use assets FREEERE 17 (4,390,640) -
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries HENB AR 2 WaE 29 - 12,360,193
Provisions B (21,901,748) -
Finance costs BE B AR 8 (735,171) (412,593)
Other operating expenses Hih @R (25,168,869) (22,655,350)
Loss before income tax B P 1S BB 5 18 9 (124,666,424) (30,224,719)
Income tax income PR 5 B M A 13 181,549 181,520
Loss for the year from MABFERLER 2 FNEE
continuing operations (124,484,875) (30,0483,199)
Loss for the year from REDRIEREEBR 2
discontinued operations FREE 28 (9,137,884) (1,790,179)
Loss for the year FAEE (133,622,759) (31,833,378)
Other comprehensive income/ Hp2EmkN  (EE) :
(loss):
Items that may be reclassified to ARt EER S E R
profit or loss ZIEH
Currency translation differences: EHE N
- Group —REE (3,179,411) (14,857,641)
- Release upon disposal of —HHE W B QARG
subsidiaries 29 4,696,249 1,001,474
Other comprehensive income/(loss) EREME2EW A (EE)
for the year, net of tax 2w 1,516,838 (13,856,167)
Total comprehensive loss FRNEHEEBESE

for the year

(132,105,921)

(45,689,545)
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF ProFIT OR Loss AND OTHER CoMPREHENSIVE INCOME
GEHEEREMEEBANRE

For the year ended 31 December 2019 BE-Z—NF+-_A=+—HILFE

2019 2018
—B-nE —E-NF
Note HK$ HK$
Bt 5 BT BT
(Restated)
(E75)
Loss attributable to: FE1 518

Owners of the Company ARalERHA 14 (127,674,239) (31,213,014)
Non-controlling interests FEFE AR (5,948,520) (620,364)
(133,622,759) (81,833,378)

Loss attributable to AATHEFA

the owners of the Company: FEAG SR -
— from continuing operations —REFERLEED (118,536,355) (29,422,835)
— from discontinued operations —REERIECEER (9,137,884) (1,790,179)

(127,674,239) (31,213,014)

Loss attribute to non-controlling iR #ESFEILESIE

interests: _
— from continuing operations —RERELEET (5,948,520) (620,364)
— from discontinued operations —REDKR RS - -
(5,948,520) (620,364)
Total comprehensive loss FRESEZEEBEE:
for the year attribute to:
Owners of the Company ViNZNEIE ﬁ A (125,978,803) (44,326,873)
Non-controlling interests JEE R = (6,127,118) (1,362,672)
(132,105,921) (45,689,545)
Total comprehensive loss for EATIEBEAER
the year attribute to the fEiE 2 HESEEER
owners of the Company: i
— from continuing operations —REREREET (121,537,168) (42,604,394)
— from discontinued operations —REERIEEEER (4,441,635) (1,722,479)

(125,978,803) (44,326,873)

Total comprehensive loss attribute JEiE JR 25 FE(E 2 H 518

to non-controlling interests: 4

— from continuing operations —REFELEER (6,127,118) (1,362,672)

— from discontinued operations = Eﬂﬁ:i‘« BT - -

(6,127,118) (1,362,672)

Loss per share attributable ERFEATHAANELESE

to owners of the Company K518

for the year )
Basic loss per share (HK cents) FREAREE (BIl) 14
From continuing and REFELER

discontinued operations B8R J@fé%%ﬁ‘% (1.65) (0.46)
From continuing operations REFEKEET (1.53) (0.44)
Diluted loss per share (HK cents) H%%E%J%?E () 14
From continuing and = R

discontinued operations AR AR X (1.65) (0.46)
From continuing operations DY ?#Z“é’g%%ﬁ‘% (1.53) (0.44)
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CoNsOLIDATED STATEMENTS oF FINANCIAL PosiTioN
A MBI R

As at 31 December 2019 R-ZT—NF+=-A=+—H

2019 2018
—E-hE —E-N\F
Note HK$ HK$
M =E BT BT
Non-current assets EREEE
Property, plant and equipments Y% - e LR E 15 27,930,633 30,027,465
Intangible assets BEEAE 16 35,052 66,088
Right-of-use assets FREEE 17 463,562 -
Statutory deposits and other assets JAFE L © N HME E 18 505,000 505,001
Interests in associates RN ol - ey 20 - -
Financial assets at fair value through &2 F{E A H
other comprehensive income 2HAWMAZEREE 24 9,997,200 -
Financial assets at fair value through & QA F{EFTAEBZHZ
profit or loss SREE 25 31,702,687 -
Rental and other deposits paid ENHEERAMES 26 2,327,126 132,865
72,961,260 30,731,419
Current assets RENEE
Inventories e 21 52,529,655 59,794,498
Trade receivables FEWE 55K I1E 22 31,834,712 24,015,171
Loan receivables JE W & 23 2,832,540 6,534,605
Financial assets at fair value ERAFEFAEBRZ
through profit or loss SREE 25 1,385,305 27,769,776
Prepayments, deposits and FENFIEBE -ZE R
other receivables H g W kI8 26 32,530,758 101,933,362
Bank balances and cash RITEBRNIAS
— trust accounts — =R FP 27 5,740,611 8,299,365
Bank balances and cash RITHEBNIAS
- general accounts ——RERFP 27 113,058,968 153,053,508
239,912,549 381,400,285
Total assets BEHE 312,873,809 412,131,704
Current liabilities HREBE
Trade payables ERE 5 IA 30 5,770,297 8,271,122
Other payables and accruals Hoth & 508 K FEFSRIE 31 25,221,466 15,775,576
Contract liabilities aHEE 32 4,117,917 2,303,236
Provisions g 33 21,549,352 -
Borrowings BN 34 2,376,533 4,497,498
Lease liabilities HE&E 17 3,257,653 -
62,293,218 30,847,432
Net current assets MEBEEFE 177,619,331 350,552,853
Total assets BEEERRHERE
less current liabilities 250,580,591 381,284,272
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CoNsoLIDATED STATEMENTS oF FINANCIAL PosiTioN

A MBRKAR

As at 31 December 2019 H=FT—NF+=A=+—H

2019 2018
—E-hE —E-N\F
Note HK$ HKS$
B 5 T 7T
Non-current liabilities EREE R
Lease liabilities HEaE 17 1,677,368 -
Deferred income tax liabilities EEMSHRAasE 35 2,926,968 3,108,517
4,604,336 3,108,517
Net assets BEFE 245,976,255 378,175,755
Capital and reserves BEREE
Share capital N 36 77,489,582 77,489,582
Share premium B 36 1,673,298,866 1,673,298,866
Special reserve BRI 37 4,778,740 4,778,740
Statutory reserve VETE 1B 37 3,911,530 3,911,530
Translation reserve e 37 (20,600,511) (22,295,947)
Share-based compensation reserve %17 # 18 {1 38 21,624,496 30,554,498
Accumulated losses 3 (1,521,954,903) (1,403,118,917)
Equity attributable to owners of FARXEHEH AFEIGHEZ
the Company 238,547,800 364,618,352
Non-controlling interests FEIER 7,428,455 13,557,403
Total equity #saa 245,976,255 378,175,755

Wang Jiawei
EHEE
Director

EF
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Lai Yuk Mui
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Director
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CoNsOLIDATED STATEMENTS oF CHANGES IN Eaquity

HEREEZESH X

For the year ended 31 December 2019 HE—ZT—AF+-A=+—RAIFE

Attributable to owners of the Company

SATRFAEL
Share-based Non-

Share Share Other Special Statutory  Translation compensation  Accumulated controlling Total
capital premium reserve reserve reserve reserve reserve losses Total interests equity
R% Rt AR HHEE i i ERGif BRWEERE BifblR S8 keRER B4R
HKS HKS HKS HKS HKS HKS HKS HKS HKS HKS HKS
AR AR AR A i En B B B A AR

(Note 36) (Note 36) (Note 37) (Note 37) (Note 37) (Note 37) (Note 38)

(H3t36) (H3k36) (Hits7) (Hits1) (Hits7) (Wiskan) i

Balance as at 1 January 2018 RoE-NE-A-AzEH 64989582 1614,798866  (16,000,000) 4778740 3911530 (9181374 30554498 (1,371,880061) 321962181 14903119 335,865,300

Loss for the year

ERE -

- - - - - - (31218014 (31,213,014 (620,364)  (31,833,378)

Other comprehensive loss - - - - - (13113859 - - (18,113,859 (742,308 (13,856,167)
Cancellation of shares under escrow amangement (2,000,000 (14,000,000) 16,000,000 - - - - - - - -
New issuance during the year 14,500,000 72,500,000 - - - - - - 87,000,000 - 87,000,000
Transaction with non-controling interests (Note 40) - - - - - (714) - (16,242) (16,956) 16,056 -
Balance as at 31 December 2018 77,489,582 1,673,298,866 - 4778740 391530 (2295047) 30554498 (1403118917 364618362  13.557.403 378175755
Balance as at 1 January 2019 77,489,582 1,673,208,866 - 4,118,740 3911530  (22,205947) 30554498 (1,403,118917) 364618352 13567408 378,175,755
Impact on initiel application of HKFRS 16 - - - - - - - (91,749) (91,749) (1,830) (93,579)
Restated opening balance at 1 January 2019

under HKFRS 16 77,489,582 1,673,208,866 - 4,178,740 3011530  (22295047) 30,554,498 (1,403,210,666) 364526603 13,565,573 378,082,176
Loss for the year - - - - - - - (127674239)  (127,674,230)  (5,048,520)  (133,622,759)
Other comprehensive income - - - - - 1,695,436 - - 1,695,436 (178,598) 1,516,838
Transfer of share-based compensation reserve

upon the lapse of share options - - - - - - (8,930,002) 8,930,002 = = =
Balance as at 31 December 2019 RZB-NETZAZT-BEH 77,489,582 1,673,208,866 - 4,118,740 3911530 (20,600511) 21,6449 (1,521,954903) 238,547,800 1428455 245,076,255
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CoNsOLIDATED STATEMENT oF CasH FLows

%:-FAEQUILE%%

For the year ended 31 December 2019 EHZE—F

—NEFTZA=+T—RLFE

98

2019 2018
—E—-hE — N\
Note HK$ HK$
M 5 BT BT
(Restated)
(&E75)
Cash flows from BETEHFARZEERE
operating activities
Loss before income tax RERFEKEEK 2
— continuing operations —BRATETRIE B (124,666,424) (30,224,719)
Loss before income tax REERIEREEBR 2
- discontinued operations —BATE R E B 28 (9,137,884) (1,790,179)
Adjustments for: NS B IR
- Depreciation of property, — W B RRETE
plant and equipments 2,829,496 2,778,272
- Loss on disposal of property, —HEWME KR LEEEE
plant and equipments 4,111 -
— Amortisation of intangible assets ~ —#E & E # 4 30,186 34,335
— Impairment of right-of-use assets —{f A& E R (E 4,390,640 -
- Written down of inventories — 17 B MU 1,486,081 1,558,832
— Fair value loss of financial assets at — & A F{ET ABRZ
fair value through profit or loss TREEZAFEEE 1,650,241 -
— Sundry income —FEIEWA (35,049) -
- Depreciation of right-of-use assets ~ —{# %éﬁ&?ﬁ% 3,517,166 -
— Written off of property, plant and ~ — ¥ % - # 28 Kz 3% & #4
equipments 462,738 34,451
— Provision for compensation and —BERFRERE
legal fee for legal proceeding 5,873,852 -
— Provision for loss on onerous —HEAHNEERE
contracts 16,060,005 -
- Unrealised fair value losses on —BHFEBECAREBHEAYE
securities trading E518 519,272 6,468,850
— Loss/(gain) on disposal of —HEMNBAF 2
subsidiaries BB, (W) 4,382,709 (12,360,193)
— Interest income —FE U A (560,686) (616,574)
- Dividend income — & B A (54,993) (27,689)
- Finance costs —BEKAR 735,171 412,593
Operating cash flows before ZESSEHEMZ
changes in working capital BERERE (92,513,368) (33,732,021)
- Statutory deposits and other assets — A F X & M HEE 1 -
— Inventories -FE 3,525,307 62,802,191
— Trade receivables —EWE S FIE (8,323,298) (14,591,011)
- Prepayments, deposits and —ERNFE -Ee &k
other receivables E b W FR TR 66,592,848 (75,854,560)
- Financial assets at fair value — AT EFAERZ
through profit or loss TREE 15,146,360 -
- Segregated trust bank balances — BN EEREFP & 2,558,754 1,466,286
— Trade payables —ENESRIE (2,500,825) 704,021
— Other payables and accruals — H b fE A 5B R EET FRIB 8,835,950 13,695,789
— Contract liabilities —&HBE 1,895,994 (3,018,488)
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CoNsOLIDATED STATEMENT ofF CasH FLows
I%IT = Iﬁ ﬁ JIL % %‘EC

For the year ended 31 December 2019 HE—ZT—AF+-A=+—RAIFE

2019 2018
—E-hE —E-N\F
Note HK$ HK$
B 5 BT BT
(Restated)
(E5)
Cash used in operations TEHRAZHRE (4,782,277) (48,527,793)
Income tax paid =ENRGE - (58,879
Interest received 2B 249,323 378,516
Net cash used in operating FEETHBHZHELFE
activities (4,532,954) (48,208,156)
Cash flows from investing BETHMBZHRERE
activities
Decrease in deposit for purchase of 1 E#22 MR B 2 1E & m
plant and equipments - 646,386
Purchases of property, BEWE HESEERE
plant and equipments (1,372,042) (1,322,781)
Proceeds from disposal of Hj%%% s &
property, plant and equipments SAEPTE AIE 20,011 -
Net cash inflow from disposal of st ’iﬁﬁﬁ NElZEEFRA
subsidiaries 29 1,765,475 14,610,359
Deposit received from disposal of Bt & — B A 7 AT UELY
a subsidiary Bigeira 1,710,000 -
New loan receivables g EE K (2,883,081) (6,534,605)
Repayment of loan receivables JEWE \/TJ\ZE/T/\ 5,381,751 567,240
Dividend received BB 54,993 27,689
Proceeds from redemption JERZ A A qu)\Tg
of financial assets at fair value SREEFTISHIE
through profit or loss 29,683,976 49,917,120
Investment in financial assets at fair % ERIR A FE A EM
value through other comprehensive ZHEWAZ /& E
income (10,175,580) -
Investment in financial assets at WEREBEATEFABRZ
fair value through profit or loss SREE (52,913,016) (50,432,856)
Interest received 2 A B 230,026 238,038
Net cash (used in)/generated REEH (BH) EE2Z
from investing activities H&FE (28,497,487) 7,716,590
Cash flows from financing MEFEBRRZEAER=E
activities
New issuance of shares FNEITHR
during the year - 87,000,000
Proceeds from unsecured borrowings & B £ 1 48 & 7% 2 Fr 1§ 2018 42,398,250 -
Repayments of lease liabilities HEABCER (8,779,543) -
Repayments of bank borrowings IRITERZER (2,120,965) (2,058,514)
Repayments of unsecured EHRRERCER
borrowings (42,398,250) (45,379,200)
Interest paid A8 (401,943) (412,593)
Net cash (used in)/generated AL EE) () EEZ
from financing activities H&FE (6,302,451) 39,149,693
Net decrease in cash and HeRBHEeEEEHRLEE
cash equivalents (39,332,892) (1,341,873)
Cash and cash equivalents at FHlzRekReEEIER
beginning of year 153,053,508 170,932,310
Effect of foreign exchange rate EEREE) &
changes (661,648) (16,536,929)
Cash and cash equivalents FRZE2RBEL2%Z(HIER
at end of year 27 113,058,968 153,053,508
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GENERAL INFORMATION
Sinofortune Financial Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and its
subsidiaries (are referred to the “Group”).

INFORMATION OF THE GROUP

The Group is principally engaged in (i) provision of the precious
metals spot trading and brokerage services in the People’s
Republic of China (“PRC”), (ii) provision of securities and futures
contracts trading services in Hong Kong, (iii) trading and
principal investments in the PRC and Hong Kong, (iv) provision
of stock information and research services in the PRC and
Hong Kong, and (v) sales of motor vehicles and the provision of
agency services in the PRC.

During the year ended 31 December 2019, the Group ceased
its business in the trading of electronic products, electronic
student cards and school safety products and provision
of electronic student card platform which are classified as
discontinued operations for the year ended 31 December 2019
due to disposal of a subsidiary.

The Company was incorporated as an exempted company with
limited liability in the Cayman lIslands under the Companies
Law of the Cayman Islands. The Company’s registered office
is situated at Cricket Square, Hutchins Drive, P.O. Box 2681,
Grand Cayman KY1-1111, Cayman Islands. The Company’s
principal place of business is situated at 16th Floor, CMA
Building, No. 64-66 Connaught Road Central, Hong Kong.

The Company’s shares are listed on the GEM of the Stock
Exchange.

The consolidated financial statements are presented in
Hong Kong dollars, while the functional currencies of certain
subsidiaries are Renminbi (“RMB”). The functional currency of
the Company is Hong Kong dollars. The Group has selected
to present the consolidated financial statements in Hong Kong
dollars as the management considered it is more beneficial
to users of the consolidated financial statements. These
consolidated financial statements have been approved and
authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on 20 March
2020.

NoTeEs To THE CoNsoLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
G E B HRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2019 BE-Z—NF+-_A=+—HILFE
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NoTEs To THE CoNsOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
EEMBHmRMFE

For the year ended 31 December 2019 HE—ZT—AF+-A=+—RAIFE

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES
The significant accounting policies adopted in the preparation
of these consolidated financial statements are set out below.
These policies have been consistently applied to all the years
presented, unless otherwise stated.

2.1 Basis of preparation

The consolidated financial statements have been
prepared in accordance with Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”) issued by the Hong
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA”).
In addition, the consolidated financial statements include
applicable disclosures required by the Rules Governing
the Listing of Securities on the GEM of Stock Exchange
(“GEM Listing Rules”) and by the applicable disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.
(“cO”).

The consolidated financial statements for the year
ended 31 December 2019 comprise the Company and
its subsidiaries (are referred to as the “Group”) and the
Group’s interests in associates.

The consolidated financial statements have been
prepared under the historical cost convention, except for
the recognition of certain financial assets and financial
liabilities at fair value through profit or loss and at fair
value through other comprehensive income.

The preparation of consolidated financial statements
in conformity with HKFRSs requires the use of certain
critical accounting estimates. It also requires management
to exercise its judgment in the process of applying
the Group’s accounting policies. The areas involving
a higher degree of judgment or complexity, or areas
where assumptions and estimates are significant to the
consolidated financial statements are disclosed in Note 4.
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NoTes To THE CoNsOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

A MWW &M

For the year ended 31 December 2019 BE-Z—NF+-_A=+—HILFE

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)
2.1 Basis of preparation (continued)
Changes in accounting policy and disclosures
(a)  New and amended standards adopted by the Group

In the current year, the Group has applied the
following new and amendments to HKFRSs issued
by HKICPA for the first time which are relevant to
the Group’s consolidated financial statements:

. HKFRS 16 Leases:;

° HK(IFRIC)-Int 23 Uncertainty over Income Tax
Treatments;

° Amendments to HKFRS 9 Prepayment
Features with Negative Compensation;

o Amendments to HKAS 19 Plan Amendment,
Curtailment or Settlement;

° Amendments to HKAS 28 Long-term Interests
in Associates and Joint Ventures; and

o Amendments to HKFRSs Annual
Improvements to HKFRSs 2015-2017 Cycle
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NoTEs To THE CoNsOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
EEMBHmRMFE

For the year ended 31 December 2019 HE—ZT—AF+-A=+—RAIFE

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Basis of preparation (continued)

Changes in accounting policy and disclosures

(continued)

2.1

(@)

New and amended standards adopted by the Group
(continueq)

The Group had to change its accounting policies
as a result of adopting HKFRS 16 Leases (“HKFRS
16”). The Group elected to adopt the new rules
retrospectively but recognised the cumulative effect
of the initial application of the new standard on 1
January 2019. This is disclosed below. Most of the
other amendments listed above did not have any
impact on the amounts recognised in prior periods
and are not expected to significantly affect the
current or future periods.

HKFRS 16 Leases

The Group has applied HKFRS 16 for the first time
in the current year. HKFRS 16 superseded HKAS 17
Leases (“HKAS 17”), and the related interpretations.

Definition of a lease

The Group has elected to use the practical
expedient to apply HKFRS 16 to contracts that
were previously identified as leases applying HKAS
17 and HK(FRIC)-Int 4 Determining whether an
Arrangement contains a Lease and not apply this
standard to contracts that were not previously
identified as containing a lease. Therefore, the
Group has not reassessed contracts which already
existed prior to the date of initial application.

For contracts entered into or modified on or after 1
January 2019, the Group applies the definition of a
lease in accordance with the requirements set out in
HKFRS 16 in assessing whether a contract contains
a lease.
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NoTes To THE CoNsOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

A MWW &M

For the year ended 31 December 2019 BE-Z—NF+-_A=+—HILFE

2.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Basis of preparation (continued)

Changes in accounting policy and disclosures
(continued)

2.1

(@)

New and amended standards adopted by the Group
(continued)
HKFRS 16 Leases (continued)

As a lessee

The Group has applied HKFRS 16 retrospectively
with the cumulative effect recognised at the date of
initial application, 1 January 2019.

As at 1 January 2019, the Group recognised
additional lease liabilities and measured right-of-
use assets at the carrying amounts as if HKFRS 16
had been applied since commencement dates, but
discounted using the incremental borrowing rates
of the relevant group entities at the date of initial
application by applying HKFRS 16.C8(b)(i) transition.
Any difference at the date of initial application is
recognised in the opening accumulated losses and
comparative information has not been restated.
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NoTEs To THE CoNsOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
EEMBHmRMFE

For the year ended 31 December 2019 HE—ZT—AF+-A=+—RAIFE

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Basis of preparation (continued)

Changes in accounting policy and disclosures

(continued)

2.1

(@)

New and amended standards adopted by the Group
(continued)
HKFRS 16 Leases (continued)

As a lessee (continued)

When applying the modified retrospective approach
under HKFRS 16 at transition, the Group applied the
practical expedients to leases previously classified
as operating leases under HKAS 17, on lease-by-
lease basis, to the extent relevant to the respective
lease contracts:

elected not to apply the new accounting model
to short-term leases and leases of low-value
assets and not to perform a full review of
existing leases and apply HKFRS 16 only to
new contracts;

ii. elected not to recognise right-of-use assets
and lease liabilities for leases with lease term
ends within 12 months of the date of initial
application; and

iii. excluded initial direct costs from measuring
the right-of-use assets at the date of initial
application.

When recognising the lease liabilities for leases
previously classified as operating leases, the
Group has applied incremental borrowing rates
of the relevant group entities at the date of initial
application. The weighted average incremental
borrowing rate applied is 4.75%.
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NoTes To THE CoNsOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

A MWW &M

For the year ended 31 December 2019 BE-Z—NF+-_A=+—HILFE

2.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2, XEEHBEME (&)
POLICIES (continued)
2.1 Basis of preparation (continued) 21 RBEEE(E)
Changes in accounting policy and disclosures B BFEREEREZEE
(continued) (&)
(a)  New and amended standards adopted by the Group (a) AKEERZ 35T RACIELT
(continued) ER (&)

HKFRS 16 Leases (continued)

As a lessee (continued)

The following table reconciles the operating lease
commitments as at 31 December 2018 to the
opening balance for lease liabilities recognised as at
1 January 2019:

FRMBHREERE165HE
g (#)

ERAEA (&)

TR -_ZE-NF+=
A=+ —RZEEHEAE
HER-F-NAF—-A—HE
BREEREZHOGEHR L
HH

At 1 January

2019
R-ZE—h%#E
—A—H
HK$
7S TT
Operation lease commitments RZE—NFT+ZA=T—HBHEED
disclosed as at 31 December 2018 & &0 &= & 5,620,854
Less: Commitments relating to leases i : 2 & & A b 2 FHE & IE -
exempt from capitalisation:
- short-term leases with —BRTHHBAE=_Z—NF
remaining lease term TZA=+—HzxZAEmM
ending on or before ZREHMEE
31 December 2019 (57,916)
— VAT effect —BERNTE (144,984)
5,417,954
Less: Total future interest expenses  Ji : & 2R 7| B 5 X 4858 (308,543)
Lease liabilities relating to operating & 3 & /8 B % 3R & B 551657 i
leases recognised upon application MRELEHSHBHNEEAE
of HKFRS 16 and lease liabilites as KR ZZE—-NAF—-— A —BWNHEEEE
at 1 January 2019 5,109,411
Analysed as DA
Current Vi) 2,018,848
Non-current FEmED 3,090,563
5,109,411
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NoTEs To THE CoNsOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
EEMBHmRMFE

For the year ended 31 December 2019 HE—ZT—AF+-A=+—RAIFE

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2, XEEHBEME (&)
POLICIES (continued)
2.1 Basis of preparation (continued) 21 RBEEE(E)
Changes in accounting policy and disclosures B BFEREEREZEE
(continued) (&)
(a)  New and amended standards adopted by the Group (a) AKEERZ 35T RACIELT
(continued) ER (&)
HKFRS 16 Leases (continued) AR HmE LR E 165
g (&)
As a lessee (continued) EBEMEA (£)
The carrying amount of right-of-use assets for own RZZE-—hEFE—HA—RA{%a
use as at 1 January 2019 comprises the following: AMERAEEERAESRE
T3
Right-of-use
assets
EHEEE
HK$
7 TT
Right-of-use assets relating to FER BBV B HRE R E 165K
operating leases recognised upon mRELEHERENTRREE
application of HKFRS 16 5,015,832
The following table summarises the impact of TERBIENR=_Z—NF—A
transition to HKFRS 16 on accumulated losses at 1 —HBEEEBYBREE
January 2019: Al 16 R EFERENT
2
Impact of
adopting
HKFRS 16 at
1 January 2019
NR-ZF—h%E
—HA—H
RAEEMBRE
EH|E165MME
HK$
7T
Accumulated losses 2t BB
Impact at 1 January 2019 RZZE-—NF-—HA—BHNEE 93,579
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NoTeEs To THE CoNsoLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
G E B HRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2019 BE-Z—NF+-_A=+—HILFE

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2. XEEHBEBE &)
POLICIES (continued)
2.1 Basis of preparation (continued) 21 REEE(F)
Changes in accounting policy and disclosures B HFEREEREZEE
(continued) (&)
(a)  New and amended standards adopted by the Group (a) AKEERDZ FTE] RACIEET
(continued) ER(4E)
HKFRS 16 Leases (continued) BB BRELERF165HE
& (&)
As a lessee (continued) tEREAMA (E)
The following table summarises the impacts of the THRBAKBELHBRE
adoption of HKFRS 16 on the Group’s consolidated ERIZE16RE AN E @R E B
statement of financial position: BARA R E
Carrying amounts Carrying amounts
previously Capitalisation under
reported at of operating HKFRS 16 at
31 December 2018 lease contracts 1 January 2019
RZB-AE
~f-8
RRRZF-N\E FEMBRE
+=H=+-H cEns ERIE16/ET
BEMIREE BHER(L HMREE
HK$ HK$ HK$
BT BT BT
Line items in the consolidated FiFREHMEREEA
statement of financial S16HEENGE
position impacted by the MBRARAER:
adoption of HKFRS 16:
Right-of-use assets FREEE - 5,015,832 5,015,832
Total non-current assets kRBEELE 30,731,419 5,015,832 35,747,251
Lease liabilities HEAR - 2,018,848 2,018,848
Current liabilities mEARE 30,847,432 2,018,848 32,866,280
Net current assets RBEEFE 350,552,853 (2,018,848) 348,534,005
Total assets less current EEBEREDAR
liabilities 381,284,272 2,996,984 384,281,256
Lease liabilities HEERE - 3,090,563 3,090,563
Non-current liabilities kRHAaE 3,108,517 3,090,563 6,199,080
Accumulated losses 25 ER (1,403,118,917) (91,749) (1,403,210,666)
Non-controlling interests E|Fudlgiday 13,557,403 (1,830) 13,555,573
Net assets EEFHE 378,175,755 (93,579) 378,082,176
Note: For the purpose of reporting cash flows from operating MzE: RTUNEEFZREBEE=Z
activities under indirect method for the year ended 31 —hE+-—A=+—HLLEE
December 2019, movements in working capital have been REKLLEHHRESRE &
computed based on opening consolidated statement of BEESFEIIRE L EER
financial position as at 1 January 2019 as disclosed above. RZE-NE—-A—BHEHY
RAEMBIRRKRETHE -
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NoTEs To THE CoNsOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
EEMBHmRMFE

For the year ended 31 December 2019 HE—ZT—AF+-A=+—RAIFE

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Basis of preparation (continued)

Changes in accounting policy and disclosures

(continued)

2.1

(@)

New and amended standards adopted by the Group
(continued)
HKFRS 16 Leases (continued)

As a lessee (continued)

In the consolidated statement of cash flows, the
Group as a lessee is required to split rentals paid
under capitalised leases into their capital element
and interest element. These elements are classified
as financing cash outflows, rather than as operating
cash outflows, as was the case for operating leases
under HKAS 17. Although total cash flows are
unaffected, the adoption of HKFRS 16 therefore
results in a significant change in presentation of
cash flows within the consolidated statement of
cash flows.

For leasehold land and buildings which is held for
own use would continue to be accounted for under
HKAS 16 Property, Plant and Equipment and would
be stated at cost and are amortised over the period
of the lease. The adoption of HKFRS 16 therefore
does not have any significant impact on these right-
of-use assets.

FHEREMERAT | —EB-NEFH

2. FEEFBOREE (&)

21 GREE(#E)
B BRRBFREZEE)

(%)

(@)

P& B ERAD < FTET RAFIEET
ER (&)
FRMBHREERE165HE
g (#)

ERAEA (&)
EGEAReRERT AF
(fEREMAN) AR ER(L
HEBRTENESIKRAE
WA RMEMD -ZFHD
EDEARERSRE M
TRIRBEA G ERFATH
THREHESHRETRX
DHRAKERSRE - HA
BenEBBIr2gE 8
RAF BV HRELRE6
HEHEERERERTHR
EREMIIFTAELEERXN

g1 -

BEAAMNBEETRET
BEREEBSSHENE
16 A BE - WERREA
iR - BIRRCATIER - RAEEAA
B -Al RPNEBTH
WELAFI6EL BEZE
FAEEEELETMNEAY
@,

109



NoTeEs To THE CoNsoLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
G E B HRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2019 BE-Z—NF+-_A=+—HILFE

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2, XEEHBEME (&)
POLICIES (continued)
2.1 Basis of preparation (continued) 21 RBEEE(E)
Changes in accounting policy and disclosures B BFEREEREZEE
(continued) (&)
(b)  New and amended Standards issued but not yet (b) B HMGEEKERAEIFTET R
adopted ANEETER)
The Group has not early applied the following new AEBEVERERANUTE
and amendments to HKFRSs that have been issued BHEERERNOFTEE S
but are not yet effective: PIEMEER R EERT A
HKFRS 17 Insurance Contracts' EEUBRE  RRay

ERIETH

Amendments to Definition of a Business? EBHMBRE  EBNER

HKFRS 3 RRIE3%
(B3TK)

Amendments to Sale or Contribution of Assets A BRE REEEERZELT
HKFRS 10 and between an Investor and its ERIZ10% AeErERCE
HKAS 28 Associate or Joint Venture? kEREH ELESTA

RERF 8%
(B3TK)

Amendments to Definition of Material* BBGEN  EAMER
HKAS 1 and F1RREE
HKAS 8 ERREIEE

ACHES)
Amendments to Interest Rate Benchmark R BaE  MEEERE
HKFRS 9, HKAS  Reform* RERE0%
39 and HKFRS 7 BRGHE
AIZE395 &
BRUBR
EERAETH
(B3TX)
1 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January i RZEZ—F—A—B%zi&
2021. F 46 1 4 BA R A 2
2 Effective for business combinations and asset acquisitions 2 HEERPA-—Z-_ZF— A
for which the acquisition date is on or after the beginning of — Rz %Rz EFE
the first annual period beginning on or after 1 January 2020. MRz B2 EBAHREER
BaEM-

3 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after a date to 3 RFETEH A Bz ERBE

be determined. FEMBAER-

4 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 4 RZZZZTF—A—Hzxk 2’

2020. FA 46 B 4 & BARE A 2K
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NoTEs To THE CoNsOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
EEMBHmRMFE

For the year ended 31 December 2019 EHZE_—Z

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Basis of preparation (continued)

Changes in accounting policy and disclosures

(continued)

2.1

(b)

New and amended Standards issued but not yet
adopted (continued)

In addition to the above new and amendments
to HKFRSs, a revised Conceptual Framework
for Financial Reporting was issued in 2018. Its
consequential amendments, the Amendments to
References to the Conceptual Framework in HKFRS
Standards, will be effective for annual periods
beginning on or after 1 January 2020.

The directors of the Company anticipate that the
application of all other new and amendments
to HKFRSs will have no material impact on the
consolidated financial statements in the foreseeable
future.

2.2 Subsidiaries
2.2.1 Consolidation

Subsidiaries are all entities (including structured
entities) over which the Group has control. The
Group controls an entity when the Group is
exposed to, or has rights to, variable returns from
its involvement with the entity and has the ability
to affect those returns through its power to direct
the relevant activities of the entity. Subsidiaries are
fully consolidated from the date on which control is
transferred to the Group. They are deconsolidated
from the date that control ceases.

Intra-company transactions, balances and
unrealised gains on transactions between group
companies are eliminated. Unrealised losses are
also eliminated unless the transaction provides
evidence of an impairment of the transferred asset.
Accounting policies of subsidiaries have been
changed where necessary to ensure consistency
with the policies adopted by the Group.
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NoTes To THE CoNsOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

A MWW &M

For the year ended 31 December 2019 BE-Z—NF+-_A=+—HILFE

2.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)
2.2 Subsidiaries (continued)

2.2.1 Consolidation (continued)

Non-controlling interests in the results and equity
of subsidiaries are shown separately in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income, statement of changes
in equity and statement of financial position
respectively.

The Group treats transactions with non-controlling
interests that do not result in a loss of control as
transactions with equity owners of the Group.
A change in ownership interest results in an
adjustment between the carrying amounts of
the controlling and non-controlling interests to
reflect their relative interests in the subsidiary. Any
difference between the amount of the adjustment
to non-controlling interests and any consideration
paid or received is recognised in a separate reserve
within equity attributable to owners of the Company.

2.2.2 Separate financial statements

Investments in subsidiaries are accounted for
at cost less impairment. Cost includes direct
attributable costs of investment. The results of
subsidiaries are accounted for by the Company on
the basis of dividend and receivable.

Impairment testing of the investments in subsidiaries
is required upon receiving a dividend from these
investments if the dividend exceeds the total
comprehensive income of the subsidiary in the
period the dividend is declared or if the carrying
amount of the investment in the separate financial
statements exceeds the carrying amount in the
consolidated financial statements of the investee’s
net assets including goodwill.
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NoTEs To THE CoNsOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
EEMBHmRMFE

For the year ended 31 December 2019 HE—ZT—AF+-A=+—RAIFE

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)
2.3 Associates

Associates are all entities over which the Group has
significant influence but not control or joint control. This is
generally the case where the Group holds between 20%
and 50% of the voting rights. Investments in associates
are accounted for using the equity method of accounting.
Under the equity method, the investment is initially
recognised at cost, and the carrying amount is increased
or decreased to recognise the investor’s share of the
profit or loss of the investee after the date of acquisition.
The Group’s investment in associates includes goodwill
identified on acquisition. Upon the acquisition of the
ownership interest in an associate, any difference
between the cost of the associate and the Group’s share
of the net fair value of the associate’s identifiable assets
and liabilities is accounted for as goodwill.

If the ownership interest in an associate is reduced but
significant influence is retained, only a proportionate
share of the amounts previously recognised in other
comprehensive income is reclassified to profit or loss
where appropriate.

The Group’s share of post-acquisition profits or losses
is recognised in the consolidated statement of profit or
loss and other comprehensive income, and its share
of post-acquisition movements in other comprehensive
income is recognised in other comprehensive income
with a corresponding adjustment to the carrying amount
of the investment. In addition, when there has been a
change recognised directly in the equity of the associate,
the Group recognises its share of any changes, when
applicable, in the consolidated statements of changes in
equity. When the Group’s share of losses in an associate
equals or exceeds its interest in the associate, including
any other unsecured receivables, the Group does not
recognise further losses, unless it has incurred legal or
constructive obligations or made payments on behalf of
the associate.

The Group determines at each reporting date whether
there is any objective evidence that the investment in
the associate is impaired. If this is the case, the Group
calculates the amount of impairment as the difference
between the recoverable amount of the associate and
its carrying value and recognises the amount adjacent
to “share of profit of associates” accounted for equity
method in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and
other comprehensive income.
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NoTeEs To THE CoNsoLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
G E B HRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2019 EHZE—F

2.

—NEFTZA=+T—RLFE

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.3

2.4

2.5

Associates (continued)

Profits and losses resulting from upstream and
downstream transactions between the Group and
its associate are recognised in the Group’s financial
statements only to the extent of unrelated investor’s
interests in the associates. Unrealised losses are
eliminated unless the transaction provides evidence of an
impairment of the asset transferred. Accounting policies
of associates have been changed where necessary to
ensure consistency with the policies adopted by the
Group.

Gain or losses on dilution of equity interest in associates
are recognised in the consolidated statement of profit or
loss and other comprehensive income.

Segment reporting

Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent
with the internal reporting provided to the chief operating
decision-maker. The chief operating decision-maker, who
is responsible for allocating resources and assessing
performance of the operating segments, has been
identified as the senior executive management that makes
strategic decisions.

Individually material operating segments are not
aggregated for financial reporting purposes unless the
segments have similar economic characteristics and
are similar in respect of the nature of products and
services, the nature of production processes, the type or
class of customers, the methods used to distribute the
products or provide the services, and the nature of the
regulatory environment. Operating segments which are
not individually material may be aggregated if they share a
majority of these criteria.

Foreign currency translation

(a) Functional and presentation currency
ltems included in the financial statements of each
of the Group’s entities are measured using the
currency of the primary economic environment in
which the entity operates (“the functional currency”).
The consolidated financial statements are presented
in Hong Kong dollars (HK$), which is the Company’s
functional currency and presentation currency.
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NoTEs To THE CoNsOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
EEMBHmRMFE

For the year ended 31 December 2019 EHZE_—Z

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)
2.5 Foreign currency translation (continued)

(b)

(c)

FEOBEMARAT | —F—

Transactions and balances

Foreign currency transactions are translated into
the functional currency using the exchange rates
at the dates of the transactions or valuation where
items are re-measured. Foreign exchange gains
and losses resulting from the settlement of such
transactions and from the translation at year-end
exchange rates of monetary assets and liabilities
denominated in foreign currencies are recognised
in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and
other comprehensive income.

Translation differences on non-monetary financial
assets and liabilities such as equities held at fair
value through profit or loss are recognised in
profit or loss as part of the fair value gain or loss.
Translation differences on non-monetary financial
assets, such as equities classified as available-for-
sale, are included in other comprehensive income.

Group companies

The results and financial position of all the Group
entities (none of which has the currency of a
hyperinflationary economy) that have a functional
currency different from the presentation currency are
translated into the presentation currency as follows:

° assets and liabilities for each statement of
financial position presented are translated at
the closing rate at the date of that statement
of financial position;

o income and expenses for each statement
of profit or loss are translated at average
exchange rates (unless this average is not a
reasonable approximation of the cumulative
effect of the rates prevailing on the transaction
dates, in which case income and expenses
are translated at the rates on the dates of the
transactions);

o all resulting currency translation differences are
recognised in other comprehensive income.
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NoTeEs To THE CoNsoLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
G E B HRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2019 BE-Z—NF+-_A=+—HILFE

2.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)
2.5 Foreign currency translation (continued)

(c) Group companies (continued)
Goodwill and fair value adjustments arising on the
acquisition of a foreign entity are treated as assets
and liabilities of the foreign entity and translated at
the closing rate. Currency translation differences
arising are recognised in other comprehensive
income.

2.6 Property, plant and equipments

Property, plant and equipments are stated at historical
cost less depreciation. Historical cost includes
expenditure that is directly attributable to the acquisition
of the items. Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s
carrying amount or recognised as a separate asset, as
appropriate, only when it is probable that future economic
benefits associated with the item will flow to the Group
and the cost of the item can be measured reliably. The
carrying amount of the replaced part is derecognised.
All other repairs and maintenance are charged to the
consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income during the financial period in
which they are incurred.

Depreciation on property, plant and equipments is
calculated using the straight-line method to allocate their
cost to their residual values over their estimated useful
lives, as follows:

Plant and machinery
Leasehold land and buildings
Leasehold improvements

10 years

25 years

3 to 5 years, or over
the term of leases

if shorter
Office equipment and furniture 3 to 5 years
Computer equipment 3 years

Motor vehicles 3 to 10 years
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NoTEs To THE CoNsOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A B R R MR

For the year ended 31 December 2019 HE—ZT—AF+-A=+—RAIFE

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)
2.6 Property, plant and equipments (continued)
The assets’ residual values and useful lives are reviewed,
and adjusted if appropriate, at the end of each reporting
period.

An asset’s carrying amount is written down immediately
to its recoverable amount if the asset’s carrying amount is
greater than its estimated recoverable amount.

Gains or losses on disposals are determined by
comparing the proceeds with the carrying amount and are
recognised in the statement of profit or loss.

2.7 Intangible assets

(a) Goodwill
Goodwill arises on the acquisition of subsidiaries
represents the excess of the consideration
transferred, the amount of any non-controlling
interest in the acquiree and the acquisition-date fair
value of any previous equity interest in the acquiree
over the fair value of the identified net assets
acquired.

For the purpose of impairment testing, goodwill
acquired in a business combination is allocated
to each of the cash-generating units (“CGUs”), or
groups of CGUs, that is expected to benefit from
the synergies of the combination. Each unit or
group of units to which the goodwill is allocated
represents the lowest level within the entity at which
the goodwill is monitored for internal management
purposes. Goodwill is monitored at the operating
segment level.
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 BE-Z—NF+-_A=+—HILFE

2.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)
Intangible assets (continued)

2.7

(a)

(b)

(c)

(d)

Goodwill (continued)

Goodwill impairment reviews are undertaken
annually or more frequently if events or changes in
circumstances indicate a potential impairment. The
carrying value of the CGU containing the goodwill is
compared to the recoverable amount, which is the
higher of value in use and the fair value less costs of
disposal. Any impairment is recognised immediately
as an expense and is not subsequently reversed.

Trading rights

The Group’s intangible assets represent eligibility
rights to trade on or through the Stock Exchange
and on the Hong Kong Future Exchange
Limited. The trading rights are carried at cost
less accumulated amortisation and accumulated
impairment losses.

Software

The software has a finite useful life and is carried at
cost less accumulated amortisation and impairment.
Amortisation is calculated using the straight-line
method to allocate the cost of software over its
estimated useful life from 3 to 10 years.

Contractual customer relationships

Contractual customer relationships acquired in a
business combination are recognised at fair value at
the acquisition date.

The expected useful life of the contractual customer
relationships determined to be 8 years. The
contractual customer relationships have a finite
useful life are carried at cost less accumulated
amortisation. Amortisation is calculated using the
straight-line method over the said expected useful
life of the customer relationships.
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NoTEs To THE CoNsOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
EEMBHmRMFE

For the year ended 31 December 2019 EHZE_—Z

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.8

2.9

2.10

Impairment of non-financial assets

Intangible assets that have an indefinite useful life are
not subject to amortisation and are tested annually for
impairment, or more frequently if events or changes in
circumstances indicate that they might be impaired.
Other assets are tested for impairment whenever events
or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying
amount may not be recoverable. An impairment loss is
recognised for the amount by which the asset’s carrying
amount exceeds its recoverable amount. The recoverable
amount is the higher of an asset’s fair value less costs of
disposal and value in use. For the purposes of assessing
impairment, assets are grouped at the lowest levels for
which there are separately identifiable cash inflows which
are largely independent of the cash inflows from other
assets or groups of assets (CGUs). Non-financial assets
other than goodwill that suffered an impairment are
reviewed for possible reversal of the impairment at the
end of each reporting period.

Discontinued operations

A discontinued operation is a component of the entity
that has been disposed of or is classified as held for sale
and that represents a separate major line of business or
geographical area of operations, is part of a single co-
ordinated plan to dispose of such a line of business or
area of operations, or is a subsidiary acquired exclusively
with a view to resale. The results of discontinued
operations are presented separately in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss.

Investments and financial assets

Classification

The Group classifies its financial assets in the following
measurement categories:

° those to be measured subsequently at fair value
(either through other comprehensive income (“OCI”)
or through profit or loss), and

o those to be measured at amortised cost.
The classification depends on the entity’s business model

for managing the financial assets and the contractual
terms of the cash flows.
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 BE-Z—NF+-_A=+—HILFE

2.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)
2.10 Investments and financial assets (continued)

Classification (continued)

For assets measured at fair value, gains and losses
will either be recorded in profit or loss or OCI. For
investments in equity instruments that are not held for
trading, this will depend on whether the Group has made
an irrevocable election at the time of initial recognition to
account for the equity investment at fair value through
other comprehensive income (FVTOCI).

The Group reclassifies debt investments when and only
when its business model for managing those assets
changes.

Recognition and derecognition

Regular way purchases and sales of financial assets are
recognised on trade-date, the date on which the Group
commits to purchase or sell the asset. Financial assets
are derecognised when the rights to receive cash flows
from the financial assets have expired or have been
transferred and the Group has transferred substantially all
the risks and rewards of ownership.

Measurement

At initial recognition, the Group measures a financial asset
at its fair value plus, in the case of a financial asset not
at fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL), transaction
costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition of
the financial asset. Transaction costs of financial assets
carried at FVTPL are expensed in profit or loss.

Financial assets with embedded derivatives are
considered in their entirety when determining whether
their cash flows are solely payment of principal and
interest.
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 HE—ZT—AF+-A=+—RAIFE

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)

2.10 Investments and financial assets (continued)
Debt instruments
Subsequent measurement of debt instruments depends
on the Group’s business model for managing the asset
and the cash flow characteristics of the asset. There
are three measurement categories into which the Group
classifies its debt instruments:

° Amortised cost: Assets that are held for collection
of contractual cash flows where those cash flows
represent solely payments of principal and interest
are measured at amortised cost. Interest income
from these financial assets is included in finance
income using the effective interest rate method. Any
gain or loss arising on derecognition is recognised
directly in profit or loss and presented in other
gains/(losses) together with foreign exchange gains
and losses. Impairment losses are presented as
separate line item in the statement of profit or loss.
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 BE-Z—NF+-_A=+—HILFE

2.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)

2.10 Investments and financial assets (continued)
Debt instruments (continued)

o FVTOCI: Assets that are held for collection of
contractual cash flows and for selling the financial
assets, where the assets’ cash flows represent
solely payments of principal and interest, are
measured at FVTOCI. Movements in the carrying
amount are taken through OCI, except for the
recognition of impairment gains or losses, interest
income and foreign exchange gains and losses
which are recognised in profit or loss. When the
financial asset is derecognised, the cumulative gain
or loss previously recognised in OCI is reclassified
from equity to profit or loss and recognised in other
gains/(losses). Interest income from these financial
assets is included in finance income using the
effective interest rate method. Foreign exchange
gains and losses are presented in other gains/
(losses) and impairment expenses are presented as
separate line item in the statement of profit or loss.

° FVTPL: Assets that do not meet the criteria
for amortised cost or FVTOCI| are measured at
FVTPL. A gain or loss on a debt investment that is
subsequently measured at FVTPL is recognised in
profit or loss and presented net within other gains/

(losses) in the period in which it arises.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)
2.10 Investments and financial assets (continued)

Equity instruments

The Group subsequently measures all equity investments
at fair value. Where the Group’s management has
elected to present fair value gains and losses on
equity investments in OCI, there is no subsequent
reclassification of fair value gains and losses to profit
or loss following the derecognition of the investment.
Dividends from such investments continue to be
recognised in profit or loss as other income when the
Group’s right to receive payments is established.

Changes in the fair value of financial assets at FVTPL
are recognised in other gains/(losses) in the statement
of profit or loss as applicable. Impairment losses (and
reversal of impairment losses) on equity investments
measured at FVTOCI are not reported separately from
other changes in fair value.

Offsetting financial instruments

Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net
amount reported in the consolidated statement of
financial position when there is a legally enforceable right
to offset the recognised amount and there is an intention
to settle on a net basic or realise the assets and settle
the liability simultaneously. The legally enforceable right
must not be contingent on future events and must be
enforceable in the normal course of business and in
the event of default, insolvency or bankruptcy of the
Company or the counterparty.
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2.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)
2.12 Impairment of financial assets

The Group performs impairment assessment under
expected credit loss (“ECL”) model on financial assets
(including cash and cash equivalents, contract assets,
trade and other receivables, and loans and receivables)
which are subject to impairment under HKFRS 9 Financial
Instruments (“HKFRS 9”). The amount of ECL is updated
at each reporting date to reflect changes in credit risk
since initial recognition.

Lifetime ECL represents the ECL that will result from
all possible default events over the expected life of the
relevant instrument. In contrast, 12-month ECL (“12m
ECL”) represents the portion of lifetime ECL that is
expected to result from default events that are possible
within 12 months after the reporting date. Assessment
are done based on the Group’s historical credit loss
experience, adjusted for factors that are specific to the
debtors, general economic conditions and an assessment
of both the current conditions at the reporting date as
well as the forecast of future conditions.

The Group always recognises lifetime ECL for trade
receivables.

For all other instruments, the Group measures the loss
allowance equal to 12m ECL, unless when there has been
a significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition,
the Group recognises lifetime ECL. The assessment of
whether lifetime ECL should be recognised is based on
significant increases in the likelihood or risk of a default
occurring since initial recognition.
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NoTEs To THE CoNsOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A B R R MR

For the year ended 31 December 2019 EHZE_—Z

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)
2.12 Impairment of financial assets (continued)

()

Significant increase in credit risk

In assessing whether the credit risk has increased
significantly since initial recognition, the Group
compares the risk of a default occurring on the
financial instrument as at the reporting date with the
risk of a default occurring on the financial instrument
as at the date of initial recognition. In making this
assessment, the Group considers both quantitative
and qualitative information that is reasonable and
supportable, including historical experience and
forward-looking information that is available without
undue cost or effort.

In particular, the following information is taken into
account when assessing whether credit risk has
increased significantly:

° an actual or expected significant deterioration
in the financial instrument’s external (if
available) or internal credit rating;

o significant deterioration in external market
indicators of credit risk, e.g. a significant
increase in the credit spread, the credit default
swap prices for the debtor;

° existing or forecast adverse changes in
business, financial or economic conditions that
are expected to cause a significant decrease
in the debtor’s ability to meet its debt
obligations;

o an actual or expected significant deterioration
in the operating results of the debtor;

° an actual or expected significant adverse
change in the regulatory, economic, or
technological environment of the debtor that
results in a significant decrease in the debtor’s
ability to meet its debt obligations.
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NoTes To THE CoNsOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

A MWW &M

For the year ended 31 December 2019 EHZE—F

2.

—NEFTZA=+T—RLFE

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)
2.12 Impairment of financial assets (continued)

()

(i)

Significant increase in credit risk (continued)

For loan commitments and financial guarantee
contracts, the date that the Group becomes a party
to the irrevocable commitment is considered to be
the date of initial recognition for the purposes of
assessing impairment. In assessing whether there
has been a significant increase in the credit risk
since initial recognition of a loan commitment, the
Group considers changes in the risk of a default
occurring on the loan to which a loan commitment
relates; for financial guarantee contracts, the Group
considers the changes in the risk that the specified
debtor will default on the contract.

The Group regularly monitors the effectiveness of
the criteria used to identify whether there has been
a significant increase in credit risk and revises them
as appropriate to ensure that the criteria are capable
of identifying significant increase in credit risk before
the amount becomes past due.

Credit-impaired financial assets

A financial asset is credit-impaired when one or
more events that have a detrimental impact on the
estimated future cash flows of that financial asset
have occurred. Evidence that a financial asset is
credit-impaired includes observable data about the
following events:

(@) significant financial difficulty of the issuer or the
borrower;

(b) a breach of contract, such as a default or past
due event;

(c) the lender(s) of the borrower, for economic or
contractual reasons relating to the borrower’s
financial difficulty, having granted to the
borrower a concession(s) that the lender(s)
would not otherwise consider;
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NoTEs To THE CoNsOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
EEMBHmRMFE

For the year ended 31 December 2019 HE—ZT—AF+-A=+—RAIFE

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)
2.12 Impairment of financial assets (continued)

(i)

(iii)

(iv)

Credit-impaired financial assets (continued)

(d) it is becoming probable that the borrower
will enter bankruptcy or other financial
reorganisation;

(e) the disappearance of an active market for that
financial asset because of financial difficulties;
or

(f)  the purchase or origination of a financial asset
at a deep discount that reflects the incurred
credit losses.

Write-off policy

The Group writes off a financial asset when there
is information indicating that the counterparty is in
severe financial difficulty and there is no realistic
prospect of recovery. Financial assets written off
may still be subject to enforcement activities under
the Group’s recovery procedures, taking into
account legal advice where appropriate. A write-off
constitutes a derecognition event. Any subsequent
recoveries are recognised in profit or loss.

Measurement and recognition of ECL

The measurement of ECL is a function of the
probability of default, loss given default (i.e. the
magnitude of the loss if there is a default) and
the exposure at default. The assessment of the
probability of default and loss given default is based
on historical data adjusted by forward-looking
information. Estimation of ECL reflects an unbiased
and probability-weighted amount that is determined
with the respective risks of default occurring as the
weights.

Generally, the ECL is the difference between all
contractual cash flows that are due to the Group in
accordance with the contract and the cash flows
that the Group expects to receive, discounted
at the effective interest rate determined at initial
recognition.
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NoTeEs To THE CoNsoLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
G E B HRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2019 BE-Z—NF+-_A=+—HILFE

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2.
POLICIES (continued)
2.12 Impairment of financial assets (continued) 212 2REERE (&)
(iv) Measurement and recognition of ECL (iv) FBEIISEEEZTEREDR

FTEEHBEME (&)

(continued)

For a financial guarantee contract, the Group is
required to make payments only in the event of a
default by the debtor in accordance with the terms
of the instrument that is guaranteed. Accordingly,
the expected losses are the present value of the
expected payments to reimburse the holder for a
credit loss that it incurs less any amounts that the
Group expects to receive from the holder, the debtor
or any other party.

For undrawn loan commitments, the ECL is
the present value of the difference between the
contractual cash flows that are due to the Group if
the holder of the loan commitments draws down the
loan, and the cash flows that the Group expects to
receive if the loan is drawn down.

For ECL on financial guarantee contracts or on
loan commitments for which the effective interest
rate cannot be determined, the Group will apply
a discount rate that reflects the current market
assessment of the time value of money and the risks
that are specific to the cash flows but only if, and to
the extent that, the risks are taken into account by
adjusting the discount rate instead of adjusting the
cash shortfalls being discounted.

Where ECL is measured on a collective basis or
cater for cases where evidence at the individual
instrument level may not yet be available, the
financial instruments are grouped on the following
basis:

o Nature of financial instruments (i.e. the
Group’s trade and other receivables, and
loans and receivables are each assessed as a
separate group. Loans to related parties are
assessed for ECL on an individual basis);
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NoTEs To THE CoNsOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
EEMBHmRMFE

For the year ended 31 December 2019 HE—ZT—AF+-A=+—RAIFE

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2, FEEHBRBE (&)
POLICIES (continued)
2.12 Impairment of financial assets (continued) 212 2REERE (&)
(iv) Measurement and recognition of ECL (iv) FBEIISEEEZTEREDR

(continued)
o Past-due status;

° Nature, size and industry of debtors; and

° External credit ratings where available.

The grouping is regularly reviewed by management
to ensure the constituents of each group continue to
share similar credit risk characteristics.

Interest income is calculated based on the gross
carrying amount of the financial asset unless the
financial asset is credit-impaired, in which case
interest income is calculated based on amortised
cost of the financial asset.

For financial guarantee contracts, the loss
allowances are recognised at the higher of the
amount of the loss allowance determined in
accordance with HKFRS 9; and the amount initially
recognised less, where appropriate, cumulative
amount of income recognised over the guarantee
period.

For undrawn loan commitments, the loss allowances
are the present value of the difference between:

(@) the contractual cash flows that are due to the
Group if the holder of the loan commitment
draws down the loan: and

(b) the cash flows that the Group expects to
receive if the loan is drawn down.
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NoTeEs To THE CoNsoLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
G E B HRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2019 EHZE—F

2.

—NEFTZA=+T—RLFE

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.13

2.14

2.15

2.16

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net
realisable value. Cost is determined using the first-in first-
out (FIFO) method for the commodities finished goods,
the weighted average method for the calligraphy and
painting, and medicines and the specific identification
basis for the motor vehicles. The cost of finished goods is
arrived at based on purchase cost. It excludes borrowing
costs. Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in
the ordinary course of business less the estimated costs
necessary to make the sale.

Trade and other receivables

A receivable is recognised when the Group has an
unconditional right to receive consideration. A right to
receive consideration is unconditional if only the passage
of time is required before payment of that consideration
is due. If revenue has been recognised before the Group
has an unconditional right to receive consideration, the
amount is presented as a contract asset.

Trade and other receivables are stated at amortised cost
using the effective interest method, less allowance for
credit losses.

Cash and cash equivalents

For the purpose of presentation in the consolidated
statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents
includes cash on hand, deposits held at call with banks,
other short-term, highly liquid investments with original
maturities of three months or less that are readily
convertible to known amounts of cash and which are
subject to an insignificant risk of change in value.

Share capital
Ordinary shares are classified as equity.

Incremental costs directly attributable to the issue of new
shares or options are shown in equity as a deduction, net
of tax, from the proceeds.
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NoTEs To THE CoNsOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
EEMBHmRMFE

For the year ended 31 December 2019 HE—ZT—AF+-A=+—RAIFE

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.17

2.18

Trade payables

Trade payables are obligations to pay for goods or
services that have been acquired in the ordinary course of
business from suppliers. Trade payables are classified as
current liabilities if payment is due within one year or less
(or in the normal operating cycle of the business if longer).
If not, they are presented as non-current liabilities.

Trade payables are recognised initially at fair value and
subsequently measured at amortised cost using the
effective interest method.

Borrowings

Borrowings are recognised initially at fair value, net of
transaction costs incurred. Borrowings are subsequently
carried at amortised cost; any difference between the
proceeds (net of transaction costs) and the redemption
value is recognised in the consolidated statement of profit
or loss and other comprehensive income over the period
of the borrowings using the effective interest method.

Borrowings are classified as current liabilities unless the
Group has an unconditional right to defer settlement of
the liability for at least 12 months after the end of the
reporting period.

General and specific borrowing costs directly attributable
to the acquisition, construction or production of
qualifying assets, which are assets that necessarily take a
substantial period of time to get ready for their intended
use or sale, are added to the cost of those assets, until
such time as the assets are substantially ready for their
intended use or sale.

All other borrowing costs are recognised in profit or loss
in the period in which they are incurred.
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NoTeEs To THE CoNsoLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
G E B HRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2019 BE-Z—NF+-_A=+—HILFE
2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2. XEEHBEBE &)
POLICIES (continued)
2.19 Financial guarantee contracts

219 BIREREH

132

Financial guarantee contracts are recognised as a
financial liability at the time the guarantee is issued. The
liability is initially measured at fair value and subsequently
at the higher of:

° the amount determined in accordance with the
expected credit loss model under HKFRS 9 and

° the amount initially recognised less, where
appropriate, the cumulative amount of income
recognised in accordance with the principles of
HKFRS 15 Revenue from contracts with customers
(“HKFRS 157).

The fair value of financial guarantees is determined
based on the present value of the difference in cash
flows between the contractual payments required under
the debt instrument and the payments that would be
required without the guarantee, or the estimated amount
that would be payable to a third party for assuming the
obligations.

Where guarantees in relation to loans or other payables
of associates are provided for no compensation, the fair
values are accounted for as contributions and recognised
as part of the cost of the investment.
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NoTEs To THE CoNsOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
EEMBHmRMFE

For the year ended 31 December 2019 HE—ZT—AF+-A=+—RAIFE
2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2. EEEFHBREBE(£)
POLICIES (continued)
2.20 Current and deferred income tax

2.20 BMHIRIEEFTSH

The tax expense for the period comprises current and
deferred tax. Tax is recognised in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive
income, except to the extent that it relates to items
recognised in other comprehensive income or directly
in equity. In this case the tax is also recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity, respectively.

Current income tax

The current income tax charge is calculated on the basis
of the tax laws enacted or substantively enacted at the
end of the reporting period in the countries where the
Company and its subsidiaries and associates operate
and generate taxable income. Management periodically
evaluates positions taken in tax returns with respect to
situations in which applicable tax regulation is subject to
interpretation. It establishes provisions where appropriate
on the basis of amounts expected to be paid to the tax
authorities.

FHEREMERAT | —EB-NEFH

HARIER X S LELER
HeRERGABREREME2EK
ARKRMER - ERHRBERER S
ER AR S E R A 2R
BBEBARRI EHBERT  HIA
o RIREMEERASEERER
RERMER -

BRI BT 17 &

IR B X iR & HR A
NCIDSEY I IEPNCIDEE: -k /NI
EREEERVBA ZBEREHE
kB BEIRE M 2 BORGE - BIE
BEHMEERRBEEIREFR
BIERTHREARERN  LHEEE
BRTHBERK ARG HEE
HIRGHR R -

133



134

NoTeEs To THE CoNsoLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
G E B HRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2019 BE-Z—NF+-_A=+—HILFE

2.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)
2.20 Current and deferred income tax (continued)

Deferred income tax

Inside basis differences

Deferred income tax is recognised, using the liability
method, on temporary differences arising between the tax
bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts
in the consolidated financial statements. However,
deferred tax liabilities are not recognised if they arise from
the initial recognition of goodwill. Deferred income tax is
also not accounted for if it arises from initial recognition of
an asset or liability in a transaction other than a business
combination that at the time of the transaction affects
neither accounting nor taxable profit or loss. Deferred
income tax is determined using tax rates (and laws) that
have been enacted or substantively enacted by the end
of the reporting period and are expected to apply when
the related deferred income tax asset is realised or the
deferred income tax liability is settled.

Deferred income tax assets are recognised only to the
extent that it is probable that future taxable profit will be
available against which the temporary differences can be
utilised.

Outside basis differences

Deferred income tax liabilities are provided on taxable
temporary differences arising from investments in
subsidiaries and associates, except for deferred income
tax liability where the timing of the reversal of the
temporary difference is controlled by the Group and it is
probable that the temporary difference will not reverse
in the foreseeable future. Generally the Group is unable
to control the reversal of the temporary difference for
associates. Only when there is an agreement in place that
gives the Group the ability to control the reversal of the
temporary difference in the foreseeable future, deferred
tax liability in relation to taxable temporary differences
arising from the associate’s undistributed profits is not
recognised.
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NoTEs To THE CoNsOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
EEMBHmRMFE

For the year ended 31 December 2019 HE—ZT—AF+-A=+—RAIFE

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2.
POLICIES (continued)
2.20 Current and deferred income tax (continued)

FTEEHBEME (&)

2.20 ENEARIESEFTIRH (42)

Deferred income tax (continued)

Outside basis differences (continued)

Deferred income tax assets are recognised on deductible
temporary differences arising from investments in
subsidiaries and associates only to the extent that it
is probable the temporary difference will reverse in the
future and there is sufficient taxable profit available
against which the temporary difference can be utilised.

Offsetting

Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are offset when
there is a legally enforceable right to offset current tax
assets against current tax liabilities and when the deferred
income taxes assets and liabilities relate to income taxes
levied by the same taxation authority on either the taxable
entity or different taxable entities where there is an
intention to settle the balances on a net basis.
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 BE-Z—NF+-_A=+—HILFE

2.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)
2.21 Employee benefits

(a)

Pension obligations

The Group operates a defined contribution
Mandatory Provident Fund retirement benefits
scheme (the “MPF Scheme”) under the Mandatory
Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance, for those
employees who are eligible to participate in the
MPF Scheme. Contributions are made based on
a percentage of the employees’ basic salaries
and are charged to the consolidated statement
of profit or loss and other comprehensive income
as they become payable in accordance with the
rules of the MPF Scheme. The assets of the MPF
scheme are held separately from those of the
Group in an independently administered fund. The
Group’s employer contributions vest fully within
the employees when contributed into the MPF
Scheme, except for the Group’s employer voluntary
contributions, which are refunded to the Group
when the employee leaves employment prior to
the contributions vesting fully, in accordance with
the rules of the MPF Scheme. During the reporting
period, the total amount of forfeited contributions,
which arose upon employees leaving the MPF
Scheme and available to reduce the contribution
payable in future years was nil (2018: Nil).

Retirement benefits to employees in the PRC are
provided through a defined contribution plan.
The Group is required to participate in a central
pension scheme operated by the local municipal
government. The Group is required to contribute
certain percentage of its payroll costs to the
central pension scheme. The contributions are
charged to the consolidated statement of profit
or loss and other comprehensive income as they
become payable in accordance with the rules of the
central pension scheme. The Group has no legal or
constructive obligations to pay further contributions
after payment of the fixed contribution.
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NoTEs To THE CoNsOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A B R R MR

For the year ended 31 December 2019 EHZE_—Z

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)
2.21 Employee benefits (continued)

(b)

Share-based compensation

The Group operates an equity-settled, share-based
compensation plan, under which the entity receives
services from employees as consideration for equity
instruments (options) of the Group. The fair value of
the employee services received in exchange for the
grant of the options is recognised as an expense.
The total amount to be expensed is determined by
reference to the fair value of the options granted:

° including any market performance conditions
(for example, an entity’s share price);

o excluding the impact of any service and non-
market performance vesting conditions (for
example, profitability, sales growth targets and
remaining an employee of the entity over a
specified time period); and

° including the impact of any non-vesting
conditions (for example, the requirement for
employees to save).

Non-market performance and service conditions
are included in assumptions about the number of
options that are expected to vest. The total expense
is recognised over the vesting period, which is
the period over which all of the specified vesting
conditions are to be satisfied.

At the end of each reporting period, the Group
revises its estimates of the number of options that
are expected to vest based on the non-marketing
performance and service conditions. It recognises
the impact of the revision to original estimates, if
any, in the consolidated statement of profit or loss,
with a corresponding adjustment to equity.
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NoTeEs To THE CoNsoLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
G E B HRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2019 BE-Z—NF+-_A=+—HILFE

2.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)
2.21 Employee benefits (continued)

(b) Share-based compensation (continued)
In addition, in some circumstances, employees may
provide services in advance of the grant date and
therefore the grant date fair value is estimated for
the purposes of recognising the expense during the
period between service commencement period and

grant date.

When the options are exercised, the Company
issues new shares. The proceeds received net
of any directly attributable transaction costs are

credited to share capital.

The grant by the Company of options over its
equity instruments to the employees of subsidiary
undertakings in the Group is treated as a capital
contribution. The fair value of employee services
received, measured by reference to the grant
date fair value, is recognised over the vesting
period as an increase to investment in subsidiary
undertakings, with a corresponding credit to equity

in the parent entity accounts.

(c) Termination benefits

Termination benefits are payable when employment
is terminated by the Group before the normal
retirement date, or whenever an employee accepts
voluntary redundancy in exchange for these
benefits. The Group recognises termination benefits
at the earlier of the following dates: (a) when the
group can no longer withdraw the offer of those
benefits; and (b) when the entity recognises costs
for a restructuring that is within the scope of HKAS
37 Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent
Assets and involves the payment of termination
benefits. In the case of an offer made to encourage
voluntary redundancy, the termination benefits are
measured based on the number of employees
expected to accept the offer. Benefits falling due
more than 12 months after the end of the reporting
period are discounted to their present value.
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NoTEs To THE CoNsOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A B R R MR

For the year ended 31 December 2019 EHZE_—Z

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.22

2.23

Provisions and contingent liabilities

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present
legal or constructive obligation as a result of past
events; it is probable that an outflow of resources will
be required to settle the obligation; and the amount can
be reliably estimated. Provisions are not recognised for
future operating losses. Where the time value of money is
material, provisions are stated at the present value of the
expenditure expected to settle the obligation.

Where there are a number of similar obligations, the
likelihood that an outflow will be required in settlement is
determined by considering the class of obligations as a
whole. A provision is recognised even if the likelihood of
an outflow with respect to any one item included in the
same class of obligations may be small.

Where it is not probable that an outflow of resources will
be required, or the amount cannot be estimated reliably,
the obligation is disclosed as a contingent liability, unless
the probability of outflow of resources is remote. Possible
obligations, whose existence will only be confirmed by
the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more future
events are also disclosed as contingent liabilities unless
the probability of outflow of resources is remote.

Revenue recognition

The Group recognises revenue when (or as) a
performance obligation is satisfied, i.e. when “control”
of the goods or services underlying the particular
performance obligation is transferred to the customer.

A performance obligation represents a good or service (or
a bundle of goods or services) that is distinct or a series
of distinct goods or services that are substantially the
same.
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NoTeEs To THE CoNsoLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
G E B HRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2019 BE-Z—NF+-_A=+—HILFE

2.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)
2.23 Revenue recognition (continued)

Control is transferred over time and revenue is recognised
over time by reference to the progress towards complete
satisfaction of the relevant performance obligation if one
of the following criteria is met:

° the customer simultaneously receives and
consumes the benefits provided by the Group’s
performance as the Group performs;

° the Group’s performance creates or enhances an
asset that the customer controls as the Group
performs; or

° the Group’s performance does not create an
asset with an alternative use to the Group and the
Group has an enforceable right to payment for
performance completed to date.

Otherwise, revenue is recognised at a point in time when
the customer obtains control of the distinct good or
service.

A contract asset represents the Group’s right to
consideration in exchange for goods or services that
the Group has transferred to a customer that is not yet
unconditional. It is assessed for impairment in accordance
with HKFRS 9. In contrast, a receivable represents the
Group’s unconditional right to consideration, i.e. only
the passage of time is required before payment of that
consideration is due.

A contract liability represents the Group’s obligation
to transfer goods or services to a customer for which
the Group has received consideration (or an amount of
consideration is due) from the customer.

A contract asset and a contract liability relating to the
same contract are accounted for and presented on a net
basis.
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NoTEs To THE CoNsOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
EEMBHmRMFE

For the year ended 31 December 2019 HE—ZT—AF+-A=+—RAIFE

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2. XEEHBERBE(£)
POLICIES (continued)
2.23 Revenue recognition (continued)

2.23 Yg s tER (2)

In determining the transaction price, the Group adjusts
the promised amount of consideration for the effects of
the time value of money if the timing of payments agreed
(either explicitly or implicitly) provides the customer or
the Group with a significant benefit of financing the
transfer of goods or services to the customer. In those
circumstances, the contract contains a significant
financing component. A significant financing component
may exist regardless of whether the promise of financing
is explicitly stated in the contract or implied by the
payment terms agreed to by the parties to the contract.

For contracts where the period between payment and
transfer of the associated goods or services is less than
one year, the Group applies the practical expedient of not
adjusting the transaction price for any significant financing
component.

Principal versus agent

When another party is involved in providing goods or
services to a customer, the Group determines whether
the nature of its promise is a performance obligation to
provide the specified goods or services itself (i.e. the
Group is a principal) or to arrange for those goods or
services to be provided by the other party (i.e. the Group
is an agent).

The Group is a principal if it controls the specified good
or service before that good or service is transferred to a
customer.

The Group is an agent if its performance obligation is to
arrange for the provision of the specified good or service
by another party. In this case, the Group does not control
the specified good or service provided by another party
before that good or service is transferred to the customer.
When the Group acts as an agent, it recognises revenue
in the amount of any fee or commission to which it
expects to be entitled in exchange for arranging for the
specified goods or services to be provided by the other

party.
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NoTes To THE CoNsOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

A MWW &M

For the year ended 31 December 2019 EHZE—F

2.

—NEFTZA=+T—RLFE

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)
2.23 Revenue recognition (continued)
Further details of the Group’s revenue and other income
recognition policies are as follows:

(@)

Commission income from securities and futures
brokerage is recognised on a trade date basis.

Service income are recognised when the relevant
services have been rendered.

Realised fair value gains or losses on securities
trading are recorded on a trade date basis whilst
unrealised fair value gains or losses are recorded on
change in fair value on the reporting period.

Interest income is recognised using the effective
interest method. When a loan and receivable is
impaired, the Group reduces the carrying amount to
its recoverable amount, being the estimated future
cash flow discounted at the original effective interest
rate of the instrument, and continues unwinding
the discount as interest income. Interest income on
impaired loans and receivables is recognised using
the original effective interest rate.

Dividend income is recognised when the right to
receive payment is established.

Revenue from sales of motor vehicles and electronic
student cards and school safety products is
recognised when the customer obtains control of
the promised good or service in the contract. If
the products are a partial fulfilment of a contract
covering other goods and/or services, then the
amount of revenue recognised is an appropriate
proportion of the total transaction price under the
contract, allocated between all the goods and
services promised under the contract on a relative
stand-alone selling price basis.

Agency income from trading of motor vehicles and
accessories souring is recognised on a net basis,
when the agency services have been rendered.
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NoTEs To THE CoNsOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A B R R MR

For the year ended 31 December 2019 EHZE_—Z

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.24 Leases
Policy applicable from 1 January 2019

(A)

Leases where the Group is a lessee requires the
Group to recognise as a right-of-use asset and a
corresponding liability at the date when the leased
asset is available for use by the Group except for (a)
short-term lease whose the lease term is 12 months
or less and/or (b) leases of low value assets.

Assets and liabilities arising from a lease are initially
measured on a present value basis. Lease liabilities
include the net present value of the following lease
payments:

fixed payments (including in-substance
fixed payments), less any lease incentives
receivable;

variable lease payment that are based on an
index or a rate, initially measured using the
index or rate as at the commencement date;

amounts expected to be payable by the Group
under residual value guarantees;

the exercise price of a purchase option if the
Group is reasonably certain to exercise that
option; and

payments of penalties for terminating the
lease, if the lease term reflects the Group
exercising that option.
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NoTeEs To THE CoNsoLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
G E B HRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2019 BE-Z—NF+-_A=+—HILFE

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2.
POLICIES (continued)
2.24 Leases (continued) 2.24 FE (&)
(A) Policy applicable from 1 January 2019 (A) BE-F—-ALEFE—HF—HEH

TEEBRGE (2)

(continued)

Lease payments to be made under reasonably
certain extension options are also included in the
measurement of the liability.

The lease payments are discounted using the
interest rate implicit in the lease. If that rate cannot
be readily determined, which is generally the case
for leases in the Group, the lessee’s incremental
borrowing rate is used, being the rate that the
individual lessee would have to pay to borrow the
funds necessary to obtain an asset of similar value
to the right-of-use asset in a similar economic
environment with similar terms, security and
conditions.

To determine the incremental borrowing rate, the
Group:

° where possible, uses recent third-party
financing received by the individual lessee as
a starting point, adjusted to reflect changes in
financing conditions since third party financing
was received;

° uses a build-up approach that starts with a
risk-free interest rate adjusted for credit risk for
leases held by the entity, which does not have
recent third-party financing, and

° makes adjustments specific to the lease, e.g.
term, country, currency and security.

The Group is exposed to potential future increases
in variable lease payments based on an index or
rate, which are not included in the lease liability
until they take effect. When adjustments to lease
payments based on an index or rate take effect, the
lease liability is reassessed and adjusted against the
right-of-use asset.
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NoTEs To THE CoNsOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
EEMBHmRMFE

For the year ended 31 December 2019 HE—ZT—AF+-A=+—RAIFE

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2.
POLICIES (continued)
2.24 Leases (continued)
(A) Policy applicable from 1 January 2019

FTEEBEME (&

224 HE (&)
(A) BE=-F—HLEFE—F—HEE

(continued)

Lease payments are allocated between principal and
finance cost. The finance cost is charged to profit
or loss over the lease period so as to produce a
constant periodic rate of interest on the remaining
balance of the liability for each period.

Right-of-use assets are initially measured at cost
comprising the following:

° the amount of the initial measurement of lease
liability;

° any lease payments made at or before the
commencement date less any lease incentives
received;

° any initial direct costs; and
o restoration costs.

Right-of-use assets are generally depreciated
over the shorter of the asset’s useful life and the
lease term on a straight-line basis. If the Group is
reasonably certain to exercise a purchase option,
the right-of-use asset is depreciated over the
underlying asset’s useful life.
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NoTeEs To THE CoNsoLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
G E B HRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2019 BE-Z—NF+-_A=+—HILFE

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2. EEBEHE (£)
POLICIES (continued)
2.24 Leases (continued) 2.24 FE (&)
(A) Policy applicable from 1 January 2019 (A) BE=-F—HLEFE—F—HEE
(continued) 2B F (&)

Payments associated with short-term leases of
equipment and vehicles and all leases of low-value
assets are recognised on a straight-line basis as
an expense in profit or loss. Short-term leases are
leases with a lease term of 12 months or less. Low-
value assets comprise equipment and small items of
office furniture.

The Group accounts for a lease modification as a
separate lease if:

° the modification increases the scope of the
lease by adding the right to use one or more
underlying assets; and

o the consideration for the leases increases by
an amount commensurate with the stand-
alone price for the increase in scope and
any appropriate adjustments to that stand-
alone price to reflect the circumstances of the
particular contract.

For a lease modification that is not accounted for as
a separate lease, the Group remeasures the lease
liability based on the lease term of the modified
lease by discounting the revised lease payments
using a revised discount rate at the effective date of
the modification.

The Group accounts for the remeasurement of lease
liabilities by making corresponding adjustments to
the relevant right-of-use asset. When the modified
contract contains a lease component and one or
more additional lease or non-lease components,
the Group allocates the consideration in the
modified contract to each lease component on the
basis of the relative stand-alone price of the lease
component and the aggregate stand-alone price of
the non-lease components.
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NoTEs To THE CoNsOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
EEMBHmRMFE

For the year ended 31 December 2019 HE—ZT—AF+-A=+—RAIFE

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)
2.24 Leases (continued)
(B) Policy applicable prior to 1 January 2019

Leases in which a significant portion of the risks
and rewards of ownership are retained by the
lessor are classified as operating leases. Payments
made under operating leases (net of any incentives
received from the lessor) were charged to the
consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income on a straight-line basis over
the period of the lease.

2.25 Related parties
A party is considered to be related to the Group if:

(a)

A person or a close member of that person’s family
and that person

(i) has control or joint control over the Group;

(i) has significant influence over the Group; or

(i) is a member of the key management personnel
of the Group or of a parent of the Group;

An entity is related to the Group if any of the
following conditions applies:

()  the entity and the Group are members of the
same group;

(i)  one entity is an associate or joint venture of
the other entity (or of a parent, subsidiary or
fellow subsidiary of the other entity);

(i) the entity and the Group are joint ventures of
the same third party;

(iv) one entity is a joint venture of a third entity
and the other entity is an associate of the third
entity;
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NoTeEs To THE CoNsoLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
G E B HRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2019 EHZE—F

2.

—NEFTZA=+T—RLFE

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)
2.25 Related parties (continued)
(b)  An entity is related to the Group if any of the
following conditions applies: (continued)

(v)

(vi)

(vii)

(i)

the entity is a post-employment benefit plan
for the benefit of employees of either the
Group or an entity related to the Group;

the entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a
person identified in (a);

a person identified in (a)(i) has significant
influence over the entity or is a member of the
key management personnel of the entity (or of
a parent of the entity); and

the entity, or any member of a group of
which it is a part, provides key management
personnel services to the Group or to the
Group’s parent.

Close members of the family of a person are those family
members who may be expected to influence, or be
influenced by, that person in their dealings with the entity.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

3.1 Financial risk factors
The Group’s activities expose it to a variety of financial
risks: market risk (including currency risk, price risk, fair
value interest rate risk, and cash flow interest rate risk),
credit risk and liquidity risk. The Group’s overall risk
management program focuses on the unpredictability of
financial markets and seeks to minimise potential adverse
effects on the Group’s financial performance.
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NoTEs To THE CoNsOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
EEMBHmRMFE

For the year ended 31 December 2019 HE—ZT—AF+-A=+—RAIFE

3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)
3.1 Financial risk factors (continued)
(a) Market risk

(1)

(i)

Foreign exchange risk

Transactional currency exposures arise from
the sales or purchase by operating units
in currency other than the unit’s functional
currency. The Group’s exposure to foreign
currency risk is minimal as almost all of the
Group’s revenue and costs of the operating
units are denominated in the HK$ and RMB,
the respective functional currency of the Group
entities, with most of the Group’s monetary
assets, liabilities are principally denominated
in the respective functional currencies of HK$
and RMB. The Group manages the foreign
exchange exposure arising from its normal
course of business activities and investments
in foreign operations by funding its local
operations and investments through cash
flows generated from business transactions
locally. The Group currently does not have
a foreign currency hedging policy. However,
the management monitors foreign exchange
exposure closely and will consider hedging
significant foreign currency exposure should
the need arise.

Price risk

The Group is exposed to equity price risk
arising from trading of listed equity securities
which are listed on the Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong and the market price changed
on the unlisted investment funds classified as
financial assets at FVTPL. To manage its price
risk arising from these investments, the Group
diversifies its portfolio. The sensitivity analysis
has been determined based in the exposure to
related price risk of these investments.
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NoTeEs To THE CoNsoLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
G E B HRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2019 BE-Z—NF+-_A=+—HILFE

3.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

Financial risk factors (continued)
(a) Market risk (continued)

3.1

(i

(i)

Price risk (continued)

At the end of the reporting period, if the
quoted market prices of the trading securities
had been 5% higher or lower while all other
variables were held constant, the Group’s
net loss for the year would decrease or
increase by approximately HK$57,500 (2018:
HK$712,000) as a result of changes in fair
value of securities held for trading.

Cash flow and fair value interest rate risk

During the years ended 31 December 2018
and 2019, the Group is exposed to cash
flow interest rate risk due to the fluctuation
of the prevailing market interest rate on bank
deposits and borrowings which carry prevailing
market interest rates. The directors considered
that the Group’s income and operating cash
flows are substantially independent of changes
in market interest rates.

As at 31 December 2019 and 2018, the
Group’s cash flow interest rate risk relates
primarily to its variable bank deposits and
borrowings. The Group currently does not use
any derivative contracts to hedge its exposure
to interest rate risk. However, management
will consider hedging significant interest rate
exposure should the need arise.
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NoTEs To THE CoNsOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
EEMBHmRMFE

For the year ended 31 December 2019 EHZE_—Z

3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

3.1 Financial risk factors (continued)
(a) Market risk (continued)

(i)

Cash flow and fair value interest rate risk
(continued)

As at 31 December 2019 and 2018, if interest
rates on the bank borrowings had been
decreased/increased by 50 basis points
with all other variables held constant, the
Group’s post-tax loss for the years ended 31
December 2019 and 2018 would decrease/
increase by approximately HK$10,000 and
HK$19,000 respectively.

As at 31 December 2019 and 2018, if
interest rates on the bank deposits had been
decreased/increased by 50 basis points
with all other variables held constant, the
Group’s post-tax loss for the years ended 31
December 2019 and 2018 would increase and
decrease by approximately HK$513,344 and
HK$725,278 respectively.

As at 31 December 2019 and 2018, the Group
is exposed to the fair value interest rate risk
relating to the loan receivables. However,
the directors of the Company consider the
repayable term of the loan receivables is within
one year, therefore, the fair value interest rate
risk is immaterial.
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 BE-Z—NF+-_A=+—HILFE

3.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)
3.1 Financial risk factors (continued)
(b) Credit risk

Credit risk refers to the risk that a counterparty will
default on its contractual obligations resulting in a

financial loss to the Group.

The Group reviews the recoverability of its financial
assets periodically to ensure that potential credit
risk of the counterparty is managed at an early
stage and sufficient provision is made for possible
defaults. In addition, receivable balances are
monitored on an ongoing basis and the Group’s

exposure to bad debts is not significant.

The credit risk of the Group’s financial assets relate
mainly to cash and cash equivalents, trade and
other receivables, and loan receivables. It arises
from default of the counterparty, with a maximum
exposure equal to the carrying amounts of these
instruments. Management has a credit policy in
place and the exposures to these credit risks are

monitored on an ongoing basis.

In respect of trade and other receivables, individual
credit evaluations are performed on all customers
requiring credit over a certain amount. These
evaluations focus on the customer’s past history of
making payments when due and current ability to
pay, and take into account information specific to
the customer as well as pertaining to the economic
environment in which the customer operates.
Debtors with balances that are more than 1 month
past due are requested to settle all outstanding
balances before any further credit is granted.
Normally, the Group does not obtain collateral from

customers.
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NoTEs To THE CoNsOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
EEMBHmRMFE

For the year ended 31 December 2019 HE—ZT—AF+-A=+—RAIFE

3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)
3.1 Financial risk factors (continued)

(b)

Credit risk (continued)

At the end of the reporting period, the Group
has certain concentrations of credit risk as
approximately 52% (2018: 61%) and 96% (2018:
99%) of the Group’s trade receivables were due
from the Group’s largest trade debtor and the
five largest trade debtors respectively within the
brokerage and securities margin financing services
segment, sales of motor vehicles and provision of
agency services segment and trading of electronic
student cards and school safety product and
provision of electronic student card platform
segment. However, the directors of the Company
consider the credit risk is limited since the Group
has held certain listed equity securities of clients
as collateral over these receivables from the
brokerage and securities margin financing services
segment. For the sales of motor vehicles and
provision of agency services segment and trading of
electronic student cards and school safety product
and provision of electronic student card platform
segment, the customer’s past history of making
payments are good and no default record. Further
quantitative data in respect of the Group’s exposure
to credit risk arising from trade receivables are
disclosed in note 22 to the consolidated financial
statements.

The Group measures loss allowances for trade
receivables at an amount equal to lifetime ECLs,
which is calculated using a provision matrix
approach. As the Group’s historical credit loss
experience does not indicate significantly different
loss patterns for different customer segments, the
loss allowance based on past due status is not
further distinguished between the Group’s different
customer bases.
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 BE-Z—NF+-_A=+—HILFE

3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued) 3. HMBEMER(~=Z)
3.1 Financial risk factors (continued) 3.1 MBRAKER (&)
(b) Credit risk (continued) (b) EEEMRE (&)
The following table provides information about the TRIIINZZFE-—IF+=
Group’s exposure to credit risk for trade receivables A=+—BA%EHEBREK
as at 31 December 2019: ZBoREEERBKR 2ER:
Gross
carrying
amount
ARE A2 E
HK$
T
At 31 December 2019 R_ZE-AF+ZA=+—H
Current (not past due) BUER (R HER) 19,365,604
1-30 days past due 1 #91-30 H 666,648
31-60 days past due #HI31-60H 2,789,003
61-90 days past due #HI61-90H 412,949
91-180 days past due # H191-180H 1,497,762
More than 180 days past due wHAEEE180H 293,138
25,025,104
Expected loss rates are based on actual loss TEEEEXRTDERBE—=
experience over the past one to two years. MENERSELCRAES
These rates are adjusted to reflect differences HeZEhEBRBBER
between economic conditions during the period B BB LEMRR - B
over which the historic data has been collected, AR S R 7N B2 B 39 FE R 1B
current conditions and the Group’s view of 2 FEHAF BB SEET 2
economic conditions over the expected lives of the BE  MANAFE -
receivables.
(c) Liquidity risk (c) HEEREEE
Ultimate responsibility for liquidity risk management EFEeEARDESRRE
rests with the board of directors. The Group BE FHREE-A5EE
manages liquidity risk by maintaining adequate B R R A SRR
reserves and reserve borrowing facilities, by B TEHERBALRERE
continuously monitoring forecast and actual cash eRE UREHEMEE
flows and matching the maturity profiles of financial LBaEzREHA EUERE
assets and liabilities. RBE T RAR -
At 31 December 2019, the Group had borrowings RZE-—NF+ZA=+—
with carrying amounts of HK$2,376,533 (2018: B ASBERCEEER
HK$4,497,498) (Note 34). 2,376,533B L (ZZE— N
F 4,497,498 70) (M=
34) e
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NoTEs To THE CoNsOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
EEMBHmRMFE

For the year ended 31 December 2019 HE—ZT—AF+-A=+—RAIFE

3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued) 3. UBEKRER (&
3.1 Financial risk factors (continued) 3.1 MBRAKER (&)
(c) Liquidity risk (continued) (c) HEELEE (&)

The maturity profile of the Group’s financial liabilities
as at the reporting period, based on the contractual
undiscounted payments, was as follows:

AEESRBEERNRE M
BREAQORBIRARZE
AR T :

On
demand  Between 1 Between Total
or within and2 2and5 Over 5 undiscounted Total carrying
1 year years years years cash flow amount
BERSY RUEREE
DR 1226 2F55 5L RESE BREE
HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$
BT BT BT BT BT BT
2019 —¥-hE
Trade payables EREHHE 5,770,297 - - - 5,770,297 5,770,297
Other payables EHERFER
and accruals JEst 3R 25,221,446 - - - 25221,446 25,221,446
Lease liabilties BEEE 3,416,572 1,708,227 - - 5119,799 4,935,021
Provisions BE 21,549,352 - - - 21,549,352 21,549,352
Bank borrowings (Note) ~ $R 473k (i3E) 2,421,991 - - - 2,421,991 2,376,533
2018 ZF-0\f
Trade payables EREHHE 8,271,122 - - - 8,271,122 8,271,122
Other payables EHERFER
and accruals fEst T 15,775,576 - - - 15775576 15,775,576
Bank borrowings (Note) 847 3% (Hi3E) 4,657,557 - - - 4,857,557 4,497,498
Note: B 5

Bank loans HK$2,376,533 (2018: HK$4,497,498) with a repayment
on demand clause are included in the “on demand or within 1
year” time band in the above maturity analysis. At 31 December
2019, the aggregate undiscounted amounts of principal of the
bank loans and interest thereon amounted to HK$2,421,991 (2018:
HK$4,657,557). Taking into account the Group’s financial position,
the directors of the Company do not believe that it is probable
that the banks will exercise their discretionary rights to demand
immediate repayment. The directors of the Company believe that
such bank loans will be repaid over a period of 1 year (2018: 2
years) in accordance with the scheduled repayment dates set out
in the loan agreements.
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3.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)
3.2 Capital management

Certain of the Group’s subsidiaries are regulated by
the Securities and Futures Commission (“SFC”) and
are required to comply with certain minimum capital
requirements according to the rules of the SFC. In
addition, the Group’s objectives when managing capital
are to safeguard the Group’s ability to continue as a
going concern in order to provide returns for shareholders
and benefits for other stakeholders and to maintain an
optimal capital structure to reduce the cost of capital.

In order to maintain or adjust the capital structure, the
Group may adjust the amount of dividends paid to
shareholders, return capital to shareholders or issue new
shares.

The Group monitors its capital structure on the basis
of the debt-to-adjusted capital ratio. This ratio is
calculated as net debt divided by adjusted capital. Net
debt is calculated as total debt (including current and
non-current liabilities but excluding current or deferred
income tax liabilities as shown in the consolidated
statement of financial position) less cash and cash
equivalents. Adjusted capital comprises all components
of equity (including share capital and premium, reserves,
accumulated losses and non-controlling interests as
shown in the consolidated statement of financial position).
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3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

3.2 Capital management (continued)

During 2019, the Group’s strategy was to maintain the
debt-to-adjusted capital ratio within 50%, which was
unchanged from 2018. The debt-to-adjusted capital
ratios as at 31 December 2019 and 2018 were as

3.

MBREEER (&

3.2 EXEE(£E)
AREBE-T-—hFEHEESFT=
T N\FHRE BIZABESY
KRR AR L R TES0% A o 1
“TE-NFERZZTE—NF+ZA

follows: —+t—HZEBRHLEARRAL
=
2019 2018
—E-nE —ZE-N\F
HK$ HK$
T T
Total debt BEB 63,970,586 30,847,432

Less: Bank balances and cash,
including bank trust

o SRITRESR MRS

BRERITERERRP

accounts (Note 27) (MF3E27) (118,799,579)  (161,352,873)
Net debt B %8 (54,828,993)  (130,505,441)
Total equity T A EE 245,976,255 378,175,755
Adjusted capital R Y N 245,976,255 378,175,755

Debt-to-adjusted capital ratio

B EEHERA L K

N/AFE R N/A i A

ERETEEEEARAT | ZE-NFFH
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 EHZE—F

3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

3.3 Fair value estimation

—NEFTZA=+T—RLFE

The table below analyses financial instruments carried at
fair value, by valuation method. The different levels have

been defined as follows:

° Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for
identical assets or liabilities (level 1).

° Inputs other than quoted prices included within
level 1 that are observable for the asset or liability,
either directly (that is, as prices) or indirectly (that is,
derived from prices) (level 2).

° Inputs for the asset or liability that are not based
on observable market data (that is, unobservable

inputs) (level 3).

BMBERER (2Z)

3.3 AFE{EZMHE
TRZEETEDTARFEGTE
ZEMTAE-SERZEHENT:

s MHEBEXEBENETETS
ZHRE(CREHE) (F—
&) e

s BEXRBEVERE (BR)X
A% CREER)BRZBA

BE(TBEEE-—R2HRE)
(B=8) o

e EBEESBBIFREAER
ZMBEE 2w ABE (&
EBRZBARE) (F=

®) o
Total Level 1 Level 2 Level 3
@t F—4 -8 £=8
HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$
BT BT BT BT
At 31 December 2019 R-B-h%E
+ZA=+-
Financial assets at fair BRAFERA ﬂﬂ
value through other %EHW\Zi i
comprehensive income BE (fi5o4)
(Note 24) 9,997,200 - - 9,997,200
Financial assets at fair value XA FET AR
through profit or loss JERMEE
(Note 25) (FizE25)
- securities held for trading  —#{EE & &% 1,378,068 1,378,068 - -
- unlisted equity investments — 3k LT R #ER & 31,702,687 - - 31,702,687
- other unlisted investments —E fh 3 FHIRE 7,237 - 7,237 -
At 31 December 2018 RZE—-\&
+-A=1+—H
Financial assets at fair value &2 FE:F A
through profit or loss JEMEE
(Note 25) (Mf5E25)
- securities held for trading —H{EEE &5 17,048,700 17,043,700 - -
- mandatorily required to be — IR EED
classified as at fair value BEBERTE
through profit or loss FAER 10,726,056 - - 10,726,056
- other unlisted investments —E i JF FH1RE 20 - 20 -
As at 31 December 2019 and 2018, there were Rn-Z— Hi&_%\—)\i
no transfers of fair value measurements between +=—A=+— — &%
Level 1 and Level 2 and no transfers into or out of F= &ZF‘?IETHT F1E
Level 3. H‘Eﬁﬁy BE=ZHIEMT
CEYN-E: Tl
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 HE—ZT—AF+-A=+—RAIFE

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

3. MEBEREE (&)

3.3 Fair value estimation (continued) 3.3 AFEZHE (£E)
Information about Level 3 fair value measurements FHAFE=RLFEIAEZEN
Fair values as at 31 December
R+ZRAZ+—-BWATEE
Significant Relationship of
Valuation unobservable unobservable inputs
2019 2018 techniques inputs Range to fair value
EXTUHE TOHRRBARE
—gF-nE —Z-N\% HERE (PN ¢ #E BATLENRE
HK$ HK$
& BT
Financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss
BATEABRZERERE
Loan receivable with equity - 10,726,056 Discounted Floating 4.35% The higher the interest rate,
convertible term cash flow interest rate the lower the fair value
EREARENERER HRRERE FEH % FEgE AFESE
Unlisted equity investments 31,702,687 - Discounted Discount rate  6.18% to 19% The higher the discount rate,
cash flow the lower the fair value
FrmRERE HRBENE BB % BREEE ATEME

The fair value measurement of the Group’s interest in
the Limited Partnership (as defined in Note 25) which
classified as financial assets at FVTPL as at 31 December
2019 was determined based on discounted cash flows
of individual projects with discount rates at range from
6.18% to 19%.

The Group’s unlisted equity investments of
RMB9,000,000 (equivalent to HK$9,997,200) under
financial assets at FVTOCI were revalued on 31
December 2019 by FITHREEETHER A A
(transliterated as Shenzhen Zhongshenxin Asset Valuation
Co. Ltd) (“Shenzhen Zhongshenxin”), an independent
qualified professional valuer not connected to the Group.

FHEREMERAT | —EB-NEFH

R-ZF-AFE+=-—A=+—8"
AEBEREREGRABDE (WK
25FTER ) N B RE A FER
ABmZEREEZAVEE
DHEREHNBEBENEHRRARE R
BETF H MBREXBERCA8%E
19% °

REBZILAFEFAEMEEK
AZeREEZIFLMBRERE
E &% A AR®9,000,0007T (48
£ 729,997,200 )R ZF — N1
F+ A=+ HAEAREERL
ERAE RIS EREET MM
FY MR R EEENBERAT
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 BE-Z—NF+-_A=+—HILFE

3.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)
3.3 Fair value estimation (continued)

Information about Level 3 fair value measurements
(continued)

The fair value of the Group’s investments in the unlisted
equity investments was determined based on asset-
based approach and the calculation was based on the
assessed value of total assets less assessed value of
total liabilities. The valuation was carried out by Shenzhen
Zhongshenxin. The management worked closely and had
discussions with the valuers on the valuation assumptions
and valuation results when the valuation was performed
at the end of the reporting date. The Group considers
that it takes long time for setting up biomedical laboratory
and put in use. As the project was still in a development
stage, the management considers that the asset-based
approach is more appropriate to the Group and the fair
value approximates the carrying value of assets and
liabilities of Nan Rui Biotechnology (as defined in Note
24).

The fair value of the loan receivable of RMB9,454,600
(equivalent to HK$10,726,056) with the term of
convertible equity at 31 December 2018 was determined
based on the discounted cash flow of the expected cash
flow estimated by the management of the Group as at
31 December 2018. The investment was subsequently
refunded to the Group on 7 January 2019.

The movements during the period in the balance of these
Level 3 fair value measurements are as follows:

3.

MEEmER (&)

3.3 AFEZfHE (&)
FHE=ZRLFEAEBEZEH
(#%&)

AEBFEMBEREZ AFETS
EREEEWE B EENE
BEhniRE =B B A EMAEX
BEXBENDEIEE -BRAMGE
BRYITMAHRREET - BEEER
FHREAETHEREFGMER
BELIREERRREESER -
AEERSEILEYMBEERE
TIRAERFHRE - HRZEE
DENAZER EEERREE
AR BCEAANSE AP EHE
Min AR (M 24P E )
MEERABHNKREEBEMRS-

R-E—-NE+-_A=+—HB%
E A AR #9,454,6007T (FHER
10,726,056 70) + B A G Al #
BHEZEWRERZ ATFETRE
AREBEEBR -_Z—N\F+=
A=+ HEFHNESRREERE
ZHRBReREET ZILEHER
RZE-NF-—ALBRETFTA
£H-

HARZEEZRATETEY
EHREBIT

HK$

7 TT

At 1 January 2018 RZZE-—NF—H—H -

Payment for purchases BENAK 10,726,056
At 31 December 2018 and at 1 January 2019 RZ-ZZE—N\F+_A=+—HBxX

RZE—hF—HA—H 10,726,056

Payment for purchases BENR 44,094,180

Refund of investment "ERK (10,689,560)

Fair value loss NEEEE (1,650,241)

Currency translation difference ERMEER (780,548)

At 31 December 2019 RZE—NF+=ZA=+—H 41,699,887
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EEMBHmRMFE

For the year ended 31 December 2019 HE—ZT—AF+-A=+—RAIFE

3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued) 3.
3.4 Financial instruments by category

BAFsE P EE (4
34 &MIASE

2019 2018
—E-hE ZE-N\F
HK$ HK$
I 7T
Financial assets classified as loans RiELHFA BB K
and receivables as per consolidated 738 &5 3K & & W F T8
statement of financial position LEMEE
Statutory deposits and other assets A F L& & E & E 505,000 505,001
Trade receivables JEWE 5 IE 31,834,712 24,015,171
Deposits and other receivables e & H b UG IE 12,065,184 3,653,882
Loan receivables JE W & 3R 2,832,540 6,534,605
Bank balances and cash including fRi7T&&% NI S
restricted cash (BREXEHRE) 118,799,579 161,352,873
166,037,015 196,061,532
Financial assets at fair value through & A F BT AEBZE 2
profit or loss TREE 33,087,992 27,769,776
Financial assets at fair value through #E R FEFFAEMEEBA Z
other comprehensive income EMEE 9,997,200 -
209,122,207 223,831,308
Financial liabilities at amortised cost 1R IE 4R & M MR K
as per consolidated statements of LB SER AR T BR 2
financial position SRIBE
Trade payables JETE 558 5,770,297 8,271,122
Other payables and accruals H th B A 508 M FEET FRIA 25,221,466 15,775,576
Lease liabilities HEAaE 4,935,021 -
Provisions BH 21,549,352 -
Borrowings B 2,376,533 4,497,498
59,852,669 08,544,196
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 BE-Z—NF+-_A=+—HILFE

4.

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGMENTS

Estimates and judgments are continually evaluated and are
based on historical experience and other factors, including
expectations of future events that are believed to be reasonable
under the circumstances.

4.1

Critical accounting estimates and assumptions

The Group makes estimates and assumptions concerning
the future. The resulting accounting estimates will, by
definition, seldom equal the related actual results. The
estimates and assumptions that have a significant risk of
causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts
of assets and liabilities within the next financial year are
addressed below.

(a)

(b)

Estimated useful lives of intangible assets
other than goodwill

The Group has significant intangible assets. The
Group is required to estimate the useful lives of
intangible assets, in order to ascertain the amount
of amortisation charges for each reporting period.

Impairment of intangible assets other than
goodwill

The Group periodically reviews internal or external
resources to identify indications that the intangible
assets other than goodwill have suffered any
impairment in accordance with accounting policy
stated in note 2.8. If the recoverable amount of
an intangible asset is estimated to be less than
its carrying amount, the carrying amount of the
intangible asset is reduced to its recoverable
amount. The assessment of the recoverable amount
requires the use of estimates and assumptions.

EXEsHlst RHER

7 B S R A PR A
BB - BERE TR TGS

N-FACE S
41 EAWEHEH RIEE

REBPLRKAE L AT MR -

e A ER ESE D EAR
EREERT - BT —EAMBRFE
LEERBERMEEKEKNH

B EARRGHREBRZHH
m
(a) BRBSBIEREEZ G T

(b)

‘HEEH
AEBEERELEE K
SEEARMGEVEEZARE
AFH AEE S REHHE
ZHEBERETRE-

BREZEIIEREERE

SR BRI M EE2. 8P &
SR 52 1R B P9 B 5 2B
R IATETE I 7MY
AERTAEAAMENR:
7 2 2 AU L 2 R
SHERABEE BV AE
ZEAEEAELTHES
9 5 (9] W B & AR M)
fi it R B
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NoTEs To THE CoNsOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 EHZE_—Z

4. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND

JUDGMENTS (continued)

4.1 Critical accounting estimates and assumptions
(continued)
(c) Credit risk of trade and other receivables and

(d)

loan receivables

The management of the Group assessed the loan
receivables based on the financial background,
collateral and the historical settlement records,
including past due dates and default rates, and
forward-looking information that is reasonable,
supportable and available without undue cost or
effort.

Provision for expected credit losses of trade
receivables

The Group uses a provision of matrix approach
to calculate ECLs for trade receivables. The
determination of default rates takes into account
historical data and forward-looking information
which involves a significant degree of management
judgement.

The provision of ECLs is sensitive to changes in
circumstances and of forecast general economic
conditions. If the financial condition of the
customers or the forecast economic conditions
were to deteriorate, actual loss allowance would be
higher than estimated.

Impairment of interests in associates
Determining whether interests in associates are
impaired requires an estimation of the recoverable
amounts of the interests in associates. The Group
recognised the impairment of interests in associate
based on an assessment of future economic
benefits of the investment that will flow to the Group
in prior years. The associate ceased its business
due to the policy review by the PRC government,
and such review has not yet completed up to
present. Where the policy will be completed and the
expectation is different from the originate estimate,
such difference will impact the interests in associate
in the period in which such estimates has been
changed.

FHEREMERAT | —EB-NEFH

4, EXT

—NETZA=t—RLLEFEE

Bl E R ()

41 EXEFHEERERR (&)

(c)

(d)

B E S IERR M EK
ELREBKERZ EERE
AEBEEEEREVHKE
REAmLBEENRT
BoEEARRAREOX
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RAKB NI FZAIEEE
B A EERAZBKRE

ES
e

EWRE ZHE
BRI
ANEBIR A BB RRE T A
BERWE SFEZEHRE
EEB-BEEROLERE
KB E BB RATELE R
WHEBRSREENEIEREH
B o

2 EHIEE R

BHEEERRBHSER
SR TER BB B A 2 B
BB R E P M IR %
BRI EM R B Al E R
EBREBEEBSRAGEE -

REBELEZ#HE
EBEERBLERRZEDE
BAPRER  BE 0B
INCIPA: AR ek RS
HibFt- ARER ZAFE
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PIT 15 2R R4 178 ) 2t O 5F A B
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4.

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND

4. EXESHEFRAE (&£)

JUDGMENTS (continued)
4.1 Critical accounting estimates and assumptions 4.1 EXEiHEEREBR (&)
(continued)

(e) Estimated useful lives and impairment of

property, plant and equipments

The Group has significant property, plant and
equipments. The Group is required to estimate
the useful lives of property, plant and equipments
in order to ascertain the amount of depreciation

charges for each reporting period.

The useful lives are estimated at the time of
purchase of these assets after considering business
developments and the Group’s strategies. The
Group performs annual reviews to assess the
appropriateness of the estimated useful lives.
Such review takes into account any unexpected
adverse changes in circumstances or events,
including declines in projected operating results,
negative industry and economic trends. The Group
extends or shortens the useful lives and/or makes
impairment provisions according to the results of the

review.

(f) Income taxes

The Group is subject to income taxes in certain
overseas jurisdictions and Hong Kong. Significant
judgment is required in determining the provision
for income taxes. There are many transactions and
calculations for which the ultimate tax determination
is uncertain during the ordinary course of business.
The Group recognises liabilities for anticipated tax
issues based on estimates of whether additional
taxes will be due. Where the final tax outcome of
these matters is different from the amounts that
were initially recorded, such differences will impact
the income tax and deferred tax provisions in the
period in which such determination are made.

(e) M HBRBEZMET
1% /5 4 H R et {5
REBRBEERZYE H
BRRE-AEEAMGDY
X HEMRBZAERSF
Hl AREESREHE I
EERsw-

REEEZAERFRIRN
BARKEEEBRREA
SERERIFL G - AE
BegfETRiAFNEA
MR FHRELE
BRI EEEERH
BTN HF R IR AR
BRIE BREBEALER
TR TTERREBSY
B-AEEREBERAERT
RRBRAIEAFHAR X
FHERE R -

(f Frf?
REBEME T BINADE
BEREEZHMBH BT
PIERBBRFEEFHEXN
HE - AEXBEETES
THUABERERBAZRS
a8 H L - AEEZRE
B HIRBRINEH IR 2 fh 5
MERBERAREETEMESE
ZEBE-HMZEEEZRR
MBERELCRZ SR
TR -EREZEBERETER
HAEBREMAZAEHR K
AESETH B o
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4. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND 4,
JUDGMENTS (continued)
4.2 Critical judgments in applying the Company’s

EXEsH st R¥ER (&2)

4.2 FERAAEEBREFHZE

accounting policies

Determining the basis on impairment made on the
interests in associates

The Group has made substantial investments in
associates. The Group conducts impairment reviews
of these assets whenever events or changes in
circumstances indicate that their carrying amounts may
not be recoverable.

During 2018 and 2019, after reviewing the business
environment and past performance of the investments,
management considers that no reversal of impairment
for the PRC associates (Note 20) due to the continuing
suspension of business of those associates in the
foreseeable future.

As the commodities trading policies review conducted by
the government of Qianhai, there was a suspension on
the business operation of RIIFE HEBERERRZ HF 0
BBR AT (transliterated as Shenzhen Qianhai First China
International Commodities Exchange Centre Limited)
(“Qianhai First China”), an associate of the Group, in prior
year. The review was still not completed as at the end of
the current reporting period and therefore the business
operation of Qianhai First China has not yet resumed up
to present. Due to the uncertainty in the timing of the
new industry policies introduced, the management of the
Group considers that it is appropriate not to reverse any
impairment recognised in prior years.

Determining the basis on impairment relating

to refundable earnest money paid for proposed
business acquisition in previous year

The Group has paid the refundable earnest money of
RMB20,000,000 (equivalent to HK$23,052,000) for the
proposed acquisition for the entire registered capital of &
#HE T HELR AR AR (transliterated as Mingin Quantum
New Energy Co. Ltd.)(*"Mingin Quantum”) in January
2015. The Group has received the collateral which are
the entire shares of Mingin Quantum from the vendor. The
proposed acquisition terminated in May 2015 and the
Group filed an arbitration application (the “Arbitration”) to
South China International Economic and Trade Arbitration
Commission (“SCIA”) for the repayment of the overdue
receivables.

FHEREMERAT | —EB-NEFH
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4. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND 4, EXEsHEETR¥E (&)
JUDGMENTS (continued)

4.2 Critical judgments in applying the Company’s 42 FERXATEFBRIGFELHZE

accounting policies (continued)

Determining the basis on impairment relating

to refundable earnest money paid for proposed
business acquisition in previous year (continued)
Although the final judgment ordered the vendor to repay
the refundable earnest money to the Group, the vendor
did not return the said deposits to the Group. On 6 June
2017, the PRC legal advisor of the Company received the
execution judgment (the “Execution Judgment”) issued
by Intermediate People’s Court (the “Court”) of Suining
District, Sichuan Province dated 25 April 2017. According
to the Execution Judgment, the Court terminated the
compulsory execution of repayment of the said deposits
from the vendor and the Court concluded that the
vendor owns no executable assets after he pledged his
shares of the Mingin Quantum to the Group. The Group
continued to communicate with its PRC lawyer to follow
up the claims from the Court during the current year
but the status was not changed. The management had
made an impairment of refundable earnest money paid
for the proposed acquisition of Mingin Quantum in year
2017. Based on the facts and circumstances described
above, the management considers the recoverability
of refundable earnest money paid for the aforesaid
acquisition is remote.
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EZBIEFEREANBEERS
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4. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND

JUDGMENTS (continued)

4.2 Critical judgments in applying the Company’s
accounting policies (continued)
Revenue recognition in respect of motor vehicles
trading business
The Group assesses its business relationship with
suppliers and customers in respect of the trading of
motor vehicles business and determines that the Group
acts as a principal in some arrangements and acts as
agent in other arrangements. The factors taken into
account by management in assessing whether the Group
acts as the principal or agent include:

Whether the Group has the primary responsibility for
fulfilling the promise to provide the specified good or
service.

Whether the Group has inventory risk before the
specified good or service has been transferred to
a customer and whether the Group is exposed to
significant inventory risk. The Group considered that
it has minimal inventory risk in respect of situations
where the Group concluded that it itself is just an
agent in arranging goods to be delivered to the
customers. In those situations, basically, the Group
only places purchase orders to suppliers after it has
received sales orders from customers. On the other
hand, where the Group concludes that it itself is
a principal, it is mainly relating to situations where
the Group has significant inventory risk regarding
trading of the motor vehicles which the Group did
not receive any sale orders from customers before
purchasing the motor vehicles from the suppliers.

FHEREMERAT | —EB-NEFH
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4.

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGMENTS (continued)
4.2 Critical judgments in applying the Company’s

accounting policies (continued)

Revenue recognition in respect of motor vehicles

trading business (continued)

(ily  Whether the Group has discretion in establishing the
price for the specified good or service and whether
the Group is exposed to significant price risk. The
Group basically agreed the price of the motor
vehicles with the customers before purchasing the
motor vehicles from the suppliers in situations where
the Group concludes that it itself is an agent while
the Group has discretion in establishing the price for
the motor vehicles with the customers or exposure
to significant price risk for the sales transactions
where the Group concludes that it is a principal.

(v)  Whether the pre-agreed sales contracts with
customers are legally binding especially in
circumstances where only insignificant deposits
are received from the customers before the Group
settling the entire purchase amounts with the
suppliers and whether the Group is exposed to
significant credit risk.

Motor vehicles purchased for the transactions in
agency nature

The Group entered into the sales contracts with
customers in previous year and therefore arranged the
purchase of the motor vehicles on behalf of its customers
under an agency arrangement. Due to the early adoption
of government policy in relation to automobile emission
standard in the PRC in 2019, the purchase desire of
customers declined. The purchase amounts of the motor
vehicles for these agency arrangement of HK$6,671,280,
which were bought from previous year and had been
classified as a prepayment and are expected to settled
within 12 months after the end of the reporting period.

4.

EXEsH st R¥ER (&2)
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CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGMENTS (continued)
4.2 Critical judgments in applying the Company’s

accounting policies (continued)

Motor vehicles purchased for the transactions in
agency nature (continued)

In arrangement entered into during 2018, the Group
arranged the purchase of the motor vehicles on behalf of
its customers under an agency arrangement. The motor
vehicles had arrived at the public warehouses. However,
due to the delay in custom declaration, the motor vehicles
are still kept in the public warehouse as 31 December
2018 and up to the date when the consolidated financial
statements for the year ended 31 December 2018 are
authorised for issue. In the opinion of the Company’s
directors (after consulting its PRC lawyer and taking into
accounts), the possibility for the customers to walk away
from the contracts and request for the compensation
is low. Therefore the purchase amounts of the motor
vehicles for these agency arrangement of HK$23,004,479
had been classified as a prepayment and no provision of
the compensation needed to be made due to the delay.

Provision for onerous contracts

Management estimates the provision for onerous
contracts, which are related to situations where motor
vehicles have not been delivered to the Group but
purchase agreements were entered into before 31
December 2019, being the present obligation of the
unavoidable costs less the economic benefits expected to
be received under the non-cancellable purchase contract
of motor vehicles. The expected economic benefits are
estimated based on estimated future sales and selling
price taking reference by the existing market condition
and estimated number of motor vehicles sold under
the existing market condition while unavoidable costs
are estimated based on the motor vehicles purchase
contracts that the Group is obliged to settle.

Management conducted an assessment of the market
condition and subsequent sales price and the estimates
and assumptions contained therein are reviewed regularly.
As at 31 December 2019, provision for onerous contracts
is at carrying amount of HK$15,778,469 (2018: Nil).
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4.

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGMENTS (continued)
4.2 Critical judgments in applying the Company’s

accounting policies (continued)

Assessment as to whether the right-of-use assets is
impaired

FYERYBERELZABMR QA (transliterated as
Shenzhen Sinofortune Education Investment Consultancy
Co, Limited), a subsidiary of the Group, entered into a
3-year lease for an office building located in Shenzhen in
August 2018. The leased property has been occupied for
the Group’s self-use for the remainder of the lease term.

The directors have assessed and concluded that the
related right-of-use assets with the carrying amount of
HK$4,390,640 as of 31 December 2019 was impaired,
after taking into account the future cash inflows and
outflows from the asset. As a result, the Group fully
impaired the whole right-of-use assets generating from
the above-mentioned leased property.

Fair value measurements and valuation process
Some of the Group’s equity instruments are measured at
fair value for financial reporting purposes. Management
uses valuation techniques to determine the fair value of
financial instruments (where active market quotes are not
available) and non-financial assets.

In estimating the fair value of equity instruments, the
Group uses market-observable data to the extent it
is available. Management bases its assumptions on
observable data as far as possible but this is not always
available. In that case, management uses the best
information available. Estimated fair values may vary from
the actual prices that would be achieved in an arm’s
length transaction at the reporting date.
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5. REVENUE 5. Wiz
Disaggregation of revenue W 25 40 5
Disaggregation of revenue from contracts with customers by RIEERIRBERID>NELSHK
major products or service lines is as follows: ki UM
2019 2018
—E-NE —E-NF
HK$ HK$
B IT 78 TT
Revenue from contracts with & B M5 R SE155%
customers within the scope of BEEMMEESHOE
HKFRS 15
Disaggregated by major products or BIZEMIRBERD
service lines
— Commission income from - BHERPELCLRE 2
securities and futures BelA
brokerage services 429,088 661,470
- Service income from provision of —REREEMZRBEA
stock information - 226,972
— Sales of motor vehicle where the —AREEETEEAFNHZ
Group acts as principal AEEE 324,299,455 337,492,350
- Agency fee income from trading —ABESGIREEBRAR
of motor vehicles and B R
accessories sourcing 824,262 2,485,662
325,552,805 340,866,454
Revenue from other sources RKEHMBKREZR S
— Interest income from clients —RERPZFBRA 602,263 536,140
Revenue U 7= 326,155,068 341,402,594
Disaggregated by timing of revenue BAVBHRELERFE155R
recognition within the scope of HEANZ W= EREEAD
HKFRS 15
— Qver time — LB = 226,972
— At a point in time — IR A B 325,552,805 340,639,482
325,552,805 340,866,454

EIWETISES 2B AN REEES R
WSO -

o)

Disaggregation of revenue from contracts with customers by
geographic markets is disclosed in note 6.
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6.

SEGMENT INFORMATION

The chief operating decision-maker has been identified as the
executive directors (the “Executive Directors”) of the Company.
The Executive Directors review the Group’s internal reporting in
order to assess performance and allocate resources. Operating
segments were determined based on these reports.

In previous year, the Group was organised into six operating
divisions and each of the operating divisions represented an
operating and reportable segment: (1) provision of brokerage
and securities margin financing services; (2) precious metals
spot trading and brokerage services; (3) trading of electronic
products, electronic student cards and school safety products
and provision of electronic student card platform; (4) trading
and principal investments; (5) provision of stock information
and research services; and (6) sales of motor vehicles and
provision of agency services.

During the year ended 31 December 2019, the Group ceased
its business in the trading of electronic products, electronic
student cards and school safety products and provision
of electronic student card platform which are classified as
discontinued operations for the year ended 31 December
2019 due to disposal of a subsidiary. Further details of the
discontinued operations and disposal of a subsidiary are set
out in the note 28 and note 29 to the consolidated financial
statements respectively.
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SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued) 6. IBER(F)
The segment information of the reportable segments for the BHE_Z-NF+_A=1T—HLEFE
year ended 31 December 2019 is as follows: ZAMEDHL L AHBERAT :
Brokerage Sales of
and Precious motor  Provision of
securities  metals spot vehicles and stock
margin  tradingand  Tradingand  provision of  information
financing brokerage principal agency and research
services services  investments services services Total
GBER B2B R
EHREE  HEXHR BE HERER RE&EHAR
HERE RS BERE RUERKERE Wk @t
HK$ HK$ HKS HK$ HK$ HKS
A E T & BT &
Continuing operation BEEEER
Disaggregated by timing of revenue BANBRERRE 5%
recognition within the scope of HKFRS 15 BEANREEEISHAD
Over time RREER - - - - - -
At a point in time REF R 2 429,088 - - 325,123,717 - 325,552,805
429,088 - - 325,123,717 - 325,552,805
Segment revenue from external customers IREEDHMA 1,031,351 - - 325,123,717 - 326,155,068
Other income and loss, net by segment BAMHAHEMBAR
BEFE 58,007 108,401 (13,742) 506,591 - 659,257
Segment results AELE (2,807,793) (102,756)  (6,906,897)  (34,467,698) - (94,285,144)
Net unallocated expenses AOBAZFE (24,132,589)
Other income and loss, net Hith A REBFE (1,522,362)"
Impairment of right-of-use assets EREAERE (4,390,640)
Finance costs BAKK (735,171)
Interest income FEMA 399,482!
Loss before income tax REERAEE (124,666,424)
Income tax income FRHYA 181,549
Loss for the year FREE (124,484,875)

! Equivalent to the total balances stated in note 7

ERETEEEEARAT | ZE-NFFH
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6.

—NEFTZA=+T—RLFE

SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued)
The segment information of the reportable segments for the
year ended 31 December 2018 is as follows:

6. HEMEE (£Z)
HE_Z—N\F+_A=1t—HILFE
ZARED T2 DEERLOT

Brokerage Sales of
and Precious motor Provision
securities  metals spot vehicles and of stock
margin ~ tradingand  Trading and  provision of  information
financing brokerage principal agency and research
services services  investments services services Total
EERDE SR HERER R
FHREE BREXHR BER Rt REAAR
BERY 42 R BERE RE RS HERE @t
HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$ HKS
BT BT BT BT BT BT
Disaggregated by timing of revenue recognition BRI EREER
within the scope of HKFRS 15 F15RBER
RN RERREAS
Over time BERE - - - - 226,972 226,972
At a point in time RO 661,470 - - 339,978,012 - 340,639,482
661,470 - - 339,978,012 226,972 340,866,454
Segment revenue from MEREPHEHBA
external customers 1,197,610 - - 339,978,012 226,972 341,402,594
Other income and loss, BABHAMEMBA
net by segment RERTE 64,334 30,917 (6,440,602) 486,955 111,869  (5,746,527)'
Segment results NEEE (3,681,127) (230,530) (13,323,725)  (6,684,411)  (5,969,203) (29,888,996)
Net unallocated expenses APEHEZFE (12,539,341)
Other income and loss, net Hi WA REEBFE 228,800
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries HEMBARZ Y= 12,360,193
Finance costs AR (412,593)
Interest income FEWA 27,218
Loss before income tax BREEHAIEE (30,224,719)
Income tax income g A 181,520
Loss for the year FREE (30,043,199)

! Equivalent to the total balances stated in note 7

The measure used for reporting segment profits or losses is
adjusted losses before interest and taxes. To arrive at adjusted
losses, the Group’s losses are further adjusted for items not
specifically attributed to individual segments, such as gain on
disposal of subsidiaries, finance costs, certain interest income
and head office or corporate administration costs.

! B EE7 2 R ETT

AR & D B AN NEE 2 7A RN
MERBHEAMEHEESR  KEDEH
EER AKEZERIHY RETE
REMNDBZEBELE-THE M
HEMB AR Z W BEMKAK F D
B W ALAR B E R AR TR
Fo
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6. SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued) 6. SHEER(F
Other segment information for the year ended 31 December BHE_Z-NF+_A=1T—HLEFE
2019 is as follows: ZHMYEERAT :
Brokerage
and Precious Sales of motor
securities metals spot vehicles and
margin trading and Trading and provision of
financing brokerage principal agency
services services investments services Unallocated Total
BER £ ]
ESRES BEXHE EER HERER
RERE SLRB BERE  RERERE FHE &t
HK$ HKS HKS HK$ HKS$ HKS
ET 7 &7 ET #E7 EL
Addition to property, plant and equipments NE BERRERE 30.760 - - - 1,226,212 1,256,972
Depreciation and amortisation FEREH 5,116 - - 1,117,367 5,139,369 6,261,852
Fair value losses on securities trading BHEEZATEEBR - - 519,272 - - 519,272
Fair value loss of financial assets at fair value RATEHABGZGHEEL
through profit o loss ATEER - - - - 1,650,241 1,650,241
Provision of loss on onerous contracts BRANEFRRE - - - 16,060,005 - 16,060,005
Provision of compensation for HEFARES
legal litigation - - - 5,841,743 - 5,841,743
Written off of property, plant and equipments nE BEREENS - - - 462,738 - 462,738
Interest income MEMRA 3,616 108,401 - 41,357 399,482 552,856
Interest expenses on lease liabilties AEEEZFEMX - - - 37,393 295,835 333,228
Other segment information for the year ended 31 December HE_ZT-—N\F+_A=1+—HILEFE
2018 is as follows: ZHMDEERAT :
Brokerage
and Precious Provision of ~ Sales of motor
securities metals spot stock vehicles and
margin trading and Trading and information provision of
financing brokerage principal and research agency
services services investments services services Unallocated Total
BRR EER iRt
BFRES RERHR BER REEAR HERER
RERB TR R% BERE ikt RERERHE FHR &t
HKS$ HKS HKS HKS$ HKS HKS HK$
B BT B BT BT B BT
Addition to property, nE BERZERE
plant and equipments 6,450 - - 7,931 1,016,714 244610 1,275,705
Depreciation and amortisation FEREH 1,620 43,690 16,688 428,481 439,291 1,718,443 2,648,213
Fair value losses on securities trading BHEEINTERE - - 6,468,850 - - - 6,468,850
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries HENBLR RE - - - - - 12,360,193 12,360,193
Interest income FIBKA 1,385 26,285 2,846 59,415 486,955 27,218 604,104
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SEEHE ()
RZE-NWER_ZE-NF+A
=t—HHNMEEMRABNT:

6. SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued) 6.
The segment assets and liabilities as at 31 December 2019
and 2018 are as follows:

176

Segment assets 2019 2018
SEEE —T-hE —E-NF
HK$ HK$
AT & TT
Brokerage and securities margin R kBHREMERE
financing services 26,043,898 30,660,935
Precious metals spot trading and EeBRERS LIRS
brokerage services ) 7,877,393 18,363,164
Trading and principal investments B E& BERE 2,070,801 17,177,710
Provision of stock information and AR R E A LI R AR
research services - 54,076,132
Sales of motor vehicles and HE 7B RIBHRIERS
provision of agency services 116,943,090 182,185,908
152,935,182 302,463,849
Unallocated ROEL 159,938,627 101,883,837
Total for continuing operations FEEEEBEE 312,873,809 404,347,686
Discontinued operations B 48 || 4 e 2 gk
Trading of electronic products, HEEFEM B FE4F
electronic student cards and school REZE2ERR
safety products and provision of BHEFEABTS
electronic student card platform - 7,784,018
Consolidated assets RAEBE 312,873,809 412,131,704
Segment liabilities 2019 2018
SEHEafE —F-nE —N\F
HK$ HK$
%i /;PSE
Brokerage and securities margin B R FEHFRE©BE RS
financing services N 5,937,144 8,430,923
Precious metals spot trading and BEeBRERXRH RELRE
brokerage services 308,795 319,792
Provision of stock information and REREEARATRS
research services - 240,344
Sales of motor vehicles and HE B RIRHNRIERE
provision of agency services 38,051,634 15,937,754
44,297,573 24,928,813
Unallocated RO 22,599,981 8,469,621
Total for continuing operations FECEEBBE 66,897,554 33,398,434
Discontinued operations B 48 || 4% 4 2 3k
Trading of electronic products, HEBTEmM BTE24E
electronic student cards and school REZZ2ESR
safety products and provision of REZEFELETS
electronic student card platform - 557,515
Consolidated liabilities maBE 66,897,554 33,955,949
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Segment liabilities consists primarily of trade payables, certain
other payables and accruals, contract liabilities, provisions,

A MW R M

For the year ended 31 December 2019 HE—ZT—AF+-A=+—RAIFE

SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued)
Segment assets consist primarily of certain property, plant and
equipments, intangible assets, right-of-use assets, statutory
deposits and other assets, inventories, trade receivables
and certain other receivables and deposits, loan receivables,
financial assets at FVTPL and certain bank balances and cash.

lease liabilities and deferred income tax liabilities.

The Group mainly operates in Hong Kong and the PRC.
Revenue from external customers are allocated based on the

geographic areas in which the customers is located.

6.

DHMEETERRBOME HE MR
B BVEE ERBREE ZEEHEER
HiWEE 8 BRESHHA HBOHE
W H B R RE BRER BT
Bt ABmZ EREENRBDRITLHE

DHBETIEERRENESRE BD
HpENFRALEHIE GHEE:
BRE HERENMETEHREHERE-

AEBEXERETERPEELZ KBS
REPZWRGEEPAEES D -

2019 2018
—E-hE —E-N\F
HK$ HK$
5T BT
Revenue W Z5

Hong Kong BA 1,031,351 1,197,610
The PRC es 325,123,717 343,633,368
326,155,068 344,830,978

Other income and loss, net Hibg A\ REEFHE
Hong Kong BB 341,106 (6,122,319)
The PRC s (804,729) 631,810
(463,623) (5,490,509)
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6.

SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued)

The geographical location of specified non-current assets
is based on the physical location of assets, in the case of
property, plant and equipments and right-of-use assets, the
location of the operation to which they are allocated, in the
case of intangible assets, statutory deposits and other assets,
and rental and other deposits paid and location of operations,
in the case of interests in associates.

SEEHE (&)

HRME BERREREREEE
FEFRRBDEEZMBUEIENEE
MERUEME HREELEE ATE
e hAEMEE RENHEHEREMER
T EMBEUE AR EMER S EHm
E-HRRBERR 2 MERE
EHL T RE ©

2019 2018
—E-hE —E-N\F
HK$ HK$
T T
Specified non-current assets BEEREEE
Hong Kong E5 26,763,734 28,361,217
The PRC H 4,497,639 2,370,202
31,261,373 30,731,419
Information about major customers FEERZER

During the current year, three of the Group’s customers located
in the PRC accounted for 28.6%, 13.6% and 10.9% of the
Group's revenue in amount of HK$93,291,158, HK$44,274,279
and HK$35,419,423 respectively, which were from segment of
sales of motor vehicles and provision of agency services.

During 2018, two of the Group’s customers, located in the
PRC accounted for 56.1% and 30.4% of the Group’s revenue
in the amount of HK$193,464,440 and HK$104,909,686
respectively, which were from segment of sales of motor
vehicles and provision of agency services.

RAFE AEB=Z2KAFENE
F o BlE A &£ E 11 3528.6% * 13.6% &
10.9% " & %8 7 Al /293,291,158 7T
44,274,279 T 135,419,423 7t 0 Jh
REMEABEREEREBRBE 2256

RZZE—NF AEERBREFHD
B (hAREEINEE56.1%%30.4% ©%58
5 Bl A193,464,4407% 7T 2 104,909,686
B AR EHEETE MIEHAERE
2L
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7. OTHER INCOME AND LOSS, NET 7. HthWAREEFE
2019 2018
—E-hE —E-)\#F
HK$ HK$
I 7T
Other income Hibdg A
CCASS fee income RREZRGERKA 13,313 18,792
Interest income on bank deposits SRITERF B U A 241,493 365,185
Interest income from financial assets BEAFEFAEBRZ
at fair value through profit or loss SREBEZFBERA 18,651 238,919
Other interest income (Note) HaF 8 WA (FsE) 292,712 -
Dividend income from securities BIEEEZHMHREMA
held for trading 54,993 27,689
Forfeited trade deposit BIWE S e 734,555 -
Sundry income MIEUA 543,669 139,879
1,899,386 790,464
Other gain or loss, net Hib R BB TE
Financial assets at fair value BERAFEFFAERZ
through profit or loss (Note 25) TR EE (H7E25)
— Unrealised fair value losses on —REREBELHEE L
securities trading NEEEE (519,272) (6,468,850)
— Realised gains on trading of securites —HEFEH 2 2 &8H 452,102 -
— Fair value loss —nFEEE (1,650,241) -
— Exchange (loss)/gain —[EN (F1E) s (182,860) 222,328
— Written off of property, plant and — s RS I AR il aE
equipments (Note 15) (M$5E15) (462,738) (34,451)
(2,363,009) (6,280,973)
(463,623) (5,490,509)

Note: The other interest income of the Group is arising from the loan receivables

from third parties and an associate.

ERETEEEEARAT | ZE-NFFH
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8.

FINANCE COSTS 8. MEAME
2019 2018
—E-hE —E-N\F
HK$ HK$
I 7T
Interest expenses on bank borrowings RITER T B 114,719 171,590
Interest expenses on lease liabilities HEABEZFBRAX 333,228 -
Interest expenses on unsecured mEAER A ERAE
borrowings - related party —B@EAL 270,853 241,003
Other interest expenses B F B HAX 16,371 -
735,171 412,593
LOSS BEFORE INCOME TAX 9. KRFiRBIAEE
2019 2018
—E-hE —E-NF
HK$ HK$
I 7T
Loss before income tax has been brETIS T AT ES 18
arrived at after charging (crediting): Bk (FTA) ToI&IE :
Auditors’ remuneration ZE R B 2
- audit services — ERZR 530,000 510,000
— other services — B fih AR 75 70,000 70,000
Operating lease rentals in respect of HEME 2 KEREDNES
rented premises - 2,274,626
Legal and professional fee EEREEER 1,189,197 1,559,058
Declaration services fee wEERSEE A 6,328,205 1,423,382
Exhibition and marketing fee RELTISHERR 1,781,046 2,206,062
Transportation, accessories and storage &% BT R EFE 3,868,934 3,805,870
Certification fee REER
(included in other direct cost) (Note) (GFAEMEERA)
(M$5E) 15,147,375 -

Note:  The certification fee was paid for preparing the China Compulsory
Certification, which is a compulsory safety requirement for motor

vehicles in the PRC.

MizE: REEBARANMHEAFERER

EERRBEMN [PEHBHRBE] -
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10. EMPLOYEE BENEFITS EXPENSES 10. EEw®FIMAX

2019 2018
—E-hE —E-N\F
HK$ HK$
T BT
Wages and salaries ITERF® 19,649,934 17,205,649

Pension costs — defined contribution RIRE A — B8 SR GT &
schemes 1,365,756 1,290,112

Employee benefits expenses including EERNAZ BREESWS

Directors’ remuneration 21,015,690 18,495,761
11. DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S 1. EEREETBRASME
EMOLUMENTS
Year ended 31 December 2019 BE-F-AF+=-A=+—HLEE
Salaries, Employer’s
allowances, contributions
and benefits to pension
Name of Director Note Fees in kind scheme Total
e
EER  BHEiEZ
ESia i Lk BEYiG E3:3 @t
HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$
EX &L AT AT
Executive Directors HITEE
Mr. Wang Jiawei (Chairman and TRELE
Chief Executive Officer) (EEZRITHEE) - 1,800,000 18,000 1,818,000
Ms. Lai Yuk Mui BRIt - 600,000 18,000 618,000
Non-executive Directors ERTEE
Mr. Liu Runtong SBmELE - - - =
Mr. James Beeland Rogers Jr. James Beeland
Rogers Jr.t £ [0} - - - -

Independent non-executive BILFHTES

Directors
Professor Zhang Benzheng RAEHE 130,000 - - 130,000
Mr. Li Jianxing FRITEE 125,000 - - 125,000
Professor Chen Shu Wen B s SO 120,000 - - 120,000

375,000 2,400,000 36,000 2,811,000
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11.

DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S 1. EEREETBAENE (&
EMOLUMENTS (continued)
Year ended 31 December 2018 HE_ZT - N\F+_A=1+—HLEFE
Salaries, Employer’s
allowances, contributions
and benefits to pension
Name of Director Fees in kind scheme Total
e
Bk RAEFHEZ
EdcEs ik B BERT @it
HK$ HKS HKS HK$
o ou oy oy
Executive Directors BITEE
Mr. Wang Jiawei (Chairman and TRREE (EFRFTHER)

Chief Executive Officer) - 1,800,000 18,000 1,818,000
Ms. Lai Yuk Mui REigrt - 600,000 18,000 618,000
Non-executive Directors EHTES
Mr. Liu Runtong AEREE - - - -
Mr. James Beeland Rogers Jr. James Beeland Rogers Jr. %t 4 - - - -
Independent non-executive BUFHTES

Directors
Professor Zhang Benzheng RAREHE 130,000 - - 130,000
Mr. Li Jianxing FROTLE 125,000 - - 125,000
Professor Chen Shu Wen W i S I 120,000 - - 120,000

375,000 2,400,000 36,000 2,811,000
Note: B sE
(i) Mr. James Beeland Rogers Jr. resigned as a non-executive director of the (i) James Beeland Rogers Jr.%t £ BT AR A R]

Company with effect from 8 November 2019.

“Salaries, allowances and benefits in kind” paid to or for the

executive directors are generally emoluments paid in respect
of those persons’ other services in connection with the
management of the affairs of the Company and its subsidiaries.

During the year, no emoluments were paid by the Group to the
directors as an inducement to join or upon joining the Group
or as compensation for loss of office (2018: Nil). None of the
directors waived or agreed to waive any remuneration during
the year (2018: Nil).

MIENTESE BT -NF+—A/\BE
ER o

ENHTEFIRTABRZ [FHE 2
BEREDNE] —RAREZFIALE
BARBREMBRRHEENE MRS
PR B & o

FR AEETERESIHTAME
YE& IR 5] A0 B8 sk i hn BE AR SE [ B 2 28 )
SERBBBEE (S N\F &) -F
W TEREERZERRBZRETAMNS
TR NFE)
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12. FIVE HIGHEST PAID INDIVIDUALS

The five individuals whose emoluments were the highest in the
Group for the year include two (2018: two) directors of whose
remuneration are set out in note 11.

During the year, no emoluments were paid by the Group to the
five highest paid individuals as an inducement to join or upon
joining the Group or as compensation for loss of office (2018:
Nil).

The aggregate of the emoluments in respect of the other three
(2018: three) individuals are as follows:

12.

AEmEEHAL
FAAEBRERSFALTEREME
—E-N\F MR)EF REZME
FHOMIEE -

FRAAEETERNRERSHFALX
MERB S E ARSI INBE R BN E
B RERIERBEREE (TN
FE)

Hfh =% (Z2—\F: =) ATt
THRBMT:

2019 2018
—E-hE —E-N\F
HK$ HK$
T 7T
Salaries and other emoluments FekHMbMe 5,880,000 5,805,000
Retirement scheme contributions RIRET B R 54,000 52,500
5,934,000 5,857,500

The emoluments of the three (2018: three) individuals with the R (ZE—N\F: =) ReFALz

highest emoluments are within the following bands: ez N5 EE :

2019 2018
—E-hE —E-N\F
Number of Number of
individual individual
HK$ T A& A
Nil to 1,000,000 £ %£1,000,000 1 1
1,000,001 to 1,500,000 1,000,001 % 1,500,000 - -
1,500,001 to 2,000,000 1,500,001 %2,000,000 - -
2,000,001 to 2,500,000 2,000,00122,500,000 1 1
2,500,001 to 3,000,000 2,500,00123,000,000 1 1
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13. INCOME TAX INCOME 13. FifRBMA
Hong Kong Profits Tax has been provided at the rate of 16.5% BEANEGEURERFEREBELESLIR
(2018: 16.5%) on the estimated assessable profit arising in or B A B 2T ERTDEFIZH E16.5%
derived from Hong Kong for the year. No provision for Hong ZE—N\F:16.5% )5 & - EH AN
Kong Profits Tax has been made in the financial statements as HEEMENRNEERRIFANESEWHBEE
the group companies that are subject to Hong Kong Profits Tax BT ERAYBRELEBFESBE
had incurred a tax loss for the year (2018: Nil). PRC Enterprise HEE (- N\F &) - RREDERR
Income tax has been provided at the rate of 25% (2018: 25%) BRI EMBRARFTFANEEB IR
on the assessable profits of the PRC subsidiaries arising in or BB ERBEMIEZ25% (ZE—N
derived from PRC for the year. F: 25% ) TR
2019 2018
—F-hE —T-)N\F
HK$ HK$
BT 78 TT
Current income tax: BN EART1S A :
Current tax on profits for the year F N A B EA B 18
- PRC Enterprise Income tax —HEEMREH - 29
Total current tax BB F5 1B 42 78 - 29
Deferred tax income (Note 35) FEER B A (FI5E35)
Current year RER (181,549) (181,549)
Income tax income FriSf U A (181,549) (181,520)
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INCOME TAX INCOME (continued)

13. FIRHKA (&)

The tax on the Group’s loss before income tax differs from
the theoretical amount that would arise using the tax rate
applicable to losses of the consolidated entities as follows:

HERAERANGEAER BRI H X
B AR B 2R PSR B 1R B IR A

BReENE:
2019 2018
—E-NE —E—N\F
HK$ HK$
B IT 78 TT

Loss before income tax

B P 15 154 A1 /B9 18

(124,666,424) (30,224,719)

Tax calculated at domestic tax rates in

BEBMBANAERT R

respective tax jurisdiction FTE 2 BIIA (29,303,331) (6,080,393)

Tax effects of: LATIEBE ZHBeE -
— Income not subject to tax —BARBUA (13,095,884) (3,024,260)
- Expenses not deductible for —IEE TR 2 X

tax purposes 6,642,374 413,628
— Others —HAtb 55,998 908,475
— Unused tax losses not recognised —RERZADARKERE 29,939,671 2,573,105
— Tax loss not allowable —NEFA 2 BIEEE 1,762,914 4,154,904
— Prior year's tax losses utilised in —FRNPR2BAFERS

this year BB (567,334) -
— Temporary differences not provided —REBIERER 4,384,043 872,992
— Under-provision in prior year “-UNEFEREETR - 29
Income tax income FriS A (181,549) (181,520)
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14. LOSS PER SHARE 14. BREE
For continuing operations REFEEEERE
The calculation of the basic and diluted loss per share KRARHEEASRERNREESIE 25
attributable to the owners of the Company is based on the BHERN AT 8K

following data:

Loss figures are calculated as follows: EEEFHELT
2019 2018
ZF-hE —E-)N\F
HK$ HK$
T T

Loss for the year attributable to owners ~ ARAQA&IHA A Z

of the Company i FRNEE (127,674,239) (31,213,014)
Less: Loss for the year from WREERIEREEEBR 2
discontinued operations FAEIE (9,137,884) (1,790,179)
Loss for the purpose of basic and REFBEEEBAR
diluted earnings per share from AEERERREERA
continuing operations pd 5t (118,536,355) (29,422,835)
2019 2018
—E-—1E —ZT—)\F
Number of shares BEEE
Weighted average number of ordinary RAEEREAEBE AR
shares for the purpose of basic loss per  Hi#EFHH
share 7,748,958,120 6,498,958,120

Effect of dilutive potential ordinary shares: B 8L @R 2 522

Cancellation of escrow shares EEFEERHE RN - (101,917,908)

New issue of shares TR R - 321,780,822
Weighted average number of ordinary BEAESREEEE

shares for the purpose of diluted TBAR INkE T

loss per share 7,748,958,120 6,718,821,034
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14. LOSS PER SHARE (continued)

From continuing and discontinued operations

The calculation of the basic and diluted loss per share from
continuing and discontinued operations attributable to the
owners of the Company is based on the following data:

BREE (7)
RERBEEEEBRERILEEERE
ARBEBANRBFERLEXEBHROK

IHEEER c GRARNREEEE 25
BEERN AT 8K :

2019 2018

—E-hE —E—)N\F

HK$ HK$

BT 78 T

Loss E518
Loss for the purpose of basic and
diluted earnings per share

BERN &R

ﬁﬁﬁ\ A #iHXgZK&

(133,622,759) (31,833,378)

The denominators used are the same as those detailed above
for both basic and diluted loss per share.

From discontinued operations

Basic loss per share for the discontinued operations is HK0.12
cents per share (2018: HKO0.02 cents per share) and diluted
loss per share for the discontinued operations is HK0.12 cents
per share (2018: HK0.02 cents per share), based on the loss
for the year from the discontinued operations of HK$9,137,884
(2018: HK$1,790,179) and the denominators detailed above for
both basic and diluted loss per share.

The computation of diluted loss per share for the years ended
31 December 2019 and 2018 did not assume the exercise of
the Company’s share options outstanding during the years
ended 31 December 2019 and 2018 since their exercise would
result in a decrease in loss per share.

FHEREMERAT | —EB-NEFH

BEREARESBEMEAN S HEE
SRt AR R o

RECRILESET
ERERILEBELENFTFANEIE
59,137,884 L (=T — )\ F:
1,790,179 L) R EREARA L EEEER
B LD BRIEEEEFHTRE
NEEABEROA2BIN (T — NF:
FH0.02/81L) F REKIEREXEBHNE
R EBIEAER012BMW(ZZE—N
FFRK0.02581l) »

HE_Z—NFEkZFTE—-N\F+AH
T+ —HEFENEREBESHBEZE

WEBSARRANBE_ZE—NLFR=E
—NF+ZA=+—HLEFEZXR]T
FREREETE AiTFEeRSERE

8o
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15. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENTS 15. % - R RERHE
Leasehold Office
Plant and land and Leasehold equipment Computer Motor
machinery buildings improvements  and furniture equipment vehicles Total
) i BAZHE ) )
B RR G TRiEF HEHERE RER R RE @zt
HK$ HKS HK$ HKS HKS HK$ HK$
BT BT BT B o B B
As at 1 January 2018 R=%-\§-A-H
Cost [ 927,924 40,327,455 3,122,176 13,806,510 630,042 7,104,235 65,918,342
Accumulated depreciation L
and impairment ZHTERRE (927,924)  (11,157,263) (1,232,889) (12,579,885 (525,503) (5,380,345)  (31,803,809)
Net book amount REFE - 29,170,192 1,889,287 1,226,625 104,539 1,723,890 34,114,533

Year ended 31 December 2018 ~ HE-F-\E+-f=+-8
LEE

Opening net book amount BYEREE - 29,170,192 1,889,287 1,226,625 104,539 1,723,890 34,114,533
Additions NE - - 811,218 495,133 16,430 - 1,322,781
Currency translation difference ERERER - - (48,000) (34,624) - (67,484) (150,108)
Disposals and written off HE LM - - - (34,451) - - (34,451)
Disposal of subsidiaries HEHBAT . - (1653,481) (740 441) ; (53006) (2447018
Depreciation charge FEBY S (161300 328.336) (328.108) (3,254 (455476  (2778.272)
Closing net book amount BREEFE - 27,557,004 670,688 584,134 67,715 1,147,834 30,027,465
As at 31 December 2018 R-ZF-N\E+-B=+-H
Cost J‘_JX7TK o 880,250 40,327,455 1,746,077 11,916,175 646,472 6,624,259 62,140,688
Accumulated depreciation and ZHTERRE
impaiment ©80.250)  (12770361) (1075389  (11,2332,041) B78757)  (G4T6425  (32,113,229)
Net book amount ERFE - 27,567,094 670,688 584,134 67,715 1,147,834 30,027,465
Year ended 31 December 2019 &i:ﬁ—n$+:ﬁ =+-8
Opening net book amount %ﬁ %F BE I - 27,557,004 670,688 584,134 67,715 1,147,834 30,027,465
Additions 71,828 - 922,566 302,712 68,036 - 1,372,042
Currency translation difference Eﬁ%‘[ﬂ%%ﬁ ) (1,755) - (11,412 (11,455) - (15,561) (40,183)
Disposals and written off (Note (i) & B és ( Bz (i) - - (462,738) - - (24,122) (486,860)
Disposal of a subsidiary EE-HHBAT (69,606) - - (42,415) - (314) (112,335
Depreciation charge (Note (i) ERL (M) (6,467)  (1,613,098) (442,695) (259,604) (60,499) (447,133)  (2,829,496)
Closing net book amount BAEREE - 25,943,996 676,409 573,372 76,152 660,704 27,930,633
As at 31 December 2019 RZ¥-A%E+=A=+-H
Cost ﬁxm o - 40,327,455 1,570,077 3,934,171 715,408 5,860,493 52,407,604
Accumulated depreciation ZHTERRE
and impaiment - (14,383,459) (893,668)  (3,360,799) (639,256)  (5100,789)  (24,476971)
Net book amount BEIE - 25043996 676,400 573,372 76,152 660.704 27,030,633
Note: Bt 5T
(i) As at 31 December 2019 and 2018, leasehold land and buildings in Hong (i) —NErRZFE—-NF+ZA=1+—
Kong under long lease with a carrying value of HK$25,943,996 (2018: A RERBEHAREERSEROES
HK$27,557,094) was pledged to secure the bank borrowings of the Group 25,943,996/ 7t ( =& — )\ F : 27,557,094
(Note 34). BT BET M REFERIEAIEARE
ZRATIE VB IR (MI3E34) o
(ii) The depreciation charge was contributed from continuing operations and (ii) MERTRRAREBELEERRERLILES

discontinued operations.

(iii) The written off of leasehold improvements was mainly due to office
removal.

(il

SN

MEBENEREDTERRBRRERE -
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16. INTANGIBLE ASSETS 16. B &&E
Contractual
customer
Software Trading rights relationship Total

Bt R SHEERRE @zt

HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$

B B B B
As at 1 January 2018 R=F¥-\¥-H-H
Cost A 26,633,244 3,224,000 201,996,340 231,853,584
Accumulated amortisation and impairment 2 EHERAE (26,528,746) (3,223,998) (201,996,340) (231,749,084)
Net book amount REFE 104,498 2 - 104,500
Year ended 31 December 2018 BE-F-)\§¥+=ZHA=1+-H

LEE
Opening net book amount HOREFE 104,498 2 - 104,500
Currency transaction difference ERBEET (4,077) - - (4,077)
Amortisation charges #ET A (34,335) - - (34,335)
Closing net book amount BREBFE 66,086 2 - 66,088
As at 31 December 2018 RZF-A\$+=A=+-H
Cost A 22,385,577 3,224,000 201,996,340 227,605,917
Accumulated amortisation and impairment ZHBHERAE (22,319,491) (3,223,008) (201,996,340) (227 539,829)
Net book amount REFE 66,086 2 - 66,088
Year ended 31 December 2019 BE-Z-AftZHR=t+-H
LEE

Opening net book amount BOEEFE 66,086 2 - 66,088
Currency transaction difference ERnEES (850) - - (850)
Amortisation charges #iEwi (30,186) - - (30,186)
Closing net book amount BREEFE 35,050 2 - 35,052
As at 31 December 2019 R=F-nE+=ZB=+-H
Cost KR 104,498 3,224,000 - 3,328,498
Accumulated amortisation and impairment ZEHBERAE (69,448) (3,223,998) - (3,293,446)
Net book amount REFE 35,050 2 - 35,052
The amortisation charge for the year is presented in AEFEBHETOIRGAERREMZE
the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other WARKANEBEY -

comprehensive income separately.
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16.

—NEFTZA=+T—RLFE

INTANGIBLE ASSETS (continued)

Notes:

(i)

(i)

(iii

(iv)

As at 31 December 2019, the software mainly represents accounting
software with the estimated useful life of 3 years.

As at 31 December 2018, the software mainly represents accounting
software with the estimated useful life of 3 years and X £ BEM R F &
B V2.0 (Registration No.: 2013SR144807), K 2 BRXR B &R F A& &
#V2.0 (Registration No.: 2013SR144929), X £ i & {1 IR 15 49 1k # 1 V2.0
(Registration No.: 2013SR145090) and 2.4G#H JRRFID&ENZ & iz A = 8K
% (Registration No.: 2014SR037656) with the estimated useful life of 10
years. Such software from &Y K2 BB BRAF (transliterated as
Shenzhen Star Technology Co., Ltd) (“Shenzhen Star Technology ) are fully
amortised in previous year and disposed upon disposal of Shenzhen Star
Technology on 31 October 2019.

The contractual relationships with customers were acquired through the
acquisition of Shenzhen Star Technology in year 2014. The management
of the Group reviewed the expected useful life of the contractual
customer relationships and determined that the useful life assessment
is 8 years. The contractual customer relationships are carried at cost
less accumulated amortisation. Amortisation is calculated using the
straight-line method over the said expected useful life of the customer
relationships. Such contractual relationships with customers are fully
amortised in previous year and disposed upon disposal of Shenzhen Star
Technology on 31 October 2019.

For the purpose of impairment testing of the contractual relationships
with customers and the software, those intangible assets have been
allocated to a CGU representing the operating activities of Shenzhen Star
Technology. An impairment test of these intangible assets was carried out
by management based on value-in-use calculation and with reference to
business valuation conducted by an independent professional valuer in
prior year.

During the year ended 31 December 2018, the Group continued to deal
with the technical problems for adopting the BeiDou navigating chips in
its products, and the technical problems were unsolved. Based on the
impairment test performed, no reversal of impairment is made due to
unsatisfactory performance of the business in current year.

The trading rights as at 31 December 2019 represent two (2018: two)
trading rights on the Stock Exchange and one (2018: one) trading right on
the Hong Kong Futures Exchange Limited (“HKFE”).

. BREE (&

B EE

(i)

(i)

(ii)

(iv)

RZZE-AF+ZA=+—0 BHEEEHK
BRI AIERFERR=F

RZZE—NF+ZA=+—8 {2
g GHAERFHA=ZF kX
EBEMBRYE T aEMHFV2.0 (FMER:
2013SR144807) - KEBR R G R % F
B V2.0 (EM4RSE : 2013SR144929) -
X 238 E A IR R uh e V2.0 GER AR 5%
2013SR145090) % 2.4GH J&RFIDE B Z %
AR BF (EMA4RSE - 2014SR037656)
METAERFESHATF -RERITRER
BEERAR (DRYIMAE2BRE]) /A
ARG EREFEREREIR = —NE
+A=+t—AHERITXREBREMH

€ o
S5

BEPZEMNANBREEBN _FT-—NFE
WHEARIIMREBNMBRES AEEERE
EHENEFPHRNBHEAES WHRE
ERFHFER/NF - ANBTPBERIEKA
R DR - M R ERRREP
FRAEM L EAERF R - AERER
ZEHANBRENEFFE2EEHEL RN =
E-NF+A=Z+T-—BHERITREBR
Frify & o

RANEFHERRMZAEARTES &
S EEEARERRRIDEEBRE
CEEDIRSELRN - EEERAEE
B IRYE G A A M 2% S B A
(AT 17 2 S o L I T M 1T (B
e

RBE-Z-N\F+-_A=+—RLEFE"
REBBEESNBRINEERTRAILLE
LR 2 BRIl RE - B R ERHEE
RER - BBEITRER S ARAFER
EHRRTER S BB ERE-

*71¢+‘ R=t+—R2ZR5HEEM

H ( —E)N\F MBI SER A

—E-N\E: R EERHERSMAR
RE ([HIRRFr)) 2 R G
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17. LEASES - RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS AND LEASE 17. HE-EFRAREERHEEARRE
LIABILITIES
() Amounts recognised in the consolidated statement () MNEECHBRARERZLE
of financial position
The consolidated statement of financial position shows FEAaMBRRAKRITATEEE
the following amounts relating to leases: sl e
Right-of-use assets - office premises EHEEE-PLEYE
HK$
BT
Restated opening net book amount under RZE—hn&F—H—H
HKFRS 16 as at 1 January 2019* RN WREERF165%
&5z B AR EF(E* 5,015,832
Additions G 4,034,844
Currency translation difference ERMEER (21,828)
Impairment BB (4,390,640)
Lease modification HE &N (657,480)
Depreciation charge WERX (3,517,166)
Closing net book amount as at RZE-—hF+=ZA=+—H2
31 December 2019 BIRBREFE 463,562
Lease liabilities HEERE
HK$
BT
Restated opening net book amount under RZE—hF—H—H
HKFRS 16 as at 1 January 2019* BB B EERIE165%
&S|z B R FE 5,109,411
Additions ¥ ig 4,034,844
Currency translation difference ERMEES (105,440)
Interest expenses B 333,228
Lease modification MEEH (657,480)
Repayment BN (3,779,542)
Closing net book amount as at RZE-AF+ZA=+—HZ
31 December 2019 HIRBREFE 4,935,021
For adjustments recognised on adoption of HKFRS 16 on 1 * BHARZZT—NF—A—BEMNEE
January 2019, please refer to note 2.1. B RS R B 16 T IERR Z FHEE -

E2BMME2.1 .
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17. LEASES - RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS AND LEASE 17. #HE
LIABILITIES (continued) (&
() Amounts recognised in the consolidated statement (i)

of financial position (continued)

The following table shows the remaining contractual
maturities of the Group’s lease liabilities at the end of the
current and previous reporting periods and at the date of
transition to HKFRS 16:

31 December 2019

- EREEERHEEERE

REEMBRARELZEHE
(%)
TRINAAEERARE R R
BEREHEARALRNBEES
BMERELERFE165EH 2
ERBZRBAMNEIMA

1 January 2019 (Note)

RoB-n % R-T-nE
+-A=+-H —A—H8 (##)
Present Present
value of the Total value of the Total
minimum minimum minimum minimum
lease lease lease lease
payments payments payments payments
RIEHE SERE
RES] =EHE NS =EHE
ZHE R EE ZHE NEEE
HK$ HK$ HKS HK$
T BT BT oy
Within 1 year —4R 3,257,653 3,416,572 2,018,848 2,213,962
After 1 year but within 2 years —FBREMER 1,677,368 1,703,227 3,090,563 3,203,993
4,935,021 5,119,799 5,109,411 5,417,955
Less: Total future interest expenses Jil : 15 78 &5 8 % (184,778) (308,544)
Present value of lease liabilities HEARBRE 4,935,021 5,109,411

Note: The Group has initially applied HKFRS 16 using the modified
retrospective approach and adjusted the opening balances at 1
January 2019 to recognise lease liabilities relating to leases which
were previously classified as operating leases under HKAS 17.
Comparative information as at 31 December 2018 has not been
restated. Further details on the impact of the transition to HKFRS
16 are set out in note 2.1(a).

The Group has entered into lease arrangements with
landlords, and the lease term range from 31 to 36
months.

Additions to the right-of-use assets during the year 2019
were HK$4,034,844.

In December 2019, the Group had entered into a
supplementary agreement with landlord for rental
reduction from RMB254,677 (equivalents to HK$287,943)
per month to RMB219,048 (equivalents to HK$247,660)
per month for the remaining lease period of 20 months.
The incremental borrowing rate applied at the date of
modification is 4.75%. Therefore, the right-of-use assets
are decreased and lease liabilities are decreased by
RMB581,522 (equivalents to HK$657,480) due to the
lease modification.

B AEBCERACETBINEERER
AN HREERF16FL AR
T-NF—A Bz U
ERIBIEB B G EAE1I7HR S A
AREMEZTHERREEEE R
—E-)\F+ZA=t+—HZHERE
HAEEY -BEBEEEBNER
ERRFIH oV EE—SFHE
IR EE2.1(a) ©

AEBEXITVHERY HE
HR=t—ZE=1+EA-

RZF—NF EREEERN
4,034,844 7T °

R-ZZE—NF+ A AEFH
XTI —RAEZHBE BB
“t+EAEBNEeHEEAAR
#254,67770 (25 14287,9437%
TR EET A AREK219,0487T
(HZER247,6607T) - NIEE
WA FTERZESERFEE
4.75% o ALt - MR EEB G
FAEEERLEHAEGERD A
R #581,52270 (% 5°657,480
BIT) °
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NoTes To THE CoNsOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

A MR R M

For the year ended 31 December 2019 HE—ZT—AF+-A=+—RAIFE

LIABILITIES (continued)

(ii)

(iii)

Amounts recognised in the consolidated statement
of profit or loss

HE-FHREEERHEAR
(4&)
(i) NESEBREDBZEEHE

The consolidated statement of profit or loss shows the FaBmKRITUATEEEEA
following amounts relating to leases: TR
2019 2018
—E-hE —E-N\F
HK$ HK$
I T
Depreciation of right-of-use ERESERE
assets
Office premises WREYE 3,517,166 -
Impairment of right-of-use assets {# FH{EZE R E
Office premises MAEYE 4,390,640 -
Interest expense (included FEMAZ (FFABERA)
in finance costs) 333,228 -
Expenses relating to short-term HOHAHEEEE AX
leases (included in (Gt AHMEERET)
other operating expenses) 259,731 -

The total cash outflow for leases in 2019 was
HK$4,039,274.

The Group’s leasing activities and how these are
accounted for

The Group leases various offices. Rental contracts are
typically made for fixed periods of 1 to 5 years, but may
have extension options as described below.

Lease terms are negotiated on an individual basis and
contain a wide range of different terms and conditions.
The lease agreements do not impose any covenants other
than the security interests in the leased assets that are
held by the lessor.

ERETEEEEARAT | ZE-NFFH

=]

—E-NEFHEZReRNEE
54,039,274 7T ©

(iii) XEEZHEEFTHREIIRSE

AEFEHEZERAE -HEAY
BEE—E2AFZE TR
BaR T XAl A E R -

TS KR R e 1%%&1\%#?
BERE-BRTHEAFAENEESR
ERHEREDIN HEHE Tﬁm
ANE A EL At 2255
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17. LEASES - RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS AND LEASE
LIABILITIES (continued)
(iii) The Group’s leasing activities and how these are

accounted for (continued)

Until the 2018 financial year, leases of property, plant
and equipments were classified as either finance leases
or operating leases, see note 2.24 for details. From 1
January 2019, leases are recognised as right-of-use
assets and corresponding liabilities at the date at which
the leased assets are available for use by the Group.

Assets and liabilities arising from a lease are initially
measured on a present value basis. Lease liabilities
include the net present value of the following lease
payments:

- fixed payments (including in-substance fixed
payments), less any lease incentives receivable; and

- payments of penalties for terminating the lease, if
the lease term reflects the Group exercising that
option.

Lease payments to be made under reasonably certain
extension options are also included in the measurement
of the liability.

The lease payments are discounted using the interest
rate implicit in the lease. If that rate cannot be readily
determined, which is generally the case for leases in the
Group, the lessee’s incremental borrowing rate is used,
being the rate that the individual lessee would have to
pay to borrow the funds necessary to obtain an asset
of similar value to the right-of-use assets in a similar
economic environment with similar terms, security and
conditions.

17. 8
(4&)
(iii)

NoTeEs To THE CoNsoLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
G E B HRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2019 BE-Z—NF+-_A=+—HILFE

- EREEERHEEERE

FEEZHETHRETIRSE
(%)

REZZE- N\FHRFEZR M-
HELRRENHERE > EARE
HENCEHE  FIEF28M=
224 - B-FE—NF—A—Hi"
HEDREEEEATHASEE
RAERERATREEERARE
afE-

HOEEZEERABYIZNUR
BETHE-HERBEEERATHE
ENRZFHRE:

- BEENR(BEEE LEE
B R BT ] fE AR B B
=R

- RIEBEZEAER(MEEH
A [ R AN 5% B 16 17 {50 7 R
2 -

REAEBETTCEEEEINZ
HENRTHARBEFEZA-

HENREREERS ZF R
BofMBEABEEZNE (AEEZ
HE-—RBUEBR) - BIERA
HAZBEBER - BIHERIZAFEA
FERULERE R IRBUGE - &
ARGEHFEANESREREEE
BEEUCZEEMBESMVAEAX
(NP R
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NoTEs To THE CoNsOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
EEMBHmRMFE

For the year ended 31 December 2019 HE—ZT—AF+-A=+—RAIFE

17. LEASES - RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS AND LEASE 17. HE-FHREEERHEAR
LIABILITIES (continued) (4&)
(iii) The Group’s leasing activities and how these are (i) FREZESIFHRAEIIRGE

accounted for (continued)

To determine the incremental borrowing rate, the Group,
where possible, uses recent third-party financing received
by the individual lessee as a starting point, adjusted to
reflect changes in financing conditions since third party
financing was received.

Lease payments are allocated between principal and
finance cost. The finance cost is charged to profit or
loss over the lease period so as to produce a constant
periodical rate of interest on the remaining balance of the
liabilities for each period.

Right-of-use assets are measured at cost comprising the
amount of the initial measurement of lease liabilities, any
lease payments made at or before the commencement
date less any lease incentives received and any initial
direct costs, and restoration costs.

Right-of-use assets are generally depreciated over the
shorter of the asset’s useful life and the lease term on a
straight-line basis. If the Group is reasonably certain to
exercise a purchase option, the right-of-use assets are
depreciated over the underlying asset’s useful life. While
the Group revalues its leasehold land and buildings that
are presented within property, plant and equipments, it
has chosen not to do so for the right-of-use buildings
held by the Group.

Payments associated with short-term leases and all
leases of low-value assets are recognised on a straight-
line basis as an expense in profit or loss. Short-term
leases are leases with a lease term of 12 months or less.

FHEREMERAT | —EB-NEFH

(%)

PETHEEERE  AEEET
BEEIR T - 15 P EBIAR A BT
BrESHREREERELSR
BUAR KR B = 0 A A LUK
B 2 2B

HENFRAE RBERAKZHE
tEHDBC - BE AR EHER
Bk EUSEHRZA8ER
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EREEERRAGE BEEE
BEZVFHESRE KAKAH
2 Bl fE 2 E AR E N FORE
EREREEEERENTRE
B RAEERA

EREEE - RZESKERNUE
ErfERFHNER (AREER
B)FENE-WAKEEEEE
TEREEER AEREEER
MHREEZ A ERFHRRTE &
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NoTeEs To THE CoNsoLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
G E B HRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2019 BE-Z—NF+-_A=+—HILFE

18. STATUTORY DEPOSITS AND OTHER ASSETS 18. ZEHERHMEE

196

2019 2018
—F-hEF —T-N\F
HK$ HK$
AT T
Hong Kong Securities Clearing BEERREHEBR QA
Company Limited (‘HKSCC”) ([BEBHEE])
— Contribution fund deposit —REFEERELS 100,000 100,000
— Admission fee deposit — B E 100,000 100,000
The Stock Exchange of BEABEZTZHERAA
Hong Kong Limited
— Compensation fund deposit —-BEESES 100,000 100,000
— Fidelity fund deposit —-ERESESE 100,000 100,000
- Stamp duty deposit —HiERire 5,000 5,000
The Securities and Futures BEABSFNHEEBEREZESR
Commission of Hong Kong
- Deposits for responsible officers -BEAEBES® 100,000 100,000
Guangdong Previous Metals BEREESERXSFLARRAF
Exchange Limited (“PMEC”) (E2BRZ%0])
- Reserve fund deposit —REEES - 1
505,000 505,001
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EEMBHmRMFE

For the year ended 31 December 2019 HE—ZT—AF+-A=+—RAIFE

19. RMIBATZRE
UWTARRZZE-—NERE—N\F+=
A=+—HBz2ARAIETZENBRAS
B

19. INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES
The following is a list of the Company’s principal subsidiaries

as at 31 December 2019 and 2018:

Place of incorporation/

Principal activities

Particulars of issued

establishment and kind  and place of share capital/registered Interest
Name of legal entity operations capital held
sEM AR, R EE R EETRE/
& EEREER TEXBREEDY dMERFE BAED
Sinofortune Financial Holdings British Virgin Islands, Investment holding 611,700 ordinary shares of 100%
(BVI) Limited Limited liability company US$1 each
Sinofortune Financial Holdings EBRLES FRAR  REER 611,700 ERAEE1ET 100%
(BVI) Limited LiER
Stockmartnet Limited Hong Kong, Limited liability ~Securities trading in HK$3 100%
company Hong Kong
TREBRAR BB BRAR REERERFEE 3BT 100%
Sinofortune Securities Limited Hong Kong, Limited liability - Securities and futures HK$67,000,000 100%
company brokerage and
securities margin
financing services in
Hong Kong
EEEFBRRA A BRRA REEREEF LG 67,000,000/ 10 100%
BRURBFRESR
ER%
Sinofortune Processing Services Limited  Hong Kong, Limited liability - Provision of a trading HK$2 100%
company platform in Hong Kong
Sinofortune Processing Services Limited & R A ) RERRERSTA 2B 100%
IFN-GT Financial Holdings Limited British Virgin Islands, Investment holding 1 ordinary share of 100%
Limited liability company US$1 each
IFN-GT Financial Holdings Limited RERLEE BRLOF  REEK REREEIZTZERBR 100%
Sinofortune Global Wealth Hong Kong, Limited liability - Provision of wealth HK$6,000,000 100%
Management Limited company management services
in Hong Kong
ERRHEHBRAA B BRAT REBRUM EERRE 6,000,000 7T 100%
Sinofortune Property Limited Hong Kong, Limited liability - Property holding in HKS$1 100%
company Hong Kong
ERHERRAR &R BRARA REERENE 18T 100%
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19.

INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

Place of incorporation/

19. RMBABZIRE (&)

Principal activities Particulars of issued

establishment and kind  and place of share capital/registered Interest
Name of legal entity operations capital held
EMAL BIBER EBTRE/
& EEREE TEXBREENE A MEFEE HEED
Aceview International Limited British Virgin Islands, Investment holding 1 ordinary share of 100%
Limited liability company US$1 each
HEEARERAA KBRS BRAR  REER REREEIZT ERR 100%
GoHi Holdings Limited British Virgin Islands, Investment holding 35,000 ordinary shares of 100%
Limited liability company US$1 each
GoHi Holdings Limited RERAES ARRA  REER 36,000 BREET1ET 100%
FNEEHERELHERDA PRC, Foreign wholly- Provision of education Registered capital of 100%
(trangliterated as Shenzhen Sinofortune  owned enterprise information and RMB40,000,000
Education Investment Consultancy Co., consultancy service
Ltd) in PRC
(“Sinofortune Education”)
RYNEBHEREZABRAR hENEEECE R EREAEEARE AMERA 100%
(£EHE]) AR AR #40,000,0007C
YT AEBEHEER AR (transliterated  PRC, Limited liability Trading of electronic Registered capital of Disposed
as Shenzhen Star Technology Co., Ltd) ~ company products, electronic RMB45,000,000 (Note 29)
(Note 1) student cards and (2018: 100%)
provision of electronic
student card platform
in PRC
RINTREBRRBRRA (M) hEBRAT RABHESTEM: AMERRARE BEHE
EFREERRM 45,000,0007C (FizE29)
BTE£ETR (Z2-NE:
100% )
FBREEECBLEERDA PRC, Limited liability Precious metals Registered capital of 80%
(transliterated as Shenzhen Guoyin company brokerage and spot RMB20,000,000
Brilliant Precious Metals Limited) trading in PRC
(“Guoyin”)
AEREEECRLELERAF hE BRAT REEREECRELER HMERAARE 80%
(TE#]) RERS 20,000,0007¢
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19. INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

NoTEs To THE CoNsOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A B R R MR

For the year ended 31 December 2019 EHZE_—Z

—NETZA=t—RLLEFEE

19. RMBABZIRE (&)

Place of incorporation/

Principal activities

Particulars of issued

establishment and kind  and place of share capital/registered Interest
Name of legal entity operations capital held
EMAIL RIS R E#TRE/
& EERREN TEXBREENE A MEFEE HEED
ERRALEEARESERD PRC, Limited liability Sales of motor vehicles Registered capital of 93.33%
(transliterated as Chongqmg company and provision of RMB150,000,000
Sheng Yu Hong Jia International agency services in the
Trading Company Limited) PRC
(“Sheng Yu Hong Jia")
EERALEARESERAR HE BRAR RAEHE R REHR AMERR 93.33%
(T&mazE]) 2 IR % A& ¥150,000,0007C
RIERENREEBERD PRC, Foreign wholly- Investment holding Registered capital of 100%
(transliterated as Shenzhen Huayi owned enterprise in PRC RMB50,000,000
Biotechnology Group Company Limited)
(“Huayi Biotechnology”) (Note 2)
RYEEEMRBZEEERD hENEEERE RAERERR AMERR 100%
(rEEEmrsl) (M uﬂ) AR #50,000,0007C
FIERRRENDEERA PRC, Limited liability Sales of medicines in Registered capital of 90%
(transliterated as Shenzhen Huayi company the PRC RMB5,000,000
Health Biotechnology Company
Limited) (“Huayi Health”) (Note 3)
A EERRENRBERD hEARAT RAEHEEY AMERR 90%
(TEERE]) (M53) AR #5,000,0007
EZREARXE (RN BERDE PRC, Limited liability Sales of calligraphy and Registered capital of 51%
(transliterated as Huayi International company painting in PRC RMB5,000,000
Culture (Shenzhen) Company Limited)
(*Huayi Culture”) (Note 4)
ERABRX (R BERAR hE BRAT RAHHEES AMERR 51%
(r#xil) (Ms4) AR #5,000,0007T
Note 1: The subsidiary was disposed on 31 October 2019. et : ZMBARR=-ZE—AE+A=1+—H#%
HE -
Note 2: The subsidiary was established on 12 June 2019. M2 : ZMBARKR-ZZE—AFNA+=ZAK
A
Note 3: The subsidiary was established on 10 May 2019. M3 : ZMBRARR-ZE—NFRATHEMNK L
Note 4: The subsidiary was established on 4 April 2019. MieEa : ZMBRARN-ZZE—NFMAWBEKTL -

The above table lists the subsidiaries of the Group which, in the
opinion of the Directors, principally affect the results or assets
of the Group. To give details of other subsidiaries would, in
the opinion of the Directors, result in particulars of excessive
length.

ERETEEEEARAT | ZE-NFFH
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19.

INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (continued)
Commitments and contingent liabilities in respect of
subsidiaries

The Group has the following commitments relating to its
subsidiaries:

RMBABZRE (&)
ARMBASI ZRBERNAGR

AEBREBEEBEMB AR Z AT A

=

Commitment to provide funding if called R 2354 F & & 2 &

o

=1

2019 2018
—E-h%E —ZT— )\
HK$ HK$
T BT
28,940,540 7,941,360

As at 31 December 2019 and 2018, there are no contingent
liabilities relating to the Group’s interest in the subsidiaries.

Material non-controlling interests

The total non-controlling interest as at 31 December 2019
is HK$7,428,455 (2018: HK$13,557,4083), of which includes
HK$2,402,360 (2018: HK2,474,194) is for Guoyin and
HK$5,262,926 (2018: HK$11,083,209) is for Sheng Yu Hong
Jia. The non-controlling interests in respect of other subsidiary
is not material.

Summarised financial information on the subsidiaries
with material non-controlling interests

The following table lists out the information relating to
Guoyin and Sheng Yu Hong Jia, the two subsidiaries of the
Group which have a material non-controlling interests. The
summarised financial information presented below represents
the amounts before any inter-company elimination.

RZB-NER=ZF—N\F+=7
=t+-R UmERAEERHEAR
2GR AE

EXFIERERS
N—ZZE—-—hE+_A=+—08" 3
VRRS ME SR 4B B BT ,428,4558 0 (=
T — )\ :13,5657,403& L) * H
B IE B IR E1H2,402,3608 T (=&
— )\ 12,474,194 7T ) N B% 560 53k 52
JE(55,262,926/8 L (=& — )\ F :
11,083,200/ 7t) - B B H b1 B Q7]
RIFEIE R R W A E K »

FEXHEBRERZHBLEZHEE
TREJIAEERE RS EAFERE
BmZMBRBRELERTEZER -

TX 25z B AR E IR EME
H AT 2 A ©
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19. INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (continued)
Material non-controlling interests (continued)
Summarised financial information on the subsidiaries
with material non-controlling interests (continued)

19. RMBABZIRE (&)

BRI (2)
FEXHRRERZHBLEZHBEEL
HHEE (&)

Summarised statement of financial position B EA R E e &
Sheng Yu Sheng Yu
Hong Jia Guoyin Hong Jia Guoyin
ke E$R BAiBLE B4R
2019 2019 2018 2018
—E-E —E-AE —E-N\F —T-N\F
HK$ HK$ HK$ HKS
BT BT AT AT
Current wE
Assets BE 116,002,395 17,874,592 180,638,540 18,363,165
Liabilities B (38,040,996) (308,794)  (15,937,754) (319,792)
Total current net assets MBEELTE 77,961,399 17,565,798 164,700,786 18,043,373
Non-current ¥ RE
Assets BE 982,501 - 1,547,368 -
Liabilities A = - - _
Total non-current net assets FREEELFE 982,501 - 1,547,368 -
Net assets BEFE 78,943,900 17,565,798 166,248,154 18,043,373
Capital to be contributed by FEEREREEIAZER
non-controlling interests - (3,332,400) - (3,403,440)
Capital to be contributed by the Group ~ AE£E#HEIAZER - (7,775,600) - (7,941,360
Non-controlling interests FEIE R 5,262,926 2,402,360 11,083,209 2,474,194
Summarised statement of profit or loss and other B N B 2 N R F I ZE
comprehensive income
Sheng Yu Sheng Yu
Hong Jia Guoyin Hong Jia Guoyin
Bk E$R EanhE BB
2019 2019 2018 2018
—E-NE —E-NE —T-N\#F —T-N\F
HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$
BT BT AT AT
Revenue W& 325,123,717 - 339,978,012 -
Loss before income tax BRETEBAIEE (85,303,685) (102,756) (6,925,413) (230,530)
Income tax expense FrERAX - - (29) -
Loss for the year ERBE (85,303,685) (102,756) (6,925,442) (230,530)
Other comprehensive loss Hii2EEE (1,973,122) (374,819) (9,670,461) (989,190
Total comprehensive loss 2EFBLEE (87,276,807) (477,575)  (16,595,903) (1,219,720)
Profit or loss allocated to EREEHERESR 2B
non-controlling interests (5,686,912) (20,551) (574,258) (46,106)
Total comprehensive loss allocated to B2 EZIFERER 2
non-controlling interests THEBERSE (5,818,454) (71,834) (1,181,902) (180,770)

Dividend paid to non-controlling interests A 3F 1% i 4 25 & 1< #0 % &,

ERETEEEEARAT | ZE-NFFH
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19. INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (continued) 19. RMBATZHRE (#&
Material non-controlling interests (continued) BXIEERERS (2)
Summarised financial information on the subsidiaries FEXHEZEREDZZHEBE LG ZHES
with material non-controlling interests (continued) FIHFE (/Z)
Summarised statement of cash flows HaenEfmE
Sheng Yu Sheng Yu
Hong Jia Guoyin Hong Jia Guoyin
BashE ER BB = ElsR
2019 2019 2018 2018
-0 —E-0E —E-N\F —E-N\F
HK$ HK$ HK$ HKS
T BT ow iow
Net cash generated from/(used in) BEEHEL/ (BA)
operating activities 2R FE 2,835,867 (198,425) (31,384,480) 404,472
Net cash generated from/(used in) REEHEL,/ (BHA)
investing activities ZBReRE 11,306 (1,904,600) 9,865,266 (10,726,055)
Net cash (used in)/generated from BREEH (BA) EEZ
financing activities ReFE (482,836) - 11,103,797 -
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INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES

20. REREATZH#ER

2019 2018
—E-hE —E-N\FE
HK$ HK$
I 7 TT

IR EEFE

Share of net assets

Started from November 2015, there was a suspension on
the business operation of the material associate, Qianhai
First China due to the commodities trading policies review
conducted by the government of Qianhai. Up to present, the
review was still not completed as at the end of the current
reporting period and therefore the business operation of
Qianhai First China had not yet resumed. The management
of the Company do not expect the associate can resume its
business activities in the foreseeable future. The interests in this
associate had been fully impaired in previous year.

The associate named RINFEF mBEERMER A F
(transliterated as Shenzhen Zhongcai Yingtong Information
Technology Company Limited) had been suspended by the
PRC authority. The interests in this associate had been fully
impaired in previous year.

ERETEEEEARAT | ZE-NFFH
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20.

—NEFTZA=+T—RLFE

INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES (continued)
Details of the Group’s associate as at 31 December 2019 and

20.

REtE AT 2= (&)
m:z ni&—%—ﬂi+—ﬁ

2018 are as follows: = CAEBEBERRZFBN
T
Place of
incorporation/
establishment
and kind of Particulars of issued Interest
Name legal entity Principal activities shares held held
At M AL I FiFEETRG
Z1 BREiTEREN IZER %18 i i i
AN EERBEHRR ST 0 PRC, Limited Provision of trading platform Registered capital of 38%
BARAE liability company ~ for precious metal and RMB38,000,000
(transliterated as Shenzhen provision of related
Qianhai First China International consultancy services in PRC
Commaodities Exchange
Centre Limited)
PNsEZARBRRS L FE HRAT  KEARHESERHTA _ BEAA 38%
ARAA iR AR B A AR T AR #38,000,0007
The above associate is accounted for using the equity method itk E R RIRAER ARG S B
in the consolidated financial statements. EIAPN-
The above associate is a private company and there is no A FBERRR/MARRAARENS

quoted market value available.

EBEAHZ2E-

Commitments in respect of associates BHBEAT 2R E
The Group has the following commitments for capital injection AEERBEBEBE AT U TER
relating to its associates: FNHIE -
2019 2018
—FT-hE —T-N\F
HK$ HK$
T T
Commitment to provide funding if called R E k54 F &8 & 2 & # 21,105,186 21,555,105
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INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES (continued)

Litigation in respect of associates

As at 31 December 2019, Qianhai First China has some
unresolved legal cases relating to the contracts dispute
with some investors and involving the total claimed amount
of RMB3,962,529 (equivalent to HK$4,401,577) (2018:
RMB2,280,731 (equivalent to HK$2,587,444)). According to
the legal opinion obtained from the Group’s PRC lawyer, the
PRC lawyer opined that from recent judgments, the courts
tends to rule in favour of the investors in claims of similar
nature, therefore it is likely Qianhai First China may have to
compensate these investors accordingly. The Group considers
that the associate has sufficient financial ability to compensate
the claim from investors, therefore no further provision of
liabilities needed to made by the Group.

Save as mentioned above, there are no other contingent
liabilities of the associates at 31 December 2019.

Individually immaterial associates

Due to the suspension of the associate’s business, the
management of the Group consider it to be immaterial
associates.

FHEREMERAT | —EB-NEFH
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R #2,280,7317C (18 % 102,587,444%8
TL) ) o IRBEEAREE R BIEAEE 2
FEER PEARMRE REBE&EH
FoRBEUEERRF ARIBERAE
HAEFREEENH R Bt EE
R BEREREZEREE - A%KE
REBE AR EHEZHTRE HA]EEE
REERE ALAEEEZE— T
REERE-

BEXFESN R—F—-NF+_H
=t—8" %%‘ﬂﬁﬁﬁ@&ﬁg

&

BRHFEEHEAT
HRBERRZEBE R AEENE
BEERARLEHERARIATERY
Ejo

HE R

205



206

NoTes To THE CoNsOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

A MWW &M

For the year ended 31 December 2019 BE-Z—NF+-_A=+—HILFE

20. INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES (continued) 20.

Individually immaterial associates (continued)
Aggregate information of associates that are not
individually material

REEAT 2 (&)
BRFEEBREQT (&)
BRI TEEHELEZELEH

2019 2018
—F-hE —T-N\F
HK$ HK$
I 5 TT
Aggregate carrying amount after (DR RN
impairment of individually immaterial ~ RéR A BB HR KRR E%R
associates in the consolidated 2 HBERTEAE
financial statements - -
Aggregate amounts of the operating % 2 R A& 2 XK E5E
loss of those associates - (7,343,033) (26,267,677)
Aggregate amounts of translation BEBERNFZ
reserve arising from translating of WBRERMEELEZ
the associate’s financial statements L fHEEREE (527,051) (2,080,927)
Total comprehensive loss THEEERE (7,870,084) (28,348,604)
Unrecognised share of loss for the year N4 7 # 52 J& 15 &5 18 (2,977,369) (10,772,470)

Cumulative unrecognised share of loss R & 7 # 52 J& {1k &5 18 (13,749,839) (10,772,470)
21. INVENTORIES 21. B8

2019 2018

—E-hE —E-N\F

HK$ HK$

I BT

Motor vehicles RE 52,057,399 58,070,926
Other finished goods E b AK oh 472,256 1,723,572
52,529,655 59,794,498

The analysis of the amount of inventories recognised as an

ERARX Y ABR s FESEAN

expense and included in profit or loss is as follows: m
2019 2018
—F-NhE —E-N\F
HK$ HK$
T BT
Amount of inventories sold BEEGFESE 355,612,232 334,118,065
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22. TRADE RECEIVABLES

22, EWESRIE

2019 2018
—B-hE —E-)\#F
HK$ HK$
T BT
Amounts receivable arising from B H A0 TSP E A R G E
securities broking:
Margin clients REBEERF 1,578,094 3,083,334
Cash clients ReEyr 5,098,023 4,009,110
Brokers and dealers BERZHH 6 6
HKSCC (net) EREE (OFE) 133,485 100,900
Amounts receivable arising from BEAEE S 2 BIKRHIAE
trading of motor vehicles 25,025,104 16,368,896
Other trade receivables Hib el E 55308 - 452,925
31,834,712 24,015,171

Amounts receivable from margin clients are repayable
on demand, bearing interest at prevailing market rates
and are secured by clients’ pledged securities which are
listed on the Stock Exchange with a total market value of
approximately HK$17,212,000 as at 31 December 2019
(2018: HK$17,959,000). No aged analysis is disclosed as,
in the opinion of the directors, the aged analysis does not
give additional value in view of the nature of the business of
securities margin financing. The Group considers that the credit
risk arising from the amounts receivable from margin clients is
significantly mitigated by the client’s pledged securities.

Amount receivable from one (2018: one) of rolling balance cash
client with amount of HK$4,343,834 (2018: HK$3,968,304) are
repayable on demand and bearing interest at 9% (2018: 9%)
per annum. The Group manages credit risk by continuously
monitoring the cash client’s securities held by the Group, of
which the total market value of approximately HK$3,951,968
(2018: HK$8,242,416) as at 31 December 2019. The Group
considers that the credit risk arising from the amount receivable
from this cash client is minimal. Subsequent to the end of
the reporting period, the amount receivable in amount of
HK$1,000,000 had been repaid in February 2020.

ERETEEEEARAT | ZE-NFFH

JEWRFSBPREAKRERER
BEROTMBMEGFE LUEPR
T E-NAFE+_A=t+—HEME
4917,212,0008 0 (=& — N\ F:
17959000/%75)25AH§*/\Pﬁtm 55
EEIF -ERNEFHFREBFCHEER 2N
L EERERED WY EEMEIME
B - HWABEEBEREDIT- LK%IEU%
ERREBEBFPFIEMEENEER
AEFPHERBESM AR -

JEWHA —Z (T N\F:—F)E&
GFHHBIBE TP HNIE S5 B4,343,834
BT (ZF— )\ : 3,968,304 7L ) /A
RERKEERZFFNERIE(ZZE—N
FOE)FFE -AEBEBBIFELAZ
fﬁ%%ﬁﬂmﬁlhﬁm %XE.IEF
BRER MaELBFHFR_ZE—NF+=
HEJF*EI%VE\H?TE%’US,%L%&%TE(_
T— N\£F:8,242,4168 L) - REE R
AZRESEPREBEMEENEERRR
o AR & B HAT% - % 3X7H1,000,000/%8
TER_ZE_FTF_AEE-
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22.

TRADE RECEIVABLES (continued)

The settlement terms of amounts receivable arising from cash
clients and clearing house are one or two trade days after the
trade execution date. Except for the amounts receivable from
margin clients as mentioned above, these balances are aged
within 30 days. Accounts receivable from cash clients and
clearing house are neither past due nor impaired.

Amount receivable arising from the trading of motor vehicles
includes the receivables from customers and the government
subsidy on the sales of the imported motor vehicles with
amount of HK$25,025,104 (2018: HK$14,735,245) and HK$ nil
(2018: HK$1,633,651) respectively.

The receivables from customers in respect of the trading of
motor vehicles are due in 120 days from date of billing while
the historical settlement pattern of the government subsidy on
the sales of the imported motor vehicles are around 180 days
from the date of application.

The trade receivables from customers arising from trading
of motor vehicles that were past due but not impaired at 31
December 2019 is related to a customer that had a good track
record of credit with the Group. Based on past credit history
and its financial background, management believes that no
impairment allowance is necessary in respect of these balances
as there has not been a significant change in credit quality and
the balances are still considered to be fully recoverable.

For the government subsidy on the sales of imported motor
vehicles, the management takes reference to the historical
settlement pattern of the subsidy, they consider it is not
necessary to provide the expected credit loss on the subsidy
receivables at 31 December 2018.

22,

FEWE ZRIE (&)

BeXP Rk REE QT ELHEKRR
HERETRZAHE-—IMEXZAR
S o B bt FEWAR FE & P IR SN
BAZBERA=TER - BRREEF
Ko/ R 8 H X B BRI BE K 8L R O A OR
I8

HEREEL ZEWGERIEREKE P
RBREEEEEDRE ZBTHEL
&8 D R AB25,025,1048 7L (ZZE— N
F:14,735,2458 L) REF L (ZF
— \4:1,633,651/87C) °

UIHHEZRFPES AR E K
BRBRF1208 AR AR HSE
DREMRARE 2 BEEERABE
S EHE B HEL1808

RZB-NEF+ZA=+—H ”"EEZE
HELMBRERBENRE TP ER
EHRNEEAEERA RIFERARLE
M—EEFE@-REBETNERERLE
MEMBER EEERSANEREE
BUYARELAEANE( AHRBINERA
AATERNE - FHit S E AR E R
TRRE % -

REEEOTENRAM ERER
ERHMzaTta R ARBERR
—E-N\FFTZR=+—HZREKHR
FHEEHEEER-

Sinofortune Financial Holdings Limited | Annual Report 2019



NoTEs To THE CoNsOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
EEMBHmRMFE

For the year ended 31 December 2019 HE—ZT—AF+-A=+—RAIFE

22. TRADE RECEIVABLES (continued) 22, BWBESRIE (&)
Further details on the Group’s credit policy and credit risk EBEREBEEBOR REWE 5 5B
arising from trade receivables are set out in note 3.1(b). EXEERRZE—THFBHNME
3.1(b) °
The following is an aged analysis of the trade receivables based JEWE SRBERmEHMEERERR
on invoice dated at the reporting period: BRE DT :
2019 2018
—F-hEF —T-N\F
HK$ HK$
T 7T
0-30 days 0%&30H 20,032,252 6,917,061
31-90 days 31290H 412,949 5,176,173
91-180 days 912180H 2,789,003 4,728,587
181-365 days 181%365H 1,497,762 -
Over 365 days 365H M £ 293,138 -
25,025,104 16,821,821
The maximum exposure to credit risk at the end of the RBERR ZRXEERRAEIKE S
reporting period is the carrying amounts of trade receivables. REZEREEBE BREKRESEFPRIE
Other than the amounts receivable from margin clients, the SN AEBUEREBEWE ZRIERE
Group does not hold any collateral as security in respect of its R R EE R o

trade receivables.

The carrying amounts of the Group's trade receivables are AEEEWESRIBREBRNUATE
denominated in the following currencies: BHME -
2019 2018
—F-hE —E-N\F
HK$ HK$
T P TT
Hong Kong dollars BT 6,809,608 7,193,350
RMB AR 25,025,104 16,821,821
31,834,712 24,015,171
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23. LOAN RECEIVABLES

At initial recognition, the Group determined the fair value of
the loan receivables equivalent to their principal amounts. The
analysis of the carrying amount of loan receivables as at 31
December 2019 and 2018 are as follows:

NoTeEs To THE CoNsoLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
G E B HRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2019 BE-Z—NF+-_A=+—HILFE

FEM &

RERERR AEEBETRKRER
RFERERERSE - R _T—NF
MZZE-N\F+-RA=+—HREKERK
ZEREESFWT

2019 2018
—E—-hE —E—N\F

HK$ HK$

#IT BT

Loans to third party BERFE=H - 1,134,480
Loans to associate ERTHE QT 2,832,540 5,400,125
2,832,540 6,534,605

The Group provided a short term financing of RMB2,550,000
(equivalent to HK$2,832,540) (2018: RMB4,760,000 (equivalent
to HK$5,400,125)) to the Group’s associate for its daily
operation. The loan receivables bore interest at an annual
contractual rate of 1.95% (effective interest rate 1.95%) (2018:
1.95% (effective interest rate 1.96%)).

As at 31 December 2019, the above-mentioned loan to associate
was past due for number of days ranged from 8-29 days (2018:
Nil). However, the management of the Group assessed that no
expected credit loss on these loans receivable are required to be
recognised. Subsequent to the end of the reporting period, the
loan in amount of RMB2,550,000 (equivalent to HK$2,832,540)
had been fully repaid in January 2020.

During the year ended 31 December 2018, RMB1,000,000
(equivalent to HK$1,134,480) of the Group’s loan receivables
were denominated in RMB. The loan receivables bore interest
at an annual contractual rate of 12% (effective interest rate
12.33%) with the maturity date on 20 July 2019 and repaid in
August 2019. The Group did not hold any collateral on these
loan receivables.

AEBREBREAFRE - ETHME
A R ¥2,550,0007T (855 722,832,540
i) (ZZE—NF: AR%4,760,000
7T (15,400,125 7T) ) B {EE B
BB L EWEFIZA L FFIE1.95
B (ERFEMNER10958) (ZF—\F:
1.95EF B (BERFFE1.96E) ) -

N-E—-AF+-A=+—8" Liim
BENREREBISE20RFTE (=
E-NFE) A AEEETEE
HE DEAMRAZERKE R B
EEEFE-RBREAHE BERARE
2,550,0007T (48 % 72,832,540/ 7T )
ER-_Z-_ZTF—ARHEE-

HE-_FT—-N\F+-_A=1+—HILF
B REBZEBKERAARBAES
A R #1,000,0007T (855 521,134,480
BT c R BB FILE B FF E12F
R (BBRERNX12383E) A A
“E-NAFEtA-+H TR -_ZT—N
FNAEBR - AEBEVTERZEENRE
R EAEER-
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24. FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH

24, BAFEGFAEBEZEKRAZEM

OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME BE
2019 2018
—E-hE —E—)N\F
HK$ HK$
I 77T
Unlisted equity investment ELEMRERE 9,997,200 -

The above unlisted equity investment represents the Group’s
equity interest in a private entity established in the PRC. The
directors of the Company have elected to designate these
investments in equity instruments as at FVTOCI as they believe
that it is an equity investment held for capital gain and assets
appreciation.

During the year ended 31 December 2019, the Group entered
into an agreement with three independent third parties for
30% equity interest in A WRIEEE (FY) BER A A
(transliterated as Nan Rui Biotechnology Group (Shenzhen)
Company Limited) (“Nan Rui Biotechnology”) for an amount
of RMB9,000,000 (equivalent to HK$9,997,200). According
to the Articles of Association, the number of directors in the
Board of Nan Rui Biotechnology is three and the shareholders
agreed that the Group would not nominate any director to
sit in the Board of Nan Rui Biotechnology. Therefore, without
significant influence or control, it is classified as financial assets
at FVTOCI.

The investee company indirectly-held the projects related to
the setting up of the biomedical laboratory together with a
biological scientist. The management of the Group considers
the investment would be a good opportunity for the Group
to explore in new business to diversify its revenue source by
investing in businesses with growth potential and broaden its
source of income.

Cash flows arising from financial assets at FVTOCI are
presented within “investing activities” in the consolidated
statements of cash flows.

Changes in fair values of financial assets at FVTOCI
are recorded in “other comprehensive income/(loss)” in
the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income.

The Group considers that it takes long time for setting up
biomedical laboratory and put in use. As the project was still in
a development stage, the management considers that fair value
approximates the carrying value of assets and liabilities of Nan
Rui Biotechnology.
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25. FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH

PROFIT OR LOSS

25. RAFEFANERZEMEE

2019 2018
—E-hEF —E-N\F
HK$ HK$
T 7B TT

Listed equity — held for trading TRE-FIEER
equity securities — Hong Kong RAEH— BB 1,378,068 17,043,700
Other unlisted investments Hi3EEmIRE 7,237 20
Unlisted equity investments JE LT ERE 31,702,687 10,726,056
33,087,992 27,769,776

Represented by: B T3 &EERR:

Non-current assets EREBEE 31,702,687 -
Current assets mEEE 1,385,305 27,769,776
33,087,992 27,769,776

The details of the listed equity held for trading are as follows:

RIFEEZ EMBRENFRET:

Fair value

loss on

No. of share held Approximately Fair value securities

as at 31 December percentage of as at 31 December trading for

Stock code Company name 2019 shareholding 2019 2019

RZF-1E R-B-1% —F-1%

+ZR=+-H +ZR=+-H2 BEEERSZ

RERS kA rRYE KEBRE ML AFE ATERE

HK$ HKS

o e

01335 Sheen Tai 9,986,000 0.41% 1,378,068 (519,272)
JBZ 12 AR

Listed shares-held for trading IHRH-BEEE 1,378,068 (519,272)

Fair value

loss on

No. of share held Approximately Fair value securities

as at 31 December percentage of as at 31 December trading for

Stock code Company name 2018 shareholding 2018 2018

R-B-N\f§ RZB-\% —F-0\g

+ZRA=t-H +ZA=t-H2 BIEEERSZ

RER 5 AEER rRYE KEBRE ML A¥E ATERE

HK$ HKS

o B

01335 Sheen Tai 75,238,000 3.07% 14,295,220 (6,395,230)
%12 A

06898 China Aluminum 2,454,000 0.26% 2,748,480 (73,620)
PEEE

Listed shares-held for trading THRh-HEEE 17,043,700 (6,468,850)
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FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH
PROFIT OR LOSS (continued)

Other unlisted investments included in the financial assets
at FVTPL represents an amount of RMB6,515 (equivalent to
HK$7,237) (2018: RMB18 (equivalent to HK$20)) invested in
a fund known as B/ B & (transliterated as Cai Fu Bao) which
is managed by A ESERRKRNDBR AT (transliterated as
China Southern Asset Management Co., Limited) as at year
end. This investment fund provides the unguaranteed expected
floating returns of approximately 4% per annum and can be
refunded one day after instruction is given to the securities
company.

During the year ended 31 December 2019, the Group entered
into a limited partnership agreement with ik &8 &5 % i 1> %
EIE AL (transliterated as Chengdu Lan Bao Kun Business
Management Centre) (“General Partner”) for 50% ownership
investment in a limited partnership, FXHPEEE D ¥ E I8
# Ly (transliterated as Chengdu Lan Bao Zhen Business
Management Centre) (“Limited Partnership”), with registered
capital of RMB60,000,000. The Group acted as a limited
partner in the Limited Partnership with injected capital of
RMB30,000,000 (equivalent to HK$33,324,000). All decisions
related to the relevant activities of the Limited Partnership are
made by the General Partner, which is independent from the
Group. According to the limited partnership agreement, the
term of Limited Partnership is five years from the issuance date
of the business licence. The General Partner has the right to
extend the term of the Limited Partnership.

Upon termination of the Limited Partnership pursuant to the
terms and conditions of the limited partnership agreement,
any surplus assets of the Limited Partnership, after payment
of termination expenses, wages, social insurance expenses,
statutory compensation, tax liabilities and outstanding debts,
shall be divided among the partners in proportion to their
respective paid capital contributions. Limited Partnership
has a 90% owned subsidiary, X %5 {7 R BB &Rl L A R
A\ (transliterated as Chengdu Jia Bao Yao Yin Medicine
Technology Company Limited) (“Chengdu Jia Bao Yao Yin”),
which acts as a vehicle for Limited Partnership to invest in new
medicine development projects. In September 2019, Chengdu
Jia Bao Yao Yin entered into a joint development agreement
with its partner to co-operate in the joint development of three
new medicines. In October 2019, Chengdu Jia Bao Yao Yin
entered into an agreement to acquire the patent of a medicine
from the same partner as mentioned in the joint development of
new medicines above.
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25. FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH

PROFIT OR LOSS (continued)

The fair value measurement of the Limited Partnership as at 31
December 2019 was determined based on discounted cash
flows of individual projects with discount rates at range from
6.18% to 19%.

After the assessment, the management of the Group
concluded that fair value loss is RMB1,459,590 (equivalent to
HK$1,650,241), which is recorded in “other income and loss,
net” in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income, for the year ended 31 December 2019.

During the year ended 31 December 2018, the Group entered
into an agreement with Nan Rui Biotechnology in an amount
of RMB9,454,600 (equivalent to HK$10,726,056) regarding
the finance on the potential project called # B f 4 mp BI 22 &
*¥[EIE B (the “Project”) developed by Nan Rui Biotechnology.
According to the agreement, the lending amounts would be
returned to the Group together with the interest charged at
lending rate imposed by The People’s Bank of China after
2-year contracted period if the Project is not approved by
China government. However, if the Project is approved by
China government, the lending amounts would be used to
convert to the 18.91% equity interest in Nan Rui Biotechnology
and no amounts would be repaid to the Group.

25.

NoTeEs To THE CoNsoLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
G E B HRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2019 BE-Z—NF+-_A=+—HILFE

RBRATFEFNERZEHEE
(%)

R-ZE—-hhE+-A=+—8 ARA
BOEREZAFEFEHERERIIE
ENCMBReREET EMBEXRE
B A6.18%E19% °

FEB AEAEEEREEE T
—hWE+-_A=Z=+—HLEFEHRF
BEEE A ARY1,459,5007T (FBER
1,650,241870) * Wt AdreBm R E
MU AIRE 2 [ERA REEF
Ao

HE_ZT—N\F+_A=+—HLHF
B AEEREREEVRERENEL
HEREMMEEXEEEMNEREE
B(IZEB]EREHEEYRIGT
& EE A ARE 454,600 (FHER
10,726,056 7T ) By % o IR IR FZ Wik -
it 5% T8 B 7 48 7R B B HE 6 - B R 4F
ERHE - EReEERZPEHARR
1T E Mg SR B 5T B F B RIE T
AREE AT ML TE B & BBUT it
AR EBEEhAMEEDEIE
18.91%M ik B TemAEEEE
&5 -
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FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH
PROFIT OR LOSS (continued)

However, during the year ended 31 December 2018, the
management expected that it would still take long time for the
approval of the Project after reassessing the current status of
the Project based on the latest information available, and both
contracted parties had signed the early repayment contract
accordingly before 31 December 2018. The whole lending
amounts had been refunded to the Group on 7 January 2019.

Financial assets at FVTPL are presented within “operating
activities” in respect of held for trading equity securities and
“investing activities” in respect of financial assets classified
at FVTPL respectively in the consolidated statement of cash
flows.

Changes in fair values of financial assets at FVTPL are recorded
in “other income and loss, net” in the consolidated statement
of profit or loss and other comprehensive income.

The fair value of all listed equity securities held for trading is
based on their current bid prices in an active market.

The fair value of other financial assets at FVTPL as at 31
December 2018 (i.e. the loan receivable with equity convertible
term) was determined based on the discounted cash flow
of the expected cash flow estimated by the management of
the Group as at 31 December 2018. The investment was
subsequently refunded to the Group on 7 January 2019.
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26. PREPAYMENTS, DEPOSITS AND OTHER

26. AFHRIE ZERAMEKRIE

RECEIVABLES
2019 2018
—E-hE —E-N\F
HK$ HK$
I BT
Other receivables Ho b e W SRR 10,827,070 1,682,475
Other deposits and prepayments H Atz & RIB A 24,030,814 100,383,752
34,857,884 102,066,227
Represented by: B T3 &EIERR:
Non-current assets ERBNEE 2,327,126 132,865
Current assets MENE E 32,530,758 101,933,362

34,857,884 102,066,227

As at 31 December 2019, the other receivables mainly
represent the net amounts of the Input and Output Value
Added Tax on the purchase and sales of the imported motor
vehicles and other receivable from a third party in amount
of RMB5,898,694 (equivalent to HK$6,552,269) (2018:
RMB211,085 (equivalent to HK$239,472)) and RMB3,300,000
(equivalent to HK$3,698,964) respectively. Other receivables in
relation to the value-added tax would be utilised while selling
motor vehicles in subsequent period. Other receivable from a
third party was fully received on January 2020.

As at 31 December 2019, the other deposit mainly represents
the amount of trade deposit paid for the purchase of motor
vehicles which had not yet delivered to the Group, in
amount of RMB12,617,610 (equivalent to HK$14,015,641)
(2018: RMB58,804,245 (equivalent to HK$66,712,240)),
and the amount of trade deposit paid for the purchase of
motor vehicles which are for transactions in agency nature
is RMB6,005,834 (equivalent to HK$6,671,291) (2018:
RMB20,277,554 (equivalent to HK$23,004,479)). It is expected
to be recovered or utilised within 12 months after the end of
the reporting period.

R-ZZE—hhF+-_A=+—H HiE
WA B E BT O TERNERLE
EERFERKEBE = 2 EMmEK
o Bl A AR 5,898,694 (HHE K
6,552,269 L) (ZE—N\F: AR
211,0857C (FA % 1R239,472/8 L) ) &
A R #3,300,0007T (48 %5 723,698,964
PETT) o B EIG A B R H b WRIE i
REZBPREEE TERESH -REE=
AZEMERFER-_ZT_ZTF—A2
g @l

WoZB-AFE+-A=+—8 Hiix
STEEMBEDNAZRETAEEZ
REYNNESIZe ARK12,617,610
7T (HHER14,015,6418 L) (= F
—\F: AR %58,804,2457T (HZF
R66,712,240% L) ) * Rt R L
REZEBARABELSNESIESEARE
6,005,834 7T (1855 76,671,291 L)
ZE—)N\F: AR®20,277,5547T (1
£4823,004,479%7L) ) - B E S ES
FEHRIREHERE 1+ — @A RikE =k
WAER -
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26. PREPAYMENTS, DEPOSITS AND OTHER

RECEIVABLES (continued)

As at 31 December 2019, the prepayments mainly
represent the prepayment for properties in development of
RMB1,400,000 (equivalent to HK$1,555,120) for own use in
future, which will be completed and transferred the ownership
within 24 months after the commencement of construction in
November 2019.

26.

BEARIE - &R HEbEWRIE
(%)

R-ZE—-hhFE+-_A=+—H FER
T8 = ZE 45 A R#1,400,0007T (FHER
1,555,120 70 ) R EFRMEIERE B
AEBRZZE-—LF+—ARKEL
% R2AE A NTER I ERZTARE) ©

27. BANK BALANCES AND CASH 27. SRITHGBRRIRE
(a) Cash and cash equivalent (a) Re2RRE&£%EEIEH

2019 2018

—E-hE —E-N\F

HK$ HK$

I 75 T

Cash at bank and on hand RITRFHEES 116,674,910 159,252,327
Short-term bank deposits WEIRITIF X 2,124,669 2,100,546

Cash and cash equivalents ReMBSFHEER 118,799,579 161,352,873

As at 31 December 2019, the Group had bank balances
and cash of approximately HK$64,523,060 (2018:
HK$65,189,227) which are denominated in RMB. The
remittance of these funds out of the PRC is subject to
the exchange control restrictions imposed by the PRC
Government.

The bank balances are deposited with creditworthy banks
with no recent history of default.

ERETEEEEARAT | ZE-NFFH

RZE—NF+ZA=+—H =&
SBBEUARKEIERITEBRR
IR & 4964,523,0608 70 ( —ZF— N\
F: 65,189,227 TT) - IFZERK
TAPE H AR BIR AN R B U B b
2 HINEE B I AT BR ©

ERRTEBEREERKFAE
AT HRYE R AC 8% 2 SRAT
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 EHZE—F

27. BANK BALANCES AND CASH (continued)

—NEFTZA=+T—RLFE

27. RITHGBREE (&)

(a) Cash and cash equivalent (continued) (a) RE&RBLEHEIER (&)
Bank balances and cash include the following for the MEEBRERERMS @ |ITEH
purposes of the consolidated statement of cash flows: FBESBEATEE:
2019 2018
—EB-NhEF —EF-N\F
HK$ HK$
I BT
General accounts and cash —RERP RRE 113,058,968 153,053,508
Segregated trust bank balances B {Z:EERF & & 5,740,611 8,299,365
Cash and cash equivalents RekHESEHEIER 118,799,579 161,352,873
(b) Reconciliation of liabilities arising from financing (b) BMEFTEFELEEFEZHER
activities
The table below details changes in the Group’s liabilities TRAMAAAEEGE T
from financing activities, including both cash and non EEBECEY REHeRIER
cash changes. Liabilities arising from financing activities SEH) o mﬂéﬁﬁiﬁﬁﬁ?i% L?El n
are liabilities for which cash flow were, or future cash AEBGERERER W PR
flows will be, classified in the Group’s consolidated MEEEAEE R RES IJZ ﬂi
statement of cash flows as cash flows from financing KREmEZBE
activities.
Total
Unsecured Unsecured liabilities
Secured borrowings - borrowings - from
Lease bank related unrelated financing
liabilities borrowings party party activities
HHEE ERAGR- ISR - FEE
HEAR RITHER A E] ) BfElE
HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$
ik ik HET HATT e
Asat 1 January 2019 R-Z2-NE—FA—H 5,109,411 4,497,498 = = 9,606,909
Changes from financing cash flow: %ﬂiﬁﬁ%ﬁ;g
Proceeds from REEHRERZ
unsecured borrowings BHE - - 38,441,080 38,957,170 42,398,250
Repayments of bank borrowings RITERZER - (2,120,965) - = (2,120,965)
Repayments of unsecured borrowings  EEBER 2 B0 - - (38,441,080) (8,957,170) (42,398,250)
Repayments of lease liabilities HEABZER (3,779,543) - - - (3,779,543)
Interest paid BAF & = (114,719) (270,853) (16,355) (401,927)
Total changes from financing cash flows BE B & K E LB BH (8,779,543) (2,235,684) (270,853) (16,355) (6,302,435)
Other changes: Hit 28
Addition of lease liabilities BEREZEM 4,034,844 = = = 4,034,844
Lease modification HEET (657,480) - - - (657,480)
Currency translation difference EHBEEE (105,439) - - - (105,439)
Interest expenses FERX 333,228 114,719 270,853 16,355 735,155
Total other changes EbEBng 3,605,153 114,719 270,853 16,355 4,007,080
As at 31 December 2019 R-E-NE+-A=+—H 4,935,021 2,376,533 - - 7,311,554
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27. BANK BALANCES AND CASH (continued)

(b)

Reconciliation of liabilities arising from financing

27. SRITHEBRRIAE (£&)

(b)

MESHFMELBRZHER

activities (continued) (%)
Total
liabilities
Secured Unsecured from
bank borrowings - financing
borrowings related party activities
MEEY
BHEE \BEMRER- FTE %
RITE R BREANL BER
HK$ HK$ HK$
BT T BT
As at 1 January 2018 RNZZE—-—NF—H—H 6,556,013 47,836,800 54,392,813
Changes from financing BER & RELH
cash flow:
Repayment of unsecured f{& & 4 3R {2 5
borrowings - related —BREAT
party - (45,379,200) (45,379,200)
Repayments of bank RITEBERZERK
borrowings (2,058,515) - (2,058,515)
Interest paid 2 FE (171,590) (241,003) (412,593)
Total changes from BMERSREFZ LT
financing cash flows (2,230,105) (45,620,203) (47,850,308)
Exchange adjustments [ 5 7% - (2,457,600) (2,457,600)
Other changes: b
Interest expenses FBERX 171,590 241,003 412,593
Total other changes Hib & sazR 171,590 241,003 412,593
As at 31 December 2018 A =T — /\ 5
+=-—A=+—8H 4,497,498 - 4,497,498

FHEREMERAT | —EB-NEFH
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 BE-Z—NF+-_A=+—HILFE

28. DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS 28. ERILEEE
As a result of the disposal of Shenzhen Star Technology, a HRHEEENBRARNRYIMAEBE
wholly-owned subsidiary (Note 29), the trading of electronic H(HizE29) " SHEEFTEMR BTEAE
products, electronic student cards and school safety products BERBELZEZERMEHEFELEFTFE
and provision of electronic student card platform businesses is BZEBRINRBERIEREER-
presented as discontinued operations.
The results of the discontinued operations included in the EEEEgEasEWRREESRE R
consolidated statement of comprehensive income and ERJORIERESERNELSE Y W
consolidated statement of cash flow are set out below. T
The losses from the discontinued operations for the current and KEDR |HREER S FRNE FEEE
prior year are analysed as follows: BrOWmMT:
2019 2018
—E-NE ZE-N\F
Note HK$ HK$
H 5 I BT
Revenue g 3,069,090 3,428,384
Other income and loss, net H b U A N B 18 F 58 39,136 14,545
Changes in inventories of finished K @7F&E 2 &
good (1,563,354) (145,112)
Written down of inventories F & Mo (1,486,081) (1,558,832)
Other direct costs Efh B ERAR (1,959) (15,772)
Employee benefits expenses EEBAMAX (2,538,011) (2,476,188)
Depreciation of property, plant YU B R EITE
and equipments (114,996) (162,444)
Other operating expenses Hh & @M (2,159,000) (874,760)
Loss on disposal of a subsidiary & —EHE QR ZEE 29 (4,382,709) -
Loss from discontinued RE DR IEEE ST 2 B
operations (9,137,884) (1,790,179)
Other comprehensive loss from REBRIEEZEEZ
discontinued operations: Hth2mEEE:
Exchange loss on translating REERBE=ENDHE
foreign operation reclassified ZEBIREBINES
from equity to profit or loss ZE N B
upon disposal 4,696,249 67,700
(4,441,635) (1,722,479)
Net cash used in operating ESTENEH 7RSS FE
activities (2,787,519) (594,154)
Net cash generated from/(used in) REZBES, (FH) 2
investing activities ReFE 1,670,840 (47,076)
Net decrease in cash and cash RekReFEEARD
equivalents H1E (2,882,154) (641,230)
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 HE—ZT—AF+-A=+—RAIFE

29.

On 31 October 2019, the Group disposed of 100% equity
interest in Shenzhen Star Technology at RMB2,437,300
(equivalent to HK$2,698,700). All cash consideration was
received in October 2019. Summary of the effect of the

HE—EHREBAT

RZEBE—hEFE+A=+—H AEBK
A R #2,437,3007T (1855 722,698,700
o) HERERIT R E BEFH100%M%
E-EHESREBER-_ZE—NFT+A

disposal is as follows: WE - HEEH Batan T
2019
—E-hE
HK$
T
Net assets disposal of: BEHEEEFE:
Property, plant and equipments L ER Y L] 112,335
Inventories ey 1,089,721
Prepayment B 38 404,456
Other receivables H 4th & We FR0R 813,049
Bank balances and cash RITEHRLAS 933,225
Other payables and accruals H b B 308 K B FT 5RIE (967,626)
2,385,160
Exchange loss on translating foreign operation REEHEEFZERDBEEEHZ
reclassified from equity to profit or loss upon MEBINETE 2 E R B A
disposal 4,696,249
7,081,409
Loss on disposal of a subsidiary HE—RIB AR ZEE (4,382,709)
2,698,700
Satisfied by: ATHI 5 B
Cash consideration received BB RE 2,698,700
Analysis of net inflow of cash and FREHE—HEHBATZEER
cash equivalents in respect of ReEEEBFRADN:
the disposal of a subsidiary:
Cash consideration HaRE 2,698,700
Cash and bank deposit disposal of BEHERS RBITER (933,225)
Net cash inflow from disposal of a subsidiary K& HE—HHB AR ZIREFRA 1,765,475

ERETEEEEARAT | ZE-NFFH
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 BE-Z—NF+-_A=+—HILFE

29. DISPOSAL OF SUBSIDIARIES (continued) 29. HEMBAS (&)
On 1 July 2018, the Group disposed of 100% equity interest in RZZE-—NF+LA—H Tx&EEIZAR
RYNERZE AL EE AR AF (transliterated as Shenzhen #12,656,7507T (16 % 114,938,382/%
Sky Picture Culture Communications Company Limited), & TT)HERNERFZESULEEERA
YT BEEEMAR AT (transliterated as Shenzhen Wealth AU EENBRENTERAR ([
Alliance Networking Company Limited) (“Wealth Alliance”) B EAEAFAzHE R TIEE (B
and the associate, First China (Liaoning) Agricultural Products HE)EERMRSHOBRRF100%A
Trading Centre Company Limited which was held by Wealth BmoHESH ZERAWT
Alliance at RMB12,656,750 (equivalent to HK$14,938,382).
Summary of the effect of the disposal is as follows:
2018
—T-N\E
HK$
T
Net assets disposal of: EHEEEFE:
Property, plant and equipments R YR 2,447,018
Other receivable H b fE W FIE 603,832
Bank balances and cash RITHEHR MRS 328,023
Other payables and accruals HAa e 5B R ERTE R (1,802,158)
1,576,715
Exchange loss on translating foreign operation HREERNAREZETNDBEEER Y
reclassified from equity to profit or loss MEBINETS 2 E R B R
upon disposal 1,001,474
2,578,189
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries HEMB ARz KR 12,360,193
14,938,382
Satisfied by: IATH 75 E -
Cash consideration received BWIRERE 14,938,382
Analysis of net inflow of cash and cash ERLENBRARZEREER
equivalents in respect of the disposal of HeEEEBEEFRADN:
subsidiaries:
Cash consideration ReRE 14,938,382
Cash and bank deposit disposal of BEHERS RIRITHER (328,023)
Net cash inflow from disposal of subsidiaries KELEMBE AR ZREFRA 14,610,359
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30. ENESRIE

2019 2018
—F-hEF —T-N\F
HK$ HK$
AT T

Amounts payable arising from B AR AD FE TS P EE A RN RIE

securities broking:

Margin clients REFEEEP 89,449 532,037
Cash clients ReEP 5,674,951 7,733,188
Other trade payables His e & Z3E 5,897 5,897
5,770,297 8,271,122

Amounts payable to margin clients are repayable on demand.
No aged analysis is disclosed as, in the opinion of the
directors, the aged analysis does not give additional value
in view of the nature of the business of securities margin

financing.

The settlement terms of amounts payable arising from
securities broking are one or two trade days after the trade
execution date. Except for the amounts payable to margin
clients as mentioned above, these balances are aged within 30

days.

The following is an aged analysis of other trade payables at the

end of each reporting period:

BNRESEPRARREREE £
REFRECHEXH ML EFR
BRI DT W EAL A REIMEE - 8RB
BRI DA

B A T A PR IR AR T
ZHEME—SREXS AR B
FREMEESESREN B RAR
=+RABM-

HMEMNE S HRBREREHRZERER
ST

2019 2018

—E-NE —E-N\F

HK$ HK$

I BT

0-30 days 0&£30H - -
31-90 days 31290H - -
91-180 days 91%180H - -
181-365 days 181£365H - -
Over 365 days 365H A £ 5,897 5,897
5,897 5,897
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31. OTHER PAYABLES AND ACCRUALS 31.

Included in other payables of the Group as at 31 December
2019 and 2018 were the following amounts:

H th FE {4 =R I8 R FE ST FRIB
AEERZZ—NEFR T N\F+=
A=+—BzEMEMNFBERIENUATR
15 :

2019 2018
—E-NE —E-NF
HK$ HK$
B IT 78 TT
Other payables and accruals E e A~ FROBE N FE AT A 2,182,270 2,141,058
Deposit received for disposal of FRLENBRARIZEWE £
a subsidiary (Note 43) (F$5E43) 1,710,000 -
Received in advance in respect of BANRERY 2 FEWFKIA
agency services 9,441,800 -
Provision of consumption tax and BHABEES 2 HEEBH K
customs duties in respect of trading of B8 %% #
motor vehicles 11,887,396 13,634,518
25,221,466 15,775,576
32. CONTRACT LIABILITIES EHAaR
2019 2018
—E-NE —E-N\F
HK$ HK$
I 7T
Billing in advance of performance B4 2 TBUER R
— Agency services —RIB AR TS 602,081 2,282,952
— Trading as principal —FTEASGMEE 3,515,836 20,284
4,117,917 2,303,236

The contract liabilities are expected to be recognised as
income within one year.

The payment terms have impact on the amount of contract
liabilities recognised. When the Group receives a deposit
before fulfilling its agency obligations on sourcing and principal
obligations on trading of the motor vehicles, this will give
rise to contract liabilities at the start of a contract, until the
consideration received is recognised as revenue.

BHREHEMN —FAEZ/EA-

XHERECRRBENABSRELY
E-HMAKERBETEERRE 1EN
REGHETRFEETENEEASN
BEEREGSEZS ISR EQONHE
EEHMBE BEECRRERER R
Ao
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32. CONTRACT LIABILITIES (continued) 32. E¥IEE (&)
Movements in contract liabilities SHaBEEE
2019 2018
—E-hE —E-N\F
HK$ HK$
BT 78 T
Balance at 1 January R—A—Bz#&% 2,303,236 5,321,724
Decrease in contract liabilities as a AR FEREA
result of recognising revenue during mMeLafaERd
the year (212,420) (5,321,724)
Decrease in contract liabilities as a RS W E SiEe
result of forfeited trade deposit meeaHadEnd (731,828) -
Increase in contract liabilities as a NEEAEH KR
result of billing in advance of principal K32 IR % 2 78 Uk 7 3B
and agency service SEHENABIEN 2,840,242 2,303,236
Currency translation difference EWEN =% (81,313) -
Balance at 31 December Rt+t-_A=+—B2&% 4,117,917 2,303,236
33. PROVISIONS 33. &
2019 2018
—E-hEF —E—N\F
HK$ HK$
AT BT
Provision of compensation and HEREEBRARE
legal fee 5,770,883 -
Provision for loss on onerous contracts A {8 & 47 /& 18 & & 15,778,469 -
21,549,352 -

Management estimates the provision for onerous contracts,
which are related to situation where motor vehicles have not
been delivered to the Group but purchase agreements were
entered into before 31 December 2019, being the present
obligation of the unavoidable costs less the economic benefits
expected to be received under the non-cancellable purchase
contract of motor vehicles. The expected economic benefits
are estimated based on estimated future sales and selling price
taking reference by the existing market condition and estimated
number of motor vehicles sold under the existing market
condition while unavoidable costs are estimated based on the
motor vehicles purchase contracts that the Group is obliged to
settle.

ERETEEEEARAT | ZE-NFFH

ERERAABRAR _ZT—NF+H
=t+— BRI IRBEANBRANEE
RARENFEANBRETI A 2K
R 2 RS B AR TR HI R R A B R
BE A OB R et - TR A
@ HERSBBITHRAMGE RKIHE
REBGEBEARRBRITHRE
EHAER B ETAE WA RE 2K
RALBRAEEEZENTEBEAD
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33.

PROVISIONS (continued)

Management conducted an assessment of the non-cancellable
motor vehicles contracts and the estimates and assumptions
contained therein are reviewed regularly. As at 31 December
2019, provision for loss on onerous contracts are at carrying
amount of HK$15,778,469 (2018: Nil). It is expected to settle
within 12 months after 31 December 2019.

According to the PRC legal opinion, in April 2019, a customer
proposed litigation in the People’s Court of Tianjin City against
Sheng Yu Hong Jia in relation to a dispute related to amounts
of RMB5,000,000 paid to a trading company on behalf of
Sheng Yu Hong Jia. The customer believed that RMB5,000,000
was a loan to Sheng Yu Hong Jia and claimed as corporate
loan dispute. However, Sheng Yu Hong Jia believed such
amount was the deposit for purchase of motor vehicle instead
of a loan and it should be a sale contract dispute instead of
corporate loan dispute.

In the first instance of the trial in September 2019, it was
held that Sheng Yu Hong Jia should return the loan of
RMB5,000,000 to that customer. Sheng Yu Hong Jia has filed
an appeal to Tianjin Second Intermediate People’s Court but it
was rejected. In this connection, the Group made a provision of
RMB5,195,249 (equivalent to HK$5,770,883) in relation to an
estimated cash outflow in relation to the compensation for the
legal litigation for the year ended 31 December 2019.

33.

i (E)

EIREY AT AE RE AL BT
BEHREHEFRMEOMGHT REREZ RN
—ZE-NAE+-A=1t—B BELY
BB E 2 BRMEE A15,778,4697 7T
(ZE—N\F:8\) - HERHEHN =
T-NF+-_A=Z+—HBE+-EAR
s

BEFEEZER R_ZE—ALFN
B —&BFRXEMARZERIZRER
AR EIAH R E PR A —
5~ 8%+ A R#5,000,0007T 8 F
FoZEBFPRBZARES,000,0007T A
BFRARAEOER WA &A= R
BACEEEFHEFL-BER BAass
REBBSHEABERENRESMIE
B AMEBEBEFREAMEANTZ
MIECEEEFR-

RZZFE—HhFNAVEE &S
EHHEBERZEFPFBEEERARE
5,000,0007C ° B A1 Gh 32 B R K BT H
THRARERREL EFF B EHFW
BOo-FAiy &z —NLF+=A
=+ HULFE AEBECRBEBREE
FABEEZHTRESRHTREBA
R #5,195,2497C (#8% 145,770,883/%
JL) °
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34. BORROWINGS 34. &
2019 2018
—g-n&E —T &
HK$ HK$
T BT
Secured borrowing included in FFAMBBENAKTER
current liabilities — bank borrowings —RITIERX 2,376,533 4,497,498
Notes: B &
(a) The maturity of borrowings is as follows (note (c)): (a) BFEHAFBEOT (i) :
2019 2018
—E-hE —E-N\F
HK$ HK$
T 7S T
On demand or within one year BERS—FR 2,190,891 2,120,923
In the second year F_F 185,642 2,190,889
In the third to fifth year E-EERF - 185,686
2,376,533 4,497,498
At 31 December 2019 and 2018, the bank borrowings of the Group were RZE-—NFERZZE-N\F+ZA=+—
secured by the charges over the Group’s leasehold land and buildings B AEBRTERAREE 2 HEL MR
(Note 15) and corporate guarantees executed by the Company (Note EF (M F15)EREH  WHARFRME
41). At 31 December 2019 and 2018, the Group’s bank borrowings are AEER (HF41) RZTE—AFR=F
denominated in HK$, bearing floating interest rate of 3.25% (2018: 3.25%) —N\F+ZA=+—8 AEBZRITER
per annum. BHUBTTIME EHFUNFEI2E(ZF
—\F :3.25[F )5t B -
(b) The amounts due are based on the scheduled repayment dates set out in (b) FE 1 & B8 T0 R B R 5 o P TR R A A0 A BT
the loan agreement. =
() The bank borrowings are shown under current liabilities as the loan (c) HRERBEEEBRERERER WIER

agreement contains a repayment on demand clause.
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35. DEFERRED INCOME TAX LIABILITIES 35. IREEFREHER

The movement on the deferred tax liabilities is as follows:

EXEFEHEBEZESH T :

Accelerated

tax

depreciation

kB IERE

HK$

T

Balance as at 1 January 2018 RZE-NF-—HA—B2&#® 3,290,066
Credited to profit or loss FFAEE (181,549)
Balance as at 31 December 2018 RZZE-N\F+_RA=+—R2&H 3,108,517
Balance as at 1 January 2019 RZE—NF—AR—HZ&&% 3,108,517
Credited to profit or loss T AB &= (181,549)
Balance as at 31 December 2019 RZZFE-—NWFTZA=+—H2&% 2,926,968

A deferred tax asset has not been recognised in the
consolidated financial statements in respect of estimated
unused tax losses available for offset against future profits due
to the uncertainty of future profit streams.

Under the current general provision of the PRC enterprise
income tax law and published tax circulars, deferred taxation
has been provided for in the consolidated financial statements
in respect of the withholding tax that would be payable on
unremitted earnings of a PRC associate of the Group at the
rate of 10%.

No deferred tax liabilities have been recognised in respect
of the unremitted earnings of PRC subsidiaries because the
Group is in a position to control the dividend policies of these
subsidiaries and it is probable that such differences will not be
reversed in the foreseeable future. As at 31 December 2019
and 2018, the unrecognised temporary differences in respect
of the unremitted earnings of the PRC subsidiaries attributable
to the Group are RMB45,387,873 and RMB54,026,789
respectively.

As at 31 December 2019, the unrecognised tax losses
of the Group amounted to HK$386,349,543 (2018:
HK$284,259,718). These tax losses have no expiry date except
that HK$134,058,198 will expire from 2019 to 2024 (2018:
HK$46,633,994 expire from 2019 to 2023).

R BERETE B 1R % M SRR - it R
FEMBmARRAIBUARERR G
BRI ABDARBGERERELEHRAE
?EO

RIEF BB RAFRIA 2 RIT—MIKX
KRBT Z BBEL CRER PR
RERAEE 2 P BB E QR ZKEH
BFIZBIZ10E 2 M R Bk 2 BIBLAF th
AESETH IR s o

HRAEEARENZEMNBARZ
REBRX BERE=8uETanR
7% 27 B - R0 A P B B R R 2 R
EHRANEREEREARE-R _-F
“NER_Z-N\F+_A=+—8"
AEREBAEEZHEMB AR Z
AEHBMNZERZRZDHIA/ARYE
45,387,8737C ) A R #54,026,7897T

R-ZZE—-—hE+-A=+—R8 K&
B 2 & iR IAE 18 5386,349,5437%
gL (=T — )\ : 284,259,718 1) °
$2134,058,198 B LN T — L FE=E
—E-_OFHEER (ZE -\ F:
46,633,994 TN —_E—HLEE-ZF
T FHEER) N ZERBBBETE
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36. SHARE CAPITAL AND PREMIUM

37.

36. BRARGEE

Number of Ordinary Share
issued shares shares premium Total
ERTRHEE i By [ 3 i B @t
(in thousands) HK$ HK$ HK$
(1) BT BT BT
At 1 January 2018 RZE-NF—H—H 6,498,958 64,989,582 1,614,798,866 1,679,788,448
Cancellation of shares under escrow HHTERRZRD
arrangement (200,000) (2,000,000) (14,000,000) (16,000,000)
New issuance during the year FRETET 1,450,000 14,500,000 72,500,000 87,000,000
At 31 December 2018, 1 January 2019 RZZE-N\F+ZA=+-H"
and 31 December 2019 “Z-nF-R-HR
—E-NE+ZA=+-A 7,748,958 77,489,582  1,673,298,866  1,750,788,448
On 28 June 2018, the Company retrieved 200,000,000 RZE-NFRNAZ+NR KX2AEHK
consideration shares held in escrow arrangement and delivered [l 1R #& 5t & Z BE#5 B 2 200,000,000%
the certificates for the 200,000,000 consideration shares to RERG LMEEERNDBFPERLD
its Hong Kong branch share registrar, Hong Kong Registrars EEBBESHFELBRARBEIFE NG
Limited for cancellation. #4200,000,000/% (B i 7
On 3 September 2018, new shares of 1,450,000,000 was to R-ZZE—\FNHA=H"1,450,000,000
be subscripted. The issuance completed on 12 October 2018. BREFRD SR - ZHITERZZT—NF
+A+ZHZEK-
The total authorised number of ordinary shares is A TF iR R 48 81 4510,000,000,0000%
10,000,000,000 shares (2018: 10,000,000,000 shares) with a (=—Z— )\%:10,000,000,0000%) -
par value of HK$0.01 per share (2018: HK$0.01 per share). All FEEAECOIBT(ZE-—N\F: 5K
issued shares are fully paid. 0.0187T) ° FTBE EHITRMH KB EH
2o
RESERVE 37.

(i) Special reserve

The special reserve of the Group represents the difference
between the nominal amount of the shares issued by the
Company and the aggregate of the nominal amount of the
issued share capital and share premium of Sinofortune
Financial Holdings (BVI) Limited acquired pursuant to the
corporate reorganisation undertaken in preparation for the
listing of the Company’s shares on GEM on 11 January
2002.

ERETEEEEARAT | ZE-NFFH

f#E
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REEZ K RlFEBI RN R RRIE
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37. RESERVE (continued)

(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

Statutory reserve

PRC companies are required to appropriate 10% of
statutory net profits to statutory reserve, upon distribution
of their post-tax profits in accordance with the PRC
laws and regulations. A company may discontinue the
contribution when aggregate sum of the statutory surplus
reserve is more than 50% of its registered capital. The
statutory surplus reserves shall only be used make up
losses of the companies, to expand the companies’
operation, or to increase the capital of the companies.

Translation reserve

Exchange translation reserve comprises all foreign
exchange differences arising from the translation of the
financial statements of foreign operations. The reserve is
dealt with in accordance with the accounting policies set
out in Note 2.5.

Other reserve

Other reserve comprises of the effect of the escrow
shares retrieval and to be cancelled, in accordance with
the arrangement.

38. SHARE OPTION SCHEMES

(a)

The Old Share Option Scheme

The Company operates a share option scheme under
which persons working for the interest of the Group are
entitled to an opportunity to obtain equity interest in the
Company. The number of shares in respect of which
options may be granted under the share option scheme
and any other share option schemes is not permitted to
exceed 30% of the shares of the Company in issue from
time to time, without prior approval from the Company’s
shareholders. The maximum number of shares issued and
to be issued upon exercise of options granted and to be
granted pursuant to the Old Share Option Scheme and
any other share options schemes of the Company to any
person (including both exercised and outstanding options)
in any 12-month period up to the date of grant of options
shall not exceed 1% of the shares of the Company
in issue, without prior approval from the Company’s
shareholders.

37. & (&)

(i)

(iii)

(iv)
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7R E BR 1R 04 M B - 2B DA E
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H 1t B 8 PR AR SRR 2
RS FEHZEERD 2T E

=

38. REBAxHE:TEI

(a)

ERRETE
ARAREEBRESS MARE
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AREZHE - IRIFREARAK
RELIE  BAREBRETE
R AT E b S A AT &1 /] TR A
ZERRERTS RERMBA TS5
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38. SHARE OPTION SCHEMES (continued)

(a)

The Old Share Option Scheme (continued)

The Old Share Option Scheme was adopted pursuant
to a resolution passed on 17 December 2001. The
purpose of the Old Share Option Scheme is to provide
the people and the parties working for the interest of the
Group with an opportunity to obtain equity interest in the
Company, thus linking their interest with the interest of
the Group and thereby providing them with an incentive
to work better for the interest of the Group. Under the
Old Share Option Scheme, the Board of Directors of
the Company may grant options to eligible employees,
including Directors of the Company and its subsidiaries,
to subscribe for shares in the Company. Additionally, the
Company may, from time to time, grant share options to
outside third parties for settlement in respect of goods or
services provided to the Group.

HK$1 is payable on the acceptance of the option per
grant. Options may generally be exercised at any time
during a period to be notified by the Board to each
grantee provided that the period within which the option
must be exercised shall not be more than 10 years from
the date of grant of the share option.

The exercise price is determined by the Board, and will
not be less than the higher of (i) the closing price of the
Company’s shares on the date of grant; (ii) the average
closing price of the shares for the five Trading Days
immediately preceding the date of grant; and (iii)) the
nominal value of a share.

The Old Share Option Scheme adopted by the Company
on 17 December 2001 had expired on 16 December
2011. The Company has adopted the New Share Option
Scheme on 21 June 2012.

FHEREMERAT | —EB-NEFH

38. RERxHERTEI (&)

(a)
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38. SHARE OPTION SCHEMES (continued) 38. MEMRtEstEl (&)
(a) The OId Share Option Scheme (continued) (a) EEEERRMERTEI (&)
The following table discloses the movements of the share TRERHZE-T-NLF+=A
options granted under the Old Share Option Scheme =T —HILEFEREBEEERER
during the year ended 31 December 2019: MR LERE 2
Number of share options
BREXE
Outstanding Outstanding
as at Granted Lapsed as at
Exercise  Exercisable 1 January during during the 31 December
Name of grantee Date of grant price  period 2019 the year year 2019
Rog-1% RZF-1E
-A-H +-R=+-H
REARE A% i EHE AT ERR ERKY AT
Ms. Lai Yuk Mui 13 April 2010 HK$0.419  13/04/2010 - 12/04/2020 3,186,158 - - 3,186,158
(executive director)
REGLL (H0EE) —Z-%% 04198 —E-TFNAT=RAZE
MmA+=H ZZCRERATCA
Mr. Liu Runtong 13 April 2010 HK$0.419  13/04/2010 - 12/04/2020 31,861,575 - - 31,861,575
(non-executive director)
UEREE (FB0ES) ZE-%F 04198 —T-TEMAT=RZ
mA+=R ZT-TFNATCA
Professor Zhang Benzheng 13 April 2010 HK$0.419  13/04/2010 - 12/04/2020 2,124,105 - - 2,124,105
(independent non-
executive director)
FAEHR (BUFHTES) ZE-%F 04198 —T-TEMAT=RZ
mA+=A CECEEMATCR
Sub-total for directors 37,171,838 - - 37,171,838
Rl
3 employees 13 April 2010 HK$0.419  13/04/2010 - 12/04/2020 45,668,257 - - 45,668,257
ZZE8 —5-%% 04195 —E-TEMATZHEZ
mA+=A ZZ-TENATCA

Sub-total for employees 45,668,257 - - 45,668,257
(B8 /NGt

Total 82,840,095 - - 82,840,095
@3

Weight average exercise price 0.419 - - 0.419
METHTEE
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38. SHARE OPTION SCHEMES (continued) 38. MERxHEstEl (&)
(a) The Old Share Option Scheme (continued) (a) EREIRESTE(Z)
The following table discloses the movements of the share TRERZHZE-_ZT-NF+=A
options granted under the Old Share Option Scheme =T —HILEFEREBEEERER
during the year ended 31 December 2018: SR ERE 28
Number of share options
BRELE
Outstanding Outstanding
as at Granted Lapsed as at
Exercise  Exercisable 1 January during during the 31 December
Name of grantee Date of grant price  period 2018 the year year 2018
RZE-N\¥ RZE-N\#
-A-H TZA=t+-8
EEALE sk %E  TEEE HAITE EREL EREH HWATTE
Ms. Lai Yuk Mui (executive director) 13 April 2010 HK$0.419  13/04/2010 - 12/04/2020 3,186,158 - - 3,186,158
RERRL(H7ES) —I-%f 04198 —T-TEMAT=RZ
mA+=R ZETEMATCR
Mr. Liu Runtong 13 April 2010 HK$0.419  13/04/2010 - 12/04/2020 31,861,675 - - 31,861,575
(non-executive director)
UEREE (FBES) “E-%F 041987 —E-TEMAT=HZE
mA+=R ZECEEMATCR
Professor Zhang Benzheng 13 April 2010 HK$0.419  13/04/2010 - 12/04/2020 2,124,105 - - 2,124,105
(independent non-executive
director)
FALHR (BUERITES) —E-%% 04198 —E-ZFMAT=AZ
MmA+=H “B-RENATCA
Sub-total for directors 37,171,838 - - 37,171,838
B
3 employees 13 April 2010 HK$0.419  13/04/2010 - 12/04/2020 45,668,257 - - 45,668,257
ZZEE -5-%% 04195 —E-TEMATZHZ

mA+=A e
Sub-total for employees 45,668,257 - - 45,668,257
{8/t
Total 82,840,095 - - 82,840,095
3t
Weight average exercise price 0419 - - 0419
MEFHEE
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38. SHARE OPTION SCHEMES (continued)

(a)

(b)

The Old Share Option Scheme (continued)

As at 31 December 2019, the Company had 82,840,095
(2018: 82,840,095) share options outstanding for the
share options granted under the Old Share Option
Scheme. The exercise in full of the remaining share
options would, under result in the issue of 82,840,095
(2018: 82,840,095) additional ordinary shares of the
Company and additional share capital of HK$828,401 and
share premium of HK$33,881,599 (2018: share capital of
HK$828,401 and share premium of HK$33,881,599).

The New Share Option Scheme

The Company operates a New Share Option scheme
under which person working for the interest of the Group
are entitled to an opportunity to obtain equity interest in
the Company. The number of shares in respect of which
options may be granted under the New Share Option
Scheme and any other share option schemes is not
permitted to exceed 30% of the shares of the Company
in issue from time to time, without prior approval from
the Company’s shareholders. The maximum number of
shares issued and to be issued upon exercise of options
granted and to be granted pursuant to the New Share
Option Scheme and any other share options schemes of
the Company to any person (including both exercised and
outstanding options) in any 12-month period up to the
date of grant of options shall not exceed 1% of the shares
of the Company in issue, without prior approval from the
Company’s shareholders.

The New Share Option Scheme was adopted pursuant to
are solution passed on 21 June 2012. The purpose of the
New Share Option Scheme is to provide the people and
the parties working for the interest of the Group with an
opportunity to obtain equity interest in the Company, thus
linking their interest with the interest of the Group and
there by providing them with an incentive to work better
for the interest of the Group. Under the New Share Option
Scheme, the Board of Directors of the Company may
grant options to eligible employees, including Directors of
the Company and its subsidiaries, to subscribe for shares
in the Company. Additionally, the Company may, from
time to time, grant share options to outside third parties
for settlement in respect of goods or services provided to
the Group.

38. RERxHERTEI (&)

(a)

(b)

EEiEsTE (&)
RZEBE—-—hE+ZA=+—8"
NN FAE82,840,09510 (—F— N\
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38. SHARE OPTION SCHEMES (continued)

(b)

38. RMBAxHERTEI (&

The New Share Option Scheme (continued) (b) FEERRMERTEI (&)
HK$1 is payable on the acceptance of the option per EMERESARSARNZE
grant. Options may generally be exercised at any time Rt BT BRE—RATR
during a period to be notified by the Board to each EFRANSARAZHBEAE
grantee provided that the period within which the option IR FETT IR - MERE AR A 2 1T IR HAMR
must be exercised shall not be more than 10 years from R ERERBRERTTSEA
the date of grant of the share option. T
The exercise price is determined by the Board, and will TEERESEET B TERT
not be less than the higher of (i) the closing price of the =F2Z2&=ER: (AR A KL
Company’s shares on the date of grant; (ii) the average REL BB ZBHE: (\RHRE
closing price of the shares for the five Trading Days EEHDAEAERSHZFY
immediately preceding the date of grant; and (iii) the W & ¢ R (i) A2 m R E1E
nominal value of a share of the Company.
The following table discloses the movements of the share TRERZHE-ZTZ—NLF+=A
options granted under the New Share Option Scheme —+t—BLEFEREBFERES
during the year ended 31 December 2019: EIPTIR B R 2
Number of share options
EREYE
Outstanding Outstanding
as at Granted Lapsed as at
Exercise  Exercisable 1 January during during 31 December
Name of grantee Date of grant price  period 2019 the year the year 2019
RZB-hE RZB-1%
-fA-8 +ZA=t+-8
REAES REBH i@ EHE it R A7 EREH ERKY i R 1T
Mr. James Beeland Rogers Jr. 22 September 2014 HK$0.518  22/9/2014 - 21/9/2024 20,000,000 - (20,000,000) -
(non-executive Director)*
James Beeland Rogers Jr 65 —Z-M4F 0518%T Z—E-NEAAZTZRE
(kmiES)" AE=t=R ZE-MEAAZT-H
Mr. James Besland Rogers Jr. 16 October 2015 HK$0.238  16/10/2015 - 15/10/2025 20,000,000 5 (20,000,000) =
(non-executive Director)*
James Beeland Rogers e “F-RFTATAR  0288En  —T-RFTAT/AEZ
(¥aEZ)” —Z-Ff+A+EA
Mr. James Beeland Rogers Jr. 9 November 2016 HK$0.15  9/11/2016 - 8/11/2026 20,000,000 - (20,000,000) -
(non-executive Director)*
James Beeland Rogers Jr e ZE—R"¥+—ANE 015 ZE-AFT-ANEEZE
(GkaiES)" ZEZRE+-ANRB
Total 60,000,000 5 (60,000,000) =
@it
Weight average exercise price 0.302 - 0.302 -
MEFHTEE
* As Mr. James Beeland Rogers Jr. has resigned from his position as * i A James Beeland Rogers Jr.5¢ 4

a non-executive director of the Company on 8 November 2019, the
options granted to him which are not exercised have been lapsed
accordingly.

ERETEEEEARAT | ZE-NFFH
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38. SHARE OPTION SCHEMES (continued)

38. RERxHERTEI (&)

(b) The New Share Option Scheme (continued) (b) FRERARMERTEI (&)
The following table discloses the movements of the share TRERZHZE-_ZT-NF+=A
options granted under the New Share Option Scheme =T —HIEFEREBERERER
during the year ended 31 December 2018: SR ERE 28
Number of share options
BREY A
Outstanding Outstanding
as at Granted Lapsed as at
Exercise  Exercisable 1 January during during the 31 December
Name of grantee Date of grant price  period 2018 the year year 2018
RZB-N\F RZZE-N\E
-A-R +=A=+-8
ERALA R A S 1%E  EEH AT ERRH ERKH HATTE
Mr. James Beeland Rogers Jr. 22 September 2014 HK80.518  22/9/2014 - 21/9/2024 20,000,000 - - 20,000,000
(non-executive Director)
James Beeland Rogers Jr i —E -4 051881 Z—F-MFAR-T-HZ
(FEH1TEE) hE=+=R ZEEEARZT-B
Mr. James Beeland Rogers Jr. 16 October 2015 HK$0.238  16/10/2015 - 15/10/2025 20,000,000 - - 20,000,000
(non-executive Director)
James Begland Rogers i ZE-REFTAFTAA  028%n  ZT-RETATAHE
(Fa7EE) “ZZRFHATER
Mr. James Beeland Rogers Jr. 9 November 2016 HK$0.15  9/11/2016 - 8/11/2026 20,000,000 - - 20,000,000
(non-executive Director)
James Beeland Rogers Jr e —F—AF+—AABR  0158n T ~FT-ANRE
(FHITES) 2 RET-ANE
Total 60,000,000 - - 60,000,000
it
Weight average exercise price 0.302 - - 0.302

MEFHTEE

As at 31 December 2019, the Company did not have any
share options outstanding for the share options granted
under the New Share Option Scheme.

RZF-NFt+-A=1+—H 'K
RAAR B R B R 8
2 B A (e R T
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38. SHARE OPTION SCHEMES (continued)

(b)

The New Share Option Scheme (continued)

As at 31 December 2018, the Company had 60,000,000
share options outstanding for the share options granted
under the New Share Option Scheme. The exercise in full
of the remaining share options would result in the issue
of 60,000,000 additional ordinary shares of the Company
and additional share capital of HK$600,000 and share
premium of HK$17,520,000.

During the year ended 31 December 2019, Mr. James
Beeland Rogers Jr. resigned from his position, therefore
the options granted to him before but not exercised have
been lapsed.

39. OPERATING LEASE COMMITMENTS
The Group as lessee
As at 31 December 2018, the Group had future aggregated
minimum lease payments under non-cancellable operating
leases in respect of rented premises as follows:

38. RMBAxHERTEI (&

39.

(b)

et (2)

RZE—NF+ZA=+—H" =&
A &) /5 60,000,00017 18 1 ¥ W&
PERT B 2 B AR i R 1T < i
BT ZEREE2mITE  BER
A 5P 3 1760,000,000% 748 2 7] &
BA% - LA R 2 A BB SN A600,000
BT M A%AD % (B 17,520,000 7T ©

REBEEZT-—NF+ZA=1+—
A 1% & - James Beeland Rogers
Jrot EBHEE B - AU AR
ERTHERITEERED KM

EERORIE

FEEMEBREA
RZE-NF+ZA=+—H X%E
RIBETAIRHEEMORERY X RN
ZARKEREFIBRENT

2018
—E—N\F
HK$

T

No later than one year
Later than one year and no later than five years

—FR

—FREAFENRN

2,382,575
3,238,279

5,620,854

Leases in respect of rented office premises are negotiated for
an average period of one to five years.
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40. TRANSACTIONS WITH NON-CONTROLLING 40. FEERELERXD

238

INTERESTS

The Group completed making the additional capital
contribution of RMB50,000,000 (equivalent to HK$60,362,500)
to Sheng Yu Hong Jia on 25 October 2018. Following
completion of making the additional capital contribution to
Sheng Yu Hong Jia, the Group increased 3.33% interest held
in Sheng Yu Hong Jia, the Sheng Yu Hong Jia is owned as to
93.33% by the Group and as to 6.67% by an independent third
party joint venture partner. Immediately prior to the additional
capital contribution, the carrying amount of the additional
3.33% non-controlling interest in Sheng Yu Hong Jia was
RMB14,947 (equivalent to HK$16,956). The Group recognised
a decrease in non-controlling interest and increase in equity
attributable of HK$16,956.

AEEER_ZE—N\F+AZ+THHRE
P 17 B% 6 5L 3= 1€ A R #50,000,0007T
(F85 560,362,500/ 70 ) 2 FBHNEE »
SRR M B M AR E L 2 BN B 1R
7N 52 B 18 4 5% ) A 52.3.33% M 25 0 BN UA)
SR AEBRRE —EZBULE=FEE
B LD B H93.33% K 35 [26.67 %
moBEREINEER RBRABEZEE
IN3.33%IEIER S 2 REEA AR
14,94770 (5 16,9568 L) ° A&
B 7 R0R D JE I AR A o S B 0 R (G A 5
16,95678 It °

The effect on the equity attributable to the Group during the ZE-)\FEHAEEELER ZZER
year 2018 is summarised as follows: MR
2018
—E-N\F
HK$
VS TT
Carrying amount of non-controlling interests Bl TR ERE 2 REE
acquired 16,956
Consideration paid to B IEERERRE
non-controlling interests -
Excess of consideration paid RERRZIFERERR F
recognised in the transactions with non- HEERBBAENREZSHE
controlling interests reserve
within equity 16,956
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NoTEs To THE CoNsOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
EEMBHmRMFE

For the year ended 31 December 2019 HE—ZT—AF+-A=+—RAIFE

41. SIGNIFICANT RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 41. EXFHEAELRS
In addition to the transactions and balances disclosed BRI SR E U BEmEREMEEHFE 2
elsewhere in these consolidated financial statements, the D REBIN REERFATLATE
Group had the following significant related party transactions AREBAEATRS:

during the year:

2019 2018
—E-hE —E-N\F
Note HK$ HK$
M 5 I S TT
Service income received from REBREREBEFILELEH
Guangdong Brightzone BRAR([ERER])
Financial Company Limited W B 2 AR 75 A
(“Guangdong Brightzone”) (i) - 222,418
Loan to an associate BERT e Aa (ii) 2,832,540 5,400,125
Interest income from an associate KB — B E QAR 2
MEWBA (i) 61,607 -
Interest expenses paid to MARF]—HESR
a director of the Company SAFERX (iif) 270,853 -
2019 2018
—E-NE —E-N\F
HK$ HK$
I 78 TT
Key management compensation FTEEEABZHMN
— Salaries and other short-term —-HehEMEHHEEETF
employee benefits 2,775,000 2,775,000
- Post-employment benefits — BRI 36,000 36,000
2,811,000 2,811,000
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 BE-Z—NF+-_A=+—HILFE

41. SIGNIFICANT RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

(continued)
Notes:

(i) Wealth Alliance (a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company and disposed
on 1 July 2018) entered into an agreement with Guangdong Brightzone
pursuant to which Guangdong Brightzone has appointed Wealth Alliance
for the website operation and sales promotion services. The service
income was based on terms agreed between the parties involved.
Guangdong Brightzone is owned as to 51.43% by Shenzhen Guangxin
and the remaining interests by independent third parties.

Shenzhen Guangxin Investment Company Limited is controlled by Ms.
Chen Dongjin. Ms. Chen Dongjin is the mother of Mr. Wang Jiawei (who is
the Director of the Company) and the spouse of Mr. Wang Wenming (who
is a former Director of the Company) and is therefore an associate of a
connected person of the Company as defined in the GEM Listing Rules.
Accordingly, the transactions between Wealth Alliance and Guangdong
Brightzone under the Sales Agency Agreement constitute continuing
connected transactions on the part of the Company under the GEM
Listing Rules.

(ii) Pursuant to loan agreements entered into on 18 January 2019, 3 April
2019 and 24 June 2019 between Qianhai First China, an associate of the
Group, and Sinofortune Education and Guoyin, both are subsidiaries of
the Company, amounting to RMB2,550,000 (equivalent to HK$2,832,540)
as at 31 December 2019, those loans were unsecured, interest charged at
1.95% per annum and repayable in December 2019.

Pursuant to loan agreements entered into on 22 February 2018, 16 May
2018, 6 June 2018, 26 July 2018, 30 August 2018, 13 September 2018
and 28 November 2018 between Qianhai First China, an associate of
the Group, and Sinofortune Education, a subsidiary of the Company,
amounting to RMB4,760,000 (equivalent to HK$5,400,125) as at 31
December 2018, those loans were unsecured, interest charged at 1.95%
per annum and repayable in February to November 2019.

(iii) Interest paid to Mr. Wang Jiawei (a director of the Company) is charged at
8% per annum.

The Company has given a corporate guarantee to the extent
of HK$30,230,000 (2018: HK$30,230,000) to a bank in
respect of general banking facility granted to two (2018: two)
of its subsidiaries. As at 31 December 2019, an amount of
HK$2,376,533 (2018: HK$4,497,498) of such facility was being
utilised by the subsidiaries. In the opinion of the Directors, no
material liabilities will arise from the above corporate guarantee
which arose in the ordinary course of business and fair value of
the corporate guarantee granted by the Company is immaterial.

41.

EXAHEALXS (&)
fi i

0] BER(ARRIZ2EMBRARER =N
FEA—ARLE) BERERT LI
Bt BREREAEBRHEEUELRE
MR EREIRS  RBRATDREE
FEERERETE - BERERD B d R E
ERBIFE=FHAES1.43% R T trEm -

RYTEEREBERAFARLE L LR
Bl REEBLLTARARREFERELEL
BEEARAAEEEEXRELEZRE
At RARBEREALZHEA (EE
SGEMLEMARERI) « Eit - B EGEM E T
B EEEERERBIRHEE QR GRET
ZRGBRARRZFHERERS -

(ii) REAEEBREARANGEERLAQANE
ATEBHELERR -_E—NAE—A+N
B ZZ-AFHA=BR=-ZT—LERA
—HEBFTVHERRE HEE=T N
F+ZA=+—HB%8EAARM2550,000
JL (% 142,832,5408 L) * 2 S ERBE
I RFEFER1.95%t B BEER =T — N
FH-_REE-

BIEAEEB SR RANTEERARRNEB
AREEHER =T/ \F=-A=+=AH"
—ZE-N\FERA+ARB 2T NFEXANR
H —Z—N\F+A=-+/, B —ZF—)\#¥f
NA=+H ZE—-/\FhLAT=BER=Z
—N\E+—AZ+ N BT IHNERR#H H
HE-_Z-N\F+_A=1t—B2EAAR
#4,760,0007T (48 %5 745,400,125# 70) -
ZEERAEERR  BFHE1.95%1 8 B
ER-_T—NhF_AZ+—AEE-

iy ZNHKEEIRREE(ARAER)NMNEZ
FHER8Y -

ARBERBRFEFMR(ZZ—N
FMR)WBRARZ —RIBITEEMIR
77 1E 130,230,000 7T ( =T — \F:
30,230,000 L) 2 AEIER - R ZF
—NF+=ZA=+—H ZEWBERF
FACRE SR A2,376,533 8L (- F
— [\ 4,497,498 L) " BEERE
REEEFPT Lz FARERTS
EXERGE BARFKREAAE
RZAFEITTEK-
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MAJOR NON-CASH TRANSACTIONS

In August 2019, a subsidiary of the Group entered into
a contract for properties in development with a property
developer and a three-party agreement for loan repayment
arrangement. The borrower was settled its loan receivables as
at 31 December 2018 amounting to RMB1,000,000 (equivalent
to HK$1,134,480) with its interest income and compensation
income of RMB100,370 (equivalent to HK$113,480) by
repaying the money to the property developer for the properties
in development amounting to RMB1,400,000 (equivalent to
HK$1,555,120) on behalf of the subsidiary. The remaining
consideration of RMB299,630 (equivalent to HK$338,768) was
paid by staff of the subsidiary and will be reimbursed afterward.

During the year, the Group entered into new lease agreements
for the use of leased properties for 31 months. On the lease
commencement, the Group recognised RMB3,568,700
(equivalent to HK$4,034,844) of right-of-use asset and
RMB3,568,700 (equivalent to HK$4,034,844) lease liability.

EVENT AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

Disposal of a subsidiary

On 20 December 2019, the Group entered into an agreement
for disposing the entire interests of one of the subsidiaries,
Sinofortune Securities Limited, which is principally engaged
in the securities and futures brokerage and securities margin
financing services in Hong Kong. The disposal is subject to
the approval from SFC. According to the sale and purchase
agreement, the purchaser can terminate the transaction at any
time by notice in writing to the vendor. The Group has received
the deposits of HK$1,710,000 for the disposal of subsidiary
before the year end date.

Impact of Novel Coronavirus Outbreak to the Group
Since January 2020, the outbreak of Novel Coronavirus
(“COVID-19”) has impact on the global business environment.
Up to the date when the consolidated financial statements
are authorised for issue, COVID-19 has not resulted in
material impact to the Group. Pending on the development
and spread of COVID-19 subsequent to the date of these
financial statements, further changes in economic conditions
for the Group arising thereof may have impact on the financial
statements of the Group, the extent of which could not be
estimated as at the date of these financial statements. The
Group will keep continuous attention on the situation of the
COVID-19 and react actively to its impact on the financial
position and operating results of the Group.

FHEREMERAT | —EB-NEFH

42.

43.
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RZBE-—NFNA AEEN—FRWBE
ARAE-—ZEMWEREFIIL—HE
WMEARUBEZRETMER —H=
FHhEAEEER - BE_E—N\F
T A=+ BHHEKERBREAEA
K #1,000,0007T (482 141,134,480/%
To) AR BWARMEWRAEARE
100,3707t (FHEHW113,480/8 7T) » &
HRARZWEB AR R Tz %
REZERPWEZARE ESTEAA
K #1,400,0007T (48 181,555,120/%
TIEERZH MBERTFMEZHT
REHZMBEARZETRITEINIR
HigEE &8 A ARK299,6307T (1
338,768 TT) °

FR-AEBITUHEEHZEUERD
HMEVHEII@EA -RAERABE &
SEmRACAEEEARKS,568,700
7T (10 704,034,844 T ) F1 A R
3,568,7007T (18 & 74,034,844/ T)
MmEEamE-

HREMESIE

HE—RREBAT
RZE—NF+ZA=Z+H Xx£EE
AU EALE—EMERAR, EEE
FHERABNEHED ZRREEHR
EENEBLARBERLNFLFRES
RERB - ZHEWFEEERRE-
BEEEHR B AERBEER
BANEFRERG -ANEBERELEBF
EREHEENRE AR 2% $1,710,000
BT e

FRBRRSERHAEENZE
BE-_Z_TF—AR FEERFES
([COVID-19) ) BB 2 HREBBRIRE
ETHE - BEZERAVBRRER
FETI)3E - COVID- 19 Y AR B i AL &
REE - BURACOVID-19E % Z 8 1548
FHEENBERLELEL WALEE
B A AR R I R IR — 0 ) - AR
EENTEREASTINEE  ERZ
EMBHREBMELI AT EETER
€ AEEEEERSCOVID- 191 % 15
BE TEEGEEHEBBEREALEE
MRS EEENTE-
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44. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE 44, XATIMBRRFE
COMPANY

2019 2018
—E-h%E —E—N\F
Note HK$ HK$
M =E I BT

Non-current assets ERENEE
Property, plant and equipments e Y 284,262 294,290
Investments in subsidiaries RB AR ZIEE 19 113,277,251 168,317,500
Interests in associates YRR/ D e - -
Amounts due from subsidiaries JE WL B JB A B F A 53,975,833 58,948,266

167,537,346 227,560,056

Current assets HENEE
Prepayments, deposits and FENFE -ZER
other receivables H {th pE W 5008 245,137 528,186

Bank balances and cash RITEBRNIES 30,708,942 69,185,398
30,954,079 69,713,584

Total assets EEEE 198,491,425 297,273,640

Current liabilities REER

Other payables and accruals H A e 5 FR0E N E R FE 2,567,500 817,500

Amounts due to subsidiaries JE 1B B A B FUA 13,606,591 13,606,591
16,174,091 14,424,091

Net current assets MEEEEE 14,779,988 55,289,493

Net assets BEFE 182,317,334 282,849,549

Capital and reserves BAEREE

Share capital & A 77,489,582 77,489,582

Share premium B 19 5 (B 1,673,298,866 1,673,298,866

Share-based compensation reserve A% 7 i € # & 21,624,496 30,554,498

Accumulated losses ZErEE (1,590,095,610) (1,498,493,397)

Total equity EiSgE 182,317,334 282,849,549

Wang Jiawei Lai Yuk Mui

o REE

Director Director

EF EE
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45. RESERVE OF THE COMPANY 45. EATHEE
Share-based
Share Share Other compensation Accumulated
capital premium reserve reserve losses  Total equity
[ et} it (B Hibfis ROEEGRE RithiE ELEE
HK$ HK$ HKS HKS HKS HK$
BT o BT B B BT
Balance as at 1 January 2018 RZB-NF-A—B2&H 64,989,582  1,614,798,866 (16,000,000) 30,554,498 (1,505,537,852) 188,805,094
Profit for the year FRET - - - - 7,044,455 7,044,455
Cancellation of shares under AEEERH RN
escrow arrangement (2,000,000)  (14,000,000) 16,000,000 - - -
New issuance during the year FRIET 14,500,000 72,500,000 - - - 87,000,000
Balance as at 31 December 2018 RZE-\F+ZA=1+—8
&S 77,489,582 1,673,298,866 - 30,554,498 (1,498,493,397) 282,849,549
Balance as at 1 January 2019 RZB-NE-A—Bz&H 77,489,582 1,673,298,866 - 30,554,498 (1,498,493,397) 282,849,549
Loss for the year FREE - - - - (100,532,215)  (100,532,215)
Transfer of share-based compensation BREXBBERRNBERE
reserve upon the lapse of share options - - - (8,930,002) 8,930,002 -
Balance as at 31 December 2019 RZZE-NF+ZA=1+—-8
2B 71,489,582 1,673,298,866 - 21,624,496 (1,590,095,610) 182,317,334
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FINANCIAL SUMMARY
Bt %5 W =

A summary of the results and of the assets and liabilities of the WIFEADTIRKERGARFRRZAEER
Group for the last five financial years as extracted from the published BEREAMKFEEXENREEREGERE
audited consolidated financial statements is set out below: ;HHWT

Year ended 31 December

BEt-A=+-HLEE

2019 2018 2017 2016 2015
—E-0E —T-N\F Tt F —T-RFF —E-RE
HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$
BT AL B BT B
RESULTS £
Revenue ey 326,155,068 344,830,978 29,186,397 8,896,415 45,714,003
Loss before income tax BEGHAIEE (124,666,424)  (32,014,808) (138,848,753) (277,782,737)  (79,676,433)
Income tax income ZiECs i ON 181,549 181,520 2,545,494 32,879,188 18,628,673
Loss from discontinued operation BRIECEERER (9,137,884) - - - -
Loss for the year FRER (133,622,759)  (31,833,378) (136,303,259) (244,903,549)  (61,047,760)
Attributable to: JE1f -
Owners of the Company AREHEBA (127,674,239)  (31,213,014) (136,497,133)  (244,075,407)  (62,850,046)
Non-controlling interests FERER (5,948,520) (620,364) 193,874 (828,142) 1,802,286
(183,622,759)  (31,833,378) (136,303,259) (244,903,549)  (61,047,760)
Year ended 31 December
BE+-BA=+-HLEE
2019 2018 2017 2016 2015
—B-nAE CZT-N\F —E—+F X% —E-HE
HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$ HKS$
BT BT B oo B
ASSETS, LIABILITIES AND BE BRERFERER
NON-CONTROLLING INTERESTS
Total assets EEBE 312,873,809 412,131,704 409,576,495 500,383,613 802,266,703
Total liabilities BEAE (66,897,554)  (33,955,949)  (72,711,195)  (31,346,192)  (71,550,339)
Non-controlling interests kRS (7,428,455)  (13,557,403)  (14,903,119) (6,215,475) (7,006,907)

238,547,800 364,618,352 321,962,181 462,821,946 723,709,457
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